China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. Form F-1/A December 09, 2015 Table of Contents

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 9, 2015

Registration No. 333-199306

# **UNITED STATES**

# SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

# **PRE-EFFECTIVE AMENDMENT NO. 6 ON FORM F-1**

ТО

# FORM S-1

## **REGISTRATION STATEMENT**

## **UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933**

## CHINA CUSTOMER RELATIONS CENTERS, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

7636

Not applicable (I.R.S. Employer

Edgar i mig. officie			
(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization)	(Primary Standard Classification Cod		Identification Number)
c/o Shandong Taiying Technology			
1366 Zhongtianmen Dajie	;		
Xinghuo Science and Technolog	y Park		
High-tech Zone, Taian Cit	V	Vcorn Ag	ent Services, Inc.
Then teen Zone, Tulun Ch	3	veorp 115	ent bei vices, me.
Shandong Province		25 Robert ]	Pitt Dr., Suite 204
People s Republic of China 2	71000	Monsey, I	New York 10952
(+86) 538 691 8899		(888	3) 528-2677
(Address, including zip code, and telepl including	hone number, (N	lame, address, inclu	ding zip code, and telephone
area code, of principal executive		umber, including are	ea code, of agent for service)

Copies to:

Bradley A. Haneberg, Esq. Matthew B. Chmiel, Esq. Haneberg, PLC 301 Granite Avenue, Richmond, VA 23226 Telephone: (804) 814-2209 Ralph V. De Martino, Esq. Cavas S. Pavri, Esq. Schiff Hardin LLP 901 K Street NW Washington, DC 20001 Telephone: (202) 724-6848

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: As soon as practicable after this Registration Statement becomes effective.

If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, check the following box. x

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. "

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same

offering. "

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer, and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer "
Non-accelerated filer " (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Accelerated filer Smaller reporting company x

The registrant hereby amends this Registration Statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this Registration Statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or until the Registration Statement shall become effective on such date as the Securities and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to such Section 8(a), may determine.

# CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

## Proposed Maximum Proposed Maximum

Title of Each Class of		Aggregate Price	Aggregate Offering	Amount of
Securities to be Registered	Amount to be Registered	Per Share	Price <sup>(1)</sup>	Registration Fee <sup>(2)</sup>
Common Shares, \$0.001 per share				
to be sold by Registrant	2,400,000	\$5.00	\$12,000,000	\$1,394.40
Total	2,400,000	\$5.00	\$12,000,000	\$1,394.40

(1) This registration fee is based on an estimate of the proposed maximum offering price of the securities pursuant to Rule 457(a) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

(2) Paid previously.

The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration statement is filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state or other jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

### **SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED DECEMBER 9, 2015**

### China Customer Relations Centers, Inc.

### MINIMUM OFFERING: 2,000,000 COMMON SHARES

### MAXIMUM OFFERING: 2,400,000 COMMON SHARES

This is the initial public offering of China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. ( CCRC ). We are offering a minimum of 2,000,000 common shares and a maximum of 2,400,000 common shares.

The offering price is \$4.00 per common share. No public market currently exists for our common shares. We have applied for approval for quotation on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol CCRC for the common shares we are offering. We believe that upon the completion of the offering contemplated by this prospectus, we will meet the standards for listing on the NASDAQ Capital Market. We are an emerging growth company as that term is used in the Jumpstart Our Business Startup Act of 2012.

Investing in these common shares involves significant risks. See <u>Risk Factors</u> beginning on page 11 of this prospectus.

			To our	Comp	Dany
	Per	Share	Minimum Offering	Maxi	imum Offering
Public offering price	\$	4.00	\$ 8,000,000	\$	9,600,000
Placement fee <sup>(1)</sup>	\$	.32	\$ 640,000	\$	768,000
Proceeds, before expenses <sup>(2)</sup>	\$	3.68	\$7,360,000	\$	8,832,000

(1) The placement fee will be 8% of the public offering price, or \$.32 per common share. The placement fee does not reflect additional compensation to the placement agent in the form of a non-accountable expense allowance of 1.5% or \$.06 per common share. See section entitled Placement on page 89 for more information

<sup>(2)</sup> The total expenses of this offering, excluding the placement fee and expenses, are approximately \$700,000. The placement agent must sell the minimum number of securities offered (2,000,000 common shares) if any are sold. The placement agent is required to use only its best efforts to sell the securities offered. The offering will terminate upon the earlier of: (i) a date mutually acceptable to us and our placement agent after which the minimum offering is sold or (ii) January 18, 2016. Until the placement agent sells at least 2,000,000 common shares, all investor funds will be held in an escrow account at SunTrust Bank, Richmond, Virginia, which is serving as the escrow agent for this offering. If the placement agent does not sell at least 2,000,000 common shares by January 18, 2016, all funds will be promptly returned to investors (within one business day) without interest or deduction. If this offering completes, net proceeds will be delivered to our company on the closing date. If we complete this offering, then on the closing date, we will issue the common shares to investors in the offering.

Newbridge Securities Corporation will be a sub-placement agent in this offering.

These securities have not been approved or disapproved by the Securities and Exchange Commission or any state securities commission nor has the Securities and Exchange Commission or any state securities commission passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

VIEWTRADE SECURITIES, INC. Prospectus dated , 2015

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Prospectus Summary	1
Risk Factors	11
Defined Terms and Conventions	40
Forward-Looking Statements	42
Our Corporate Structure	42
<u>Use of Proceeds</u>	46
Dividend Policy	47
Exchange Rate Information	47
Capitalization	48
Dilution	50
Post-Offering Ownership	51
Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	51
<u>Our Business</u>	75
Regulation	88
Management	92
Related Party Transactions	100
Principal Stockholders	102
Description of Share Capital	103
Shares Eligible for Future Sale	112
Tax Matters Applicable to U.S. Holders of Our Common Shares	113
Enforceability of Civil Liabilities	120
Placement	121
Legal Matters	125
Experts	125
Where You Can Find More Information	126
Financial Statements	F-1
No dealer, salesperson or other person is authorized to give any information or to represent any	ything not

contained in this prospectus. You must not rely on any unauthorized information or representations. This prospectus is an offer to sell only the shares offered hereby, but only under circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to do so. The information contained in this prospectus is current only as of its date.

### **PROSPECTUS SUMMARY**

This summary highlights information that we present more fully in the rest of this prospectus. This summary does not contain all of the information you should consider before buying common shares in this offering. This summary contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, such as statements about our plans, objectives, expectations, assumptions or future events. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by *terminology such as anticipate*. estimate, plan, project, continuing, ongoing, expect, we believe, we intend, should. will, could, and similar expressions denoting uncertainty or an action may, that may, will or is expected to occur in the future. These statements involve estimates, assumptions, known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from any future results, performances or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. You should read the entire prospectus carefully, including the Risk Factors section and the financial statements and the notes to those statements.

### **Our Company**

We are a call center business process outsourcing (BPO) service provider in China. BPO services are designed to allow businesses to achieve various operational benefits, such as cost savings, better quality services, and the ability to focus on core competencies. Our call centers are currently equipped with approximately 7,800 seats in Shandong Province, Jiangsu Province, Jiangsi Province, Hebei Province, Anhui Province, the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and Chongqing City. We use approximately 87% of our seats. Our business focuses on the complex, voice-based segment of customer care services, including:

customer relationship management;

technical support;

sales;

customer retention;

marketing surveys; and

research.

We are a significant provider of BPO services in the telecommunications industry in China, as we hold contracts with provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile Communications Corporation (China Mobile) and China Telecommunications Corporation (China Telecom) in that sector and have been recognized by the Chinese Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (MIIT) as China's Best Inbound Outsourcing Contact Center of the Year for 2009, China's Best Outbound Outsourcing Contact Center of the Year for 2011, and The Well Known Servicing Enterprise Who has the Most Growth Potential in China' for 2014.

Most of our revenues are generated from provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom and from Haier, GM OnStar, and Volvo. We currently have short-term agreements with 7 provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and with 3 provincial subsidiaries of China Telecom. Further, we are in the process of renewing an additional 7 contracts with the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile. There is no assurance that these 7 additional contracts will be renewed. Upon renewal we will have a total of 14 contracts with the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile. In addition to answering inbound calls, or calls initiated by customers purchasing products and services from our clients, our company also provides outbound cold calling services to help the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom promote mobile value-added service (MVAS) products, such as weather, health, education and farming related MVAS products to targeted subscribers.

### **Corporate Information**

Our principal executive office is located at 1366 Zhongtianmen Dajie, High-tech Zone, Taian City, Shandong Province, China 271000. Our telephone number is (+86) 538 691 8899. Our facsimile number is (+86) 538 691 6699. We do not maintain a corporate website at this time.

### **Industry and Market Background**

## China s Call Center BPO Market

Compared with countries such as the U.S. and India that have relatively more mature markets, China s call center outsourcing market is still in an early stage of development. In the past few years, competition in China s market was relatively low due to highly differentiated positions and large number of unexploited potential outsourcing customers. At present, low price, standard service vendors tend to be most popular in the market. Nevertheless, as more competition in the China market is introduced in the future, we believe that the ability to provide customer oriented solutions in the China call center BPO market will be increasingly valued by customers.

We believe outsourcing will continue to grow as a result of higher client demand for cost savings, along with the need for high-quality customer interactions and innovative service solutions that deliver tangible value. The call center BPO services of our clients are non-core outsourcing processes, or BPO services that our clients may not view as critical to their operations and are outsourced to us. By providing these services for our clients, we aid them in streamlining their business operations.

### **Telecommunications Market**

According to the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, in February 2015, the number of China s mobile phone subscribers increased to 1.289 billion while the number of China s fixed-line phone subscribers decreased to 247 million. As of December 2014, China had 557 million mobile Internet users, the percentage of those using mobile phones to go online reaching 85.8%. With intensified competition in the telecommunications market, major telecommunication companies such as China Mobile are making transitions from voice-centric to data-centric operations, from communications to mobile Internet and information consumption, and from mobile communication operations to innovative full service operations.

Our Operating Companies (as defined on page 40) largest customers are the provincial subsidiaries of two of the three major telecommunications operators in China, namely China Mobile and China Telecom, and we believe that increasing competition among the three operators will drive demand for outsourcing their call center functions to third party service providers.

## China s Banking Industry

China s banking system has grown considerably in recent years. According to the Institute of International Finance, China s bank assets have grown more than five-fold over the last decade, as compared with a 40-50% increase in the United States, Europe and Japanese bank assets. According to Banks Around the World website, in 2014, four of the world s top 10 banks by asset size are Chinese banks, including the world s largest bank and the 2nd, 4th, and 7th largest banks. The total assets of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, the biggest bank in the world for the third consecutive year, reached \$3,182 billion based on the March 31, 2014 balance sheet. According to the China Banking Regulatory Commission, the total assets of Chinese banking industry grew by 13.84 percent from the prior year to 172 trillion Yuan by the end of 2014.

We believe developments in China s banking industry such as, internet, mobile banking and the increase in innovative financial products will bring pressure on financial institutions to take measures to generate sales, reduce their costs of operations, and become more efficient. One such measure is to outsource their call center or data services to companies like us.

We recently entered into outsourcing contracts with two of China s top five largest banks, China Construction Bank and Bank of Communications.

### **Online Retail Market**

China s retail industry has experienced substantial growth as a result of rising disposable income and increasing urbanization. According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the real annual per capita income of rural households and urban households in China increased by a compounded annual growth rate of 9.2% and 6.8% from 2013 to 2014, respectively. Although the Chinese savings rates are still among the highest in the world, per capita consumer expenditure in China is expected to grow by around 7% per year over 2014-2020, according to *Euromonitor International*.

China s online retail market is expected to benefit from its large population of Internet users. According to *China Internet Network Information Center*, China had the world s largest Internet population with 649 million users as of December, 2014. In 2014, the total transaction value of China s online shopping market exceeded \$453.61 billion, an increase of 48.7% over the previous year, according to China Internet Watch. This number is expected to increase as a result of continued growth in Internet users as well as an increased proportion of Internet users making purchases online. We believe the growth in the online retail market will provide us with opportunities to provide outsourcing services.

### **Our Geographic Market**

We provide call center services throughout China. We currently operate 11 call centers in Shandong Province, Hebei Province, Jiangsi Province, Jiangsu Province, Anhui Province, the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and Chongqing City.

### **Our Opportunity**

China possesses the world s largest mobile phone population. According to the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of China, in February 2015, the number of China s mobile phone subscribers increased to 1.289 billion. Most call centers serving the telecom industry in China are owned and managed by telecom operators themselves. We believe that there are approximately 100,000 call center seats employed by the China telecom industry. We believe that the Chinese telecom industry will begin to outsource this segment business to third parties as competition and demand for efficiency increases in the industry. Compared with our current 7,800 call center seats, we believe that there is tremendous growth opportunity for us.

We believe that the Operating Companies possess only a small portion of the telecom market that can be potentially outsourced. As such, we believe that an increasing demand for BPO services and limited existing competition grants significant opportunities to grow our business among the Chinese telecom companies. We believe the Operating Companies call center operating experience provides us an opportunity to compete as more China companies continue to demand outsourcing for their non-core, call center functions.

### **Our Competitive Strengths**

We believe the following strengths differentiate us from our competitors in our market in China:

We are a provider of telecommunications call center BPO services to the provincial subsidiaries of two significant telecommunications carriers in China. Our principal operating company, Taiying, is a provider of call center BPO services to the provincial subsidiaries of two of the three telecommunications carriers in China, specifically China Mobile and China Telecom.

*We have developed comprehensive and scalable solutions.* Taiying has developed different programs to maximize outbound calling professionals performance across all three major sales metrics: (i) units sold - conversion rate and sales per hour, (ii) customer retention, and (iii) customer satisfaction from a positive sales experience. Taiying benefits from economies of scale as a result of being a large telecommunications call center BPO operation in China.

*We employ highly qualified personnel.* Taiying s workforce is highly skilled with specialized training designed to address complex customer care engagements. Our entrepreneurial management team includes employees who have significant experience managing call center services.

*Commitment to innovation and quality service.* Taiying has obtained registered computer software ownership rights for ten pieces of intellectual property from the China State Copyright Bureau. We have no patents or trademarks for our business. Taiying has attained several awards in recognition of its efforts in setting up national call center standards and in improving the quality of call center service; and Taiying has been recognized with awards and certificates by a variety of government entities for its efforts in call center BPO service.

### **Our Strategies**

Our objective is to become one of the largest BPO service providers in China. We intend to achieve this objective by:

capitalizing on growth opportunities in China s telecommunications market;

strengthening the Operating Companies relationships with existing key customers;

making strategic acquisitions and alliances that fit within our core competencies and growth strategies;

expanding the geographical scope of our business to other provinces;

diversifying our client base by providing services to financial institutions, government organizations, and IT and e-commerce entities;

identifying and creating new networks and advertising channels that target specific consumer demographics and expand network capacity; and

building a strong brand presence. **Our Challenges and Risks** 

We have a very limited operating history on which to base an evaluation of our business and prospects. Our prospects should be considered in light of the risks, uncertainties, expenses and difficulties frequently encountered by companies in the early stages of their development. Our ability to realize our business objectives and execute our strategies is subject to risks and uncertainties, including the following:

our business is currently heavily dependent upon the Chinese telecom market;

our business is currently dependent upon the subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom for which we have short-term agreements;

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we had government grants of \$1,439,186, which accounted for 81% of our net income. For the six months ended June 30, 2015 the government grants were \$400,598, which accounted for 22% of our net income. There is no assurance that we will continue to receive these grants and in the absence of future government grants, our operations and profitability will be negatively impacted.

we must establish and maintain a highly trained workforce;

we face competition from existing competitors and new market entrants, many of whom may possess significant financial resources;

we rely principally on dividends paid by our PRC operating subsidiary, Shandong Juncheng Information Technology Co., Ltd. (WFOE), to fund cash and financing requirements, and there are PRC laws restricting the ability of these entities from paying dividends or making other distributions to us;

there are risks and uncertainties associated with our variable interest entity structure; and

the regulatory and legal system in China is complex and developing, and future regulations may impose additional requirements on our business.

In addition, we face other risks and uncertainties that may materially affect our business prospectus, financial condition, and results of operations. You should consider the risks discussed in Risk Factors and elsewhere in this prospectus before investing in our common shares.

#### **Summary Financial Information**

In the table below, we provide you with summary financial data of our company. This information is derived from our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for any future period. When you read this historical selected financial data, it is important that you read it along with the historical statements and notes and Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included elsewhere in this prospectus.

Consolidated Statement of Income and Other								
Comprehensive Income Data								
(in U.S. dollars)	For T	he Six Mont 2015	ths <b>E</b>	Ended June 3 2014	0,For	The Years En 2014	ded	December 31, 2013
Total revenues	\$ 2	25,681,240	\$	16,898,832	\$	42,673,139	\$	28,130,305
Cost of revenues		20,293,632		14,128,488		35,188,331		23,757,669
Gross profit		5,387,608		2,770,344		7,484,808		4,372,636
Total operating								
expenses		3,459,306		2,097,828		5,779,600		3,085,437
Income from operations	5	1,928,302		672,516		1,705,208		1,287,199

Edgar Filing: China	Customer Relations	Centers,	Inc Form F-1/A
---------------------	--------------------	----------	----------------

Other income and				
(expenses)				
Government grants	400,598	491,514	1,439,186	2,714,026
Other income	204,345	28,816	64,873	112,140
Other expense	(63,241)	(43,174)	(238,413)	(101,034)
Interest expense	(200,901)	(193,609)	(552,894)	(468,823)
Total other income	340,801	283,547	712,752	2,256,309
Income before provision				
for income taxes	2,269,103	956,063	2,417,960	3,543,508
Income tax provision	458,942	255,248	635,859	594,240
Net income	1,810,161	700,815	1,782,101	2,949,268
Other comprehensive				
income				
Foreign currency				
translation adjustment	88,602	(22,527)	27,280	78,074
Total comprehensive				
income	1,898,763	678,288	1,809,381	3,027,342
Earnings per common				
share basic and fully				
diluted	\$ 0.11/0.11	\$ 0.05/0.05	\$ 0.11/0.11	\$ 0.19/0.19

	June 30,	Decem	ber 31,
<b>Balance Sheet Date (at end of period)</b>	2015	2014	2013
(in U.S. dollars)			
Cash	\$ 794,897	\$ 5,097,010	\$ 5,714,563
Total current assets	18,107,696	16,149,427	13,448,808
Total non-current assets	3,699,163	3,715,981	3,795,375
Total assets	21,806,859	19,865,408	17,244,183
Total current liabilities	10,731,258	10,684,120	14,391,502
Total non-current liabilities		4,450	
Total liabilities	10,731,258	10,688,570	14,391,502
Total stockholders equity	11,075,601	9,176,838	2,852,681
Total liabilities and stockholders equity	\$21,806,859	\$19,865,408	\$17,244,183

We have presented earnings per share in CCRC after giving retroactive effect to the reorganization of our company that was completed on September 3, 2014, upon Taiying s execution of control agreements with its sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying Anrui Holding Co., Ltd. (Beijing Taiying), and WFOE. This information is pro forma because the 15,929,600 CCRC common shares did not exist prior to the formation of CCRC in 2014.

### **Our Corporate Structure**

### **Overview**

We are a holding company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands that owns all of the outstanding capital stock of China BPO Holdings Limited (CBPO), our wholly owned Hong Kong subsidiary. CBPO, in turn, owns all of the outstanding capital stock of WFOE, our operating subsidiary based in Taian City, Shandong Province, China. WFOE has entered into control agreements with the sole shareholder of Taiying, which allow WFOE to control Taiying. Through our ownership of CBPO, CBPO s ownership of WFOE and WFOE s agreements with Taiying, we control Taiying. Taiying, in turn, is the sole shareholder of eleven operational subsidiaries.

## Corporate History Taiying, WFOE, CBPO and CCRC

Taiying was incorporated on December 18, 2007 as a domestic Chinese limited liability company. We formed CBPO, WFOE and CCRC in 2014, in anticipation of registering the common shares of CCRC in an initial public offering. In connection with the formation of CCRC, CBPO and WFOE, we caused WFOE to become the wholly-owned foreign entity of CBPO as of August 19, 2014 and to enter into certain control agreements with Taiying and its sole shareholder, pursuant to which we, by virtue of our ownership of CBPO and CBPO s ownership of WFOE, control Taiying.

# Corporate History Central BPO, JTTC, HTCC, SCBI, JCBI, ATIT, STTGB, STTCB, HTTYB, JTIS, NTEB, JXTT, XTTC and BTTC

Taiying incorporated the following wholly-owned subsidiaries on the dates indicated below:

Chongqing Central BPO Industry Co., Ltd. ( Central BPO ) January 28, 2010;

Jiangsu Taiying Technology Co., Ltd. ( JTTC ) February 25, 2010;

Hebei Taiying Communication BPO Co., Ltd. ( HTCC ) April 20, 2010;

Shandong Central BPO Industry Co., Ltd. (SCBI) August 9, 2012;

Jiangsu Central Information Service Co., Ltd. ( JCBI ) December 12, 2013;

Anhui Taiying Information Technology Co., Ltd. ( ATIT ) December 26, 2013;

Shandong Taiying Technology Guangxi Branch Company (STTGB) May 28, 2013;

Shandong Taiying Technology Chongqing Branch Company (STTCB) February 22, 2013;

Hebei Taiying Technology Yanjiao Branch Company (HTTYB) January 2, 2014 (the operation of this company was transferred to HTCC);

Jiangsu Taiying Information Service Co., Ltd. ( JTIS ) July 1, 2014;

Nanjing Taiying E-commerce Business Co., Ltd. ( NTEB ) December 25, 2014;

Jiangxi Taiying Technology Co., Ltd. ( JXTT ) January 8, 2015;

Xinjiang Taiying Techology Co., Ltd. ( XTTC ) March 20, 2015; and

Beijing Taiying Technology Co., Ltd. (BTTC) June 30, 2015. Control Agreements

We conduct our business in China through our subsidiary, WFOE. WFOE, in turn, conducts it business through Taiying, in which we hold no equity interest, but which we control through a series of control agreements with Taiying and its sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying. Foreign ownership of certain business is subject to restriction under applicable PRC laws, rules and regulations. Certain aspects of our call center business are subject to these restrictions on foreign investment. In order to comply with these laws and regulations, we have entered into control agreements with Taiying through which we operate the restricted businesses. Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP), Taiying is considered a variable interest entity (VIE). U.S. GAAP requires us to consolidate the Operating Companies in our financial statements because our control agreements related to Taiying provide us with the risks and rewards associated with equity ownership, even though we do not own any of the outstanding equity interests in the Operating Companies.

On September 3, 2014, Taiying and its sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying, entered into an Entrusted Management Agreement, Exclusive Option Agreement, Shareholder s Voting Proxy Agreement and Pledge of Equity Interest Agreement (collectively, the Control Agreements) with WFOE in return for ownership interests in CCRC. Through the organization of CCRC as a holding company, Beijing Taiying investors now own 96% of the common shares of CCRC. The remaining 4% of CCRC s common shares belong to other investors. CCRC, in turn, indirectly controls Taiying through its 100% equity interests of WFOE.

Through the Control Agreements, we can control the Operating Companies daily operations and financial affairs, appoint their senior executives and approve all matters requiring shareholder approval. As a result of the Control Agreements, which enable us to control the Operating Companies and cause WFOE to absorb 100% of the expected losses and gains of the Operating Companies, we are considered the primary beneficiary of the Operating Companies. In addition, the shareholders of Beijing Taiying control 96% of the shares of CCRC. Accordingly, we consolidate the Operating Companies operating results, assets and liabilities in our financial statements. For a description of these contractual arrangements, see Our Corporate Structure Contractual Arrangements with Taiying and Taiying s Shareholder.

## Table of Contents

Our current corporate structure is as follows:

### **Emerging Growth Company Status**

We are an emerging growth company, as defined in the JOBS Act, and we are eligible to take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not emerging growth companies including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of holding a non-binding advisory vote on executive compensation and stockholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved. We have not made a decision whether to take advantage of any or all of these exemptions. If we do take advantage of any of these exemptions, we do not know if some investors will find our common shares less attractive as a result. The result may be a less active trading market for our common shares and the price of our common shares may be more volatile.

In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the Securities Act ) for complying with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an emerging growth company can delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. However, we are choosing to opt out of such extended transition period, and as a result, we will comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant dates on which adoption of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that our decision to opt out of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards is revocable.

We could remain an emerging growth company for up to five years, or until the earliest of (i) the last day of the first fiscal year in which our annual gross revenues exceed \$1 billion, (ii) the date that we become a large accelerated filer as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act ), which would occur if the market value of our common shares that is held by non-affiliates exceeds \$700 million as of the last business day of our most recently completed second fiscal quarter, or (iii) the date on which we have issued more than \$1 billion in non-convertible debt during the preceding three year period.

### **Foreign Private Issuer Status**

We are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and more than 50 percent of our outstanding voting securities are not directly or indirectly held by residents of the United States. Therefore, we are a foreign private issuer, as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act and Rule 3b-4(c) under the Exchange Act. As a result, we are not subject to the same requirements as U.S. domestic issuers. Under the Exchange Act, we will be subject to reporting obligations that, to some extent, are more lenient and less frequent than those of U.S. domestic reporting companies. For example, we will not be required to issue quarterly reports or proxy statements. We will not be required to disclose detailed individual executive compensation information. Furthermore, our directors and executive officers will not be required to report equity holdings under Section 16 of the Exchange Act and will not be subject to the insider short-swing profit disclosure and recovery regime.

#### **Corporate Information**

Our principal executive office is located at 1366 Zhongtianmen Dajie, Xinghuo Science and Technology Park, High-tech Zone, Taian City, Shandong Province, People s Republic of China 271000. Our telephone number is (+86) 538 691 8899. We do not currently have a website.

### The Offering

Common Shares to be Offered by our Company:	Minimum Offering	y: 2,000,000	Maximum Offering: 2,400,000
Common Shares Outstanding Prior to Completion of Offering:	Minimum Offering	r 15 929 600	Maximum Offering: 15,929,600
C C	C		-
Shares to be Outstanding after Offering:	Minimum Offering	;: 17,929,600 <sup>(1)</sup>	Maximum Offering: 18,329,600 <sup>(2)</sup>
Gross Proceeds to our Company:	Minimum Offering	g: \$8,000,000 <sup>(3)</sup>	Maximum Offering: \$9,600,000 (3)
NASDAQ Capital Market Symbol:	CCRC (CUSIP	No. G2118P 102)	
Transfer Agent:		Vstock Transfer, L	LC
		18 Lafayette Place	, Woodmere, New York 11598
Use of Proceeds:		follows after we co	he net proceeds of this offering as complete the remittance process, and he specific uses of proceeds in order
		•••	7 \$3.2 million for the purchase of ng workstations, computers and

Approximately \$1.1 million for future acquisitions;

Approximately \$700,000 for additional research and development related to data mining and product development; and

	Approximately \$500,000 in escrow for indemnity claims of the Placement Agent (defined below), which sum could be returned to us after two years from the date of this offering.
	The balance, approximately \$1 million (assuming a minimum offering) or \$2.5 million (assuming a maximum offering for additional working capital.
Risk Factors:	Investing in these securities involves a high degree of risk. As an investor, you should be able to bear a complete loss of your investment. You should carefully consider the information set forth in the Risk Factors section of this prospectus before deciding to invest in our common shares.
Placement:	We have engaged ViewTrade Securities, Inc. (the Placement Agent ) to conduct this offering on a best efforts, minimum/maximum basis. The offering is being made without a firm commitment by the Placement Agent. We are offering a minimum of 2,000,000 common shares and a maximum of 2,400,000 common shares. The offering will terminate upon the earlier of: (i) a date mutually acceptable to us and the Placement Agent after which at least 2,000,000 common shares are sold or (ii) January 18, 2016, 2015. Until at least 2,000,000 common shares are sold, all investor funds will be held in an escrow account at SunTrust Bank, Richmond, Virginia, which is serving as the escrow agent for this offering. If at least 2,000,000 common shares are not sold by January 18, 2016, all funds will be promptly returned to investors (within one business day) without interest or deduction.

- (1) Includes (a) 2,000,000 common shares to be issued by our company in this offering, and (b) 15,929,600 common shares previously issued by our company. Excludes 1,832,960 common shares available for future issuance under our equity incentive plan.
- (2) Includes (a) 2,400,000 common shares to be issued by our company in this offering, and (b) 15,929,600 common shares previously issued by our company. Excludes 1,832,960 common shares available for future issuance under our equity incentive plan.

<sup>(3)</sup> Offering price per share is \$4.00.

### **RISK FACTORS**

Investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks described below together with all of the other information included in this prospectus before making an investment decision. The risks and uncertainties described below represent our known material risks to our business. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition or results of operations could suffer. In that case, you may lose all or part of your investment. You should not invest in this offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

### **Risks Related to Our Business**

# We are likely to depend on third-party software, systems and services and an interruption in the services could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our business and operations rely on China Telecom and China Mobile and may rely on other third parties to provide services, such as IT services, or shipping and transportation services. We may experience operational problems attributable to the installation, implementation, integration, performance, features or functionality of third-party software, access to communication networks and fiber optics, hosted environments, systems and services. Any interruption in the availability or usage of the services provided by China Mobile or China Telecom or other third parties could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

# Unexpected network interruptions, security breaches or computer virus attacks could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our business depends on the performance and reliability of the mobile telecommunications network of China Mobile or China Telecom, as the case may be. We may not have access to alternative networks in the event of disruptions, failures or other problems with China Mobile or China Telecom s wireless infrastructure.

Any failure to maintain the satisfactory performance, reliability, security and availability of our network infrastructure may cause significant harm to our reputation and our ability to attract and maintain clients. Major risks involved in such network infrastructure include, among others, any breakdowns or system failures resulting in a prolonged shutdown of all or a material portion of our servers, including failures which may be attributable to sustained power outages, or effort to gain unauthorized access to our systems causing loss or corruption of data or malfunctions of software or hardware.

Our network systems are vulnerable to damage from fire, flood, power loss, telecommunications failures, computer viruses, hackings and other similar events. Any network interruption or inadequacy that causes interruptions in the availability of our services or deterioration in the quality of access to our services could reduce our user satisfaction and our competitiveness. In addition, any security breach caused by hacking, which involves effort to gain unauthorized access to information or systems, or to cause intentional malfunctions or loss or corruption of data, software, hardware or other computer equipment, and the inadvertent transmission of computer viruses could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. We do not maintain insurance policies covering losses relating to our systems and we do not have business interruption insurance. See Risk Factors - We have limited business insurance coverage. Any future business liability, disruptions or litigation we experience might divert management focus from our business and could significantly impact our financial results.

# Our business is dependent upon the reliability and accessibility of China s telecommunications and Internet infrastructure and if they become nonfunctional our operational results could suffer as a result.

We render our services via telecommunications and Internet networks, and therefore our ability to fulfill our contracts and generate revenue and profits is dependent on those systems remaining available and

accessible with minimal disruption or interruption. Just as we are dependent on the reliability of our software and systems and the telecommunications networks of our principal clients, we are also dependent on the operational reliability and capacity of China s overall telecommunications and Internet infrastructure. Should this infrastructure or key portions of it be disabled or become nonfunctional, we may not be able to secure alternate means of communication or alternate means of accessing needed information. Our operational results could suffer as a result.

# Our revenues are highly dependent on a limited number of industries and any decrease in demand for outsourced services in these industries could reduce our revenues and adversely affect our results of operations.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, a majority of our net revenues were derived from clients in the telecommunications industry. The success of our business largely depends on continued demand for our services from clients in the telecommunications industry, as well as on trends in the telecommunications industry to outsource customer relation management services. A downturn in any of our targeted industries, particularly the telecommunications, a slowdown or reversal of the trend to outsource customer relation management services in any of these industries or the introduction of regulations that restrict or discourage companies from outsourcing could result in a decrease in the demand for our services, which in turn could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. Any significant reduction in or the elimination of the use of the services we provide within any of these industries would result in reduced revenues and harm our business. Our clients may experience rapid changes in their prospects, substantial price competition and pressure on their profitability. This, in turn, may result in increasing pressure on us from clients in these key industries to lower our prices, which could negatively affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

# We depend on a few customers for a significant portion of our revenues, and this dependency is likely to continue. Any deterioration of such relationships may result in severe disruptions to our business operations and the loss of the majority of our revenues.

We have derived, and believe that in the foreseeable future we will continue to derive, a significant portion of our revenues from a limited number of clients. In 2014, the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom accounted for 10% or more of our net revenues, and in the aggregate accounted for 74% of our net revenues. In 2013, the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom accounted for 10% or more of our net revenues, and in the aggregate accounted for 10% or more of our net revenues, and in the aggregate accounted for 78% of our net revenues. Our top five clients accounted for approximately 84% and 88% of our net revenues in 2014, respectively.

We operate under non-exclusive revenue sharing arrangements with the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom for inbound and outbound callings. We generally do not have long-term commitments from any of our clients to purchase our services. Our agreements with provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom generally have one-year terms and they do not have automatic renewal provisions. A number of factors other than our performance could cause the loss of or reduction in business or revenue from a client and these factors are not predictable. A client may demand price reductions, change its outsourcing strategy, switch to another outsourcing service provider or return work in-house. For example, if the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom are unwilling to continue to negotiate with us upon expiration of any of our contracts, we will face significant loss of business. The loss, cancellation, deferral or renegotiation of any large agreements with the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Our ability to maintain close relationships with these clients is essential to the growth and profitability of our business.

# The alteration of the revenue sharing percentage in our cooperation agreements with the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom or termination of these agreements could materially and adversely impact our business operations and financial conditions.

We have limited negotiating leverage with the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom. Our revenues and profitability could be materially and adversely affected if the provincial subsidiaries of either China Mobile or China Telecom decide to materially increase its revenue sharing percentage. In addition, the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom could impose monetary penalties upon us or even terminate cooperation agreements with us, for a variety of reasons, including without limitation, the following:

if the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom receive a high level of customer complaints about our call center service; or

if we fail to meet the performance standards established by the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom from time to time.

# Significant changes in the policies or guidelines of the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom with respect to services provided by us may materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Any of the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom may from time to time issue certain operating policies or guidelines, requesting or stating preferences for certain actions to be taken by all MVAS providers using their networks. Due to our reliance on the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom, a significant change in the policies or guidelines of these client may result in lower revenues or additional operating costs to us. We cannot assure that our financial condition and results of operations will not be materially adversely affected by a change in policies or guidelines by the provincial subsidiaries of either China Mobile or China Telecom.

# Our clients may adopt technologies that decrease the demand for our services, which could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We target clients that need our BPO services, and we depend on their continued need for our services. However, over time, our clients may adopt new technologies that decrease the need for live customer interaction, such as interactive voice response, web-based self-help and other technologies used to automate interactions with customers. The adoption of these technologies could reduce the demand for our services, create pricing pressure and harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.

# Failure to attract and retain telecommunications operators to work with us will negatively affect our ability to grow revenues and market share.

The amount of fees we can charge the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom depends upon the size of potential customers, the outbound cold calling success rate, and the quality of our data mining work. Telecommunications operators choose us to provide BPO services in part because of the effectiveness and quality of the services we offer. If we fail to maintain or increase the satisfaction level of our customers, or fail to solidify our brand name and reputation as a quality provider of call center services and content services, telecommunications operators may be unwilling to pay the fees at a level necessary for us to remain profitable.

# Changes in the regulation of the Chinese telecommunications industry could result in new burdens and expenses on service providers like us.

Our principal customers are telecommunications companies that operate in a highly regulated environment. Major telecommunications companies in China are state-owned or controlled, and their business

decisions and strategies are affected by government budgeting and spending plans. In addition, in December 2001, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of China promulgated a set of regulations governing telecommunications providers, and these regulations were augmented in 2003 with a classification system that covers, among other things, Type 2 value added service providers such as us. Changes in the regulatory system may impose new costs and burdens on us, or affect us indirectly by imposing new burdens and obligations onto our customers that, in turn, may be passed on to us under our agreements with customers. If such changes occur, our financial performance may be adversely affected.

# Further restructuring of China s telecommunications sector may have an adverse impact on our business prospects and results of operations.

Historically, China s telecommunications sector has been subject to a number of state-mandated restructurings. For example, in 2002 China Telecom was split geographically into a northern division (consisting of 10 provinces) and a southern division (consisting of 21 provinces).

In May 2008, China announced a new restructuring plan for the country s telecommunications carriers. This restructuring plan reorganized the operations of Chinese telecommunications carriers, creating three major carriers that have both mobile and fixed-line services. Moreover, in 2013, the Chinese government started to permit mobile virtual network operators to lease and repackage mobile services for sale to end customers. Such changes will lead to further intensified competition in China s telecommunications industry. As a result, more call center outsourcing solution providers will be competing for projects and telecommunications carriers may be able to exact lower prices for our solutions and services. If we cannot effectively compete with our competitors, our profit margin will be reduced, and our results of operations may be materially and adversely affected. Furthermore, telecommunications carriers may also find it more cost-effective to keep or establish their own BPO operations, instead of outsourcing to third-party providers. If the outsourcing of such services is reduced or reversed, our financial condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

# Call center services, particularly telemarketing services, may fall into disfavor among the public, reducing demand for our services.

Telemarketing services, particularly outbound call center services, may fall into public disfavor if the recipients of calls find them annoying, burdensome or otherwise overbearing. While we strive to render our services in a professional, polite and courteous manner, we cannot control the public perception of telemarketing generally. Moreover, we do not always have control over the nature or subject matter of outbound calls that our customers require us to make. Public hostility to telemarketing services generally, or to the particular types of calls our customers would like us to make, could result in decreased demand for such services, and thus be detrimental to our revenues and profits.

# The growth of our business may be adversely affected due to public concerns over the security and privacy of confidential user information.

The growth of our business may be inhibited if public concerns over the security and privacy of confidential user information transmitted over the Internet and wireless networks are not adequately addressed. Our services may decline and our business may be adversely affected if significant breaches of network security or user privacy occur.

# The intellectual property of our customers may be damaged, misappropriated, stolen or lost while in our possession, subjecting us to litigation and other adverse consequences.

In the course of providing services to our clients, we may have possession of or access to their intellectual property, including databases, software, certificates of authenticity and similar valuable items of

intellectual property. If our clients intellectual property is damaged, misappropriated, stolen or lost, we could suffer adverse impacts to our business, including but not limited to:

claims under client agreements or applicable law, or other liability for damages;

delayed or lost revenue due to adverse client reaction;

negative publicity; and

### litigation that could be costly and time-consuming. Our limited operating history makes it difficult to evaluate our future prospects and results of operations.

We have a limited operating history. Taiying was established in 2007, CBPO, WFOE and CCRC were established in 2014. As our operating history is limited, the revenues and income potential of our business and markets are unproven. Our limited operating history and the early stage of development of the industry in which we operate makes it difficult to evaluate our business and future prospects. Although we expect our revenues to grow, we cannot assure that we will maintain our profitability or that we will not incur net losses in the future. Any significant failure to realize anticipated revenue growth could result in significant operating losses. Accordingly, you should consider our future prospects in light of the risks and uncertainties experienced by early stage companies in evolving markets such as the growing market for call center services in the PRC. In addition, we face numerous risks, uncertainties, expenses and difficulties frequently encountered by companies at an early stage of development. We will continue to encounter risks and difficulties in implementing our business model, including (among other risks and difficulties) potential failure to:

offer additional call center services to attract and retain a larger customer base;

increase our revenue and market share by targeting specific markets with positive consumer demographics;

expand our operations and service network to other provinces;

attract additional customers and increase spending per customer;

attract a wider client base and explore new mobile marketing opportunities to target segmented consumer groups;

increase visibility of our brand and maintain customer loyalty;

respond to competitive market conditions;

anticipate and adapt to changing conditions in the markets in which we operate as well as changes in government regulations, mergers and acquisitions involving our competitors, technological developments and other significant competitive and market dynamics;

manage risks associated with intellectual property rights;

maintain effective control of our costs and expenses;

raise sufficient capital to sustain and expand our business;

attract, train, retain and motivate qualified personnel, continue to train, motivate and retain our existing employees, attract and integrate new employees, including into our senior management; and

upgrade our technology to support additional research and development of new call center services. We cannot predict whether we will be successful in addressing any or all of these risks. If we were unsuccessful in addressing these risks and uncertainties, our business, financial condition and results of operation may be materially and adversely affected.

## Our dependence on the timing of the billing systems of the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom may require us to estimate portions of our reported revenues and cost of revenues for our services. As a result, subsequent adjustments may have to be made to our financial statements.

It takes the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom an average of 90 days to tender payment for our services after each month s end. As a result, estimated revenues may account for a larger proportion of our reported revenues. As we do not bill our subscribers directly, we depend on the billing systems of the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom to record the volume of our services provided, bill our customers, collect payments and remit to us our portion of the fees. We record revenues based on monthly statements from the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom confirming the value of the services we provide that are billed by the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom during the month. To the extent we have not received monthly statements from the operators, we must rely on our own internal records for a portion of our reported revenues. In such an instance, our internal estimates would be based on our own internal data of expected revenues and related fees from services provided. As a result of reliance on our internal estimates, we may overstate or understate our revenues and cost of revenues for the relevant reporting period, and may be required to make adjustments in our financial reports when we actually receive the telecommunications operators monthly statements for such a period. We endeavor to reduce the discrepancy between our revenue estimates and the revenues calculated by the telecommunications operators and their subsidiaries, but we cannot assure that such efforts will be successful. If we are required to make adjustments to our quarterly financial statements in subsequent quarters, it could adversely affect market sentiment toward us.

In addition, we generally do not have the ability to independently verify or challenge the accuracy of the billing systems of the telecommunications operators. We cannot assure that negotiations between us and the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom to reconcile billing discrepancies would be resolved in our favor or that our results of operations would not be adversely affected as a result of such negotiations.

## The markets in which we operate are highly competitive and fragmented. The competition could limit our ability to increase market share, and materially adversely affect our business operations, financial condition and results of operations.

We operate in a highly fragmented market and expect competition to persist and intensify in the future. The outsourcing industry is extremely competitive, and outsourcers have historically competed based on pricing terms. Accordingly, we could be subject to pricing pressure and may experience a decline in our average selling prices for our call center services. We compete with these companies primarily on the basis of brand, type and timing of service offerings, content, customer service, business partners and channel relationships. We also compete for experienced and talented employees. While we believe that we have certain advantages over our competitors, some of them may have greater financial, human and other resources, longer operating histories, greater technological expertise, more recognizable brand names and more established relationships than we do in the industries that we currently serve or may serve in the future. Some of our competitors may enter into strategic or commercial relationships among themselves or with larger, more established companies in order to increase their ability to address client needs. Increased competition, pricing pressure or loss of market share could reduce our operating margin, which could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. Furthermore, our competitors may be able to develop or exploit new technologies faster than we can, or offer a broader range of services than we are presently able to offer.

We could face decreasing revenues and lower profitability if we are forced to significantly reduce the price of our services. We split a pre-determined percentage of our revenue with the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom for most of our services. However, increasing competition among telecommunication companies in the PRC may lead to a reduction in telecommunication services fees that can be charged by such companies. If either

the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom experience a reduction in telecommunication services fees, such a reduction will negatively impact revenue generated by the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom. Under such circumstances, we may be required to

reduce the price of our services; or the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom may demand an increase of its share of profit sharing under our agreements with their subsidiaries or seek competitors that charge less for services than we do, all or any of which could adversely affect our financial results.

## If we fail to compete successfully against new and existing competitors, we may not be able to increase our market share, and our profitability may be adversely affected.

We do and will continue to face significant competition in the PRC in the BPO business. We compete for clients primarily on the basis of our brand name, delivery method, price and the range of services that we offer. We also compete for overall advertising spending with other alternative advertising media companies, such as the Internet, newspapers, television, magazines and radio.

Increased competition will provide advertisers with a wider range of media and advertising service alternatives, which could force us to offer lower prices for our services, resulting in reduced operating margins and profitability and a loss of market share. Some of our existing and potential competitors may have competitive advantages, such as significantly greater financial, marketing or other resources. We cannot assure that we will be able to successfully compete against new or existing competitors.

## If we are unable to respond successfully to technological or industry developments, our business may be materially adversely affected.

Rapid advances in technology, industry standards and customer demands characterize the telecommunications industry. New technologies, industry standards or market demands may render our existing services or technologies less competitive or even obsolete. Telecommunications operators in the PRC are currently in the process of introducing 4G telecommunications services. Responding and adapting to 4G and other technological developments and standard changes in our industry may require substantial time, effort and capital investment. If we are unable to respond successfully to technology, industry and market developments, such developments may materially adversely affect our business, results of operations and competitiveness.

## Our operating margin will suffer if we are not able to maintain our pricing, utilize our employees and assets efficiently or maintain and improve the current mix of services that we deliver.

Our operating margin is largely a function of the prices that we are able to charge for our services, the new programs we are able to develop, the efficient use of our assets, the utilization of our employees, and the geographical location from which we deliver services. For example, China Mobile Beijing has transferred a portion of its call center service business to our Shandong Province location in an effort to reduce costs. Our business model is predicated on our ability to objectively quantify the value that we provide to our clients. If we fail to succeed on any of these objectives, we may experience a decline in our current operating margin.

The rates we are able to charge for our services, our ability to manage our assets efficiently and the location from which we deliver our services are affected by a number of factors, including, without limitation:

our clients perceptions of our ability to add value through our services;

our ability to objectively differentiate and verify the value we offer to our clients;

competition;

the introduction of new services by us or our competitors;

our ability to estimate demand for our services;

our ability to control costs and improve the efficiency of our employees; and

general economic and political conditions.

## Wage increases in China may prevent us from sustaining our competitive advantage and could reduce our profit margins.

Wage costs for our call center professionals and other employees form a significant part of our costs. For instance, in 2014 and 2013, our compensation and benefit expenses in respect of our professionals was \$31.62 million and \$21.16 million, accounting for 74% and 75% of our total revenues, respectively. Because of rapid economic growth and increased competition for skilled employees in China, we may need to increase our levels of employee compensation more rapidly than in the past to remain competitive in retaining the quality and number of employees that our business requires. Increases in the wages and other compensations we pay our employees in China could reduce our competitive strength; especially if increase in wage costs of our call center professionals exceeds increase in our call center professionals billing rate, we may suffer a reduction in profit margins. In addition, the future issuance of equity-based compensation to our professional staff and other employees would also result in additional stock dilution for our shareholders.

## We depend on our key personnel, and our business and growth prospects may be severely disrupted if we lose their services.

Our future success depends heavily upon the continued service of our key executives. In particular, we rely on the expertise and experience of Gary Wang, our founder, chairman and chief executive officer. We rely on his industry expertise and experience in our business operations, and in particular, his business vision, management skills, and working relationship with our employees, our other major shareholders, the regulatory authorities, and many of our clients. If he became unable or unwilling to continue in his present position, or if he joined a competitor or formed a competing company in violation of his employment agreements, we may not be able to replace him easily, our business may be significantly disrupted and our financial condition and results of operations may be materially adversely affected.

We do not maintain key man life insurance on any of our senior management or key personnel. The loss of any one of them would have a material adverse effect on our business and operations. Competition for senior management and our other key personnel is intense and the pool of suitable candidates is limited. We may be unable to locate a suitable replacement for any senior management or key personnel that we lose. In addition, if any member of our senior management or key personnel joins a competitor or forms a competing company, they may compete with us for customers, business partners and other key professionals and staff members of our company. Although each of our senior management and key personnel has signed a confidentiality and non-competition agreement in connection with his employment with us, we cannot assure that we will be able to successfully enforce these provisions in the event of a dispute between us and any member of our senior management or key personnel.

In addition, we compete for qualified personnel with other call center companies, and we face competition in attracting skilled personnel and retaining the members of our senior management team. These personnel possess technical and business capabilities, including expertise relevant to the BPO market, which are difficult to replace. There is intense competition for experienced senior management with technical and industry expertise in the BPO industry, and we may not be able to retain our key personnel. Intense competition for these personnel could cause our compensation costs to increase, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. Our future success and ability to grow our business will depend in part on the continued service of these individuals and our ability to identify, hire and retain additional qualified personnel. If we are unable to attract and retain qualified employees, we may be unable to meet our business and financial goals.

## If we fail to attract and retain enough sufficiently trained customer service associates and other personnel to support our operations, our business, results of operations and financial condition will be seriously harmed.

#### Table of Contents

We rely on large numbers of customer service associates, and our success depends to a significant extent on our ability to attract, hire, train and retain qualified customer service associates. Companies in the BPO

market, including us, experience high employee attrition. Our attrition rate for our customer service associates who remained with us following a 90-day training and orientation period was on average approximately 5% per month. A significant increase in the attrition rate among our customer service associates could decrease our operating efficiency and productivity. Our failure to attract, train and retain customer service associates with the qualifications necessary to fulfill the needs of our existing and future clients would seriously harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.

## Our senior management lacks experience in managing a public company and complying with laws applicable to operating as a U.S. public company domiciled in the British Virgin Islands and failure to comply with such obligations could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Prior to the completion of this offering, Taiying has operated as a private company located in the PRC. In connection with this offering, the senior management of Taiying formed CCRC in the British Virgin Islands, CBPO in Hong Kong and made WFOE a CCRC subsidiary in the PRC. They also entered Taiying and WFOE into certain agreements that gave CCRC effective control over the operations of Taiying by virtue of its ownership of CBPO and CBPO s ownership of WFOE. In the process of taking these steps to prepare our company for this initial public offering, Taiying s senior management became the senior management of CCRC. None of CCRC s senior management has experience managing a public company or managing a British Virgin Islands company.

As a result of this offering, our company will become subject to laws, regulations and obligations that do not currently apply to it, and our senior management currently has no experience in complying with such laws, regulations and obligations. For example, CCRC will need to comply with the British Virgin Islands laws applicable to companies that are domiciled in that country. The senior management is only experienced in operating the business of Taiying in compliance with Chinese laws. Similarly, by virtue of this offering, CCRC will be required to file quarterly and annual reports in compliance with U.S. securities and other laws. These obligations can be burdensome and complicated, and failure to comply with such obligations could have a material adverse effect on CCRC. In addition, we expect that the process of learning about such new obligations as a public company in the United States will require our senior management to devote time and resources to such efforts that might otherwise be spent on the operation of our BPO business.

## Our quarterly operating results are difficult to predict and may fluctuate significantly from period to period in the future.

Our quarterly operating results may differ significantly from period to period due to factors such as, without limitation:

client losses or program terminations;

variations in the volume of business from clients resulting from changes in our clients operations;

delays or difficulties in expanding our operational facilities and infrastructure;

changes to our pricing structure or that of our competitors;

inaccurate estimates of resources and time required to complete ongoing programs;

inaccurate estimates of amounts billed by our clients for the services we provided during such period;

currency fluctuation;

ability to hire and train new employees;

seasonal changes in the operations of our clients;

a deterioration of economic conditions in the PRC;

potential changes to the regulation of the advertising, Internet and wireless communications industries in the PRC; and

seasonality of economic activities in the PRC, such as the anticipated decrease in outbound calling during January and February each year due to the Chinese Lunar New Year holiday, and the anticipated decrease in revenues during July and August due to overall slow commercial activities during the summer months.

As a result, you may not be able to rely on period-to-period comparisons of our operating results as an indication of our future performance. If our revenues for a particular quarter are lower than we expect, we may be unable to reduce our operating expenses for that quarter by a corresponding amount, which would harm our operating results for that quarter relative to our operating results from other quarters.

### We have limited business insurance coverage. Any future business liability, disruption or litigation we experience might divert management focus from our business and could significantly impact our financial results.

Availability of business insurance products and coverage in the PRC is limited, and most such products are expensive in relation to the coverage offered. We have determined that the risks of disruption, cost of such insurance and the difficulties associated with acquiring such insurances on commercially reasonable terms make it impractical for us to maintain such insurances. As a result, we do not have any business liability, disruption or litigation insurance coverage for our operations in the PRC. Accordingly, a business disruption, litigation or natural disaster may result in substantial costs and divert management s attention from our business, which would have an adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

### We may require additional financing in the future and our operations could be curtailed if we are unable to obtain required additional financing when needed.

We may need to obtain additional debt or equity financing to fund future capital expenditures. While we do not anticipate seeking additional financing in the immediate future, any additional equity financing may result in dilution to the holders of our outstanding shares of capital stock. Additional debt financing may put us in situations that would restrict our freedom to operate our business, such as situations that:

limit our ability to pay dividends or require us to seek consent for the payment of dividends;

increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;

require us to dedicate a portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our debt, thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund capital expenditures, working capital and other general corporate purposes; and

limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and our industry. We cannot guaranty that we will be able to obtain additional financing on terms that are acceptable to us, or any financing at all.

## Potential disruptions in the capital and credit markets may adversely affect our business, including the availability and cost of short-term funds for liquidity requirements, which could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Potential changes in the global economy may affect the availability of business and consumer credit. We may need to rely on the credit markets, particularly for short-term borrowings from banks in the PRC, as well as the capital markets, to meet our financial commitments and short-term liquidity needs if internal funds from our operations are not available to be allocated to such purposes. Disruptions in the credit and capital markets

could adversely affect our ability to draw on such short-term bank facilities. Our access to funds under such credit facilities is dependent on the ability of the banks that are parties to those facilities to meet their funding commitments, which may be dependent on governmental economic policies in the PRC. Those banks may not be able to meet their funding commitments to us if they experience shortages of capital and liquidity or if they experience excessive volumes of borrowing requests from us and other borrowers within a short period of time.

Long-term disruptions in the credit and capital markets could result from uncertainty, changing or increased regulations, reduced alternatives or failures of financial institutions could adversely affect our access to the liquidity needed for our business. Any disruption could require us to take measures to conserve cash until the markets stabilize or until alternative credit arrangements or other funding for our business needs can be arranged. Such measures may include deferring capital expenditures, and reducing or eliminating discretionary uses of cash.

Continued market disruptions could cause broader economic downturns, which may lead to decreased cellular telephone usage, decreased commercial activities in general, and increased likelihood that customers will be unable to pay for our services. Further, bankruptcies or similar events by China Telecom, China Mobile, their subsidiaries or significant customers, or our other clients may cause us to incur bad debt expense at levels higher than historically experienced. These events would adversely impact our results of operations, cash flows and financial position.

#### Rapid growth and a rapidly changing operating environment may strain our limited resources.

We may not have adequate operational, administrative and financial resources to sustain the growth we want to achieve. Taiying was incorporated in December 2007. As of December 31, 2014, we had a total of approximately 6,610 employees. We have experienced rapid growth in our employee headcount. This expansion has resulted, and will continue to result, in substantial demands on our management resources. To manage our growth, we must develop and improve our existing administrative and operational systems and our financial and management controls and further expand, train and manage our work force. As we continue these efforts, we may incur substantial costs and expend substantial resources due to, among other things, different technology standards, legal considerations and cultural differences.

Our future success also depends on our product development, customer service, sales and marketing. If we fail to manage our growth and expansion effectively, the quality of our services and our customer support may deteriorate and our business may suffer. This could prompt either or both of the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom to discontinue their respective outsourcing relationships with us. We cannot assure that we will be able to efficiently or effectively manage the growth of our operations, recruit top talent and train our personnel. Any failure to efficiently manage our expansion may materially and adversely affect our business and future growth.

#### Our bank accounts are not insured or protected against loss.

WFOE and the Operating Companies maintain cash accounts with various banks and trust companies located in the PRC. Such cash accounts are not insured or otherwise protected. Should any bank or trust company holding such cash deposits become insolvent, or if WFOE or an operating company of ours is otherwise unable to withdraw funds, this entity would lose the cash on deposit with that particular bank or trust company.

#### We may not pay dividends.

We have not previously paid any cash dividends, and we do not anticipate paying any dividends on our common shares. Although we have achieved net profitability in both 2013 and 2014, we cannot assure that our operations will continue to result in sufficient revenues to enable us to operate at profitable levels or to generate positive cash

flows. Furthermore, there is no assurance that our Board of Directors will declare dividends even if

we are profitable. Dividend policy is subject to the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on, among other things, our earnings, financial condition, capital requirements and other factors. If we determine to pay dividends on any of our common shares in the future, we will be dependent, in large part, on receipt of funds from Taiying. See Dividend Policy.

## Our growth strategy may prove to be disruptive and divert management resources, which could adversely affect our existing businesses.

Our growth strategy includes the continued expansion of Taiying s call center operations and may include strategic acquisitions of competitive operators. We do not have any understanding, commitment or agreement in place with regard to any such acquisitions at this time. The implementation of such strategies may involve large transactions and present financial, managerial and operational challenges, including diversion of management attention from existing businesses, difficulty with integrating personnel and financial and other systems, increased expenses, including compensation expenses resulting from newly-hired employees, assumption of unknown liabilities and potential disputes. We also could experience financial or other setbacks if any of our growth strategies encounter problems of which we are not presently aware.

We expect to allocate a portion of the net proceeds from this offering to such acquisitions, but we have not yet located any potential targets, and we may be unable to do so. Further, even if we find a target we believe to be suitable, we may be unable to negotiate acquisition terms that are satisfactory to us. In the event we are unable to complete acquisitions, we will reserve the right to reallocate such funds to our working capital. If this happens, we would have broad discretion over the ultimate use of such funds, and we could use such funds in ways with which investors might disagree.

Furthermore, any such acquisitions must comply with all PRC laws and regulations applicable to such transactions. The regulatory environment that governs mergers and acquisitions in the PRC has continued to evolve in recent years and remains subject to interpretation by the agencies that have responsibility for reviewing or approving such transactions. Compliance with such regulations in the process of structuring, negotiating and closing such transactions will require us to expend company resources that would otherwise be available for and used in the management and operation of the company, all of which could have an adverse effect on our operations and financial results.

## We do not hold any patents or trademarks to protect our intellectual property and the misappropriation of our intellectual property could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our intellectual property rights are important to our business. We rely on a combination of trade secrets, confidentiality procedures and contractual provisions to protect our intellectual property. We do not presently hold any patents or registered trademarks. However, we have been granted registered computer software ownership rights to ten pieces of intellectual property rights by the China State Copyright Bureau. In addition, we enter into confidentiality agreements with most of our employees and consultants, and control access to and distribution of our documentation and other licensed information. Despite these precautions, it may be possible for a third party to copy or otherwise obtain and use our technology without authorization, or to develop similar technology independently. Since the Chinese legal system in general, and the intellectual property regime in particular, is relatively weak, it is often difficult to enforce intellectual property rights in China. In addition, confidentiality agreements may be breached by counterparties, and there may not be adequate remedies available to us for any such breach. Accordingly, we may not be able to effectively protect our intellectual property rights or to enforce our contractual rights in China or elsewhere. In addition, policing any unauthorized use of our intellectual property is difficult, time-consuming and costly and the steps we have taken may be inadequate to prevent the misappropriation of our intellectual property. In

the event that we resort to litigation to enforce our intellectual property rights, such litigation could result in substantial costs and a diversion of our managerial and financial resources. We can provide no assurance that we will prevail in such

litigation. Any failure in protecting or enforcing our intellectual property rights could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

#### **Risks Relating to Our Corporate Structure**

#### WFOE s contractual arrangements with Taiying may result in adverse tax consequences to us.

We could face material and adverse tax consequences if the PRC tax authorities determine that WFOE s contractual arrangements with Taiying were not made on an arm s length basis and adjust our income and expenses for PRC tax purposes in the form of a transfer pricing adjustment. A transfer pricing adjustment could result in a reduction, for PRC tax purposes, of adjustments recorded by Taiying, which could adversely affect us by increasing Taiying s tax liability without reducing WFOE s tax liability, which could further result in late payment fees and other penalties to Taiying for underpaid taxes, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

## WFOE s contractual arrangements with Taiying may not be as effective in providing control over Taiying as direct ownership.

We conduct substantially all of our operations, and generate substantially all of our revenues, through contractual arrangements with Taiying that provide us, through our ownership of WFOE, with effective control over Taiying. We depend on Taiying to hold and maintain contracts with our customers. Taiying also own substantially all of our intellectual property, facilities and other assets relating to the operation of our business, and employ the personnel for substantially all of our business. Neither our company nor WFOE has any ownership interest in Taiying. Although we have been advised by KaiTong Law Firm, our PRC legal counsel, that each contract under WFOE s contractual arrangements with Taiying is valid, binding and enforceable under current PRC laws and regulations, these contractual arrangements may not be as effective in providing us with control over Taiying as direct ownership of Taiying would be. In addition, Taiying may breach the contractual arrangements. For example, Taiying may decide not to make contractual payments to WFOE, and consequently to our company, in accordance with the existing contractual arrangements. In the event of any such breach, we would have to rely on legal remedies under PRC law. These remedies may not always be effective, particularly in light of uncertainties in the PRC legal system.

# PRC laws and regulations governing our businesses and the validity of certain of our contractual arrangements are uncertain. If we are found to be in violation of such PRC laws and regulations, we could be subject to sanctions. In addition, changes in such PRC laws and regulations may materially and adversely affect our business.

Foreign ownership of a call center BPO and related business, is subject to restrictions under current PRC laws and regulations. For example, foreign investors are not allowed to own more than 50% of the equity interests in a value-added telecommunication service provider and any such foreign investor must have experience in providing value-added telecommunications services overseas and maintain a good track record.

We are a BVI company and our PRC subsidiary WFOE is considered a foreign-invested enterprise. To comply with PRC laws and regulations, we conduct our business in China through WFOE, Taiying and its subsidiaries based on a series of contractual arrangements by and among WFOE, Taiying and its shareholders, which enable us to:

exercise effective control over Taiying and its subsidiaries;

receive substantially all of the economic benefits and bear the obligation to absorb substantially all of the losses of Taiying; and

have an exclusive option to purchase all or part of the equity interests in Taiying when and to the extent permitted by PRC law.

Because of these contractual arrangements, we are the primary beneficiary of Taiying and hence consolidate its financial results as our variable interest entity.

In the opinion of KaiTong Law Firm, our PRC legal counsel, (a) our current ownership structure of our WFOE and Taiying, both comply with all existing PRC laws and regulations; and (b) each of the contractual arrangements is valid, binding and enforceable in accordance with its terms and applicable PRC Laws, and will not result in any violation of PRC laws or regulations currently in effect. However, our PRC legal counsel has also advised us that there are substantial uncertainties regarding the interpretation and application of PRC Laws and future PRC Laws, and there can be no assurance that the PRC authorities may take a view that is contrary to or otherwise different from our PRC legal counsel.

It is uncertain whether any new PRC laws, rules or regulations relating to contractual arrangements structures will be adopted or if adopted, what they would provide. Further, the effectiveness of newly enacted laws, regulations or amendments may be delayed, resulting in detrimental reliance by foreign investors. If CCRC, WFOE or Taiying are found to be in violation of any existing or future PRC laws, rules or regulations, or fail to obtain or maintain any of the required permits or approvals, the relevant PRC regulatory authorities would have broad discretion to take action in dealing with such violations or failures, including, sanctions, fines, revoking the business and operating licenses of WFOE or Taiying, requiring us to discontinue or restrict our operations, restricting our right to collect revenue, requiring us to restructure our operations or taking other regulatory or enforcement actions against us. If we are not able to restructure our ownership structure and operations in a satisfactory manner, we would no longer be able to consolidate the financial results of Taiying in our consolidated financial statements. In addition, any litigation in the PRC may be protracted and result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and management attention. Any of these events would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

#### The shareholder of Taiying has potential conflicts of interest with us, which may adversely affect our business.

Neither WFOE nor we own any portion of the equity interests of Taiying. Instead, we rely on WFOE s contractual obligations to enforce our interest in receiving payments from Taiying. Conflicts of interests may arise between Taiying s shareholder and our company if, for example, its interests in receiving dividends from Taiying were to conflict with our interest requiring these companies to make contractually obligated payments to WFOE. As a result, we have required Taiying and its sole shareholder to execute irrevocable powers of attorney to appoint the individual designated by us to be his attorney-in-fact to vote on their behalf on all matters requiring shareholder approval by Taiying and to require Taiying s compliance with the terms of its contractual obligations. We cannot assure, however, that when conflicts of interest arise, the shareholder will act completely in our interests or that conflicts of interests will be resolved in our favor. In addition, this shareholder could violate its agreements with us by diverting business opportunities from us to others. If we cannot resolve any conflicts of interest between us and Taiying s shareholder, we would have to rely on legal proceedings, which could result in substantial costs and diversion of management attention and resources, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

#### Recent PRC regulations relating to the establishment of offshore special purpose companies by PRC residents may subject our PRC resident shareholders to personal liability and limit our ability to inject capital into our PRC subsidiary, limit our subsidiary s ability to increase its registered capital, distribute profits to us, or otherwise adversely affect us.

On July 4, 2014, China s State Administration for Foreign Exchange (SAFE) issued the Circular of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange on Issues concerning Foreign Exchange Administration over the Overseas Investment and Financing and Round-trip Investment by Domestic Residents via Special Purpose Vehicles, or

Circular 37, which became effective as of July 4, 2014. According to Circular 37, prior registration with the local SAFE branch is required for PRC residents to contribute domestic assets or interests to offshore

companies, known as a special purpose vehicle (SPV). Moreover, Circular 37 applies retroactively. As a result, PRC residents who have contributed domestic assets or interests to a SPV, but failed to complete foreign exchange registration of overseas investments as required before July 4, 2014 shall send a letter to SAFE and its branches for explanation. SAFE and its branches shall, under the principle of legality and legitimacy, conduct supplementary registration, and impose administrative punishment on those in violation of the administrative provisions on the foreign exchange pursuant to the law.

We have requested our shareholders who are PRC residents to make the necessary applications, filings and amendments as required under Circular 37 and other related rules. We attempt to comply, and attempt to ensure that our shareholders who are subject to these rules comply, with the relevant requirements. However, we cannot provide any assurances that all of our shareholders who are PRC residents will comply with our request to make or obtain any applicable registrations or comply with other requirements required by Circular 37 or other related rules. The failure or inability of our PRC resident shareholders to make any required registrations or comply with other requirements may subject such shareholders to fines and legal sanctions and may also limit our ability to contribute additional capital into or provide loans to (including using the proceeds from this offering) WFOE or Taiying, limiting their ability to pay dividends or otherwise distributing profits to us.

#### We rely on dividends paid by WFOE for our cash needs.

We rely primarily on dividends paid by WFOE for our cash needs, including the funds necessary to pay dividends and other cash distributions, if any, to our shareholders, to service any debt we may incur and to pay our operating expenses. The payment of dividends by entities organized in the PRC is subject to limitations as described herein. Under British Virgin Islands law, we may only pay dividends from surplus (the excess, if any, at the time of the determination of the total assets of our company over the sum of our liabilities, as shown in our books of account, plus our capital), and we must be solvent before and after the dividend payment in the sense that we will be able to satisfy our liabilities as they become due in the ordinary course of business; and the realizable value of assets of our company will not be less than the sum of our total liabilities, other than deferred taxes as shown on our books of account, and our capital. If we determine to pay dividends on any of our common shares in the future, as a holding company, we will be dependent on receipt of funds from WFOE. See Dividend Policy.

Pursuant to the Implementation Rules for the new Chinese enterprise income tax law, effective on January 1, 2008, dividends payable by a foreign investment entity to its foreign investors are subject to a withholding tax of up to 10%. Pursuant to Article 10 of the Arrangement Between the Mainland of China and the Hong Kong Special Administration Region for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income effective December 8, 2006, dividends payable by a foreign investment entity to its Hong Kong investor who owns 25% or more of the equity of the foreign investment entity is subject to a withholding tax of up to 5%.

The payment of dividends by entities organized in the PRC is subject to limitations, procedures and formalities. Regulations in the PRC currently permit payment of dividends only out of accumulated profits as determined in accordance with accounting standards and regulations in China. WFOE is also required to set aside at least 10% of its after-tax profit based on PRC accounting standards each year to its compulsory reserves fund until the accumulative amount of such reserves reaches 50% of its registered capital.

The transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of any dividend to shareholders. The surplus reserve fund is non-distributable other than during liquidation and can be used to fund previous years losses, if any, and may be utilized for business expansion or converted into share capital by issuing new shares to existing shareholders in proportion to their shareholding or by increasing the par value of the shares currently held by them, provided that the remaining reserve balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the registered capital. As of December 31, 2014 and

2013, the accumulated appropriations to statutory reserves amounted to \$781,731 and \$533,863, respectively.

## WFOE is required to allocate a portion of its after-tax profits, as determined by its board of directors, to the general reserve, and the staff welfare and bonus funds, which may not be distributed to equity owners.

Pursuant to the Wholly Foreign-Owned Enterprise Law of the P.R. China (2000 Revision) and Implementing Rules for the Law of the People's Republic of China on Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprises (2014 Revision), WFOE is required to allocate a portion of its after-tax profits in accordance with its Articles of Association, to the general reserve, and the staff welfare and bonus funds. No lower than 10% of an enterprise s after tax-profits should be allocated to the general reserve. When the general reserve account balance is equal to or greater than 50% of the WFOE s registered capital, no further allocation to the general reserve account is required. According to the Articles of Association of WFOE, WFOE s board of directors determines the amount contributed to the staff welfare and bonus funds. The staff welfare and bonus fund is used for the collective welfare of the staff of WFOE. These reserves represent appropriations of retained earnings determined according to PRC law.

As of the date of this prospectus, the amounts of these reserves have not yet been determined, and we have not committed to establishing such amounts at this time. Under current PRC laws, WFOE is required to set aside reserve amounts, but has not yet done so. WFOE has not done so because PRC authorities grant companies flexibility in making a determination. PRC law requires such a determination to be made in accordance with the company s organizational documents and WFOE s organizational documents do not require the determination to be made within a particular timeframe. Although we have not yet been required by PRC authorities to make such determinations or set aside such reserves, PRC authorities may require WFOE to rectify its noncompliance and we may be fined if we fail to do so after receiving a warning within its set time period.

Additionally, PRC law provides that a PRC company must allocate a portion of after-tax profits to the general reserve and the staff welfare and bonus funds reserve prior to the retention of profits or the distribution of profits to foreign invested companies. Therefore, if for any reason, the dividends from WFOE cannot be repatriated to us or not in time, our cash flow may be adversely impacted or we may become insolvent.

## WFOE is required to make a payment under its agreement to bear the losses of Taiying, thus our liquidity may be adversely affected, which could harm our financial condition and results of operations.

On September 3, 2014, WFOE entered into an Entrusted Management Agreement with Taiying. Pursuant to the Entrusted Management Agreement, WFOE agreed to bear the losses of Taiying. If Taiying suffers losses and WFOE is required to absorb all or a portion of such losses, WFOE will be required to seek reimbursement from Taiying. In such event, it is unlikely that Taiying will be able to make such reimbursement and WFOE may be unable to recoup the loss WFOE absorbed at such time, if ever. Further, under the Entrusted Management Agreement, WFOE may absorb the losses at a time when WFOE does not have sufficient cash to make such payment and at a time when WFOE or we may be unable to borrow such funds on terms that are acceptable, if at all. As a result, any losses absorbed under the Entrusted Management Agreement may have an adverse effect on our liquidity, financial condition and results of operations.

## Our failure to obtain prior approval of the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC) for the listing and trading of our common shares on a foreign stock exchange could delay this offering or could have a material adverse effect upon our business, operating results, reputation and trading price of our common shares.

On August 8, 2006, six PRC regulatory agencies, including the Ministry of Commerce of the People s Republic of China (MOFCOM), the State Assets Supervision and Administration Commission, the State Administration of Taxation, the State Administration for Industry and Commerce, the CSRC and SAFE, jointly issued the Regulations on Mergers and Acquisitions of Domestic Enterprises by Foreign Investors (the New M&A Rule) which became

effective on September 8, 2006 and was amended on June 22, 2009. The New M&A Rule contains provisions that require that an offshore special purpose vehicle (SPV) formed for listing purposes

and controlled directly or indirectly by PRC companies or individuals shall obtain the approval of the CSRC prior to the listing and trading of such SPV securities on an overseas stock exchange. On September 21, 2006, the CSRC published procedures specifying documents and materials required to be submitted to it by an SPV seeking CSRC approval of overseas listings.

However, the application of the New M&A Rule remains unclear with no consensus currently existing among leading PRC law firms regarding the scope and applicability of the CSRC approval requirement. Our PRC counsel, KaiTong Law Firm, has given us the following advice, based on their understanding of current PRC laws and regulations:

We currently control our PRC affiliate, Taiying, by virtue of WFOE s VIE agreements with Taiying, but not through equity interest or asset acquisition which are stipulated in the New M&A Rule; and

In spite of the lack of clarity on this issue, the CSRC has not issued any definitive rule or interpretation regarding whether offerings like the one contemplated by this Prospectus are subject to the New M&A Rule.

The CSRC has not issued any such definitive rule or interpretation, and we have not chosen to voluntarily request approval under the New M&A Rule. If the CSRC requires that we obtain its approval prior to the completion of this offering, the offering will be delayed until we obtain CSRC approval, which may take several months. There is also the possibility that we may not be able to obtain such approval. If prior CSRC approval was required, we may face regulatory actions or other sanctions from the CSRC or other PRC regulatory authorities. These authorities may impose fines and penalties upon our operations in the PRC, limit our operating privileges in the PRC, delay or restrict the repatriation of the proceeds from this offering into the PRC, or take other actions that could have a material adverse effect upon our business, financial condition, results of operations, reputation and prospects, as well as the trading price of our common shares. The CSRC or other PRC regulatory agencies may also take actions requiring us, or making it advisable for us, to terminate this offering prior to closing.

# We are a foreign private issuer, and our disclosure obligations differ from those of U.S. domestic reporting companies. As a result, we may not provide you the same information as U.S. domestic reporting companies or we may provide information at different times, which may make it more difficult for you to evaluate our performance and prospects.

We are a foreign private issuer and, as a result, we are not subject to the same requirements as U.S. domestic issuers. Under the Exchange Act, we will be subject to reporting obligations that, to some extent, are more lenient and less frequent than those of U.S. domestic reporting companies. For example, we will not be required to issue quarterly reports or proxy statements. We will not be required to disclose detailed individual executive compensation information. Furthermore, our directors and executive officers will not be required to report equity holdings under Section 16 of the Exchange Act and will not be subject to the insider short-swing profit disclosure and recovery regime.

As a foreign private issuer, we will also be exempt from the requirements of Regulation FD (Fair Disclosure) which, generally, are meant to ensure that select groups of investors are not privy to specific information about an issuer before other investors. However, we will still be subject to the anti-fraud and anti-manipulation rules of the SEC, such as Rule 10b-5 under the Exchange Act. Since many of the disclosure obligations imposed on us as a foreign private issuer differ from those imposed on U.S. domestic reporting companies, you should not expect to receive the same information about us and at the same time as the information provided by U.S. domestic reporting companies.

#### Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to the enactment timetable and final content of draft PRC Foreign Investment Law and how it may impact the viability of our current corporate structure, corporate governance and business operations.

MOFCOM published a discussion draft of the proposed Foreign Investment Law in January 2015 (the Draft FIL) aiming to, upon its enactment, replace the trio of existing laws regulating foreign investment in China, namely, the Sino-foreign Equity Joint Venture Enterprise Law, the Sino-foreign Cooperative Joint Venture Enterprise Law and the Wholly Foreign-invested Enterprise Law, together with their implementation rules and ancillary regulations. The Draft FIL embodies an expected PRC regulatory trend to rationalize its foreign investment regulatory regime in line with prevailing international practice and the legislative efforts to unify the corporate legal requirements for both foreign and domestic investments. MOFCOM is currently soliciting comments on this draft and substantial uncertainties exist with respect to its enactment timetable, final content, interpretation and implementation.

Among other things, the Draft FIL expands the definition of foreign investment and introduces the principle of actual control in determining whether a company is considered a foreign-invested enterprise, or an FIE. The Draft FIL specifically provides that entities established in China but controlled by foreign investors will be treated as FIEs, whereas an entity set up in a foreign jurisdiction would nonetheless be, upon market entry clearance, treated as a PRC domestic investor provided that the entity is controlled by PRC entities and/or citizens. Once an entity is determined to be an FIE, it will be subject to the foreign investment restrictions or prohibitions set forth in a negative list, to be separately issued by the State Council later. Unless the underlying business of the FIE falls within the negative list, which calls for market entry clearance, prior approval from the government authorities as mandated by the existing foreign investors. Therefore, for any companies with a VIE structure in an industry category that is on the negative list the VIE structure may be deemed legitimate only if the ultimate controlling person(s) is/are of PRC nationality (either PRC companies or PRC citizens). Conversely, if the actual controlling person(s) is/are of foreign nationalities, the VIEs will be treated as FIEs and any operation in the industry category on the negative list without market entry clearance may be considered as illegal.

The call center services, which we conduct through our VIE, are currently subject to foreign investment restrictions set forth in the Catalogue of Industries for Guiding Foreign Investment, or the Catalogue, issued by the National Development and Reform Commission and the Ministry of Commerce that was amended in 2015 and became effective in April 2015. The Draft FIL, if enacted as proposed, may materially impact the viability of our current corporate structure, corporate governance and business operations in many aspects.

#### **Foreign Operational Risks**

## We are dependent on the state of the PRC s economy as all of our business is conducted in the PRC and a decline would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Currently, all of our business operations are conducted in the PRC, and all of our customers are also located in the PRC. Accordingly, any material slowdown in the PRC economy may cause our customers to reduce expenditures or delay the building of new facilities or projects. This may in turn lead to a decline in the demand for the services we provide. Any such decline would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

## A general economic downturn, a recession or a sudden disruption in business conditions in the PRC may affect consumer spending on discretionary items, including cellular telephone services and MVAS, which could adversely

#### affect our business.

Consumer spending is generally affected by a number of factors, including general economic conditions, the level of unemployment, inflation, interest rates, energy costs, gasoline prices and consumer

confidence generally, all of which are beyond our control. Consumer purchases of discretionary items tend to decline during recessionary periods, when disposable income is lower, and may impact sales of our services. In addition, sudden disruption in business conditions as a result of a terrorist attack, retaliation and the threat of further attacks or retaliation, war, adverse weather conditions and climate changes or other natural disasters, pandemic situations or large scale power outages can have a short or, sometimes, long-term impact on consumer spending. A downturn in the economy in the PRC, including any recession or a sudden disruption of business conditions in the PRC, could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operation.

## Since our operations and assets are located in the PRC, shareholders may find it difficult to enforce a U.S. judgment against the assets of our company, our directors and executive officers.

Our operations and assets are located in the PRC. In addition, most of our executive officers and directors are non-residents of the U.S., and substantially all the assets of such persons are located outside the U.S. As a result, it could be difficult for investors to effect service of process in the U.S., or to enforce a judgment obtained in the U.S. against us or any of these persons. See Enforceability of Civil Liabilities.

## We must remit the offering proceeds to the PRC before they may be used to benefit our business in the PRC, and this process may take a number of months.

The proceeds of this offering must be sent back to the PRC, and the process for sending such proceeds back to the PRC may take several months after the closing of this offering. We may be unable to use these proceeds to grow our business until we receive such proceeds in the PRC. In order to remit the offering proceeds to the PRC, we will take the following actions:

First, we will open a special foreign exchange account for capital account transactions. To open this account, we must submit to State Administration for Foreign Exchange (SAFE) certain application forms, identity documents, transaction documents, form of foreign exchange registration of overseas investments by domestic residents, and foreign exchange registration certificate of the invested company.

Second, we will remit the offering proceeds into this special foreign exchange account.

Third, we will apply for settlement of the foreign exchange. In order to do so, we must submit to SAFE certain application forms, identity documents, payment order to a designated person, and a tax certificate.

The timing of the process is difficult to estimate because the efficiencies of different SAFE branches can vary materially. Ordinarily, the process takes several months to complete.

### Although we do not import goods into or export goods out of the PRC, fluctuation of the Renminbi ( RMB ) may indirectly affect our financial condition by affecting the volume of cross-border money flow.

Although we use the United States dollar for financial reporting purposes, all of the transactions effected by WFOE and Taiying are denominated in the PRC s currency, the RMB. The value of the RMB fluctuates and is subject to changes in the PRC s political and economic conditions. We do not currently engage in hedging activities to protect

against foreign currency risks. Even if we choose to engage in such hedging activities, we may not be able to do so effectively. Future movements in the exchange rate of the RMB could adversely affect our financial condition as we may suffer financial losses when transferring money raised outside of China into the country or paying vendors for services performed outside of China.

### If any dividend is declared in the future and paid in a foreign currency, you may be taxed on a larger amount in U.S. dollars than the U.S. dollar amount that you will actually ultimately receive.

If you are a United States holder, you will be taxed on the U.S. dollar value of your dividends, if any, at the time you receive them, even if you actually receive a smaller amount of U.S. dollars when the payment is in

fact converted into U.S. dollars. Specifically, if a dividend is declared and paid in a foreign currency, the amount of the dividend distribution that you must include in your income as a U.S. holder will be the U.S. dollar value of the payments made in the foreign currency, determined at the spot rate of the foreign currency to the U.S. dollar on the date the dividend distribution is includible in your income, regardless of whether the payment is in fact converted into U.S. dollars. Thus, if the value of the foreign currency decreases before you actually convert the currency into U.S. dollars, you will be taxed on a larger amount in U.S. dollars than the U.S. dollar amount that you will actually ultimately receive.

## We may become a passive foreign investment company, which could result in adverse U.S. tax consequences to U.S. investors.

Based on the nature of our business activities, we may be classified as a passive foreign investment company ( PFIC ), by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service ( IRS ), for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Such characterization could result in adverse U.S. tax consequences to you if you are a U.S. investor. For example, if we are a PFIC, a U.S. investor will become subject to burdensome reporting requirements. The determination of whether or not we are a PFIC is made on an annual basis and will depend on the composition of our income and assets from time to time. Specifically, we will be classified as a PFIC for U.S. tax purposes if either:

75% or more of our gross income in a taxable year is passive income; or

the average percentage of our assets by value in a taxable year that produce or are held for the production of passive income (which includes cash) is at least 50%.

The calculation of the value of our assets is based, in part, on the then market value of our common shares, which is subject to change. In addition, the composition of our income and assets will be affected by how, and how quickly, we spend the cash we raise in this offering. We cannot assure that we will not be a PFIC for any taxable year. See Taxation United States Federal Income Taxation-Passive Foreign Investment Company.

#### Introduction of new laws or changes to existing laws by the PRC government may adversely affect our business.

The PRC legal system is a codified legal system made up of written laws, regulations, circulars, administrative directives and internal guidelines. Unlike common law jurisdictions such as the U.S., decided cases (which may be taken as reference) do not form part of the legal structure of the PRC and thus have no binding effect. Furthermore, in line with its transformation from a centrally planned economy to a more market-oriented economy, the PRC government is still in the process of developing a comprehensive set of laws and regulations. As the legal system in the PRC is still evolving, laws and regulations or their interpretation may be subject to further changes. Such uncertainty and prospective changes to the PRC legal system could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

## We may be subject to foreign exchange controls in the PRC which could limit our use of funds raised in this offering.

WFOE and the Operating Companies are subject to PRC rules and regulations on currency conversion. In the PRC, SAFE regulates the conversion of the RMB into foreign currencies. Currently, foreign investment enterprises (FIEs) are required to apply to SAFE for Foreign Exchange Registration Certificate for FIEs. WFOE is a FIE. With such registration certifications (which need to be renewed annually), FIEs are allowed to open foreign currency accounts

including the recurrent account and the capital account . Currently, conversion within the scope of the recurrent account can be effected without requiring the approval of SAFE. However, conversion of currency in the capital account (e.g. for capital items such as direct investments, loans, securities, etc.) still requires the approval of SAFE.

In particular, if WFOE borrows foreign currency through loans from CCRC or other foreign lenders, these loans must be registered with SAFE. If WFOE is financed by means of additional capital contributions, certain Chinese government authorities, including MOFCOM, or the local counterparts of SAFE and MOFCOM, must approve these capital contributions. These restrictions could limit our use of funds raised in this offering.

#### Governmental control of currency conversion may affect the value of your investment.

The PRC government imposes controls on the convertibility of the Renminbi into foreign currencies and, in certain cases, the remittance of currency out of the PRC, which may take as long as six months in the ordinary course. We receive the majority of our revenues in Renminbi. Under our current corporate structure, our income is derived from payments from WFOE. Shortages in the availability of foreign currency may restrict the ability of WFOE to remit sufficient foreign currency to pay dividends or other payments to us, or otherwise satisfy their foreign currency denominated obligations. Under existing PRC foreign exchange regulations, payments of current account items, including profit distributions, interest payments and expenditures from trade-related transactions, can be made in foreign currencies without prior approval from the PRC SAFE by complying with certain procedural requirements. However, approval from appropriate government authorities is required where Renminbi is to be converted into foreign currencies. The PRC government may also at its discretion restrict access in the future to foreign currencies for current account transactions. If the foreign exchange control system prevents us from obtaining sufficient foreign currency to satisfy our currency demands, we may not be able to pay dividends in foreign currencies to our shareholders. See Our Business Regulations on Foreign Currency Exchange and Dividend Distribution.

#### Fluctuation of the Renminbi could materially affect our financial condition and results of operations

The value of the Renminbi against the U.S. dollar and other currencies may fluctuate and is affected by, among other things, changes in political and economic conditions. On July 21, 2005, the PRC government changed its decade-old policy of pegging the value of the Renminbi to the U.S. dollar. Under the new policy, the Renminbi is permitted to fluctuate within a narrow and managed band against a basket of certain foreign currencies. This change in policy has resulted in an appreciation of the Renminbi against the U.S. dollar. While the international reaction to the Renminbi revaluation has generally been positive, there remains international pressure on the PRC government to adopt an even more flexible currency policy, which could result in a further and more rapid appreciation of the Renminbi against the U.S. dollar. Any material revaluation of Renminbi may materially and adversely affect our cash flows, revenues, earnings and financial position, and the value of, and any dividends payable on, our common shares in U.S. dollars. For example, an appreciation of Renminbi against the U.S. dollar would make any new Renminbi denominated investments or expenditures more costly to us, to the extent that we need to convert U.S. dollars into Renminbi for such purposes. See Exchange Rate Information.

## Our business benefits from certain government grants and incentives, and such grants decreased significantly during 2015. Expiration, reduction or discontinuation of, or changes to, these incentives will increase our burden and reduce our net income.

Taiying has received grants from various governmental agencies after meeting certain conditions, such as locating call centers in their jurisdictions or obtaining certain technological certifications. Government grants represented 81% of our net income during 2014. For the first six months of 2015, grants represented 22% of net income.

Taiying has benefitted from such grants and subsidies. In particular, Taiying recently received:

a one-time subsidy of \$130,172 in 2014 from Department of Commerce of Shandong Province for being a leader in the Shandong Service Industry innovation team;

a one-time subsidy of \$376,361 in 2014 from Department of Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation;

a one-time subsidy of \$195,258 in 2014 from Taian Business Bureau for developing an outsourcing platform for E-commerce backend processing;

a one-time subsidy of \$40,679 in 2014 from Department of Commerce of Shandong Province in support of our employment strategies;

a two-time subsidy of \$3,417 and \$9,519 in 2014 from Chongqing Retired Military Cadres Training Center in support of our employment strategies;

a three-time subsidy of \$97,629, \$128,700, and \$170,061 in 2014 from Yongchuan Municipal Finance Bureau in support of our employment strategies;

a one-time tax credit of \$246,772 in 2014 from local tax bureau for the promotion of foreign investments; and

a two-time subsidy of \$9,080 and \$30,346 in 2014 from Chongqing Municipal Finance Bureau Social Security Fund for hiring internship of college students.

In addition, in 2014 and 2013, the Chinese government granted Taiying a 15% income tax rate, which is less than the standard 25% income tax rate in the PRC.

The local PRC government authorities may reduce or eliminate these incentives through new legislation at any time in the future. In the event Taiying is no longer exempt from lowered income taxation, its applicable tax rate would increase from 15% to up to 25%, the standard business income tax rate in the PRC. In addition, the termination of one-time subsidies for call center business development could increase the burden of constructing and operating call centers of such size in the future. The reduction or discontinuation of any of these economic incentives could negatively affect our business and operations.

### Recent changes in the PRC s labor law restrict our ability to reduce our workforce in the PRC in the event of an economic downturn and may increase our production costs.

In June 2007, the National People s Congress of the PRC enacted new labor law legislation called the Labor Contract Law, which became effective on January 1, 2008. To clarify certain details in connection with the implementation of the Labor Contract Law, the PRC State Council promulgated the Implementing Rules for the Labor Contract Law on September 18, 2008, which came into effect immediately. The legislation formalized workers rights concerning overtime hours, pensions, layoffs, employment contracts and the role of trade unions. Considered one of the strictest labor laws in the world, among other things, this new law provides for specific standards and procedures for the termination of an employment contract and places the burden of proof on the employer. In addition, the law requires the payment of a statutory severance pay upon the termination of an employment contract in most cases, including the case of the expiration of a fixed-term employment contract. Further, the law requires an employer to conclude an

employment contract without a fixed-term with any employee who either has worked for the same employer for 10 consecutive years or more or has had two consecutive fixed-term contracts with the same employer. An employment contract without a fixed term can no longer be terminated on the ground of the expiration of the contract, although it can still be terminated pursuant to the standards and procedures set forth under the new law. Because of the lack of

precedent for the enforcement of such a law, the standards and procedures set forth under the law in relation to the termination of an employment contract have raised concerns among foreign investment enterprises in the PRC that such an employment contract without a fixed term might in fact become a lifetime, permanent employment contract. Finally, under the new law, downsizing of either more than 20 people or more than 10% of the workforce may occur only under specified circumstances, such as a restructuring undertaken pursuant to the PRC s Enterprise Bankruptcy Law, or where a company suffers serious difficulties in production and/or business operations, or where there has been a material change in the objective economic circumstances relied upon by the parties at the time of the conclusion of the employment contract, thereby making the performance of such employment contract not possible. To date, there has been very little guidance or precedent as to how such specified circumstances for downsizing will be interpreted and enforced by the relevant PRC authorities. All of our

employees working for us exclusively within the PRC are covered by the new law and thus, our ability to adjust the size of our operations when necessary in periods of recession or less severe economic downturns may be curtailed. Accordingly, if we face future periods of decline in business activity generally or adverse economic periods specific to our business, this new law can be expected to exacerbate the adverse effect of the economic environment on our results of operations and financial condition.

## We may be subject to fines and legal sanctions by SAFE or other PRC government authorities if we or our employees who are PRC citizens fail to comply with PRC regulations relating to employee stock options granted by offshore listed companies to PRC citizens.

On February 1, 2012, SAFE promulgated the Circular of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange on Issues Concerning the Administration of Foreign Exchange Used for Domestic Individuals Participation in Equity Incentive Plans of Companies Listed Overseas, or Circular 7. Under Circular 7, Chinese citizens who are granted share options by an offshore listed company are required, through a Chinese agent or Chinese subsidiary of the offshore listed company, to register with SAFE and complete certain other procedures, including applications for foreign exchange purchase quotas and opening special bank accounts. We and our Chinese employees who have been granted share options are subject to Circular 7. Failure to comply with these regulations may subject us or our Chinese employees to fines and legal sanctions imposed by SAFE or other PRC government authorities and may prevent us from further granting options under our share incentive plans to our employees. Such events could adversely affect our business operations.

#### Changes in PRC s political and economic policies could harm our business.

Substantially all of our business operations are conducted in the PRC. Accordingly, our results of operations, financial condition and prospects are subject to economic, political and legal developments in the PRC. China s economy differs from the economies of most developed countries in many respects, including with respect to the amount of government involvement, level of development, growth rate, control of foreign exchange and allocation of resources.

The PRC economy has historically been a planned economy subject to governmental plans and quotas and has, in certain aspects, been transitioning to a more market-oriented economy. Although we believe that the economic reform and the macroeconomic measures adopted by the PRC government have had a positive effect on the economic development of PRC, we cannot predict the future direction of these economic reforms or the effects these measures may have on our business, financial position or results of operations. In addition, the PRC economy differs from the economies of most countries belonging to the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD). These differences include, without limitation:

economic structure;

level of government involvement in the economy;

level of development;

level of capital reinvestment;

control of foreign exchange;

methods of allocating resources; and

balance of payments position.

As a result of these differences, our business may not develop in the same way or at the same rate as might be expected if the PRC economy were similar to those of the OECD member countries. See Our Business Industry and Market Background.

Since 1979, the Chinese government has promulgated many new laws and regulations covering general economic matters. Despite these efforts to develop a legal system, the PRC s system of laws is not yet

complete. Even where adequate law exists in the PRC, enforcement of existing laws or contracts based on existing law may be uncertain or sporadic, and it may be difficult to obtain swift and equitable enforcement or to obtain enforcement of a judgment by a court of another jurisdiction. The relative inexperience of the PRC s judiciary, in many cases, creates additional uncertainty as to the outcome of any lawsuit. In addition, interpretation of statutes and regulations may be subject to government policies reflecting domestic political changes. Our activities in the PRC will also be subject to administration review and approval by various national and local agencies of the PRC s government. Because of the changes occurring in the PRC s legal and regulatory structure, we may not be able to secure the requisite governmental approval for our activities. Although we have obtained all required governmental approvals to operate our business as currently conducted, to the extent we are unable to obtain or maintain required governmental approvals, the PRC government may, in its sole discretion, prohibit us from conducting our business. See Our Business Industry and Market Background.

# If relations between the United States and China worsen, our share price may decrease and we may have difficulty accessing U.S. capital markets.

At various times during recent years, the United States and China have had disagreements over political and economic issues. Controversies may arise in the future between these two countries. Any political or trade controversy between the United States and China could adversely affect the market price of our common shares and our ability to access U.S. capital markets.

# The Chinese government could change its policies toward private enterprise or even nationalize or expropriate private enterprises, which could result in the total loss of our investment in that country.

Our business is subject to political and economic uncertainties and may be adversely affected by political, economic and social developments in the PRC. Over the past several years, the PRC government has pursued economic reform policies including the encouragement of private economic activity and greater economic decentralization. The PRC government may not continue to pursue these policies or may alter them to our detriment from time to time with little, if any, prior notice.

Changes in policies, laws and regulations or in their interpretation or the imposition of confiscatory taxation, restrictions on currency conversion, restrictions or prohibitions on dividend payments to shareholders, devaluations of currency or the nationalization or other expropriation of private enterprises could have a material adverse effect on our business. Nationalization or expropriation could even result in the total loss of our investment in the PRC and in the total loss of any investment in us.

# Because our operations are located in the PRC, information about our operations is not readily available from independent third-party sources.

Because Taiying and WFOE are based in the PRC, our shareholders may have greater difficulty in obtaining information about them on a timely basis than would shareholders of a U.S.-based company. Their operations will continue to be conducted in the PRC and shareholders may have difficulty in obtaining information about them from sources other than the companies themselves. Information available from newspapers, trade journals, or local, regional or national regulatory agencies such as issuance of construction permits and contract awards for development projects will not be readily available to shareholders and, where available, will likely be available only in Chinese. Shareholders will be dependent upon management for reports of their progress, development, activities and expenditure of proceeds.

# **Risks Associated with this Offering**

Table of Contents

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

# There may not be an active, liquid trading market for our common shares.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common shares. An active trading market for our common shares may not develop or be sustained following this offering. You may not be able to sell your

shares at the market price, if at all, if trading in our shares is not active. The initial public offering price was determined by negotiations between us and the Placement Agent based on a number of factors. The initial public offering price may not be indicative of prices that will prevail in the trading market.

# The market price for our common shares may be volatile, which could result in substantial losses to investors.

The market price for our common shares is likely to be volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in response to various factors, including without limitation the following:

actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quarterly operating results;

changes in the Chinese economy;

announcements by our competitors of acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments;

additions or departures of key personnel; or

# potential litigation.

In addition, the securities markets have from time to time experienced price and volume fluctuations that are not related to the operating performance of particular companies. As a result, to the extent shareholders sell our shares in a negative market fluctuation, they may not receive a price per share that is based solely upon our business performance. We cannot guarantee that shareholders will not lose some or all of their investment in our common shares.

# If we are unable to comply with certain conditions, our common shares may not trade on the NASDAQ Capital Market.

We have received approval to list our common shares on the NASDAQ Capital Market provided that we pay the balance of our entry fee and show that we will have 300 round-lot shareholders prior to our first day of trading. If we are unable to meet these final conditions our shares may not trade on the NASDAQ Capital Market. Although we have received conditional approval to have our shares trade on the NASDAQ Capital Market, investors should be aware that they will be required to commit their investment funds before we provide NASDAQ with confirmation that we have met the final conditions. However, investor funds will be held in escrow with SunTrust Bank and we will not close this offering unless we have met these final conditions.

In addition, we have relied on an exemption to the blue sky registration requirements afforded to covered securities . Securities listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market are covered securities. If we were unable to meet the final conditions for listing, then we would be unable to rely on the covered securities exemption to blue sky registration requirements and we would need to register the offering in each state in which we planned to sell shares. Consequently, we will not complete this offering until we have met the final conditions.

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

# If we are listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market and our financial condition deteriorates, we may not meet continued listing standards on the NASDAQ Capital Market.

The NASDAQ Capital Market also requires companies to fulfill specific requirements in order for their shares to continue to be listed. In order to qualify for continued listing on the NASDAQ Capital Market, we must meet the following criteria:

Our shareholders equity must be at least \$2,500,000; or the market value of our listed securities must be at least \$35,000,000; or our net income from continuing operations in our last fiscal year (or two of the last three fiscal years) must have been at least \$500,000;

The market value of our shares held by non-affiliates must be at least \$500,000;

The market value of our shares must be at least \$1,000,000;

The minimum bid price for our shares must be at least \$1.00 per share;

We must have at least 300 shareholders;

We must have at least 2 market makers; and

We must have adopted NASDAQ-mandated corporate governance measures, including a Board of Directors comprised of a majority of independent directors, an Audit Committee comprised solely of independent directors and the adoption of a code of ethics among other items.

If our shares are listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market but are delisted from the NASDAQ Capital Market at some later date, our shareholders could find it difficult to sell our shares. In addition, if our common shares are delisted from the NASDAQ Capital Market at some later date, we may apply to have our common shares quoted on the Bulletin Board or in the pink sheets maintained by the National Quotation Bureau, Inc. The Bulletin Board and the pink sheets are generally considered to be less efficient markets than the NASDAQ Capital Market. In addition, if our common shares are not so listed or are delisted at some later date, our common shares may be subject to the penny stock regulations. These rules impose additional sales practice requirements on broker-dealers that sell low-priced securities to persons other than established customers and institutional accredited investors and require the delivery of a disclosure schedule explaining the nature and risks of the penny stock market. As a result, the ability or willingness of broker-dealers to sell or make a market in our common shares might decline. If our common shares are not so listed or are delisted at some later date or become subject to the penny stock regulations, it is likely that the price of our shares would decline and that our shareholders would find it difficult to sell their shares.

### We will incur increased costs as a result of being a public company.

As a public company, we will incur legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as a private company. For example, we must now engage U.S. securities law counsel and U.S. GAAP auditors that we did not need prior to this offering, and we will have annual payments for listing on a stock exchange if we are so listed. In addition, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as well as new rules subsequently implemented by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the

SEC ) and NASDAQ, has required changes in corporate governance practices of public companies. We expect these new rules and regulations to increase our legal, accounting and financial compliance costs and to make certain corporate activities more time-consuming and costly. In addition, we will incur additional costs associated with our public company reporting requirements. While it is impossible to determine the amounts of such expenses in advance, we expect that we will incur expenses of between \$500,000 and \$1,000,000 per year that we did not experience prior to commencement of this offering.

### Our classified board structure may prevent a change in control of our company.

Our board of directors is divided into three classes of directors. The current terms of the directors expire in 2015, 2016 and 2017. Directors of each class are chosen for three-year terms upon the expiration of their current terms, and each

# Table of Contents

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

year one class of directors is elected by the shareholders. The staggered terms of our directors may reduce the possibility of a tender offer or an attempt at a change in control, even though a tender offer or change in control might be in the best interest of our shareholders. See Management Board of Directors and Board Committees.

# If a limited number of participants in this offering purchase a significant percentage of the offering, the effective public float may be smaller than anticipated and the price of our common shares may be volatile.

As a company conducting a relatively small public offering, we are subject to the risk that a small number of investors will purchase a high percentage of the offering. While our placement agent is required to sell

shares in this offering to at least 300 round lot shareholders (a round lot shareholder is a shareholder who purchases at least 100 shares) in order to ensure that we meet NASDAQ Capital Market initial listing standards, we have not otherwise imposed any obligations on the placement agent as to the maximum number of shares it may place with individual investors. If, in the course of marketing the offering, the placement agent were to determine that demand for our shares was concentrated in a limited number of investors and such investors determined to hold their shares after the offering rather than trade them in the market, other shareholders could find the trading and price of our shares affected (positively or negatively) by the limited availability of our shares. If this were to happen, investors could find our shares to be more volatile than they might otherwise anticipate. Companies that experience such volatility in their stock price may be more likely to be the subject of securities litigation. In addition, if a large portion of our public float were to be held by a few investors, smaller investors may find it more difficult to sell their shares.

# Shares eligible for future sale may adversely affect the market price of our common shares, as the future sale of a substantial amount of outstanding common shares in the public marketplace could reduce the price of our common shares.

The market price of our shares could decline as a result of sales of substantial amounts of our shares in the public market, or the perception that these sales could occur. In addition, these factors could make it more difficult for us to raise funds through future offerings of our common shares. An aggregate of 15,929,600 shares will be outstanding before the consummation of this offering and 18,329,600 shares will be outstanding immediately after this offering, if the maximum offering is raised. All of the shares sold in the offering will be freely transferable without restriction or further registration under the Securities Act. The remaining shares will be restricted securities as defined in Rule 144. These shares may be sold in the future without registration under the Securities Act to the extent permitted by Rule 144 or other exemptions under the Securities Act.

# You will experience immediate and substantial dilution.

The initial public offering price of our shares is expected to be substantially higher than the pro forma net tangible book value per share of our common shares. Assuming the completion of the minimum offering, if you purchase shares in this offering, you will incur immediate dilution of approximately \$3.02 or approximately 76% in the pro forma net tangible book value per share from the price per share that you pay for the shares. Assuming the completion of the maximum offering, if you purchase shares in this offering, you will incur immediate dilution of approximately \$2.96 or approximately 74% in the pro forma net tangible book value per share that you pay for the price per share that you pay for the common shares. Accordingly, if you purchase shares in this offering, you will incur immediate and substantial dilution of your investment. See Dilution.

# We have not finally determined the uses of the proceeds from this offering, and we may use the proceeds in ways with which you may not agree.

While we have identified the priorities to which we expect to put the proceeds of this offering, our management will have considerable discretion in the application of the net proceeds received by us. In addition, in the event we are unable to locate favorable targets for acquisitions, we have reserved the right to re-allocate funds currently allocated to that purpose to our general working capital. If that were to happen, then our management would have discretion over even more of the net proceeds to be received by our company in this offering. You will not have the opportunity, as part of your investment decision, to assess whether the proceeds are being used appropriately. You must rely on the judgment of our management regarding the application of the net proceeds of this offering. The net proceeds may be used for corporate purposes that do not improve our efforts to achieve profitability or increase our stock price. The net proceeds from this offering may be placed in investments that do not produce profit or increase value. See Use of Proceeds.

# \$500,000 from the proceeds of this offering will be placed in escrow for two years from the date of this offering for the purpose of indemnifying the Placement Agent and may not be used during the two years, or potentially at all, for further developing our business.

We have entered into an indemnity escrow agreement, whereby, we have agreed to place \$500,000 from the proceeds of this offering into an escrow account in the United States for a period of two years following this offering for the purpose of satisfying an initial \$500,000 in bona fide indemnity claims of the Placement Agent. Accordingly, we will not be able to use \$500,000 from the proceeds of this offering to develop our business operations for two years, or at all, if we are required to indemnify the Placement Agent, which could adversely impact our earnings and cash flows, thereby having an adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, and per share trading price of our common shares.

# The \$500,000 of indemnity funds will be placed in a non-interest bearing escrow account and we are free to invest the \$500,000 in securities with certain limitations, which may result in a loss of investment.

Pursuant to the terms of the indemnity escrow agreement, the \$500,000 will be placed in a non-interest bearing account; in addition we are free to invest the escrowed indemnity funds in securities under certain limitations. Investments in securities carry the risk of the loss of capital. Depending upon the investment strategies employed and market conditions, the investment of the escrowed indemnity funds in securities may be adversely affected by unforeseen events involving such matters as political crises, changes in interest rates and forced redemptions of securities. Further, no guarantee or representation can be made that our investment strategy will be successful. Accordingly, we may lose all or some of our investment of the \$500,000 and be unable to use a portion, or all of the escrowed indemnity funds, on our business, which will adversely impact our financial condition.

# Our employees, officers and/or directors will control a sizeable amount of our common shares, decreasing your influence on shareholder decisions.

Assuming the sale of the maximum offering, our employees, officers and/or directors will, in the aggregate, beneficially own approximately 28.1% of our outstanding shares. Assuming the sale of the minimum offering, our employees, officers and/or directors will, in the aggregate, beneficially own approximately 28.7% of our outstanding common shares. As a result, our employees, officers and directors will possess substantial ability to impact our management and affairs and the outcome of matters submitted to shareholders for approval. These shareholders, acting individually or as a group, could exert substantial influence over matters such as electing directors and approving mergers or other business combination transactions. This concentration of ownership and voting power may also discourage, delay or prevent a change in control of our company, which could deprive our shareholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for their shares as part of a sale of our company and might reduce the price of our common shares. These actions may be taken even if they are opposed by our other shareholders, including those who purchase shares in this offering. See Principal Stockholders.

# As the rights of stockholders under British Virgin Islands law differ from those under U.S. law, you may have fewer protections as a shareholder.

Our corporate affairs will be governed by our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association, the British Virgin Islands Business Companies Act, 2004 (the BVI Act ), and the common law of the British Virgin Islands. The rights of shareholders to take legal action against our directors, actions by minority stockholders and the fiduciary responsibilities of our directors under British Virgin Islands law are to a large extent governed by the common law of the British Virgin Islands and by the BVI Act. The common law of the British Virgin Islands is derived in part from comparatively limited judicial precedent in the British Virgin Islands as well as from English

common law, which has persuasive, but not binding, authority on a court in the British Virgin Islands. The rights of our shareholders and the fiduciary responsibilities of our directors under

British Virgin Islands law are not as clearly established as they would be under statutes or judicial precedents in some jurisdictions in the United States. In particular, the British Virgin Islands has a less developed body of securities laws as compared to the United States, and some states (such as Delaware) have more fully developed and judicially interpreted bodies of corporate law.

As a result of all of the above, holders of our shares may have more difficulty protecting their interests through actions against our management, directors or major shareholders than they would as shareholders of a U.S. company. For a discussion of material differences between the provisions of the BVI Act and the laws applicable to companies incorporated in the United States and their shareholders, see Description of Share Capital Differences in Corporate Law.

# British Virgin Islands companies may not be able to initiate shareholder derivative actions, thereby depriving shareholders of the ability to protect their interests.

British Virgin Islands companies may not have standing to initiate a shareholder derivative action in a federal court of the United States. The circumstances in which any such action may be brought, and the procedures and defenses that may be available with respect to any such action, may result in the rights of shareholders of a British Virgin Islands company being more limited than those of shareholders of a company organized in the United States. Accordingly, shareholders may have fewer alternatives available to them if they believe that corporate wrongdoing has occurred. The British Virgin Islands courts are also unlikely to recognize or enforce against us judgments of courts in the United States based on certain liability provisions of U.S. securities law; and to impose liabilities against us, in original actions brought in the British Virgin Islands, based on certain liability provisions of U.S. securities laws that are penal in nature. There is no statutory recognition in the British Virgin Islands will generally recognize and enforce the non-penal judgment of a foreign court of competent jurisdiction without retrial on the merits. This means that even if shareholders were to sue us successfully, they may not be able to recover anything to make up for the losses suffered.

# The laws of the British Virgin Islands provide little protection for minority shareholders, so minority shareholders will have little or no recourse if the shareholders are dissatisfied with the conduct of our affairs.

Under the law of the British Virgin Islands, there is little statutory law for the protection of minority shareholders other than the provisions of the BVI Act dealing with shareholder remedies. The principal protection under statutory law is that shareholders may bring an action to enforce the constituent documents of the corporation, in our case, our Memorandum and Articles of Association. Shareholders are entitled to have the affairs of the company conducted in accordance with the general law and the Memorandum and Articles.

There are common law rights for the protection of shareholders that may be invoked, largely dependent on English company law, since the common law of the British Virgin Islands for business companies is limited. Under the general rule pursuant to English company law known as the rule in <u>Foss v. Harbottle</u>, a court will generally refuse to interfere with the management of a company at the insistence of a minority of its shareholders who express dissatisfaction with the conduct of the company s affairs by the majority or the board of directors. However, every shareholder is entitled to have the affairs of the company conducted properly according to law and the constituent documents of the corporation. As such, if those who control the company have persistently disregarded the requirements of company law or the provisions of the courts will intervene are the following: (1) an act complained of which is outside the scope of the authorized business or is illegal or not capable of ratification by the majority; (2) acts that constitute fraud on the minority where the wrongdoers control the company; (3) acts that infringe on the personal rights of the shareholders, such as the right to vote; and (4) where the company has not complied with

provisions requiring approval of a special or extraordinary majority of shareholders, which are more limited than the rights afforded minority shareholders under the laws of many states in the United States.

#### **DEFINED TERMS AND CONVENTIONS**

Except where the context otherwise requires and for purposes of this prospectus only:

The terms we, us, our company, and our refer to:

China Customer Relations Center, Inc., a British Virgin Islands company ( CCRC when referring solely to our British Virgin Islands listing company);

China BPO Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong company wholly-owned by CCRC ( CBPO );

Shandong Juncheng Information Technology Co., Ltd., a Chinese company wholly-owned by CBPO ( WFOE );

Shandong Taiying Technology Co., Ltd., an affiliated Chinese company that WFOE controls by virtue of contractual arrangements ( Taiying );

Chongqing Central BPO Industry Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiying ( Central BPO );

Jiangsu Taiying Technology Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiying ( JTTC );

Hebei Taiying Communication BPO Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiying ( HTCC );

Shandong Central BPO Industry Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiying ( SCBI );

Jiangsu Central Information Service Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiying ( JCBI );

Anhui Taiying Information Technology Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiying ( ATIT );

Shandong Taiying Technology Guangxi Branch Company, a wholly-owned branch company of Taiying (STTGB);

Shandong Taiying Technology Chongqing Branch Company, a wholly-owned branch company of Taiying (STTCB);

Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

Hebei Taiying Technology Yanjiao Branch Company, a wholly-owned branch company of HTCC (HTTYB);

Jiangsu Taiying Information Service Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiying ( JTIS );

Jiangxi Taiying Technology Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiying ( JXTT );

Xinjiang Taiying Technology Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiying (XTTC);

Nanjing Taiying E-Commerce Business Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiying ( NTEB );

Beijing Taiying Technology Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiying (BTTC);

shares and common shares refer to our common shares, \$0.001 par value per share;

Operating Companies or Operating Company refer to, collectively or individually, as the case may be, to Taiying, Central BPO, JTTC, HTCC, SCBI, JCBI, NTEB, STTGB, STTCB, JTIS, JXTT and XTTC;

China and PRC refer to the People s Republic of China, excluding, for the purposes of this prospectus only, Macau, Taiwan and Hong Kong;

BPO refers to business process outsourcing;

tier 1 cities are to the term used by the National Bureau of Statistics of China and refer to Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Guangzhou; and

tier 2 cities are the 32 major cities, other than tier 1 cities, as categorized by the National Bureau of Statistics of China, including provincial capitals, administrative capitals of autonomous regions, direct-controlled municipalities and other major cities designated as municipalities with independent planning by the State Council.

MVAS refers to mobile value-added services, such as weather, health, education and farming related products to targeted telecommunications subscribers; and

all references to RMB, and Renminbi are to the legal currency of China, and all references to USD, and U.S. Dollars are to the legal currency of the United States.

We refer to Taiying by name in discussing the entity that conducts our day-to-day BPO business in China and refer to our company when discussing our strategies, business plans, organization and other decision-making focused matters. Because we control Taiying by virtue of our ownership of WFOE and WFOE s contractual rights to control the day-to-day operations and corporate activities of Taiying, we believe it would be misleading in most cases to discuss the business decisions of Taiying as though Taiying were at arm s-length from our company.

This prospectus contains translations of certain RMB amounts into U.S. dollar amounts at a specified rate solely for the convenience of the reader unless otherwise noted, all translations made in this prospectus are based on a rate of RMB 6.1460 to \$1.00, which was the exchange rate on December 31, 2014. Unless otherwise stated, we have translated balance sheet amounts with the exception of equity at December 31, 2014 at RMB 6.1460 to \$1.00 as compared to RMB 6.1104 to \$1.00 at December 31, 2013. We have stated equity accounts at their historical rate. The average translation rates applied to income statement accounts for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the year ended December 31, 2013 were RMB 6.1457 and RMB 6.1905, respectively. We make no representation that the RMB or U.S. dollar amounts referred to in this prospectus could have been or could be converted into U.S. dollars or RMB, as the case may be, at any particular rate or at all. On December 8, 2015, the Forex exchange rate was RMB 6.4167 to \$1.00. See Risk Factors Fluctuation of the Renminbi could materially affect our financial condition and results of operations for discussions of the effects of fluctuating exchange rates on the value of our common shares. Any discrepancies in any table between the amounts identified as total amounts and the sum of the amounts listed therein are due to rounding.

For the sake of clarity, this prospectus follows the English naming convention of first name followed by last name, regardless of whether an individual s name is Chinese or English. For example, the name of our chief executive officer will be presented as Gary Wang or Zhili Wang, even though, in Chinese, his name would be presented as Wang Zhili .

Unless otherwise indicated, all information in this prospectus assumes:

no person will exercise any outstanding options; and

a public offering price of \$4.00 per common share.

We have relied on statistics provided by a variety of publicly-available sources regarding China s expectation of growth in its BPO industry.

# FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We have made statements in this prospectus, including under Prospectus Summary, Risk Factors, Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Our Business and elsewhere that constitute forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, such as statements about our plans, objectives, expectations, assumptions or future events. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as anticipate, project, continuing, estimate. plan, ongoing, expect. we be may. should. could and similar expressions denoting uncertainty or an action that may, will or is expressions intend. will. to occur in the future. These statements involve estimates, assumptions, known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from any future results, performances or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements.

Examples of forward-looking statements include:

the timing of the development of future services;

projections of revenue, earnings, capital structure and other financial items;

the development of future company-owned call centers;

statements regarding the capabilities of our business operations;

statements of expected future economic performance;

statements regarding competition in our market; and

assumptions underlying statements regarding us or our business.

The ultimate correctness of these forward-looking statements depends upon a number of known and unknown risks and events. We discuss our known material risks under the heading Risk Factors above. Many factors could cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied in our forward-looking statements. Consequently, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

The forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made, and, except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which the statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

In addition, we cannot assess the impact of each factor on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements.

# **OUR CORPORATE STRUCTURE**

We are a holding company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands that owns all of the outstanding capital stock of CBPO, our wholly owned Hong Kong subsidiary. CBPO, in turn, owns all of the outstanding capital stock of WFOE, our operating subsidiary based in Taian City, Shandong Province, China. WFOE has entered into control agreements with the sole shareholder of Taiying, which agreements allow WFOE to control Taiying. Through our ownership of CBPO, CBPO s ownership of WFOE and WFOE s agreements with Taiying, we control Taiying. Taiying, in turn, is the sole shareholder of Central BPO, JTTC, HTCC, SCBI, JCBI, ATIT, STTGB, STTCB, JTIS, NTEB, JXTT, XTTC and BTTC. CCRC was formed by Taiying as part of a reorganization to facilitate it becoming a public company. The shareholders of Taiying presently own 96% of the shares of CCRC.

# Corporate History Taiying, WFOE, CBPO and CCRC

Taiying was incorporated on December 18, 2007 as a domestic Chinese limited company. We formed CBPO, WFOE and CCRC in 2014, in anticipation of registering the common shares of CCRC in an initial public offering. In connection with the formation of CCRC, CBPO and WFOE, we caused WFOE to become the wholly-owned foreign entity of CBPO as of August 2014 and to enter into certain control agreements with Taiying and its shareholder, pursuant to which we, by virtue of our ownership of CBPO and CBPO s ownership of WFOE, control Taiying.

# Corporate History Central BPO, JTTC HTCC, SCBI, JCBI, ATIT, STTGB, STTCB, HTTYB, JTIS, NTEB, JXTT, XTCC and BTTC

Taiying incorporated the following wholly-owned subsidiaries on the dates indicated below:

Central BPO January 28, 2010;

JTTC February 25, 2010;

HTCC April 20, 2010;

SCBI August 9, 2012;

JCBI December 12, 2013;

ATIT December 26, 2013;

STTGB May 28, 2013;

STTCB February 22, 2013;

HTTYB January 2, 2014 (this company is closed in 2015 and the operation was transferred to HTTC);

JTIS July 1, 2014;

NTEB December 25, 2014;

Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

JXTT January 8, 2015;

XTTC March 20, 2015; and

# BTTC June 30, 2015

# Purpose and Significance of Taiying and its Subsidiaries, Central BPO, JTTC, HTCC, SCBI, JCBI, ATIT, STTGB, STTCB, HTTYB, JTIS, NTEB, JXTT, XTTC and BTTC

Taiying and its subsidiaries operate call centers throughout China. Below is a list of the call centers Taiying and each subsidiary operates, along with the revenue allocated to each call center for 2014.

Central BPO operates a call center located in Chongqing and accounted for approximately 35% of revenue in 2014.

JTTC operates a call center located in Taizhou city, Jiangsu province, and accounted for approximately 0.19% of revenue in 2014.

SCBI operates a call center located in Yantai city, Shandong province, and accounted for approximately 0.12% of revenue in 2014.

JCBI operates a call center located in Kunshan city, Jiangsu province, and accounted for approximately 2.46% of revenue in 2014.

ATIT leases a call center located in Anhui province, but did not account for any revenue in 2014 because the call center is not currently operating.

STTGB operates a call center located in Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, and accounted for 5.49% of revenue in 2014.

STTCB operates a call center located in Chongqing, and accounted for approximately 5.90% of revenue in 2014.

HTTYB was incorporated in January 2014 and closed in 2015. It used to operate a call center located in Yanjiao city, Hebei province, and did not account for any revenues in 2014 since all the operations were outsourced from Taiying and eliminated as intercompany transactions. HTTC is the parent corporation of HTTYB and now operates this call center. HTTC did not generate any revenues in 2014.

JTIS operates a call center located in Huaian city, Jiangsu province, and accounted for approximately 1.0% of revenue in 2014.

NTEB does not operate any call center as it provides technological support to other call centers. NTEB did not account for any revenues in 2014 because it was established on December 25, 2014.

JXTT operates a call center located in Nanchang city, Jiangxi province. JXTY did not account for any revenue in 2014 because the call center did not open until 2015.

XTTC operates a call center located in Changji City, Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region. XTTC did not account for any revenue in 2014 because the entity was not formed until 2015. Taiying operated the call center in 2014 and accounted for approximately 10.19% of revenue in 2014.

Taiying operates a call center located in Taian, City, Shandong province, which accounted for approximately 39.22% of revenue in 2014.

BTTC does not operate any call center. It did not account for any revenue in 2014 as it was recently established on June 30, 2015.

### **Control Agreements**

We conduct our business in China through our subsidiary, WFOE. WFOE, in turn, conducts it business through Taiying, in which we hold no equity interest, but which we control through a series of control agreements with Taiying and its shareholder. Foreign ownership of certain business is subject to restriction under applicable PRC laws, rules and regulations. Certain aspects of our call center business are subject to these restrictions on foreign investment. In order to comply with these laws and regulations, we have entered into control agreements with Taiying through which we operate the restricted businesses. Under U.S. GAAP, Taiying is considered a VIE. U.S. GAAP requires us to consolidate the operating companies in our financial statements because our control agreements related to Taiying provide us with the risks and rewards associated with equity ownership, even though we do not own any of the

outstanding equity interests in the Operating Companies.

On September 3, 2014, Taiying and its sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying, entered into an Entrusted Management Agreement, Exclusive Option Agreement, Shareholder s Voting Proxy Agreement and Pledge of Equity Interest Agreement (collectively, the Control Agreements ) with WFOE in return for ownership interests in CCRC. Through the organization of CCRC as a holding company, Beijing Taiying s shareholders now own 96% of the common shares of CCRC. The remaining 4% of CCRC s common shares belong to 5 other investors. CCRC indirectly controls Taiying through its 100% equity interests of WFOE. Through the Control Agreements, we can control the Operating Companies daily operations and financial affairs, appoint their senior executives and approve all matters requiring shareholder approval. As a result of the Control Agreements, which enable us to control the Operating Companies and cause WFOE to absorb 100% of the expected losses and gains of the Operating Companies, we are considered the primary beneficiary of the Operating Companies. Accordingly, we consolidate the Operating Companies operating results, assets and liabilities in our financial statements. For a description of these contractual arrangements, see Our Corporate Structure Contractual Arrangements with Taiying and Taiying s Shareholder.

Our current corporate structure is as follows:

*Contractual Arrangements with Taiying and its Shareholder*. Our relationships with Taiying and its sole shareholder are governed by a series of contractual arrangements. Other than pursuant to the contractual arrangements between WFOE and Taiying, Taiying need not transfer any other funds generated from its operations to WFOE. Effective as of September 3, 2014, WFOE entered into the Control Agreements with Taiying and its sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying, which provide as follows:

*Entrusted Management Agreement.* Taiying, its sole shareholder and WFOE have entered into an Entrusted Management Agreement, which provides that WFOE will be fully and exclusively responsible for the management of Taiying. As consideration for such services, Taiying has agreed to pay the entrusted management fee during the term of this agreement. The entrusted management fee will be equal to Taiying s estimated earnings. Also, WFOE will assume all operational risks related to the entrusted management of Taiying and bear all losses of Taiying. The term of this agreement will be from the effective date thereof to the earliest of the following: (1) the winding up of Taiying; (2) the termination date of the Entrusted Management Agreement, as agreed by the parties thereto; or (3) the date on which WFOE completes an acquisition of Taiying.

*Exclusive Option Agreement*. Taiying and Taiying s sole shareholder have entered into an Exclusive Option Agreement with WFOE, which provides that WFOE will be entitled to acquire such shares from the current shareholder upon certain terms and conditions. In addition, WFOE is entitled to an irrevocable exclusive purchase option to purchase all or part of the assets and business of Taiying, if such a purchase is or becomes allowable under PRC laws and regulations and WFOE so elects. The Exclusive Option Agreement also prohibits Taiying and its shareholder from transferring any portion of the equity interests, business or assets of Taiying to anyone other than WFOE. WFOE has not yet taken any corporate action to exercise this right of purchase, and there is no guarantee that it will do so or will be permitted to do so by applicable law at such times as it may wish to do so.

*Shareholder s Voting Proxy Agreement*. The shareholder of Taiying has executed a Shareholder s Voting Proxy Agreement to irrevocably appoint the persons designated by WFOE with the exclusive right to exercise, on their behalf, all of its voting rights in accordance with applicable law and Taiying s Articles of Association, including but not limited to the rights to sell or transfer all or any of its equity interests in Taiying and to appoint and elect the directors and Chairman as the authorized legal representative of Taiying. This agreement will only be terminated prior to the completion of acquisition of all of the equity interests in, or all assets or business of Taiying.

**Pledge of Equity Interest Agreement.** WFOE and the shareholder of Taiying have entered into a Pledge of Equity Agreement, pursuant to which the shareholder pledged all of its shares (100%) of Taiying, to WFOE. If Taiying or its shareholder breaches its respective contractual obligations in the Entrusted Management Agreement , Exclusive Option Agreement and Shareholders Voting Proxy Agreement , WFOE as pledgee, will be entitled to certain right to foreclose on the pledged equity interests. Taiying s shareholder cannot dispose of the pledged equity interests or take any actions that would prejudice WFOE s interest. This pledge has been recorded with applicable authorities in China to perfect WFOE s security interest.

Although the structure the Company has adopted is consistent with longstanding industry practice, and is commonly adopted by comparable companies in China, the PRC government may not agree that these arrangements comply with PRC licensing, registration or other regulatory requirements, with existing policies or with requirements or policies that may be adopted in the future. There are uncertainties regarding the interpretation and application of PRC laws and regulations including those that govern the Company s contractual arrangements, which could limit the Company s ability to enforce these contractual arrangements. If the Company or any of its variable interest entities are found to be in violation of any existing or future PRC laws, rules or regulations, or fail to obtain or maintain any of the required permits or approvals, the relevant PRC regulatory authorities would have broad discretion to take action in dealing with such violations or failures, including levying fines, revoking business and other licenses of the Company s variable interest entities, requiring the Company to discontinue or restrict its operations, restricting its right to collect revenue, requiring the Company to restructure its operations or taking other regulatory or enforcement actions against the Company. In addition, it is unclear what impact the PRC government actions would have on the Company and on its ability to consolidate the financial results of its variable interest entities in the consolidated financial statements, if the PRC government authorities were to find the Company s legal structure and contractual arrangements to be in violation of PRC laws, rules and regulations. If the imposition of any of these government actions causes the Company to lose its right to direct the activities of Taiying and through Taiying s equity interest in its subsidiaries or the right to receive their economic benefits, the Company would no longer be able to consolidate the financial results of Taiying and its subsidiaries.

# **USE OF PROCEEDS**

After deducting the placement fee and commissions and estimated expenses of this offering and the formation transactions, we expect net proceeds from this offering of approximately \$6,540,000 million, assuming completion of the minimum offering, or \$7,988,000 million, assuming completion of the maximum offering at the initial public offering price of \$4.00 per share. The net proceeds from this offering must be remitted to China before we will be able to use the funds to grow our business. The procedure to remit funds may take several months after completion of this offering, and we will be unable to use the offering proceeds in China until remittance is completed. See Risk Factors We must remit the offering proceeds to the PRC before they may be used to benefit our business in the PRC, and this process may take a number of months.

We intend to use the net proceeds of this offering as follows after we complete the remittance process, and we have ordered the specific uses of proceeds in order of priority.

Approximately \$3.2 million for the purchase of equipment including workstations, computers and headsets;

Approximately \$1.1 million for future acquisitions;

Approximately \$700,000 for additional research and development related to data mining and product development; and

The balance, approximately \$1 million (assuming a minimum offering) or \$2.5 million (assuming a maximum offering for additional working capital.

The precise amounts and percentage of proceeds we would devote to particular categories of activity will depend on prevailing market and business conditions as well as on the nature of particular opportunities that may arise from time to time. Similarly, the priority of our prospective uses of proceeds will depend on business and market conditions are they develop. Accordingly, we reserve the right to change the use of proceeds that we presently anticipate and describe herein.

Pending remitting the offering proceeds to the PRC, we intend to invest our net proceeds in short-term, interest bearing, investment-grade obligations.

# **Indemnification Escrow Agreement**

We have agreed with the placement agent in this offering to establish an escrow account in the United States and to fund such account with \$500,000 from this offering that may be utilized by the placement agent to fund any bona fide indemnification claims of the placement agent arising during a two year period following the offering. The escrow account will not be interest bearing, and we will be free to invest the assets in securities. All funds that are not subject to an indemnification claim will be returned to us after the two year period expires.

# **DIVIDEND POLICY**

The holders of shares of our common shares are entitled to dividends out of funds legally available when and as declared by our board of directors. Our board of directors has never declared a dividend and does not anticipate declaring a dividend in the foreseeable future. Should we decide in the future to pay dividends, as a holding company, our ability to do so and meet other obligations depends upon the receipt of dividends or other payments from our operating subsidiary and other holdings and investments. In addition, the Operating Companies may, from time to time, be subject to restrictions on their ability to make distributions to us, including as a result of restrictive covenants in loan agreements, restrictions on the conversion of local currency into U.S. dollars or other hard currency and other regulatory restrictions. In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of our common shares are entitled to receive, ratably, the net assets available to shareholders after payment of all creditors.

# **EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION**

Our business is conducted in China, and the financial records of WFOE and Taiying are maintained in RMB, their functional currency. However, we use the U.S. dollar as our reporting currency; therefore, periodic reports made to shareholders will include current period amounts translated into U.S. dollars using the then-current exchange rates, for the convenience of the readers. Our financial statements have been translated into U.S. dollars in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 830-10, Foreign Currency Matters. We have translated our asset and liability accounts using the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. We translated our statements of operations using the average exchange rate for the period. We reported the resulting translation adjustments under other comprehensive income. Unless otherwise noted, we have translated balance sheet amounts with the exception of equity at December 31, 2014 at RMB 6.1460 to \$1.00 as compared to RMB 6.1104 to \$1.00 at December 31, 2013. The average translation rates applied to income statement accounts for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the year ended December 31, 2013 were RMB 6.1457 and RMB 6.1905, respectively.

We make no representation that any RMB or U.S. dollar amounts could have been, or could be, converted into U.S. dollars or RMB, as the case may be, at any particular rate, or at all. The Chinese government imposes control over its foreign currency reserves in part through direct regulation of the conversion of RMB into foreign exchange and through restrictions on foreign trade. On December 8, 2015, the Forex exchange rate was RMB 6.4167 to \$1.00. The Company does not currently engage in currency hedging transactions.

The following table sets forth information concerning exchange rates between the RMB and the U.S. dollar for the periods indicated.

# **Forex Exchange Rate**

	(RMB per U.S. Dollar)	
	Period End Avera	
2009	6.8272	6.8310
2010	6.6018	6.7696
2011	6.3585	6.4640
2012	6.3086	6.3116
2013	6.1104	6.1905
2014	6.1460	6.1457
January 2015	6.1523	6.1307
February 2015	6.1527	6.1438
March 2015	6.1091	6.1337
April 2015	6.0850	6.0955
May 2015	6.0880	6.0839
June 2015	6.0888	6.0910
July 2015	6.1997	6.0906
August 2015	6.3785	6.3179
September 2015	6.3538	6.3592
October 2015	6.3185	6.3416
November 2015	6.3882	6.3620
December 2015 (through December 8) CAPITALIZATION	6.4167	6.3940

The following table sets forth our capitalization as of November 30, 2015 on a pro forma as adjusted basis giving effect to the sale of the minimum and maximum offering at an assumed public offering price of \$4.00 per share and to reflect the application of the proceeds after deducting the estimated 8% placement fees, 1.5% non-accountable expense allowance and \$700,000 in other offering expenses.

You should read this table in conjunction with our financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this prospectus and Use of Proceeds and Description of Share Capital.

### Minimum Offering (2,000,000 Common Shares)

# **U.S. Dollars**

# November 30, 2015

	As	Reported <sup>(1)</sup>	Pro Forma Adjusted for IPO <sup>(2)</sup>			
Common shares		-	Ū			
Shares <sup>(3)</sup>		15,929,600		17,929,600		
Par Value Amount	\$	15,930	\$	17,930		
Additional Paid-In Capital	\$	2,684,150	\$	9,222,150(4)		
Statutory Reserves	\$	1,299,836	\$	1,299,836		
Retained Earnings	\$	11,920,068	\$	11,920,068		
Accumulated Other Comprehensive						
Income	\$	(17,907)	\$	(17,907)		
Total	\$	15,902,077	\$	22,442,077		
Maximum Offering (2,400,000 Common Shares)						

Maximum Offering (2,400,000 Common Shares)

### **U.S. Dollars**

### November 30, 2015

	As	Reported <sup>(1)</sup>	Pro Forma Adjusted for IPO <sup>(2)</sup>		
Common shares		-	Ŭ		
Shares <sup>(3)</sup>		15,929,600		18,329,600	
Par Value Amount	\$	15,930	\$	18,330	
Additional Paid-In Capital	\$	2,684,150	\$	10,669,750(4)	
Statutory Reserves	\$	1,299,836	\$	1,299,836	
Retained Earnings	\$	11,920,068	\$	11,920,068	
Accumulated Other Comprehensive					
Income	\$	(17,907)	\$	(17,907)	
Total	\$	15,902,077	\$	23,8980,077	

- <sup>(1)</sup> This column gives effect to the reorganization of our company that was completed on September 3, 2014, upon Taiying s execution of the Control Agreements by its sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying, and WFOE.
- (2) Gives effect to the sale of the minimum offering and the maximum offering, as applicable, at an assumed public offering price of \$4.00 per share and to reflect the application of the proceeds after deducting a 8% underwriting discounts, 1.5% non-accountable expense allowance and our estimated offering expenses of \$700,000.
- <sup>(3)</sup> The number of shares shown in the first column is the number of shares as of November 30, 2015.
- <sup>(4)</sup> Pro forma adjusted for IPO additional paid in capital reflects the net proceeds we expect to receive, after deducting a 8% underwriting discount, a 1.5% non-accountable expense allowance and approximately \$700,000

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

in expenses, less the par value of the shares offered. In a minimum offering, we expect to receive net proceeds of \$6,540,000 (\$8,000,000 offering, less underwriting discount of \$640,000, non-accountable expense allowance of \$120,000 and offering expenses of \$700,000), of which \$6,538,000 would be attributable to additional paid in capital after deducting \$2,000 in aggregate par value amount. In a maximum offering, we expect to receive net proceeds of \$7,988,000 (\$9,600,000 offering, less underwriting discount of \$768,000, non-accountable expense allowance of \$144,000 and offering expenses of \$700,000), of which \$7,985,600 would be attributable to additional paid in capital after deducting \$2,400 in aggregate par value amount.

# DILUTION

If you invest in our common shares, your interest will be diluted to the extent of the difference between the initial public offering price per common share and the pro forma net tangible book value per common share after the offering. Dilution results from the fact that the per common share offering price is substantially in excess of the book value per common share attributable to the existing shareholders for our presently outstanding common shares. Our net tangible book value attributable to shareholders at June 30, 2015 was \$11,010,435 or approximately \$0.69 per common share. Net tangible book value per common share as of June 30, 2015 represents the amount of total tangible assets less goodwill, acquired intangible assets and total liabilities, divided by the number of common shares outstanding.

If the minimum offering is sold, we will have 17,929,600 common shares outstanding upon completion of the offering. Our post offering pro forma net tangible book value, which gives effect to receipt of the net proceeds from the offering and issuance of additional shares in the offering, but does not take into consideration any other changes in our net tangible book value after June 30, 2015, will be approximately \$17,550,435 or \$0.98 per common share. This would result in dilution to investors in this offering of approximately \$3.02 per common share or approximately 76% from the assumed offering price of \$4.00 per common share. Net tangible book value per common share would increase to the benefit of present stockholders by \$0.29 per share attributable to the purchase of the common shares by investors in this offering.

If the maximum offering is sold, we will have 18,329,600 common shares outstanding upon completion of the offering. Our post offering pro forma net tangible book value, which gives effect to receipt of the net proceeds from the offering and issuance of additional shares in the offering, but does not take into consideration any other changes in our net tangible book value after June 30, 2015, will be approximately \$18,998,435 or \$1.04 per common share. This would result in dilution to investors in this offering of approximately \$2.96 per common share or approximately 74% from the assumed offering price of \$4.00 per common share. Net tangible book value per common share would increase to the benefit of present shareholders by \$0.35 per share attributable to the purchase of the common shares by investors in this offering.

The following table sets forth the estimated net tangible book value per common share after the offering and the dilution to persons purchasing common shares based on the foregoing minimum and maximum offering assumptions.

	Minimum Offering <sup>(1)</sup>		Maximum Offering <sup>(2)</sup>	
Assumed offering price per common share	\$	4.00	\$	4.00
Net tangible book value per common share before				
the offering	\$	0.69	\$	0.69
Increase per common share attributable to payments				
by new investors	\$	0.29	\$	0.35
Pro forma net tangible book value per common				
share after the offering	\$	0.98	\$	1.04
Dilution per common share to new investors	\$	3.02	\$	2.96

Assumes net proceeds of \$6,540,000 from offering of 2,000,000 common shares, calculated as follows:
 \$8,000,000 offering, less underwriting discount of \$640,000, non-accountable expense allowance of \$120,000

and offering expenses of \$700,000.

(2) Assumes net proceeds of \$7,988,000 from offering of 2,400,000 common shares, calculated as follows:
 \$9,600,000 offering, less underwriting discount of \$768,000, non-accountable expense allowance of \$144,000 and offering expenses of \$700,000.

# **Post-Offering Ownership**

The following charts illustrate our pro forma proportionate ownership, upon completion of the offering under alternative minimum and maximum offering assumptions, by present shareholders and investors in this offering, compared to the relative amounts paid by each. The charts reflect payment by present shareholders as of the date the consideration was received and by investors in this offering at the assumed offering price without deduction of commissions or expenses. The charts further assume no changes in net tangible book value other than those resulting from the offering.

	Shares Purchased		Total Con	Average Price Per Share	
	Amount (#)	Percent (%)	Amount (\$)	Percent (%)	(\$)
MINIMUM OFFERING					
Existing shareholders	15,929,600	88.9%	4,720,624	37.14%	0.30
New investors	2,000,000	11.1%	8,000,000	62.9%	4.00
Total	17,929,600	100%	12,720,624	100%	0.71

	Shares Pu	Shares Purchased		<b>Total Consideration</b>		
	Amount (#)	Percent (%)	Amount (\$)	Percent (%)	Per Share (\$)	
MAXIMUM OFFERING						
Existing shareholders	15,929,600	86.9%	4,720,624	33.0%	0.30	
New investors	2,400,000	13.1%	9,600,000	67.0%	4.00	
Total	18,329,600	100%	14,320,624	100%	0.78	
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF						

### FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations in conjunction with our audited and unaudited consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results and the timing of selected events could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including those set forth under Risk Factors and elsewhere in this prospectus.

### Overview

We are a BPO service provider focusing on the complex, voice-based segment of customer care services, including customer relationship management, technical support, sales, customer retention, marketing surveys and research for some of China s major enterprises. We help China companies enhance their strategic capabilities, improve quality and lower costs by designing, implementing and managing their critical back-office processes. Our goal is to create the largest call center service network in China by providing a fully-integrated solution that spans people, process, proprietary technology and infrastructure for governments and private-sector clients in the automotive, financial services, government, logistics, media and entertainment, retail, technology, travel, and telecommunication industries.

Our service is currently delivered from our delivery centers located in Shandong Province, Jiangsu Province, Hebei Province, Anhui Province, the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, Jiangxi Province and Chongqing City, with a capacity approximately of 7,800 seats. We believe Taiying and its subsidiaries strategic locations and our investment in technology and human resources position us well in our efforts to reach our goals. We also provide outsourcing services to our clients whereby they can lease our employees to work at their offices.

Currently our largest customers are the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom. In addition to answering inbound calls, or calls initiated by customers purchasing products and services from our clients, we also make outbound cold calls to help these subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom promote their products, such as weather, health, education and farming related VAS products to targeted China Mobile and China Telecom s subscribers.

We generate almost all of our revenues from a total of 14 subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom, and from, Haier, GM OnStar, and Volvo. We recently signed outsourcing contracts with two of China s top five largest banks based upon assets held, China Construction Bank and Bank of Communications. We also recently signed an outsourcing contract with a subsidiary of China s online retailer Alibaba.

We received grants from various government agencies after meeting certain conditions, such as locating call centers in their jurisdictions or helping local employment needs. Government grants are recognized when received and all the conditions specified in the grant have been met. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the government grants were \$1,439,186, accounting for 81% of our net income. Among the grants, \$1,020,715 was for our presence in the region, awarded by the government for its initiatives of promoting local economy, \$418,471 was for helping the local employment needs by providing jobs. For the six months ended June 30, 2015 the government grants were \$400,598, accounting for 22% of our net income. Among these grants, \$356,265 was for tax rebates. There are no restrictions on how grants may be used and there are not any other obligations that exist after grants are received. Although there is no assurance, we anticipate that we will continue to receive a significant amount of government grants, and government grants will continue to have a major impact on our future profitability until our net income increases. In the absence of future government grants, our operations and profitability will be negatively impacted.

We operate our business through contractual arrangements between WFOE, our wholly-owned subsidiary, and Taiying. Through contractual arrangements, we are able to control the business of Taiying.

# **Principal Factors Affecting Our Results of Operations**

# Revenues

We generate revenue from the BPO programs we administer for our clients. For the six months ended June 30, 2015, we derived approximately 70% of our revenues from Taiying s call center service to the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom.

We provide our services to clients under contracts that typically consist of a master services agreement containing the general terms and conditions of our client relationship, and a statement of work describing in detail the terms and conditions of each program we administer for a client. We have signed contracts with certain of the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom for calling services which are typically for a one year term with no minimum usage required. However, our client relationships tend to be longer-term given the scale and complexity of the services we provide coupled with the risk and costs to our clients associated with bringing business processes in-house or outsourcing them to another provider.

For inbound customer care service, we charge fees based on either the number of calls (charges per interaction) or predetermined seats charges (weekly charges, or monthly charges per seat). We negotiate these terms on a client-by-client basis. In most contracts, our clients pay a pre-determined rate if we meet specified performance criteria. Such criteria are based on objective performance metrics that our client agrees would add quantifiable value to their operations. In addition, most of our contracts include provisions that provide for downward revision of our prices under certain circumstances, such as if the average speed required to answer a call is longer than agreed to with

the client. All of our fees and downward revision provisions are negotiated at the time that we sign a statement of work with a client, and our revenue from our contracts is thus fixed and determinable at the end of each month. For the six months ended June 30, 2015, 65% of our revenue was

generated from inbound calling and 29% of our revenue was generated from outbound calling. For the year ended December 31, 2014, 46% of our revenue was generated from inbound calling and 51% of our revenue was generated from outbound calling. The remaining 3% of revenues was related to other services provided to our customers such as data processing.

We believe China s major enterprises have begun to focus on BPO providers who can offer both inbound and outbound customer care service as a means to increase their sales and profitability. In the past, companies performed call center services internally, however, companies have found that by outsourcing these services they can lower their operational costs, along with obtaining high-quality customer interactions and innovative service solutions. We do not anticipate any major changes in our sales percentage between inbound and outbound calling and strive to keep a balance between these two services, because clients seek BPO providers who can provide both. However, if there is a major shift in profitability between inbound and outbound calls services, it is likely that we will focus our services to the area with the higher profit margin.

For outbound cold calling services, we charge fees based on the success of marketing services upon subscription. The fees we charge vary among all of our services.

We currently derive a significant portion of our revenue from our telecommunications clients. These customers represented 70% and 74% of our sales for the six months ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, respectively. Further, these customers represented 74% and 78% of our sales for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

# Factors Affecting Revenues

The following factors affect the revenues we derive from our operations. For other factors affecting our revenues, see Risk Factors Risks Related to Our Business.

*Customer demand for outsourced call center customer care services*. Customer demand for outsourced call BPO services is closely linked to the performance of the general economy and is sensitive to business and personal discretionary spending levels. Declines in customer demand due to adverse general economic conditions, lower customer confidence and changes in customer preferences for our clients products can lower the revenues and profitability of our operations. As a result, changes in customer demand and general business cycles can subject our revenues to volatility. Management is constantly trying to find additional services that we can provide to our customers to help offset any decrease in demand for our services.

*Relationships with major customers.* Any negative changes in our relationship with the subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom and negative changes in customer demand and usage preference for our services can bring negative consequence to the revenue and profitability of our business. The loss, cancellation, deferral or renegotiation of any large agreements with the subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. In addition, if the subsidiaries of China Mobile or China Telecom decide to increase their percentage of revenue sharing, or do not comply with the terms and conditions of our agreements with them, our revenues and profitability could also be materially adversely affected. To help offset this risk we will attempt to expand our client lists, and develop more customers in other industries, such as, banking and e-commerce.

*Consumer privacy*. The growth of our business may be adversely affected if the public becomes concerned that confidential user information transmitted over the Internet and wireless networks is not adequately protected. A damaging consumer backlash against unsolicited mobile marketing could occur if overzealous marketers fail to respect consumers right to privacy and are perceived as inundating them with unwanted and irrelevant mobile

marketing calls or messages. Our services may decline and our business may be adversely affected if significant breaches of network security or user privacy occur. We maintain and evaluate our networks for vulnerability in an attempt to safeguard consumer privacy.

*Experienced customer care professionals*. We rely on large numbers of customer service associates, and our success depends to a significant extent on our ability to attract, hire, train and retain qualified customer service associates. If we fail to attract and retain enough sufficiently trained customer service associates and other personnel to support our operations and our business, results of operations and financial condition will be seriously harmed. We have developed relationships with local colleges to put us in the position to recruit quality employees.

*Competition.* Competition in the BPO market is intense and growing. While the call center industry in China features a large number of companies, we believe that most of those companies are smaller call center operators with fewer than 100 seats each. We believe that the industry will experience increasing consolidation since consolidated operations result in economies of scale, brand name recognition, and more convenience and efficiency in servicing China s major enterprises. It is also possible that competitors, may decrease our market share. Increased competition could result in lower personnel utilization rates, billing rate reductions, fewer customer engagements, reduced gross margins and loss of market share, any one of which could materially and adversely affect our profits and overall financial condition. To offset this risk, we seek to leverage our economies of scale, reputation in the marketplace and expand our geographic locations in order to serve our clients better and obtain new clients.

*Expansion*. We believe that businesses in China are increasingly looking for vendors that provide call center BPO services from multiple geographic locations. This allows clients to manage fewer vendors while minimizing risk to operations from natural disasters. We believe that we should continue to expand our business to other regions of China to increase our market share. Since January 2013, Taiying has incorporated seven new subsidiary companies and two branch companies throughout China to further expand our business. If we fail to make acquisitions or expand to other geographic regions, our revenue growth could slow down.

# Costs and Expenses

We primarily incur the following costs and expenses:

*Costs of revenues*. Cost of revenues consists primarily of the salaries, payroll taxes and employee benefit costs of our customer service associates and other operations personnel. Cost of revenues also includes direct communications costs, rent expense, information technology costs, and facilities support costs related to the operation of our call centers.

*Selling, general and administrative expenses.* Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation expense for our corporate staff and personnel supporting our corporate staff, communication costs, gasoline, welfare expenses, education expenses, professional fees (including consulting, audit and legal fees), travel and business hospitality expenses.

*Depreciation.* We currently purchase substantially all of our equipment. We record property and equipment at cost and calculate depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of our assets, which generally range from three to five years. We depreciate leasehold improvements on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset. If the actual useful life of any asset is less than its estimated depreciable life, we would record additional depreciation expense or a loss on disposal to the extent the net book value of the asset is not recovered upon sale. Our depreciation is primarily driven by large investments in capital equipment required for our continued expansion, including the build-out of seats, which we define as workstations where customer service associates generate revenue. These expenditures include tenant improvements to new facilities, furniture, information technology infrastructure, computers and software licenses and are usually in the range of \$2,000 to \$8,000 per seat depending on specific client requirements. These costs are generally depreciated over five

years.

# Factors Affecting Expenses

*Prevailing salary levels.* Our cost of services is impacted the most by prevailing salary levels. Although we have not been subject to significant wage inflation in China, any increase in the market rate for wages could significantly harm our operating results and our operating margin.

*Forecasted demand for our services*. We often incur more costs in the early stages of implementing our client s forecasted demand for our services. Similarly, we may also be required to increase recruiting and training costs to prepare our customer service associates for a specific type of service. If we undertake additional recruiting and training programs and our client terminates a program early or does not meet its forecasted demand, our operating margin could decline.

*Managing our customer service associates efficiently.* Our cost of services is also impacted by our ability to manage and employ our customer service associates efficiently. Our workforce management group monitors staffing requirements in an effort to ensure efficient use of these employees. Although we generally have been able to reallocate our customer service associates as client demand has fluctuated, an unanticipated termination or significant reduction of a program by a major client may cause us to experience a higher-than-expected number of unassigned customer service associates.

*Transition to public company*. Once we complete this offering, we expect that our administrative costs will increase materially, as we need to comply with detailed reporting requirements. We expect to incur increased expenses for legal fees, insurance premiums, auditing fees, investor relations, stockholder meetings, printing and filing fees, share-based compensation expense, as well as employee-related expenses for regulatory compliance and other costs. We also expect selling and administrative expenses to increase as we add personnel and incur additional fees and costs related to the growth of our business and our operation as a publicly traded company in the United States.

*Number of customers*. To the extent Taiying increases the number of its clients, we expect to experience a corresponding increase in selling expenses and travel expenses. At present, Taiying is able to service substantially all of its customers with its 11 facilities. As we expand our Chongqing, Xinjiang and Shandong facilities, we expect Taiying to add more customers and incur more selling expenses.

*Number of call centers we operate*. We operate 11 call centers throughout China, services clients throughout Shandong province (Taian City, Yantai City), Jiangsu province (Taizhou City, Huaqiao City, Huaian City), Anhui province (Hefei City), Hebei province (Yanjiao City), the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region (Changju City), the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region (Nanning City), and Chongqing (Yongchuan City). As Taiying operates more call centers, our administrative expenses tend to increase in dollars but decrease as a percentage of revenues.

*Manage and utilize our seats efficiently.* The effect of our depreciation on our operating margin is impacted by our ability to manage and utilize our seats efficiently. We seek to expand our seat capacity only after receiving contractual commitments from our clients. However, we have in the past increased our seat capacity based on forecasted demand projections from our clients, which are not contractual commitments. This has resulted in a surplus of seats, which has increased our depreciation and, to a limited extent, reduced our operating margin. As a general rule, the efficiency of our use of seats has had less of an impact on our operating margin than the efficiency of our deployment of our customer service associates.

*Depreciation.* Our depreciation is primarily driven by large investments in capital equipment required for our continued expansion, including the build-out of seats, which we define as workstations where customer service associates generate revenue. These expenditures include tenant improvements to new facilities, furniture, information

technology infrastructure, computers and software licenses and are usually in the range of \$2,000 to \$8,000 per seat depending on specific client requirements. These costs are generally depreciated over five years and are substantially the same in the United States and in China.

## Six Months Ended June 30, 2015 Compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 2014

#### **Results of Operations**

	Foi	the Six Mont 2015	hs En	ded June 30, 2014
Revenues	\$	25,681,240	\$	16,887,414
Revenues - related party				11,418
Cost of revenues		20,293,632		14,128,488
Gross profit		5,387,608		2,770,344
Selling, general and administrative expenses		3,459,306		2,097,828
Operating income	\$	1,928,302	\$	672,516

*Revenues.* Our revenue from third parties was \$25,681,240 and \$16,887,414 for the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, an increase of \$8,793,826, or 52% as a result of growth in our BPO business. Our revenue growth in the six months ended June 30, 2015 resulted primarily from increased sales to our existing clients. Our revenues from related parties decreased by \$11,418 from \$11,418 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 to zero for the six month ended June 30, 2015. This decrease resulted primarily from the decreased revenue from our related party, Shandong Luk Information Technology Co., Ltd. for the six months ended June 30, 2015.

*Gross margin*. Our gross margin increased from positive 16% for the six months ended June 30, 2014, to positive 21% for the six months ended June 30, 2015. This increase was primarily due to the increase of our operating efficiency and the termination of less profitable business.

*Cost of revenues.* Cost of revenues consists primarily of salaries, payroll taxes and employee benefits costs of our customer service associates and other operations personnel. Cost of revenues also includes direct communications costs, rent expense, information technology costs, and facilities support. Our cost of revenues increased by \$6,165,144, or 44% for the six months ended June 30, 2015 compared to the same period in 2014. This absolute dollar increase in cost of revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2015 over the same period 2014 directly corresponded to the increase in revenue during the same period. Our cost of revenues as a percentage of revenue was 79% and 84% for the six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively. This decrease was primarily due to the increase of our operating efficiency.

*Selling, general and administrative expenses.* Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of sales and administrative employee-related expenses, professional fees, travel costs, and other corporate expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses were \$3,459,306 for the six months ended June 30, 2015, and \$2,097,828 for the same period in 2014, an increase of \$1,361,478, or 65%. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses is a result of higher payroll and bonus expenses paid to the administrative personnel and the management team. We anticipate that our administrative expenses, particularly those related to support personnel costs, professional fees, as well as Sarbanes-Oxley compliance, will continue to increase after we become a publicly traded company in the United States.

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

*Income from operations*. Our income from operations were \$1,928,302 and \$672,516 for the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 respectively. Our operating income as a percentage of total revenues were 8% and 4% for the six months ended June 30 2015 and 2014 respectively. The increase in our income from operations resulted from the expansion and growth of our business for new and existing customers.

*Government Grants*. Government grants were \$400,598 and \$491,514 for the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, a decrease of \$90,916 or 18%. Most of our government grants are a one-

time event and we are unable to predict if we will receive future grants. Due to the amount of government grants we have received in the past, if we fail to continue to receive government grants our net income will be materially reduced. Government grants as a percentage of net income were 22% and 70% for the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

*Income Taxes*. We incurred \$458,942 in income taxes for the six months ended June 30, 2015, and \$255,248 for the six months ended June 30, 2014. This \$203,694 increase resulted from our increased revenues. For the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, Taiying was entitled to a preferential enterprise income tax (EIT) rate of 15%. The standard enterprise income tax rate in China is 25%. Other PRC entities are subject to the 25% EIT rate of their taxable income.

*Net Income*. Our net income was \$1,810,161 and \$700,815 for the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 respectively, an increase of \$1,109,346, or 158%. The increase in net income was a result of our increased revenues, which was primarily resulted from the increased revenue of our existing clients.

# Liquidity and Capital Resources

# Liquidity

Liquidity is the ability of a company to generate funds to support its current and future operations, satisfy its obligations and otherwise operate on an ongoing basis. At June 30, 2015, our working capital was \$7,376,438, compared to working capital of \$5,465,307 at December 31, 2014.

Our cash and cash equivalents balance at June 30, 2015 totaled \$794,897, compared to \$5,097,010 at December 31, 2014. During the six months ended June 30, 2015, we used cash in operating activities of \$3,189,171, investment activities of \$343,354, financing activities of \$796,887 and offset by a positive effect of prevailing exchange rates on our cash position of \$27,299. During the six months ended June 30, 2014, we used cash in operating activities of \$3,200,046, investment activities of \$356,459, the negative effect of prevailing exchange rates on our cash position of \$406,951 provided by financing activities.

Other than the continued strength of China s economy, our ability to receive future government grants, the needs of telecommunications operators to outsource their call center functions, and the growing demand for Taiying s call-center service among other industries (all of which we believe may increase our liquidity, if they continue), we are not aware of any trends or any demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will result in or that are reasonably likely to result in our liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way.

For 2015, we expect our main growth will be organic, from Taiying s 11 call center locations. The demand for Taiying s call center services appears to be strengthening, from which we expect to generate more positive cash flow. We expect to spend an additional \$500,000 in 2015 for facility improvements and expansion based on our current estimates of our facilities requirements necessary to support the anticipated growth in our business in our Shandong facility. We also expect to spend approximately \$400,000 on expenses associated with adding additional call center seats in our Xinjiang location. We believe that we will be able to finance our working capital needs and planned facilities improvements and expansion for at least the next 12 months from cash generated from operations, borrowings under our revolving line of credit and the proceeds from this offering.

To the extent demand for Taiying s call center BPO services increases, we may need to consider establishing or acquiring additional facilities in different cities to meet such increased demand. While we do not currently have any agreement, understanding or commitment to establish or acquire such facilities other than the targeted Xinjiang and

Shandong Province facilities mentioned above, the average cost for establishing a call center with a 1,000 seat capacity ranges from \$2 million to \$8 million, depending on specific client requirements. If we were to set up or acquire such a call center, such setting up or acquisition could place pressure on our liquidity.

Our long-term future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including our level of revenue, the timing and extent of our spending to support the maintenance and growth of our operations, the expansion of our sales and the continued market acceptance of our services. As of June 30, 2015, we had \$4,820,137 short-term loans outstanding, compared to \$5,567,860 short-term loans outstanding as of December 31, 2014. We also expect to continue to have significant capital requirements associated with the maintenance and growth of our operations, including the lease and build-out of additional facilities primarily to support an increase in the number of our customer service associates and the purchase of computer equipment and software, telecommunications equipment and furniture, fixtures and office equipment to support our operations. We expect to incur additional costs associated with becoming a publicly traded company in the United States, primarily due to increased expenses that we will incur to comply with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as costs related to accounting and tax services, directors and officers insurance, legal expenses and investor and stockholder-related expenses. These additional long-term expenses may require us to seek other sources of financing, such as additional borrowings or public or private equity or debt capital. The availability of these other sources of financing will depend upon our financial condition and results of operations as well as prevailing market conditions, and may not be available on terms reasonably acceptable to us or at all.

We plan to use proceeds from this offering to fund our business. Accordingly, the following regulations have to be followed, regarding capital injections to foreign-invested enterprises.

*PRC regulations relating to investments in offshore companies by PRC residents.* SAFE (Short for State Administration of Foreign Exchange) promulgated the Circular on Relevant Issues Concerning Foreign Exchange Control on Domestic Residents Financing and Roundtrip Investment Through Offshore Special Purpose Vehicles, or SAFE Circular 37, on July 4, 2014. SAFE Circular 37 requires PRC residents to register and update certain investments in companies incorporated outside of China with their local SAFE branch. SAFE also subsequently issued various guidance and rules regarding the implementation of SAFE Circular 37, which imposed obligations on PRC subsidiaries of offshore companies to coordinate with and supervise any PRC-resident beneficial owners of offshore entities in relation to the SAFE registration process.

We may not be aware of the identities of all of our beneficial owners who are PRC residents. We do not have control over our beneficial owners and cannot assure you that all of our PRC-resident beneficial owners will comply with SAFE Circular 37 and subsequent implementation rules. The failure of our beneficial owners who are PRC residents to register or amend their SAFE registrations in a timely manner pursuant to SAFE Circular 37 and subsequent implementation rules, or the failure of future beneficial owners of our company who are PRC residents to comply with the registration procedures set forth in SAFE Circular 37 and subsequent implementation rules, may subject such beneficial owners or our PRC subsidiaries to fines and legal sanctions. Failure to register may also limit our ability to contribute additional capital to our PRC subsidiaries and limit our PRC subsidiaries ability to distribute dividends to our company. These risks may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

*PRC regulation of loans to and direct investment in PRC entities by offshore holding companies and governmental control of currency conversion.* We are an offshore holding company conducting our operations in China through our WFOE and consolidated Taiying. As an offshore holding company, we may make loans to WFOE and Taiying subject to the approval from government authorities and limitation of amount, we also may make additional capital contributions to our WFOE.

Any loan to our WFOE, which is treated as foreign-invested enterprise under PRC law, is subject to PRC regulations and foreign exchange loan registrations. In January 2003, SDRC( Short for State Development and Reform Commission), SAFE and Ministry of Finance jointly promulgated the Circular on The Interim Provisions on the Management of Foreign Debts, or the Circular 28, regulating the total amount of foreign debts of a foreign-invested

company is the difference between the amount of total investment as approved by the Ministry of Commerce or its local counterpart and the amount of registered capital of such foreign-invested company. This means loans by us to our WFOE to finance its activities cannot exceed statutory limits and must

be registered with SAFE. For example, the current amounts of approved total investment and registered capital of our WFOE is \$10 million and \$5 million, respectively, which means WFOE cannot obtain loans in excess of \$5 million from our entities outside of China currently.

We may also decide to finance WFOE by means of capital contributions. These capital contributions must be approved by the Ministry of Commerce or its local counterpart. In August 2008, SAFE issued the Circular on the Relevant Operating Issues Concerning the Improvement of the Administration of the Payment and Settlement of Foreign Currency Capital of Foreign-Invested Enterprises, or SAFE Circular No. 142, regulating the conversion by a foreign-invested enterprise of foreign currency registered capital into RMB by restricting how the converted RMB may be used. SAFE Circular No. 142 provides that the RMB capital converted from foreign currency registered capital of a foreign-invested enterprise may only be used for purposes within the business scope approved by the applicable government authority and may not be used for equity investments within the PRC. In addition, SAFE strengthened its oversight of the flow and use of the RMB capital converted from foreign currency registered capital of a foreign-invested company. The use of such RMB capital may not be altered without SAFE s approval, and such RMB capital may not in any case be used to repay RMB loans if the proceeds of such have not been used. Violation of SAFE Circular No. 142 could result in severe monetary or other penalties. Furthermore, SAFE promulgated a circular in November 2010, SAFE Circular No. 59, which tightens the regulations over settlement of net proceeds from overseas offering like this offering and requires that the settlement of net proceeds must be consistent with the description in the prospectus for the offering or otherwise approved by our board. These two circulars may significantly limit our ability to transfer the net proceeds from this offering to Taiying. Further, we may not be able to convert the net proceeds into RMB to invest in or acquire any other PRC Companies in China, which may adversely affect our liquidity and our ability to fund and expand our business in China.

Currently, the approved investment amount of WFOE is \$10 million, its registered capital as of the last period presented is \$5 million. Pursuant to PRC law WFOE s registered capital is due in 2017. Taiying is a PRC domestic company, which has registered capital RMB 10,000,000. Violations of these SAFE regulations may result in severe monetary or other penalties, including confiscation of earnings derived from such violation activities, a fine of up to 30% of the RMB funds converted from the foreign invested funds or in the case of a severe violation, a fine ranging from 30% to 100% of the RMB funds converted from the foreign-invested funds.

# **Capital Resources**

The following table provides certain selected balance sheets comparisons as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

	June 30, 2015	December 31, 2014	Increase/ (Decrease)
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 794,897	\$ 5,097,010	\$ (4,302,113)
Accounts receivable, net	12,156,550	6,819,452	5,337,098
Accounts receivable - related party	376,847	373,339	3,508
Notes receivable	1,168,670	1,157,793	10,877
Prepayments	873,245	639,861	233,384
Due from related parties	606,226	763,977	(157,751)
Deferred Income Tax Assets	31,484		31,484
Other current assets	2,099,777	1,297,995	801,782
Total current assets	18,107,696	16,149,427	1,958,269
Property and equipment, net	3,665,481	3,715,981	(50,500)
Deferred tax assets, non-current	33,682		33,682
Total non-current assets	3,699,163	3,715,981	(16,818)
Total assets	21,806,859	19,865,408	1,941,451
Accounts payable	370,640	189,089	181,551
Accrued liabilities and other payables	2,406,975	2,224,301	182,674
Wages payable	2,437,214	2,041,226	395,988
Income taxes payable	696,292	477,740	218,552
Short term loans	4,820,137	5,567,860	(747,723)
Due to related parties		2,422	(2,422)
Deferred income tax liabilities, current		181,482	(181,482)
Total current liabilities	10,731,258	10,684,120	47,138
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current		4,450	(4,450)

Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc Form F-1	n F-1/A	nc Form	Centers, Inc.	Relations	Customer	China	Filing:	Edgar
--	---------	---------	---------------	-----------	----------	-------	---------	-------

Total Liabilities	\$10,731,258	\$	10,688,570	\$	42,688
-------------------	--------------	----	------------	----	--------

We and Taiying maintain cash and cash equivalents in China. At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, bank deposits were as follows:

Country	Jun	e 30, 2015	Decen	nber 31,2014
China	\$	789,136	\$	4,456,377
China (offshore bank account)		5,761		640,633
Total	\$	794,897	\$	5,097,010

The majority of our cash balances at June 30, 2015 are in the form of RMB held in bank accounts at financial institutions located in the PRC. Cash held in banks in the PRC is not insured. The value of cash on

deposit in mainland China of \$789,136 as of June 30, 2015 has been converted based on the exchange rate as of June 30, 2015. In 1996, the Chinese government introduced regulations, which relaxed restrictions on the conversion of the RMB; however restrictions still remain, including but not limited to restrictions on foreign invested entities. Foreign invested entities may only buy, sell or remit foreign currencies after providing valid commercial documents at only those banks authorized to conduct foreign exchanges. Furthermore, the conversion of RMB for capital account items, including direct investments and loans, is subject to PRC government approval. Chinese entities are required to establish and maintain separate foreign exchange accounts for capital account items. We cannot be certain Chinese regulatory authorities will not impose more stringent restrictions on the convertibility of the RMB, especially with respect to foreign exchange transactions. Accordingly, cash on deposit in banks in the PRC is not readily deployable by us for use outside of China.

# Cash and cash equivalents

As of June 30, 2015, cash and cash equivalents were \$794,897, compared to \$5,097,010 at December 31, 2014. The components of this decrease of \$4,302,113 are reflected below.

	Six Months Ended June 30,		
	2015	2014	
Net cash used in operating activities	\$(3,189,171)	\$(3,200,046)	
Net cash used in investing activities	(343,354)	(356,459)	
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	(796,887)	406,951	
Exchange rate effect on cash	27,299	(32,967)	
Net cash outflow	\$(4,302,113)	\$(3,182,521)	

# Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable as of June 30, 2015 were \$12,156,550, an increase of \$5,337,098 compared to December 31, 2014. This increase resulted primarily from an accounts receivable in the approximate amount of \$4,200,000 that was not paid until August 2015. In addition, this increase resulted from increases in the volume of services we provide.

# Notes receivable

Note receivable as of June 30, 2015 was \$1,168,670, a slight increase of \$10,877 compared to December 31, 2014. This increase resulted from the fluctuation of exchange rate.

# Amounts due from related parties

As of June 30, 2015, balances of due from related parties were \$606,226, a decrease of \$157,751 compared to \$763,977 at December 31, 2014. Such balance represents funds advanced to our officers and shareholders for business expansion activities as well as non-secured loans to the related parties, which bear no interest and were due on demand.

# Current assets

Current assets as of June 30, 2015 totaled \$18,107,696, an increase of \$1,958,269, or 12% from our December 31, 2014 balance. This increase primarily resulted from a \$5,337,098 increase in accounts receivable, an \$801,782 increase in other current assets, and was offset by the \$4,302,113 decrease in cash and cash equivalents.

# **Property and equipment**

Property and equipment as of June 30, 2015 were \$3,665,481, a slight decrease of \$50,500 compared to December 31, 2014. This decrease primarily resulted from an increase of \$751,476 in accumulated depreciation, and offset by an increase of \$15,385 in leasehold improvement and an addition of \$685,591 in purchasing computer equipment and software, telecommunications equipment, fixtures, office equipment and furniture to support the growth of our operations.

# Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

The company recognized non-current deferred tax assets in the amount of \$33,682 as of June 30, 2015, while non-current deferred liabilities of \$4,450 was recognized as of December 31, 2014. This change primarily resulted from the rising loss carry forward and realization of deferred tax liabilities related to depreciation for the six months ended June 30, 2015.

The company recognized current deferred tax assets in the amount of \$31,484 as of June 30, 2015, while current deferred liabilities of \$181,482 was recognized as of December 31, 2014. This change primarily resulted from the decrease in deferred tax assets related to accrued revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2015.

## Accrued liabilities and other payables

Accrued liabilities and other payable principally include network rental expense in the telecommunication industry, unpaid travel expense and professional service expense. The balance as of June 30, 2015 was \$2,406,975, an increase of \$182,674 compared to \$2,224,301 as of December 31, 2014. The increase primarily resulted from the fact that the company accrued more travel expense.

# Wages payable

Wages payable as of June 30, 2015 were \$2,437,214, an increase of \$395,988 compared to \$2,041,226 as of December 31, 2014. This increase resulted from the growing salaries with the growth of revenue.

#### Short term loan

Our short-term loans as of June 30, 2015 were \$4,820,137, a decrease of \$747,723, compared to \$5,567,860 as of December 31, 2014. This decrease mainly resulted from the repayment of short-term loan from Bank of China Tainan Branch during the six months ended June 30, 2015.

# Cash Used in Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2015 totaled \$3,189,171. The activities were comprised of an increase in accounts receivable of \$5,252,332, an increase in other current assets of \$788,282, an increase in due from related parties of \$19,448, a decrease in due to related parties of \$2,435, an increase in prepayment to equipment and supplies vendors of \$195,905, an increase in deferred income tax of \$251,853, and offset by our net income of \$1,810,161, depreciation of 685,495, an increase in accounts payable of \$75,157, an increase in wages payable of \$375,333, an increase in income tax payable of \$213,224, an increase in accrued liabilities and other payables of \$161,714.

Net cash used in operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2014 totaled \$3,200,046. The activities were mainly comprised of an increase in accounts receivable of \$3,584,380, an increase in other current assets of \$259,200, a decrease in income taxes payable of \$296,104, a decrease in wages payable of \$295,580, a decrease in accrued liability and other payables of \$214,929, and offset by our net income of \$700,815, and \$591,393 for depreciation.

Cash flows from our operating activities maintained stable in the first six months of 2015 compared to the same period in 2014. This was the result of an increased cash inflow from our net income, which was offset by the increase in accounts receivable for the six months ended June 30, 2015.

# Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2015 totaled \$343,354. The activities were primarily comprised of \$527,083 spent to purchase property and equipment, \$944,593 advanced to related parties, and offset by collections from related parties of \$1,128,322.

Net cash used in investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2014 totaled \$356,459. The activities were primarily comprised of \$349,455 spent to purchase property and equipment, \$1,424,468 advanced to related parties, \$24,431 lent to third parties, and offset by collections from related parties of \$1,311,595, and collections from third parties of \$130,300.

One of our primary uses of cash in our investing activities for each period is for our purchase of property and equipment, including information technology equipment, furniture, fixtures and leasehold improvements for expansion of available seats. We spent \$177,628 more than the same period of 2014 in purchasing property and equipment for the six months ended June 30, 2015. However, we paid \$479,875 less than the same period of 2014 in advance to our related parties for the six months ended June 30, 2015. These were the main reasons that we used \$13,105 less than the same period of 2014 in our investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2015.

## Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities

For the six months ended June 30, 2015, net cash used in financing activities was \$796,887. The activities were comprised of repayment of short term loans of \$1,046,983, repayment of loans to related parties of \$11,451, offset by the proceeds of loans from related parties of \$11,451, and proceeds from short term loans of \$250,096.

For the six months ended June 30, 2014, net cash provided by financing activities was \$406,951. We received these funds from issuances of common shares of \$222,000, short term loan borrowings of \$1,547,307, the proceeds of loans from related parties of \$32,575, offset by repayment for short term loans of \$1,384,432 and repayment of loans to related parties of \$10,499.

# Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2013

#### **Results of Operations**

	For the Years End	ed December 31,
	2014	2013
Revenues	\$ 42,661,732	\$ 27,609,436
Revenues related party	11,407	520,869
Cost of revenues	35,188,331	23,757,669
Gross profit	7,484,808	4,372,636
Selling, general and administrative expenses	5,779,600	3,085,437
Operating income	\$ 1,705,208	\$ 1,287,199

*Revenues*. Our revenue from third parties was \$42,661,732 and \$27,609,436 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, an increase of \$15,052,296, or 55% as a result of growth in our BPO

business. Our revenue growth in the year ended December 31, 2014 resulted primarily from increased sales volumes to our existing clients. Our revenues from related parties decreased \$509,462 from \$520,869 for the year ended December 31, 2013 to \$11,407 for the year ended December 31, 2014. This decrease resulted entirely from the decrease in related party revenue from Shandong Luk Information Technology Co., Ltd., for the year ended December 31, 2014.

*Gross margin*. Our gross margin increased from 16% for the year ended December 31, 2013, to 18% for the year ended December 31, 2014. This increase was primarily due to the increase of our operating efficiency and the non-renewal of certain client contracts where we experienced losses in 2013.

*Cost of revenues.* Cost of revenues consists primarily of salaries, payroll taxes and employee benefits costs of our customer service associates and other operations personnel. Cost of revenues also includes direct communications costs, rent expense, information technology costs, facilities support. Our cost of revenues increased \$11,430,662, or 48% for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. This absolute dollar increase in cost of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014 over the year ended December 31, 2013 directly corresponded to the increase in revenue during the same year. Our cost of revenues as a percentage of revenue was 82% and 84% for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. This slight decrease was primarily due to the increase of our operating efficiency.

*Selling, general and administrative expenses.* Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of sales and administrative employee-related expenses, professional fees, travel costs, and other corporate expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses were \$5,779,600 for the year ended December 31, 2014, and \$3,085,437 for the year of 2013, an increase of \$2,694,163, or 87%. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses is a result of higher payroll and bonus expenses paid to the administrative personnel and the management team. We anticipate that our administrative expenses, particularly those related to support personnel costs, professional fees, as well as Sarbanes-Oxley compliance, will continue to increase after we become a publicly traded company in the United States.

*Income from operations*. Our income from operations was \$1,705,208 for the year ended December 31, 2014, and \$1,287,199 for the year ended December 31, 2013. Our operating income as a percentage of total revenues was 4% for the year ended December 31, 2014, and 5% for the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase in our income from operations resulted from the expansion and growth of our business for new and existing customers.

*Government Grants*. Government grants were \$1,439,186 and \$2,714,026 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, a decrease of \$1,274,840 or 47%. Most of government grants were a one-time event. Government grants as a percentage of net income (loss) is 81% and 92% for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

*Income Taxes*. We incurred \$635,859 and \$594,240 in income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 respectively. This \$41,619 increase was resulted from our increased revenues. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, Taiying was entitled to a preferential enterprise income tax (EIT) rate of 15%. The standard enterprise income tax rate in China is 25%. Other PRC entities are subject to the 25% EIT rate of their taxable income.

*Net Income*. Our net income was \$1,782,101 and \$2,949,268 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, representing a decrease of \$1,167,167, or 40%. The decrease in net income was a result of our increased selling, general and administrative expenses, and decreased government grants, although we achieved a higher gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to the year ended December 31, 2013.

# Liquidity and Capital Resources

# Liquidity

At December 31, 2014, our working capital was positive \$5,465,307, compared to negative working capital of \$942,694 at December 31, 2013.

Our cash and cash equivalents balance at December 31, 2014 totaled \$5,097,010, compared to \$5,714,563 at December 31, 2013. During the year ended December 31, 2014, cash provided by operating activities amounted to \$495,727, cash provided by financing activities amounted to \$182,350, and the positive effect of prevailing exchange rates on our cash position was \$11,043. These changes were offset by \$1,306,673 used in investment activities. During the year ended December 31, 2013, cash provided by operating activities was \$3,831,419. Cash used in investment activities amounted to \$438,466, and cash provided by financing activities was \$3,085. In addition, the positive effect of prevailing exchange rates on our cash position was \$100,052.

As of December 31, 2014, we had a \$5,567,860 short-term bank loans outstanding, compared to \$6,218,905 short-term bank loans outstanding as of December 31, 2013.

# **Capital Resources**

The following table provides certain selected balance sheets comparisons as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

	December 31, 2014	December 31, 2013	Increase/ (Decrease)
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 5,097,010	\$ 5,714,563	\$ (617,553)
Accounts receivable	6,819,452	3,734,562	3,084,890
Accounts receivable-related			
party	373,339	364,042	9,297
Notes receivable	1,157,793	1,161,953	(4,160)
Prepayments	639,861	442,320	197,541
Due from related parties	763,977	961,230	(197,253)
Other current assets	1,297,995	1,070,138	227,857
Total current assets	16,149,427	13,448,808	2,700,619
Property, plant and			
equipment, net	3,715,981	3,758,664	(42,683)
Deferred tax assets,			
non-current		36,711	(36,711)
Total non-current assets	3,715,981	3,795,375	(79,394)
Total assets	19,865,408	17,244,183	2,621,225
Accounts payable	189,089	101,845	87,244
Accrued liabilities and other			
payables	2,224,301	1,985,900	238,401
Wages payable	2,041,226	1,783,640	257,586
Income taxes payable	477,740	373,074	104,666

Short term loans	5,567,860	6,218,905	(651,045)
Due to related parties	2,422	3,814,701	(3,812,279)
Deferred income tax			
liabilities, current	181,482	113,437	68,045
Total current liabilities	10,684,120	14,391,502	(3,707,382)
Deferred tax liabilities,			
non-current	4,450		4,450
Total non-current			
liabilities	4,450		4,450
Total Liabilities	\$ 10,688,570	\$ 14,391,502	\$ (3,702,932)

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

We and Taiying maintain cash and cash equivalents in China. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, bank deposits were as follows:

	De	cember 31,	De	cember 31,
Country		2014		2013
China	\$	4,456,377	\$	5,714,563
China (offshore bank account)		640,633		
Total	\$	5,097,010	\$	5,714,563

The majority of our cash balances at December 31, 2014 are in the form of RMB held in bank accounts at financial institutions located in the PRC. Cash held in banks in the PRC is not insured. The value of cash on deposit in mainland China of \$4,456,377 as of December 31, 2014 has been converted based on the exchange rate as of December 31, 2014. In 1996, the Chinese government introduced regulations, which relaxed restrictions on the conversion of the RMB; however restrictions still remain, including but not limited to restrictions on foreign invested entities. Foreign invested entities may only buy, sell or remit foreign currencies after providing valid commercial documents at only those banks authorized to conduct foreign exchanges. Furthermore, the conversion of RMB for capital account items, including direct investments and loans, is subject to PRC government approval. Chinese entities are required to establish and maintain separate foreign exchange accounts for capital account items. We cannot be certain Chinese regulatory authorities will not impose more stringent restrictions on the convertibility of the RMB, especially with respect to foreign exchange transactions. Accordingly, cash on deposit in banks in the PRC is not readily deployable by us for use outside of China.

#### Cash and cash equivalents

As of December 31, 2014, cash and cash equivalents were \$5,097,010, compared to \$5,714,563 at December 31, 2013. The components of this decrease of \$617,553 are reflected below.

	Years Ended December 31,		
	2014	2013	
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$ 495,727	\$3,831,419	
Net cash used in investing activities	(1,306,673)	(438,466)	
Net cash provided by financing activities	182,350	3,085	
Exchange rate effect on cash	11,043	100,052	
Net cash inflow (outflow)	\$ (617,553)	\$3,496,090	

#### Accounts Receivable

Account receivables as of December 31, 2014 was \$6,819,452, an increase of \$3,084,890 compared to December 31, 2013. This increase resulted primarily from increases in the volume of services we provide.

#### Notes receivable

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

Note receivable as of December 31, 2014 was \$1,157,793, a slight decrease of \$4,160 compared to December 31, 2013. The balance maintained stable for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.

#### Amounts due from related parties

As of December 31, 2014, balances due from related parties were \$763,977, a slight decrease of \$197,253 compared to \$961,230 at December 31, 2013. Such balance represents funds advanced to our officers and shareholders for business expansion activities as well as non-secured loans to the related parties which bear no interest and were due on demand.

## Current assets

Current assets as of December 31, 2014 totaled \$16,149,427, an increase of \$2,700,619, or 20% from our December 31, 2013 balance. This increase primarily resulted from \$3,084,890 increase in accounts receivable, \$197,541 increase in prepayment, \$227,857 increase in other current assets, and was offset by the \$617,553 decrease in cash and cash equivalents and \$197,253 decrease in due from related parties.

## **Property and equipment**

Property and equipment as of December 31, 2014 were \$3,715,981, a slight decrease of \$42,683 compared to December 31, 2013. This decrease primarily resulted from an increase of \$1,259,119 in accumulated depreciation, and offset by an increase of \$95,795 in leasehold improvement, an addition of \$1,120,641 in purchasing of computer equipment and software, telecommunications equipment, fixtures, office equipment and furniture to support the growth of our operations.

## Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

The company recognized current deferred tax liabilities in the amount of \$181,482 as of December 31, 2014, an increase of \$68,045 compared to \$113,437 as of December 31, 2013. This increase primarily resulted from the increase in accrued revenue for the year ended December 31, 2014.

The company recognized non-current deferred tax liabilities in the amount of \$4,450 as of December 31, 2014, an increase of \$4,450 compared to \$0 as of December 31, 2013. This balance primarily resulted from the temporary difference of depreciation expense, offset by the loss carried forward for the year ended December 31, 2014.

#### Accrued liabilities and other payables

Accrued liabilities and other payable principally include network rental expense in the telecommunication industry, unpaid travel expense and professional service expense. The balance as of December 31, 2014 was \$2,224,301, an increase of \$238,401 compared to \$1,985,900 as of December 31, 2013. The increase primarily resulted from the fact that the company incurred more expense with the growing revenue.

#### Wages payable

Wages payable as of December 31, 2014 was \$2,041,226, an increase of \$257,586 compared to \$1,783,640 as of December 31, 2013. This increase resulted from the increased employees compensation with our expansion of operation for the year ended December 31, 2014.

#### Short term loan

Our short-term loans as of December 31, 2014 were \$5,567,860, a decrease of \$651,045, compared to \$6,218,905 as of December 31, 2013. This decrease mainly resulted from the repayment of a short-term loan from China Development Bank Shandong Branch during the year ended December 31, 2014.

# Cash Used in Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2014 totaled \$495,727. The activities were mainly comprised of our net income of \$1,782,101, depreciation of \$1,342,258, deferred income tax asset/liability of

# Table of Contents

\$109,657, allowance for doubtful accounts of \$145,076, a decrease in due from related parties of \$468,555, an increase in due to related parties of \$3,493, an increase in account payable of \$18,998, an increase in wages payable of \$267,931, an increase in income taxes payable of \$106,833 and an increase in

accrued liabilities and other payables of \$249,914, and offset by an increase in account receivable of \$3,251,749, an increase in other current assets of \$234,067, an increase in prepayments of \$489,918, an increase in account receivable - related parties of \$11,407, and a gain on disposal of property and equipment of 11,948.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, cash provided by operations totaled \$3,831,419. The amount mainly reflects our net income of \$2,949,268, depreciation of \$1,145,348, deferred income tax asset of \$215,748, decreased account receivable from related parties of \$318,861, increased wage payable of \$548,372, increased income tax payable of \$361,547, increased accrued liabilities and other payables of \$726,485, offset by increased account receivable of \$2,008,418, increased prepayment of \$88,972, increased other current assets of \$287,655 and decreased account payable of \$70,675.

The decrease in cash flows from our operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily resulted from increased cash outflow in account receivables, prepayments, less cash inflow in wages payable, income taxes payable, accrued liabilities and other payable, offset by more cash inflow in account payable and due from related parties.

# Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2014 totaled \$1,306,673. The activities were primarily comprised of \$965,118 spent to purchase property and equipment, \$1,986,421 advanced to related parties, \$132,742 lent to third parties, and offset by collections from related parties of \$1,633,073, and collections from third parties of \$130,172.

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2013 totaled \$438,466. The activities were primarily comprised of \$600,916 used for property and equipment purchases, \$1,146,919 loaned to third parties with no interest, \$2,555,137 loaned to the related parties with no interest, offset by collections from the related parties of \$3,864,506. Cash used for property and equipment purchases each year includes information technology equipment, furniture, fixtures and leasehold improvements for expansion of available seats.

One of our primary uses of cash in our investing activities for each period is for our purchase of property and equipment, including information technology equipment, furniture, fixtures and leasehold improvements for expansion of available seats. We spent \$364,202 more than the year of 2013 in purchasing property and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2014. In addition, we received \$2,231,433 less than the year of 2013 in repayment from our related parties for the year ended December 31, 2014, although we paid \$568,716 less to our related parties for the year ended December 31, 2014. These were the main reasons that we used \$868,207 more than the year of 2013 in our investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2014.

# Cash Provided by Financing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2014, net cash provided by financing activities was \$182,350. We received these funds from issuance of common shares of \$1,174,380, capital contribution from owners of \$3,340,396, proceeds from short term loan of \$7,386,830, the proceeds from related parties of \$32,543, offset by repayment for short term loans of \$8,001,883 and repayment to related parties of \$3,749,916.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, net cash provided by financing activities was \$3,085. The activities were mainly comprised of distribution of capital to owners of \$3,182,236, repayment for short term loans of \$10,775,527, repayment to related parties of \$9,574, offset by proceeds from related parties of \$3,517,971, and proceeds from short term loans of \$10,452,451.

The change in cash flow for our financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2014 was partially due to the proceeds from issuances of common shares of \$1,174,380 and capital contribution from

owners of \$3,340,396, offset by repayment to related parties of \$3,749,916. In addition, the short term loan incurred net cash outflow of \$615,053 for the year ended December 31, 2014.

#### **Contractual Obligations**

We have certain potential commitments that include future estimated payments. Changes in our business needs, cancellation provisions, changing interest rates, and other factors may result in actual payments differing from the estimates. We cannot provide certainty regarding the timing and amounts of payments.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2014, and the effect these obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods:

Contractual obligations	Total	1 year	2-3 years	3-5 yea	r5 years and thereafter
Operating leases	\$ 1,014,740	\$378,815	\$635,925	\$	\$
Total	\$ 1,014,740	\$ 378,815	\$635,925	\$	\$

## **Off Balance Sheet Items**

Under SEC regulations, we are required to disclose off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, such as changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that are material to investors. An off-balance sheet arrangement means a transaction, agreement or contractual arrangement to which any entity that is not consolidated with us is a party, under which we have:

any obligation under certain guarantee contracts,

any retained or contingent interest in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity or similar arrangement that serves as credit, liquidity or market risk support to that entity for such assets,

any obligation under a contract that would be accounted for as a derivative instrument, except that it is both indexed to our stock and classified in shareholder equity in our statement of financial position, and

any obligation arising out of a material variable interest held by us in an unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to us, or engages in leasing, hedging or research and development services with us.

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that we are required to disclose pursuant to these regulations. In the ordinary course of business, we enter into operating lease commitments, and other contractual obligations. These transactions are recognized in our financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

## **Expected Trends Affecting Results of Operations**

Based on our experience and observations of the business in which we operate, we believe the following trends are likely to affect our industry and, as a result, our company, if they continue in the future.

We believe China s major enterprises have begun to focus on BPO providers who can offer fully integrated revenue generation solutions to target new markets and improve revenue and profitability. We believe Companies in various industries, including credit card, insurance and logistics enterprises, have been increasingly contacting BPO service providers for their services as a means to increase sales and profitability. In the past, companies of these types typically performed call center services internally. CCRC believes such companies are increasingly outsourcing these functions.

Having experienced success with outsourcing a portion of their business processes to capable third-party providers, Chinese companies are increasingly inclined to outsource a larger percentage of this work. We have observed this trend among our major customers, the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom, who have increased outsourcing as a means of meeting internal goals of limiting growth in their own employment. We believe companies will continue to consolidate their business processes with third-party providers, such as Taiying, who are financially stable and able to invest in their business while also demonstrating the ability to cost-effectively meet their evolving needs.

There is increasing adoption of outsourcing across broader groups of industries. Early adopters of the BPO trend, such as the media and communications industries, are being joined by companies in other industries, including government, automobile, retail, logistics, media, financial services, IT and e-commerce. These companies are beginning to adopt outsourcing to improve their business processes and competitiveness. For example, we see increasing interest in our services from companies in the financial services industries, as evidenced by our recent clients, two of the largest five commercial banks in China. We believe the increasing adoption of outsourcing across broader groups of industries and the number of other industries that will adopt or increase their level of outsourcing will continue to grow, further enabling us to increase and diversify our revenue and client base.

As companies broaden their product offerings and seek to enter new geographic locations, we believe they will be looking for outsourcing providers that can provide speed-to-market while reducing their capital and operating risk. To achieve these benefits, companies are seeking BPO providers with an extensive operating history, an established geographic footprint, the financial strength to invest in innovations to deliver more strategic capabilities and the ability to scale and meet customer demands quickly. We believe we can quickly implement large, complex business processes around China in a short period of time while assuring a high-quality experience for their customers.

Our existing clients are large companies with diverse BPO needs, and we plan to continue our strategy of expanding the scale and scope of the services we provide for these large clients. As a full-service provider of voice services such as care, sales, and other back-office functions, we can provide numerous capabilities to our existing client base. We have experienced continued growth from our existing clients, with more services being demanded by our existing clients. We believe our organic growth in Taiying s sales of service to existing clients is likely to continue for the near future.

While we have our Shandong contact center to cover the services demanded from the northern part of China and the Bohai Bay Economic Rim, we believe that our Chongqing, Hebei, Anhui, Guangxi, Xinjiang and Jiangsu Province contact centers has allowed us to expand our geographic reach to other parts of China, particularly the southwest region and the Yangtze River Delta, covering a total of 17 provinces, 2 autonomous regions, and 4 directly-administered municipalities (Beijing, Shanghai, Tianjin, and Chongqing) in China, which have a total population of 1.09 billion. Given our strategic locations and our significant investment in standardized technology and processes, we believe that we can meet our clients speed-to-market demand of launching new products or entering new geographic locations.

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

While we continue to target the significant market opportunity still available in the telecommunications industry, we are focusing on reaching new clients in the financial service and internet commerce industry, which have a large share of the overall outsourced market. We have been actively marketing our services to a wider range of industries, including government, consumer products and logistics entities.

We believe that competition in the customer care call center BPO market is going to become more intense, and consolidation is going to prevail in the near future. It is possible that competition in

the form of new competitors or alliances, joint ventures or consolidation among existing competitors may decrease our market share.

## **Critical Accounting Policies**

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our audited consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these audited consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. We evaluate our estimates on an ongoing basis, including those related to revenue recognition and income taxes. We base our estimates on our historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making the judgments we make about the carrying values of our assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Because these estimates can vary depending on the situation, actual results may differ from the estimates.

The critical accounting policies summarized in this section are discussed in further detail in the notes to the audited consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. Management believes that the application of these policies on a consistent basis enables us to provide useful and reliable financial information about our operating results and financial condition.

# Variable Interest Entities

Pursuant to ASC 810 and related subtopics related to the consolidation of variable interest entities, we are required to include in our consolidated financial statements the financial statements of VIEs. The accounting standards require a VIE to be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss for the VIE or is entitled to receive a majority of the VIE s residual returns. VIEs are those entities in which we, through contractual arrangements, bear the risk of, and enjoy the rewards normally associated with ownership of the entity, and therefore we are the primary beneficiary of the entity. Taiying is considered a VIE, and we are the primary beneficiary. We, through our wholly-owned subsidiary, WFOE, entered into the Control Agreements with Taiying pursuant to which WFOE shall receive all of Taiying s net income and bear all losses of Taiying. In accordance with these agreements, Taiying shall pay consulting fees equal to 100% of its estimated earnings before tax to WFOE.

The accounts of Taiying and its subsidiaries are consolidated in the accompanying financial statements. As VIEs, Taiying and its subsidiaries sales are included in our total sales, its income from operations is consolidated with ours, and our net income includes all of Taiying and its subsidiaries net income, and their assets and liabilities are included in our consolidated balance sheets. The VIEs do not have any non-controlling interest and, accordingly, we did not subtract any net income in calculating the net income attributable to us. Because of the Control Agreements, we have pecuniary interest in Taiying that require consolidation of Taiying and its subsidiaries financial statements with our financial statements.

As required by ASC 810-10, we perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether we are the primary beneficiary of Taiying which is identified as a VIE of us. A quality assessment begins with an understanding of the nature of the risks in the entity as well as the nature of the entity s activities including terms of the contracts entered into by the entity, ownership interests issued by the entity and the parties involved in the design of the entity. The significant terms of the agreements between us and Taiying are discussed above in the Our Corporate Structure Contractual Arrangements with Taiying and Taiying s Shareholder section. Our assessment on the involvement with Taiying reveals that we have the absolute power to direct the most significant activities that impact the economic performance of Taiying. WFOE, our wholly own subsidiary, is obligated to absorb all operating risks of loss from Taiying and entitles WFOE to receive all of Taiying s expected residual returns. In addition, Taiying s shareholders have pledged

their equity interest in Taiying to WFOE, irrevocably granted WFOE an exclusive option to purchase, to the extent permitted under PRC Law, all

or part of the equity interests in Taiying and agreed to entrust all the rights to exercise their voting power to the person(s) appointed by WFOE. Under the accounting guidance, we are deemed to be the primary beneficiary of Taiying and the results of Taiying and its subsidiaries are consolidated in our consolidated financial statements for financial reporting purposes.

# **Revenue Recognition**

The Company recognizes revenue when evidence of an arrangement exists, the delivery of service has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured. The Company provides i) inbound call service, which includes directory assistance, mobile phone service plan, billing questions, hotline consultation, complaints, customer feedbacks, customer relationship management, etc., and ii) outbound call service, which includes products selling, marketing surveys, new products informing, plans expiration and bills overdue notification, etc. The BPO inbound and outbound service fees are based on either a per minute, per hour, per transaction or per call basis. For inbound call service, the revenues are recognized in the same period when the service is provided and the actual costs occurred. For outbound call service, certain business successful rate was obtained. The fee is determined on a per-call basis where the Company receives a basic standard fee for each call plus an extra fee for successfully selling a product or completing a survey, etc. Certain client programs provide for adjustments to monthly billings consist of contractual bonuses/penalties, holdbacks and other performance based contingencies. Revenue recognition is limited to the amount that is not contingent upon delivery of future services or meeting other specified performance conditions.

## Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We base our estimates and judgments on historical experience and on various other assumptions and information that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Estimates and assumptions of future events and their effects cannot be perceived with certainty and, accordingly, these estimates may change as new events occur, as more experience is acquired, as additional information is obtained and as our operating environment changes. Significant estimates and assumptions by management include, among others, useful lives and impairment of long-lived assets, allowance for doubtful accounts, income taxes including the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets. While we believe that the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are appropriate, actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and assumptions are periodically reviewed and the effects of revisions are reflected in the financial statements in the period they are determined to be necessary.

# Fair Value of Financial Instruments

For certain of our financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepayments due from related parties, other current assets, accounts payable due to related parties, and accrued liabilities and other payables, the carrying amounts approximate their fair values due to the short maturities.

# Foreign Currency Translation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in United States dollar (\$), which is our reporting currency. The functional currency of China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. and CBPO is the United States dollar. The functional currency of our subsidiary and VIEs located in the PRC is the Renminbi (RMB). For the subsidiaries

whose functional currencies are RMB, results of operations and cash flows are translated at average exchange rates during the period, assets and liabilities are translated at the unified exchange rate at the end of the period, and equity is translated at historical exchange rates. The resulting translation

adjustments are included in determining other comprehensive income. Transaction gains and losses are reflected in the consolidated statements of income.

## **Recent Accounting Pronouncements**

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity . The amendments in the ASU change the criteria for reporting discontinued operations while enhancing disclosures in this area. It also addresses sources of confusion and inconsistent application related to financial reporting of discontinued operations guidance in U.S. GAAP. Under the new guidance, only disposals representing a strategic shift in operations should be presented as discontinued operations. In addition, the new guidance requires expanded disclosures about discontinued operations that will provide financial statement users with more information about the assets, liabilities, income, and expenses of discontinued operations. The amendments in the ASU are effective in the first quarter of 2015 for public organizations with calendar year ends. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s financial position and results of operations.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from contracts with Customers (Topic 606) . This ASU affects any entity that either enters into contracts with customers to transfer goods or services or enters into contracts for the transfer of non-financial assets. This ASU will supersede the revenue recognition requirements in Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, and most industry-specific guidance. The ASU also supersedes some cost guidance included in Subtopic 605-35, Revenue Recognition-Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchanged for those goods or services. The standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting period. We are currently in the process of evaluating the impact of the adoption on our consolidated financial statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-12, Accounting for Share-Based Payments When the Terms of an Award Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved after the Requisite Service Period . The amendments in the ASU require that a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period be treated as a performance condition. A reporting entity should apply existing guidance in Topic 718, Compensation Stock Compensation, as it relates to awards with performance conditions that affect vesting to account for such awards. The performance target should not be reflected in estimating the grant-date fair value of the award. Compensation cost should be recognized in the period in which it becomes probable that the performance target will be achieved and should represent the compensation cost attributable to the period(s) for which the requisite service has already been rendered. If the performance target becomes probable of being achieved before the end of the requisite service period, the remaining unrecognized compensation cost should be recognized prospectively over the remaining requisite service period. The total amount of compensation cost recognized during and after the requisite service period should reflect the number of awards that are expected to vest and should be adjusted to reflect those awards that ultimately vest. The requisite service period ends when the employee can cease rendering service and still be eligible to vest in the award if the performance target is achieved. The amendments in this ASU are effective for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2015. Earlier adoption is permitted. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on our financial position and results of operations.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern. The amendment in the ASU provides guidance on determining when and how to disclose going concern uncertainties in the financial statements. The new standard requires management to perform interim and

annual assessments of an entity s ability to continue as a going concern within one year of the date the financial statements are issued. An entity must provide certain disclosures if conditions or events raise substantial doubt about the entity s ability to continue as a going concern. The amendments in this Update

are effective for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016. Earlier adoption is permitted. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s financial position and results of operations.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis . The amendments in the ASU provide an additional requirement for a limited partnership or similar entity to qualify as a voting interest entity and also amend the criteria for consolidating such an entity. In addition, the new guidance amends the criteria for evaluating fees paid to a decision maker or service provider as a variable interest and amends the criteria for evaluating the effect of fee arrangements and related parties on a variable interest entity primary beneficiary determination. This standard is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company is currently in the process of evaluating the impact of the adoption on its consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Interest Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs . The amendments in the ASU are intended to simplify the presentation of debt issuance costs. These amendments require that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The recognition and measurement guidance for debt issuance costs are not affected by the amendments in this ASU. The amendments in this ASU are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted for financial statements that have not been previously issued. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s financial position and results of operations.

In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date . The amendments in ASU 2015-14 defer the effective date of ASU 2014-09 for all entities by one year. Public business entities, certain not-for-profit entities, and certain employee benefit plans should apply the guidance in ASU 2014-09 to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim reporting periods within that reporting period. Earlier application is permitted only as of annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim reporting periods within that reporting period. The Company is currently in the process of evaluating the impact of the adoption on its consolidated financial statements.

In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-15, Interest Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30) Presentation and Subsequent Measurement of Debt Issuance Costs Associated with Line-of-Credit Arrangements . On April 7, 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Interest Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30: Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, which requires entities to present debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability. Given the absence of authoritative guidance within ASU 2015-03 for debt issuance costs related to line-of-credit arrangements, the SEC staff stated that they would not object to an entity deferring and presenting debt issuance costs as an asset and subsequently amortizing the deferred debt issuance costs ratably over the term of the line-of-credit arrangement, regardless of whether there are any outstanding borrowings on the line-of-credit arrangement. ASU 2015-15 adds these SEC comments to the S section of the Codification. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s financial position and results of operations.

In September 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-16, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Simplifying the Accounting for Measurement-Period Adjustments . The amendments in ASU 2015-16 require that an acquirer recognize adjustments to estimated amounts that are identified during the measurement period in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are determined. The amendments require that the acquirer record, in the same period s financial statements, the effect on earnings of changes in depreciation, amortization, or other income effects, if any, as

a result of the change to the estimated amounts, calculated as if the accounting had been completed at the acquisition date. The amendments also require an entity to present separately on the

face of the income statement or disclosure in the notes the portion of the amount recorded in current-period earnings by line item that would have been recorded in previous reporting periods if the adjustment to the estimated amounts had been recognized as of the acquisition date. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s financial position and results of operations.

## **OUR BUSINESS**

## Overview

We are a BPO service provider focusing on the complex, voice-based segment of customer care services, including customer relationship management, technical support, sales, customer retention, marketing surveys and research for certain major enterprises in the PRC. Our call center BPO services enable our clients to increase revenue, reduce operating costs, improve customer satisfaction, and enhance overall brand value and customer loyalty. Our largest customers are the provincial subsidiaries of two of the three telecommunications carriers in the PRC, China Mobile and China Telecom. We also provide outsourcing services to our clients whereby they can lease our employees to work at their offices. We operate our business through contractual arrangements between our wholly-owned subsidiary, WFOE and our variable interest entity, Taiying.

Taiying was founded in 2007 by a group of call center industry veterans who have experience running one of the largest paging service call center network in northern China. Our service programs are delivered through a set of standardized best practices and sophisticated technologies by our highly trained call center professionals.

We seek to establish long-term, strategic relationships with our clients by delivering quantifiable value solutions that help improve our clients revenue generation, reduce operating costs, and improve customer satisfaction. To achieve these objectives, we work closely with our clients to understand what drives their economic value, and then we demonstrate how our performance on their programs will align with that value. After we initiate the client program, we measure our performance each quarter on key metrics that we have agreed upon with the client, such as first-time call resolution, the rate at which we are successful in completing a sale on behalf of our client and customer satisfaction, and then convert our performance into quantifiable value. We then share this information with our clients to enable them to compare the quantifiable value we have delivered to the value they have received from other BPO providers or their in-house operations. By entering into contracts containing pricing terms that our clients agree are based on the value we create per dollar spent by the client, rather than a pricing model focused solely on being able to deliver the least expensive service offering, or a cost-based commodity pricing model which we believe is most often emphasized in our industry, we believe we can increase our ability to withstand competitive pricing pressure and to win and retain clients.

We believe our investments in the quality of our people and processes can lead to quantifiably superior results for our clients. We have high standards for our employees and we make significant investments in all areas of our human capital, including training, quality assurance, coaching and our performance management system. We employ a scorecard system that uses objective metrics to review an employee s performance to provide clarity of purpose and to ensure accountability for individual results. This scorecard system is linked to a compensation structure for our employees that is heavily based on individual performance. As a result of our reliance on objective metrics in our performance management system, we have what we refer to as a metric-driven performance culture among our employees. We believe that our focus on investing in human capital and use of a metric-driven, performance based business model positions us to provide value-added solutions to our clients, which we believe leads to strong relationships with our clients and recognition in our industry.

As we grow, we continue to expand our national presence and service offerings to increase revenue, improve operational efficiencies and drive brand loyalty for our clients. Our service is currently delivered from our call centers located in Shandong Province, Jiangxi Province, Hebei Province, Anhui Province, the Xinjiang

Uygur Autonomous Region, the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and Chongqing City, which have a total capacity of 7,800 seats. In addition to answering and responding to inbound calls, we also make outbound cold calls to assist the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom in promoting their own mobile value-added service MVAS products, such as weather, health, education and farming related MVAS to targeted China Mobile and China Telecom subscribers. Our largest clients in terms of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2014 were China Telecom Chongqing, China Mobile Beijing, China Mobile Tianjin, China Mobile Shandong Province and Haier.

In addition, we have received several industry awards and asked to participate in several important industry activities. Notable awards and activities include:

The Well Known Servicing Enterprise Who has the Most Growth Potential in China for 2014, awarded by The Expert Committee of China Service and Trade Association;

Important Contact Candidates of Outsourcing Enterprises for 2012, by Ministry of Commerce of the People s Republic of China;

Shandong Province Service Outsourcing Growing Enterprise for 2012, awarded by Shandong Province Department of Commerce;

China s Best Outbound Outsourcing Contact Center of the Year for 2011, awarded by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology based on the number of call center seats, number of employees, quality of customers, and quality of service;

The Promising Star of China s Best Outsourcing Contact Center of the Year for 2011, awarded to Taiying s subsidiary, Chongqing Centre BPO Industry Co., Ltd., by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology based on the number of call center seats, number of employees, quality of customers, and quality of service;

China s Best Inbound Outsourcing Contact Center of the Year for 2009, awarded by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology based on the number of call center seats, number of employees, quality of customers, and quality of service;

100 Strongest Outsourcing Company for 2009, recognition granted by MOFCOM based on the number of call center seats, number of employees, quality of customer and quality of service;

being named as one of only four team members of the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology s China Call Center BPO Industry Guideline Drafting Team;

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

being named the Leading Call Center BPO Enterprise by the government of Shandong Province (we believe we are only one of no more than three companies to have been so named to date); and

being chosen as the College Graduates Employment Training Base by the Youth League of Shandong Province.

In addition, our CEO, Gary Wang, was one of the ten people recognized to receive the 2013 Outstanding People Award of China Software Outsourcing and Information Technology Service Industry, an award jointly issued by China Software Outsourcing and Information Technology Service Industry Alliance and the Software and Integrated Circuit Promotion Center of the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (MIIT). Mr. Wang was also one of the fifteen people recognized to receive the 2011 and 2009 China Sourcing Person of the Year within the China Software and Information Industry Category, and award given by MIIT. All of these awards and appointments were made by independent entities in open competitions with others in the industry. We believe they reflect widespread recognition of our stature and success in our industry as well as the quality of our service.

# **Industry and Market Background**

# China s Call Center BPO Market

Compared with countries such as the U.S. and India that have relatively more mature markets, China s call center outsourcing market is still in its early stage of development. In the past few years, competition in China s market was relatively low due to highly differentiated positions and large number of unexploited potential outsourcing customers. At present, low price, standard service vendors tend to be most popular in the market. Nevertheless, as more competition in the China market is introduced in the future, we believe that the ability to provide customer-oriented solutions in the China call center BPO market will be increasingly valued by customers.

Future outsourcing development is highly dependent on the current BPO companies performance and strategies. Among the current outsourcing companies, the key drivers of high performance are cost, service quality, intellectual property rights protection, workforce skills, and industry expertise, along with a high degree of comfort and familiarity with the use of outsourcing as an effective business practice. Growth in the China call center BPO market will depend on the industry s ability to address customer concerns in such areas as quality, confidentiality, information processing ability, human resources, and price.

In the highly competitive global contact center outsourcing market, China enjoys several advantages. As a result of 30 years of economic reform, China has greatly improved its infrastructure, in some areas matching those in developed countries. China has a large domestic market and supply of well-educated workers, along with a talent pool supported by a well-developed education system. In addition, despite rising labor costs, China s outsourcing businesses still have, a low cost advantage on the global call center market.

We believe outsourcing will continue to grow as a result of greater client demand for cost savings, along with the need for high-quality customer interactions and innovative service solutions that deliver tangible value. We also believe the desire for companies to focus on core competencies will remain strong and continue to cause them to outsource certain non-core functions to experienced outsourcing providers with the appropriate scale, consistent processes and technological expertise.

China s economic growth has resulted in a growing consumer population, and we believe that Chinese consumers will continue to develop needs that can be more efficiently serviced and supported through BPO services. The call center BPO services of our clients are non-core outsourcing processes, or BPO services that our clients may not view as critical to their operations and are outsourced to us. By providing these services for our clients, we aid them in streamlining their business operations. Our clients transfer the complete responsibility of their BPO functions to us, and we are then responsible for maintaining service quality standards.

## **Telecommunications Market**

According to the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, in February 2015, the number of China s mobile phone subscribers increased to 1.289 billion while the number of China s fixed-line phone subscribers decreased to 247 million. As of December 2014, China had 557 million mobile internet users, the percentage of those using mobile phones to go online reaching 85.8%. With intensified competition in the telecommunications market, major telecommunication companies such as China Mobile are making transitions from voice-centric to data-centric operations, from communications to mobile Internet and information consumption, and from mobile communication operations to innovative full service operations.

Growth in China s telecommunications sector continues to be influenced by the country s overall economy. China s gross domestic product (GDP) reached RMB 63.6 trillion in 2014, a 7.4% increase over the previous year, according to the National Statistical Bureau of China.

## Growth of China s GDP

			As of December 31,			Compound Annual Growth Rate	
		2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	(2010-2014)
China s GDP (RMB trillion)		40.2	47.3	51.9	56.9	63.6	12%
	$\sim$	 	-		-		

Growth of China s Telecommunications Industry

		As of December 31,		C	Compound Annual Growth	
	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	Rate (2010-2014)
Fixed Line Telephone	2010	-011	2012	2010	-011	(2010 2011)
Subscribers (in millions)	294	285	278	267	249	-4%
Penetration rate	22%	21%	21%	20%	18.3%	-5%
Mobile Telephone						
Subscribers (in millions)	859	986	1112	1229	1286	10%
Penetration rate	64%	74%	83%	91%	95%	9%
Internet						
Users (in millions)	457	513	564	618	649	8%
Penetration rate	34%	38%	42%	46%	48%	8%
Broadband						
Users (in millions)	126	150	175	189	210	12%
Source: National Statistical Burgan of Chi	a the Ministr	w of Indus	ry and Info	rmation To	ahnology of	f China CINIC

Source: National Statistical Bureau of China, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of China, CINIC

Our Operating Companies largest customers are the provincial subsidiaries of two of the three major telecommunications operators in China, namely China Mobile and China Telecom. The restructuring of China s telecommunications industry opened the fixed-line, mobile and broadband segments to all existing telecommunications operators in China, and the ensuing competition in these segments prompted each telecommunications operator to focus more on operating efficiency and its measure metrics, namely, average revenue per employee. We believe that increasing competition among the three operators will drive demand for outsourcing their call center functions to third party service providers.

# China s Banking Industry

China s banking system has grown considerably in recent years. According to the Institute of International Finance, China s bank assets have grown more than five-fold over the last decade, as compared with a 40-50% increase in the US, Euro Area, and Japanese bank assets. According to Banks Around the World website, in 2014, four of the world s top 10 banks by asset size are Chinese banks, including the world s largest bank and the 3rd, 7th, and 8th largest banks. The total assets of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, the biggest bank in the world for the third consecutive year, reached \$3,182 billion based on the March 31, 2014 balance sheet.

According to *KPMG*, China s banking industry is likely to experience significant changes as a result of the continuous opening up and reform of the financial services industry. First, the marketization of interest rate and the loosening of

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

financial services licenses will likely lead to significant changes in the business foundations of traditional commercial banks. As a consequence, the financial service market may offer increasingly more innovative financial products with better returns. Second, Internet and mobile computing are bringing dramatic changes to the delivery of traditional banking products such as deposits, lending, settlements and investments. These changes are likely to affect the traditional channels, products and services developed by commercial

banks. Finally, China s decision to grant banking licenses to private capital entities can invigorate its banking sector. These new comers can further improve the banking industry s overall performance as a result of increased competition. Developments in China s banking industry will bring pressure on financial institutions to take measures to generate sales, reduce their costs of operations, and become more efficient. One such measure is to outsource their call center or data services to companies like us.

# **Online Retail Market**

China s retail industry has experienced substantial growth as a result of rising disposable income and increasing urbanization. According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the real annual per capita income of rural households and urban households in China increased by a compound annual growth rate of 9.2% and 6.8% from 2013 to 2014, respectively. Meanwhile, the household savings rate in China declined from 40.4% in 2009 to 39.5% in 2013, according to *Euromonitor International*. Such a decline in savings rate reflects Chinese consumers increasing willingness to spend on discretionary items, including higher quality products and services.

China s online retail market is expected to benefit from its large population of Internet users. According to *China Internet Network Information Center*, China had the world s largest Internet population with 649 million users as of December 31, 2014. The number of China s online shoppers in that year was 302 million. This number is expected to increase as a result of continued growth in Internet users as well as an increased proportion of Internet users making purchases online. According to *China Internet Network Information Center*, China has the world s largest mobile Internet user base with 557 million users as of end of 2014, and mobile usage is expected to increase, driven by the growing adoption of mobile devices. The increased usage of mobile devices will make access to the Internet even more convenient, drive higher online shopper engagement and enable new applications.

Another stimulus for growth in the online retail market comes from challenges in China s offline retail market. According to *McKinsey & Company*, the top 5 retailers in China had a combined market share of less than 20% in 2012, as compared with approximately 24% to 60% in comparable categories in the United States for the same period. In 2013, per capita retail space in China was significantly lower than that in the United States, the United Kingdom, Japan and Germany. The less developed physical retail infrastructure and distribution system in China is especially apparent in smaller cities and towns where we believe China s national retailing leaders have an even more limited presence. As traditional brick and mortar retailers continue to face challenges in reaching Chinese consumers, consumers will increasingly seek online channels to meet their needs and the availability of online shopping will stimulate higher consumption than otherwise would have been the case. In particular, we believe that in regions outside tier 1 and 2 cities, purchases through e-commerce channels could contribute to incremental increases in consumption in China due to the variety of product offerings available through online marketplaces, creating additional demand from local consumers.

In 2014, the total transaction value of China s online shopping market exceeded \$453.61 billion, an increase of 48.7% over the previous year, according to China Internet Watch. According to China s Ministry of Commerce, China s online shopping is expected to increase from \$296 billion in 2013 to \$540 billion in 2015. Our recent execution of an outsourcing contract with Alibaba, China s largest online retailer will, we believe, position us favorably in providing outsourcing services to the online retail market. Alibaba had gross merchandise volume of \$370 billion in the calendar year 2014.

# **Our Competitive Strengths**

We believe the following strengths differentiate us from our competitors in our market in China:

We are a provider of telecommunications call center BPO services to subsidiaries of two significant telecommunications carriers in China. Our principal operating company, Taiying, is

a provider of call center BPO services to the provincial subsidiaries of two of the three telecommunications carriers in China, specifically China Mobile and China Telecom.

*We have developed comprehensive and scalable solutions.* Taiying has developed different programs to maximize outbound calling professionals performance across all three major sales metrics: (i) units sold - conversion rate and sales per hour, (ii) customer retention, and (iii) customer satisfaction from a positive sales experience. Taiying benefits from economies of scale as a result of being one of the largest telecommunications call center BPO operation in China.

*We possess a commitment to innovation and quality service.* Taiying has obtained registered computer software ownership rights for ten pieces of intellectual property from the China State Copyright Bureau. Taiying has attained several awards in recognition of its efforts in setting up national call center standards and in improving the quality of call center service; and Taiying has been recognized with awards and certificates by a variety of government entities for its efforts in call center BPO service.

*We possess a strategic, national presence*. We have 11 call centers in 8 provinces in the PRC China, with the intention to service 17 provinces, 1 autonomous region, and 4 directly-administered municipalities (Beijing, Shanghai, Tianjin, and Chongqing) which collectively represent a total population of 1.09 billion. We believe that our customers value this strong national presence and our ability to do business in multiple geographic regions in the PRC depending on factors such as the life cycle of their products, the complexity of the work being performed, the cultural and local language requirements, and the economics of the total service solution. Our resulting ability to customize a multi-geographic strategy enhances our ability to win new clients or expand our market share with existing clients.

*We possess a high quality, loyal client base in attractive sectors.* We maintain broad and long-standing relationships with the provincial subsidiaries of the leading telecommunications companies in the PRC: China Mobile and China Telecom. Notwithstanding our lack of long-term agreements we believe that we have sustainable and long-term relationships with our clients that make us an integral component of their planning, strategy, and cost model. We believe our clients seek our services due to our ability to provide scalable and timely solutions that leverage our proven processes and technology investments. We believe that our approach to client service and our relationships will allow us to maintain our existing base of business and grow new business as our clients launch new products and enter new geographic regions in the PRC.

*We focus upon strong industry growth opportunities.* We have traditionally focused on the telecommunications segments within the BPO market because of its growth potential and attractive operating margins. In addition, we seek to capitalize on the national trend toward outsourcing BPO services. We also believe that the current economic slowdown has increased demand for outsourcing not only because it can reduce customer service costs, but also because it offers an incremental channel to increase sales. At the same time, we expect to benefit from growth in other industries such as financial services, government bodies, IT and e-commerce.

*We employ highly qualified personnel.* Taiying s workforce is highly skilled with specialized training designed to address complex customer care engagements; our entrepreneurial management team includes employees who have significant experience managing call center services. Led by industry veteran, founder, chairman and chief executive officer, Gary Wang, our management team is comprised of an experienced group of executives, many of whom have approximately 15 or more years of operating experience in the call center BPO industry.

## **Our Strategies**

We provide integrated BPO services to help our clients create maximum value for their customers over the long-term. Our goal is to become the largest call center BPO service provider in China. We intend to achieve this goal by implementing the following strategies:

*We intend to pursue strategic acquisitions and alliances that fit within our core competencies and growth strategy.* We plan to grow our revenues and market share both organically and through targeted acquisitions. Our plans to expand our service offerings into new segments, such as data management, or into new industries, such as financial services and government bodies, may be accomplished most efficiently and cost effectively through the acquisition of companies or assets, or through joint venture arrangements with third parties. We view acquisitions as a key component of our growth strategy and expect to seek acquisitions in the future that will expand our existing competencies or add to our portfolio of BPO capabilities.

*We intend to strengthen relationships with key customers*. Our existing clients are the subsidiaries of large companies with diverse BPO needs and we plan to continue our strategy of expanding the scale and scope of the services we provide for these large clients. We intend to further strengthen our relationships with key clients by not only offering an efficient and flexible cost model that can reduce costs to the client, but also by expanding our current service offerings within our existing client base to generate additional revenues for our clients.

*We intend to develop new client relationships*. We intend to capitalize on growth opportunities driven by a trend towards use of third party BPO service providers in China s call center outsourcing market. The 7,800 seat capacity of our existing facilities in Shandong, Jiangsu Province, Jiangxi Province, Hebei Province, Anhui Province, the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and Chongqing City represents what we believe is a very small percentage of China s BPO market, which leaves potential for us to gain market share.

*We intend to increase our revenue and market share by expanding our service networks to other provinces.* We started with our call center in Shandong Province, which covers the north region of China. Over the years, we have established a new call center in Chongqing City, which covered the southwest region of China, and three new call centers in Jiangsu Province, which positioned us to target potential clients in the Yangtze River Delta. We have also added call centers in Hebei Province, Anhui Province, the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, and the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region.

We intend to diversify our client base and provide services to other industries, such as financial services, government bodies, IT and e-commerce. We currently have a single industry focus, with most of our revenues coming from the telecommunications industry. While we continue to target the significant market opportunity still available in the telecommunications industry, diversification of our client base to include customers in the financial services, government, IT and e-commerce industries will position us to maximize our return on the core competencies of our operation. We believe that the financial services, government services, IT and e-commerce industries, combined with the telecommunications industry, represent a majority of the overall outsourced market.

We intend to continue to enhance our brand and augment our service offerings to attract a wider client base and increase revenues. We expect to continue to promote our brand name, increase our revenue through a combination of securing business from new clients and increasing our service offerings and market share for existing clients. We expect that our track record, reputation, referrals and historical working relationship with the provincial subsidiaries of two of the largest telecommunications operators in China, will allow us to win new clients in the future as more companies outsource their BPO function. We also expect to generate new business by working with our clients to outsource non-core programs that are currently managed internally.

*We intend to continue to attract and retain quality employees. We plan to continue our focus on, and investment in, human capital.* Building on our already strong base of recruiting, training and performance management systems, we plan to expand our efforts in all of these areas to increase our recruiting capacity and maintain our ability to deliver high-quality services.

## **Our Lines of Service**

We believe BPO is a key enabler of improved business performance as measured by a company s ability to consistently outperform peers through both business and economic cycles. We believe the benefits of BPO include renewed focus on core capabilities, faster time to market, enhanced revenue generation opportunities, streamlined processes, reduced capital and operating risk, movement from a fixed to variable cost structure, access to borderless sourcing capabilities, and creation of proprietary best operating practices and technology, all of which contribute to increased customer satisfaction, profits and shareholder returns for our clients.

We believe that companies with high customer satisfaction levels enjoy premium pricing in their industry, which we believe results in increased profitability and greater shareholder returns. Given the strong correlation between customer satisfaction and improved profitability, we believe that more companies are increasingly focused on selecting outsourcing partners, such as Taiying, that can deliver strategic revenue generation and front-to-back-office capabilities to improve the customer experience.

Our service offerings enable our clients to increase revenue, reduce operating costs, improve customer satisfaction, and enhance overall brand value and customer loyalty:

**Inbound Customer Care Service**. Our inbound customer support service offers answering service hotlines in China, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Contacts are initiated primarily by inbound calls from customers on a wide range of topics dealing with customer enquiries regarding services and billings, directory assistance, account and service changes, password reset/appeals, product and service inquiries, hotel reservations, airline ticket purchases, customer retention and customer complaints. Customer retention programs are programs where the customer is calling to cancel service. In the latter case, our customer service associates are trained to attempt to resolve the customer sissue and convince the customer to keep their service with the particular provider. In addition, we initiate sales calls, primarily to existing customers of our clients, for retention and loyalty programs, and in some cases unsolicited calling for customer acquisition. Taiying operates under licensing and revenue sharing agreements with the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom for its inbound calling service.

**Outbound Customer Care Service**. We also provide outbound cold calling services such as selling China Mobile s color ring back tones (CRBT), wireless news service, daily weather service and other Mobile value added service MVAS to targeted wireless subscribers. Through market segmentation, customer trends and analysis of customer attrition rates, we generate revenue by making targeted outbound cold callings of potential subscribers. Unlike other MVAS providers who use China Mobile or China Telecom networks simply as a distribution channel, we create and manage a vast range of MVAS products for China Mobile or China Telecom, as the case may be, and market them to mobile phone users through the Company s call centers under the China Mobile or China Telecom brand, as the case may be. The provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom compensate our company for selling their products and increasing their revenues by splitting the subscription fee according to a pre-determined formula for successfully enrolling each subscriber. We believe this arrangement, emphasizing the sale of the products of the telecommunications operator rather than our own distinguishes us from our competitors, and further strengthens our relationship with the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom.

For inbound customer care service, fees are charged based on either number of calls (a fixed charge per interaction) or predetermined seats charges (weekly charges, or monthly charges per seat). For outbound cold

calling services, fees are charged based on the success of marketing the product and service upon subscription. Telecommunications operators such as China Mobile and China Telecom typically charge a subscription fee to the subscriber s monthly bill, keeps predetermined percentage of this fee for itself and remits the remainder to us. For advanced services, revenue sharing varies among products.

We currently derive a significant portion of our revenue from telecommunications clients. We receive most of our revenue from a small number of clients; we derived 84% and 88% of our revenues in 2014 and 2013, respectively, from our five largest clients.

We primarily utilize our cash flow from operations and short-term loans to fund working capital, and other strategic and general operating purposes. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had \$5,567,860 and \$6,218,905 in short term loans, respectively. The amount of capital required over the next 12 months will also depend on our levels of investment in infrastructure necessary to meet the growth demand of our business. Our working capital and capital expenditure requirements could increase materially in the event of acquisitions or joint ventures, among other factors. These factors could require that we raise additional capital through future debt or equity financing. There can be no assurance that additional financing will be available, at all, or on terms favorable to us.

## Customers

Many of our current customers are the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom and their regional affiliated entities. For the year ended December 31, 2014, revenues from the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile accounted for \$20.6 million, revenues from the provincial subsidiaries of China Telecom were \$11.1 million, or approximately 48% or 26% of our total revenues, respectively.

The provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile contributed 48% and 41% of total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The provincial subsidiaries of China Telecom contributed 26% and 37% of total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

In addition to the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom, we also generate revenues from Haier, GM OnStar, and Volvo. We recently entered into outsourcing contracts with two of China s top five largest banks, China Construction Bank and Bank of Communications. We also recently entered into an outsourcing contract with a subsidiary of China s largest online retailer Alibaba.

## **Contractual Arrangements**

We have signed contracts with the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom for inbound calling services generally having one-year term. Outbound customer care service contracts also generally have one-year terms. Both inbound and outbound contracts have no automatic renewal provisions.

Five of our contractual relationships currently in place collectively accounted for about 84% of our revenues in the year of 2014. The customers (in order of their contribution to our revenues during that period) are as follows: the provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom, Haier, Bank of Communications, and China Construction Bank. At this time, we are dependent on all of these customer relationships. Any loss of these contracts or deterioration of our relationship with those customers could significantly impact our revenue and profits.

# **Sales and Marketing**

Our sales and marketing strategy has focused primarily on the telecommunications sector and substantially all of our historical revenues have been derived from telecommunications customers. In addition to continuing to grow our presence in the telecom sector, we have focused on the financial services sector and

government bodies for further expansion. We rely on our own sales force to market and sell our services in China. Our sales team is responsible for obtaining new clients and growing existing clients by identifying additional sales opportunities. Our sales team is supported by our sales support team, which responds to requests for proposals and requests for information, including preparing written responses to such requests. Our sales support team is also specifically responsible for managing and coordinating visits by clients to our call centers. We view these site visits as one of the most important parts of our sales cycle, and we design site visits to allow prospective clients to experience the elements of our business model at work.

The focus of our sales and marketing efforts is to educate prospective clients on what we believe differentiates us as an outsourced provider in the BPO market. Specifically, our sales effort focuses on our approach of investing in our human capital to outperform expectations and in delivering greater value per dollar spent. We provide a sales proposition to a prospective client based on quantifiable value per dollar spent by the client on our services. This gives the client a means of comparing our value created per dollar spent as compared to the same metrics for their internal centers or other outsourcers. We believe that this approach has been crucial to winning and retaining clients and increasing our ability to withstand competitive pricing pressure.

Our sales organizations are structured into three strategic customer accounts: The provincial subsidiaries of China Mobile and China Telecom and major enterprises. These accounts sell our solutions and services to the respective customers and manage our long-term relationships with them. As of December 31, 2014, we had 32 sales, marketing and sales support professionals.

# Competition

We operate in a highly competitive environment. We estimate that there are hundreds of companies providing call center BPO service in China. We also compete with the in-house business process functions of our current and potential clients. We believe our key advantage over in-house business process functions is that we enable companies to focus on their core services while we focus on the specialized function of managing their customer relationships. We also compete with certain companies that provide BPO services including: CM-Tong, Meiyin, Boyue, Asiainfo, 95Teleweb, and Poicom.

We compete primarily on the basis of our experience, reputation, our quality and scope of services, our speed and flexibility of implementation, our technological expertise, total value delivered, and our quantifiable value per dollar spent by the client on our services.

The business process outsourcing industry is extremely competitive, and outsourcers have historically competed based on pricing terms. Accordingly, we could be subject to pricing pressure and may experience a decline in our average selling prices for our services. We attempt to mitigate this pricing pressure by differentiating ourselves from our competition based on the value we bring to our clients through the quality of our services and our ability to provide quantifiable results that our clients can measure against our competitors. We seek to compete by emphasizing to our clients the value they receive per dollar spent for our services. We do not generally compete in the segment of the customer care BPO market that focuses solely on price. We normally provide a sales proposition to a client based on quantifiable value per dollar spent by the client on our services. We believe that our ability to quantify value has allowed us to negotiate primarily fixed pricing with our clients that reflects the greater value created per dollar spent, rather than the cost-based commodity pricing model most often emphasized in our industry.

We believe that we have competitive advantages in the markets we serve due to our metric-driven BPO solutions, comprehensive and scalable product and service offerings, customer-centric and cost effective project management capability, and established customer relationships.

The principal competitive factors in our markets include:

ability to provide services that are innovative and attractive to customers and their end-users;

service functionality, quality and performance;

customer service and support;

pricing;

establishment of a significant customer base; and

ability to introduce new services to the market in a timely manner **Research and Development** 

We are committed to researching, designing and developing call center information technology solutions and software products that will meet the future needs of our customers. We continuously upgrade our existing software products to enhance scalability and performance and to provide added features and functions. As of December 31, 2014, our research and development team consisted of 56 researchers, engineers, developers and programmers. In addition, certain support employees regularly participate in our research and development programs. Other than wages and salaries paid to research personnel, we did not spend material amounts on research and development in the past two years.

## **Employees**

As of December 31, 2014, we had approximately 4,330 full-time employees and approximately 2,280 part-time employees and interns. Our senior management and many of our employees have had prior experience in the call center industry. All of our employees are full-time employees.

We devote significant resources to recruiting and training our call center associates. We target and select high-caliber employees through a rigorous screening and testing process. After we hire an employee, we make significant investments in foundation training, client-specific training and ongoing instruction and coaching. We emphasize small teams, which facilitates significant time for evaluation and coaching of our customer service associates by our team leaders and quality personnel.

Our culture is metric-driven and performance-based. We employ a scorecard system for substantially all of our employees that define specific goals to provide clarity of purpose and to enable objective weekly, monthly and quarterly performance evaluations. We believe that this system, which is linked with a compensation structure that is heavily weighted with performance-based incentives, helps our managers identify and coach low performers, reward high performers and ultimately achieve high levels of quality for our clients.

Most of our senior management and technical employees are well-educated Chinese professionals with substantial experience in call center management and call center system integration and application software development. We believe that attracting and retaining highly experienced call center associates and sales and marketing personnel is a key to our success. In addition, we believe that we maintain a good working relationship with our employees and we have not experienced any significant labor disputes or any difficulty in recruiting staff for our operations. Our employees are not represented through any collective bargaining agreements or by labor unions.

# **Intellectual Property Rights**

The PRC has domestic laws for the protection of rights in copyrights, patents, trademarks and trade secrets. The PRC is also a signatory to all of the world s major intellectual property conventions, including the:

Convention establishing the World Intellectual Property Organization (WIPO Convention) (June 4, 1980);

Paris Convention for the Protection of Industrial Property (March 19, 1985);

Patent Cooperation Treaty (January 1, 1994); and

Agreement on Trade-Related Aspects of Intellectual Property Rights (TRIPs) (November 11, 2001). The PRC Trademark Law, adopted in 1982 and revised in 2013, with its implementation rules adopted in 2014, protects registered trademarks. The Trademark Office of the State Administration of Industry and Commerce (SAIC), handles trademark registrations and grants trademark registrations for a term of ten years.

Our intellectual property rights are important to our business. We rely on a combination of trade secrets, confidentiality procedures and contractual provisions to protect our intellectual property. We do not presently hold any patents or registered trademarks.

We have been granted registered computer software ownership rights to ten pieces of intellectual property rights by the China State Copyright Bureau, which allows us to implement our own computer systems without having to purchase them from an outside vendor, lowering our startup costs for additional call centers. Among them are: five software programs related to call center integration and optimization; three software programs related to customer relationship management; one software program related to online testing; and one software program related to insurance industry customer service inquiry system. We enter into confidentiality agreements with most of our employees and consultants, and control access to and distribution of our documentation and other licensed information. Despite these precautions, it may be possible for a third party to copy or otherwise obtain and use our technology without authorization, or to develop similar technology independently. Since the Chinese legal system in general, and the intellectual property regime in particular, is relatively weak, it is often difficult to enforce intellectual property rights in China. Policing unauthorized use of our technology. In addition, litigation may be necessary in the future to enforce our intellectual property rights, to protect our trade secrets or to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others, which could result in substantial costs and diversion of our resources and could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We require our employees to enter into non-disclosure agreements to limit access to and distribution of our proprietary and confidential information. These agreements generally provide that any confidential or proprietary information developed by us or on our behalf must be kept confidential. These agreements also provide that any confidential or proprietary information disclosed to third parties in the course of our business must be kept confidential by such third parties.

As of December 31, 2014, we have obtained ten registered computer software ownership rights from the China State Copyright Bureau. We do not presently hold any patents or registered trademarks.

In the event of trademark infringement, the SAIC has the authority to fine the infringer and to confiscate or destroy the infringing products. In addition to actions taken by SAIC, Taiying would be entitled to sue an infringer for compensation.

## Properties

Our headquarters is located at 1366 Zhongtianmen Dajie, Xinghuo Science and Technology Park, High-tech Zone, Taian City, Shandong Province, People s Republic of China. We have incorporated 11 subsidiary companies, which are separate legal entities, and 3 branch offices. strategically-located throughout China, affording our customers local expertise and management. Our facilities are used for sales and marketing, research and development and administrative functions. All of the facilities are leased. We believe our facilities are adequate for our current needs. A summary description of our call center locations follows:

<b>Office</b> Principal Executive Office	Address 1366 Zhongtianmen Dajie Xinghuo Science and Technology Park High-tech Zone, Taian City,	<b>Rental Term</b> December 2007- December 2017	<b>Space</b> 132,510 sq. ft.
	Shandong Province		
	People s Republic of China 271000		
Chongqing Center	19 East Huilong Avenue	Month to Month	161,400 sq. ft.
	Yongchuan, Chongqing		
	People s Republic of China 402160		
Shandong Yantai Center	8 Jinhua Road	Month to Month	129,120 sq. ft.
	Muping, Yantai, Shandong,		
	People s Republic of China 264100		
Jiangsu Huaqiao Center	8 Zhaofeng Road	March 2014- February 2015	7,100 sq. ft.
	Huaqiao, Kunshan, Jiangsu Province,	Teordary 2015	
	People s Republic of China 215332		
Jiangsu Taizhou Center	98 Phoenix West Road	January 2010- December 2025	129,120 sq. ft.
	Taizhou, Jiangsu Province,		
	People s Republic of China 225300		
Hebei Yanjiao Center	Ying Bin Bei Lu Xi Ce Ye Ji Di X04-B,	October 2013- October 2016	31,100 sq. ft.
	Yan Jiao Guo Ji Chan		

Edgar Filing: Ch	ina Custome	Relations	Centers	Inc Form F-1/	Α
Eugar i mig. On		riciations	Conters,		· •

Anhui Hefei Center	Yanjiao City, Herbei Province 065201 1201 Huguang Road	Month to Month	14,913 sq. ft.
	New Industrial Park Shushan District, Hefei City, Anhui Province,		
	People s Republic of China 230000		
Xinjiang Center	1003 Xihong West Road	Month to Month	21,800 sq. ft.
	Saybagh District, Urumqi City, Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region,		
	People s Republic of China 830000		

Office	Address	Rental Term	Space
Guangxi Nanning Center	7-1 Xingguang Ave	Month to	29,117 sq. ft.
	Jiangnan District,	Month	1
	Nanning City, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,		
	People s Republic of China 530000		
Jiangsu Huaian Center	266 Chengde South Road	Month to	10,652 sq. ft.
	Huaian Economic and Technology Development District, Jiangsu Province,	Month	
	People s Republic of China 223005		
Jiangxi Taiying Center	1807 Gaoxin Avenue	Month to	52,568 sq. ft.
	Qingshan Lake District	Month	-
	Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province		
	People s Republic of China 330096 <b>REGULATION</b>		

# **Regulation of the Telecommunications Industry**

The telecommunications industry is highly regulated in China. PRC laws and regulations restrict foreign investment in China s telecommunications service industry. The contractual arrangements between our wholly-owned subsidiary, WFOE, and Taiying, allow us to exercise significant rights over the business operations of Taiying and to realize the economic benefits of the business. We believe that our operations are in compliance in all material aspects with current, applicable PRC regulations. However, many PRC laws and regulations are subject to extensive interpretive power of governmental agencies and commissions, and there is substantial uncertainty regarding the future interpretation and application of these laws or regulations.

The Chinese telecommunications industry, in which our largest customers operate, is subject to extensive government regulation and control. Currently, all the major telecommunications and Internet service providers in China are primarily state owned or state controlled and their business decisions and strategies are affected by the government s budgeting and spending plans. In addition, they are required to comply with regulations and rules promulgated from time to time by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology and other ministries and government departments.

In September, 2000, China published the Regulations of the People s Republic of China on Telecommunications, or the Telecommunications Regulations. The Telecommunications Regulations were the first comprehensive set of regulations governing the conduct of telecommunications businesses in China. In particular, the Telecommunications Regulations set out in clear terms the framework for operational licensing, network interconnection, the setting of

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

telecommunications charges and standards of telecommunications services in China. In the same month, China s State Council approved the Administrative Measures on Internet Information Services, which provide for control and censoring of information on the Internet.

In December, 2001, the Ministry of Information Industry (MII), which was reorganized as the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology in June, 2008, promulgated the Administrative Measures for Telecommunications Business Operating Licenses, as amended (the 2009 Regulations). The 2001 Regulations provide for two types of telecommunications operating licenses for carriers in the PRC, namely licenses for basic services and licenses for value-added services. In February, 2003, the MII issued a classification of basic and value-added telecommunications services (the 2003 Classification). The 2003 Classification maintains the general distinction between basic telecommunications services, or BTS, and value-added telecommunications services, or VATS, and attempts to define the scope of each service. In particular, the 2003 Classification

delineated the differences between Type 1 and Type 2 value-added services. Type 1 includes online data and transaction processing, domestic multi-party communications services, domestic Internet VPN services and Internet data center services. Type 2 covers storage and retransmission (email, voice mail, facsimile), call centers, Internet access and information services.

Under a separate set of regulations introduced in December, 2001, qualified foreign investors are permitted to invest in certain sectors of China s telecommunications industry through Sino-foreign joint ventures, including Type 2 VATS providers, although there have been few reported investments of this nature to date. These regulations, known as the Provisions on the Administration of Foreign-Invested Telecommunications Enterprises, or the 2001 Provisions, were the result of China s accession to the World Trade Organization. Under these provisions, certain qualifying foreign investors are permitted to own up to 49% of basic telecommunications businesses in China, and up to 50% of value-added telecommunications services businesses (which include Internet service providers and Internet content providers) and wireless paging businesses.

Despite the introduction of the 2001 Provisions, PRC regulations still restrict most direct foreign ownership of VATS businesses in the PRC. We and our PRC operating subsidiaries are considered foreign persons or foreign-invested enterprises under PRC laws, and are therefore subject to foreign ownership restrictions in connection with our limited VATS Type 2 business activities. In order to comply with these restrictions, WFOE, our wholly-owned subsidiary, has entered into a series of Control Agreements with Taiying and its sole shareholder, which allow us to exercise significant rights over the business operations of Taiying and to realize the economic benefits of the business. We do not have any equity interest in Taiying, but instead have the right to enjoy economic benefits similar to equity ownership through our Control Agreements with Taiying and its sole shareholder. For more information on the regulatory and other risks associated with our contractual arrangements related to Taiying, please see the discussion in Risk Factors Risks Relating to Our Corporate Structure. We believe that our operations are in compliance in all

Risk Factors Risks Relating to Our Corporate Structure. We believe that our operations are in compliance in all material aspects with current, applicable PRC regulations. However, many PRC laws and regulations are subject to extensive interpretive power of governmental agencies and commissions, and there is substantial uncertainty regarding the future interpretation and application of these laws or regulations.

# **Regulation of Foreign Currency Exchange and Dividend Distribution**

*Foreign Currency Exchange.* The principal regulations governing foreign currency exchange in China are the Foreign Exchange Administration Regulations (1996), as amended on August 5, 2008, the Administration Rules of the Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange (1996) and the Interim Measures on Administration on Foreign Debts (2003). Under these regulations, Renminbi are freely convertible for current account items, including the distribution of dividends, interest payments, trade and service-related foreign exchange transactions, but not for most capital account items, such as direct investment, loans, repatriation of investment and investment in securities outside China, unless the prior approval of SAFE or its local counterparts is obtained. In addition, any loans to an operating subsidiary in China that is a foreign invested enterprise, cannot, in the aggregate, exceed the difference between its respective approved total investment amount and its respective approved registered capital amount. Furthermore, any foreign loan must be registered with SAFE or its local counterparts for the loan to be effective. Any increase in the amount of the total investment and registered capital must be approved by the PRC Ministry of Commerce or its local counterpart. We may not be able to obtain these government approvals or registrations on a timely basis, if at all, which could result in a delay in the process of making these loans.

The dividends paid by the subsidiary to its shareholder are deemed shareholder income and are taxable in China. Pursuant to the Administration Rules of the Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange (1996), foreign-invested enterprises in China may purchase or remit foreign exchange, subject to a cap approved by SAFE, for settlement of current account transactions without the approval of SAFE. Foreign exchange transactions under the capital account are still subject to limitations and require approvals from, or registration with, SAFE and other relevant PRC governmental authorities.

*Dividend Distribution.* The principal regulations governing the distribution of dividends by foreign holding companies include the Company Law of the PRC (1993), as amended in 2013, the Foreign Investment Enterprise Law (1986), as amended in 2000, and the Administrative Rules under the Foreign Investment Enterprise Law (2001), as amended in 2014.

Under these regulations, wholly foreign-owned investment enterprises in China may pay dividends only out of their retained profits, if any, determined in accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations. In addition, wholly foreign-owned investment enterprises in China are required to allocate at least 10% of their respective retained profits each year, if any, to fund certain reserve funds unless these reserves have reached 50% of the registered capital of the enterprises. These reserves are not distributable as cash dividends, and a wholly foreign-owned enterprise is not permitted to distribute any profits until losses from prior fiscal years have been offset.

*Circular 37.* On July 4, 2014, SAFE issued Circular 37, which became effective as of July 4, 2014. According to Circular 37, PRC residents shall apply to SAFE and its branches for going through the procedures for foreign exchange registration of overseas investments before contributing the domestic assets or interests to a SPV. An amendment to registration or filing with the local SAFE branch by such PRC resident is also required if the registered overseas SPV s basic information such as domestic individual resident shareholder, name, operating period, or major events such as domestic individual resident capital increase, capital reduction, share transfer or exchange, merger or division has changed. Although the change of overseas funds raised by overseas SPV, overseas investment exercised by overseas SPV and non-cross-border capital flow are not included in Circular 37, we may be required to make foreign exchange registration if required by SAFE and its branches.

Moreover, Circular 37 applies retroactively. As a result, PRC residents who have contributed domestic assets or interests to a SPV, but failed to complete foreign exchange registration of overseas investments as required prior to implementation of Circular 37, are required to send a letter to SAFE and its branches for explanation. Under the relevant rules, failure to comply with the registration procedures set forth in Circular 37 may result in receiving a warning from SAFE and its branches, and may result in a fine of up to RMB 300,000 for an organization or up to RMB 50,000 for an individual. In the event of failing to register, if capital outflow occurred, a fine up to 30% of the illegal amount may be assessed.

PRC residents who control our company are required to register with SAFE in connection with their investments in us. If we use our equity interest to purchase the assets or equity interest of a PRC company owned by PRC residents in the future, such PRC residents will be subject to the registration procedures described in Circular 37.

# New M&A Regulations and Overseas Listings

On August 8, 2006, six PRC regulatory agencies, including the Ministry of Commerce, the State Assets Supervision and Administration Commission, the State Administration for Taxation, the State Administration for Industry and Commerce, CSRC and SAFE, jointly issued the Regulations on Mergers and Acquisitions of Domestic Enterprises by Foreign Investors, or the New M&A Rule, which became effective on September 8, 2006 and was amended on June 22, 2009. This New M&A Rule, among other things, includes provisions that purport to require that an offshore special purpose vehicle formed for purposes of overseas listing of equity interests in PRC companies and controlled directly or indirectly by PRC companies or individuals obtain the approval of CSRC prior to the listing and trading of such special purpose vehicle securities on an overseas stock exchange.

On September 21, 2006, CSRC published on its official website procedures regarding its approval of overseas listings by special purpose vehicles. The CSRC approval procedures require the filing of a number of documents with the CSRC and it would take several months to complete the approval process. The application of this new PRC regulation

remains unclear with no consensus currently existing among leading PRC law firms regarding the scope of the applicability of the CSRC approval requirement.

Our PRC counsel, KaiTong Law Firm, has advised us that, based on their understanding of the current PRC laws and regulations:

we currently control the Operating Companies by virtue of WFOE s VIE agreements with CCRC but not through equity interest acquisition nor asset acquisition which are stipulated in the New M&A Rule; and

in spite of the above, CSRC currently has not issued any definitive rule or interpretation concerning whether offerings like ours under this prospectus are subject to this new procedure. **Regulations on Offshore Parent Holding Companies Direct Investment in and Loans to Their PRC Subsidiaries** 

An offshore company may invest equity in a PRC company, which will become the PRC subsidiary of the offshore holding company after investment. Such equity investment is subject to a series of laws and regulations generally applicable to any foreign-invested enterprise in China, which include the Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise Law, the Sino-foreign Equity Joint Venture Enterprise Law, the Sino-foreign Contractual Joint Venture Enterprise Law, all as amended from time to time, and their respective implementing rules; the Administrative Provisions on Foreign Exchange in Domestic Direct Investment by Foreign Investors; and the Notice of the State Administration on Foreign Exchange on Further Improving and Adjusting Foreign Exchange Administration Policies for Direct Investment.

Under the aforesaid laws and regulations, the increase of the registered capital of a foreign-invested enterprise is subject to the prior approval by the original approval authority of its establishment. In addition, the increase of registered capital and total investment amount shall both be registered with SAIC and SAFE.

Shareholder loans made by offshore parent holding companies to their PRC subsidiaries are regarded as foreign debts in China for regulatory purpose, which is subject to a number of PRC laws and regulations, including the PRC Foreign Exchange Administration Regulations, the Interim Measures on Administration on Foreign Debts, the Tentative Provisions on the Statistics Monitoring of Foreign Debts and its implementation rules, and the Administration Rules on the Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange.

Under these regulations, the shareholder loans made by offshore parent holding companies to their PRC subsidiaries shall be registered with SAFE. Furthermore, the total amount of foreign debts that can be borrowed by such PRC subsidiaries, including any shareholder loans, shall not exceed the difference between the total investment amount and the registered capital amount of the PRC subsidiaries, both of which are subject to the governmental approval.

### **Proposed China Foreign Investment Law**

The content of the Draft FIL marks a move by MOFCOM to alter its regulation on foreign investment and streamline the current regulatory framework. Among other proposals, the Draft FIL provides that a domestic enterprise established in the PRC that is controlled by a foreign investor will be deemed to be a foreign invested enterprise, even if the domestic enterprise is directly owned by Chinese shareholders. This means that if MOFCOM finds that a Chinese entity which operates in a restricted or prohibited area is effectively controlled by a foreign entity through a VIE structure, then it may treat the VIE structure as a foreign direct investment and, therefore, subject it to the additional regulations.

The National People s Congress (NPC) has not yet provided a clear legislative timeline for the Draft FIL. Therefore, it may take some time before the Draft FIL is finally promulgated. Until then, the Draft FIL could be substantially amended as other relevant regulators such as the National Development and Reform Commission and the State Administration of Industry and Commerce may intervene in the drafting. It remains to be seen how much of the Draft FIL will be preserved or changed and implemented before it is submitted to the

National People s Congress (NPC), for final approval. Therefore, without knowledge of the final content of the Draft FIL before it becomes law, there is uncertainty of the potential impact of the Draft FIL on our VIE structure.

### MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth our executive officers and directors, their ages and the positions held by them:

Name	Age	Position	Appointed
Gary Wang <sup>(1) (2)</sup>	47	Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the Board and	2014
		Director	
David Wang <sup>(1) (2)</sup>	43	Chief Financial Officer, Director	2014
Guoan Xu <sup>(1) (2)</sup>	38	Vice President, Director	2014
Tianjun Zhang <sup>(1) (2) (5) (6) (7)</sup>	42	Director	2015
Weixin Wang <sup>(1) (3) (6) (7)</sup>	44	Director	2014
Jie Xu <sup>(1) (4) (5)</sup>	42	Director	2014
Owens Meng <sup>(1) (3) (5) (6) (7)</sup>	37	Director	2014
o wens meng	27	Director	2011

- <sup>(1)</sup> The individual s business address is c/o Taiying, 1366 Zhongtianmen Dajie, Xinghuo Science and Technology Park, High-tech Zone, Taian City, Shandong Province, People s Republic of China 271000.
- <sup>(2)</sup> Class III director whose term expires in 2017.
- <sup>(3)</sup> Class II director whose term expires in 2016.
- <sup>(4)</sup> Class I director whose term expires in 2015.
- <sup>(5)</sup> Member of audit committee.
- <sup>(6)</sup> Member of compensation committee.
- <sup>(7)</sup> Member of nominating committee.

**Gary Wang.** Mr. Wang has served as the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of CCRC since September 2014. Mr. Wang co-founded Taiying in 2007 and has served as Taiying s Chief Executive Officer since December 2007. From 2004 through 2007, Mr. Wang was the Chief Executive Officer of Shandong Luk Information Technology Co. Ltd, a call center company based in Shandong Province. Mr. Wang received his MBA from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, and a bachelor s degree in finance from Shandong University of Finance. Mr. Wang was nominated as a director because he has 15 years of experience serving in executive positions at companies exclusively operating in the call center industry and has extensive knowledge, experience and relationships in China s BPO industry.

**David Wang.** Mr. Wang has served as the Chief Financial Officer and Vice Chairman of CCRC since September 2014. Mr. Wang co-founded Taiying in 2007 and has served as Taiying s Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since April 2008. From January 2006 through March 2008, Mr. Wang served as Executive Vice President of Fountain Investments Limited, an investment advisory firm based in Shandong Province. From 2003 through 2005, Mr. Wang was Assistant to the President of Tianqin Securities Limited, a full-service investment banking and brokerage firm based in Shandong Province. Mr. Wang holds a bachelor s degree in computer science from Shandong University, and is currently studying for the FMBA program at China Europe International Business School (CEIBS). Mr. Wang was nominated as a director because of his extensive operating and financial knowledge of the Company as a long-term executive, which gives him detailed understanding of the complexities of our operations.

**Guoan Xu.** Mr. Xu has served as Vice President and Director of CCRC since September 2014. Mr. Xu has served as director and vice president of Taiying since 2014. Between 2008 and 2013, Mr. Xu served as a consultant and independent director of Taiying. Mr. Xu holds an associate bachelor s degree in politics and public relations from Shandong University. Mr. Xu was nominated as a director because of his extensive operating and public relation experience.

**Tianjun Zhang.** Mr. Zhang has served as an independent director of CCRC since October 2015. Since February 2014, Mr. Zhang has been the vice president of Jinan Zhongwei Century Technology Co., Ltd. Between February 2011 and February 2014, Mr. Zhang was a director of Sinopec Ningxia Branch. Between November 2009 and February 2011, Mr. Zhang was a vice president of Star Media Tanzania Co., Ltd. Between December 2001 and November 2009, Mr. Zhang was the general manager of Shandong branch of CITIC Application Service Provider Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhang received both his MBA and bachelor degree in computer science from Shandong University. Mr. Zhang was nominated as a director because of his experience in management.

**Weixin Wang.** Mr. Wang has served as an independent director of CCRC since September 2014. Since 2013, Mr. Wang has been the vice chairman of Jiangsu Sailian Information Industry Research Institute. Between 2006 and 2013, Mr. Wang was the director of Software and Integrated Circuit Promotion Center within the Strategy Consulting Department of Ministry and Information Technology. Between 2004 and 2006, Mr. Wang was an associate researcher of China Institute of Science. Mr. Wang holds a doctorate degree in engineering from the China Academy of Agricultural Mechanization Sciences (CAAMS). Mr. Wang was nominated as a director because of his research and development experience in information and technology.

**Jie Xu.** Mr. Xu has served as an independent director of CCRC since September 2014. Since June 2015, Mr. Xu has been the Chief investment officer of Shandong Juneng Investment Co., Ltd, an affiliated company of Shandong State-Owned Assets Investment Holdings, Co., Ltd. Between September 2012 and May 2015, Mr. Xu was the general manager of the asset management department of Luzheng Futures Stock Co., Ltd. Between 2008 and 2012, Mr. Xu was the senior manager of Qilu Securities (Beijing) Asset Management Company, a division of Qilu Securities Co., Ltd., as full-service brokerage and investment banking firm. Between 2006 and 2007, Mr. Xu was an investment relation manager for Shandong Tianye Hengji Stock Company Limited. Between 2002 and 2006, Mr. Xu was assistant vice president of the securities investment department of General Investment Management co., Ltd. Mr. Xu holds a bachelor degree in finance from Shandong Economic University. Mr. Xu was nominated as a director because of his experience in capital markets and finance.

**Owens Meng.** Mr. Meng has served as an independent director of CCRC since September 2014. Since 2013, Mr. Meng has been the managing director of Beijing Songlin Xinya Financial Consultants, Ltd. Between 2007 and 2013, Mr. Meng served as chief representative of Sherb Consulting LLC Beijing Representative Office, and managing director of Sherb & Co, LLP, a mid-sized accounting firm which has audited more than 25 China-based, US publicly traded companies. Between 2003 and 2006, Mr. Meng worked as an audit manager for Grant Thornton Beijing. Mr. Meng is a member of China Institute of Certified Public Accountants (CICPA), and a Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Mr. Meng was nominated as a director because of his experience in auditing, US GAAP and with United States compliance issues.

There are no family relations among any of our officers or directors.

# **Executive Compensation**

# **Summary Compensation Table**

The following table shows the annual compensation paid by us for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 to Gary Wang, our principal executive officer. His current employment agreement commenced on September 3, 2014 and is scheduled to run through September 2, 2017. No officer had a salary during either of the previous two years of more than \$100,000.

Name and principal position	Year	Salary	Bonus All Other Compensation Total Paid
Gary Wang, Chief Executive Officer	2013	\$ 17,446	\$ 17,446
	2014	\$107,880	\$ 107,880

### **Employment Agreements**

Under Chinese law, we may only terminate employment agreements without cause and without penalty by providing notice of non-renewal one month prior to the date on which the employment agreement is scheduled to expire. If we fail to provide this notice or if we wish to terminate an employment agreement in the absence of cause, then we are obligated to pay the employee one month s salary for each year we have employed the employee. We are, however, permitted to terminate an employee for cause without penalty to our company, where the employee has committed a crime or the employee s actions or inactions have resulted in a material adverse effect to us.

Our employment agreements with our executive officers generally provide for a term of three (3) years, provided that either party may terminate the agreement on sixty (60) days notice and a salary to be paid monthly. The agreements also provide that the executive officers are to work an average of forty (40) hours per week and are entitled to all legal holidays as well as other paid leave in accordance with PRC laws and regulations and our internal work policies. Under such agreements, our executive officers can be terminated for cause without further compensation. The employment agreements also provide that we will pay for all mandatory social security programs for our executive officers in accordance with PRC regulations. During the agreement and for one (1) year afterward, our executive officers are required to keep trade secrets confidential.

The contracts that we have entered into with executive officers include the following:

### Gary Wang

We entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Wang, through Taiying, effective September 3, 2014, providing for Mr. Wang to serve as our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the board of directors. Under the terms of Mr. Wang s employment agreement, Mr. Wang is, among other matters, to take overall responsibility for the operational management and financial management of us in compliance with all applicable laws and devote a minimum of forty hours per week to our business and affairs and in return will be entitled to the following:

Annual compensation of \$116,964; and

Reimbursement of reasonable expenses.

Mr. Wang s employment agreement is for an initial term of thirty-six months, renewable for an additional twenty-four months unless either party terminates it in writing at least sixty days before the expiration of the initial term.

Additionally, Mr. Wang s employment agreement provides for confidentiality and nondisclosure provisions, whereby Mr. Wang is required to keep trade secrets confidential during the course of his employment and for a period of thirty-six months following the termination of his employment. His employment contract also contains a non-compete clause for a duration of twenty-four months following his employment.

# David Wang

We entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Wang, through Taiying, effective September 3, 2014, providing for Mr. Wang to serve as our Chief Financial Officer. Under the terms of Mr. Wang s employment agreement, Mr. Wang is, among other matters, to oversee all financial and operational controls and metrics within the organization in accordance with industry rules and devote a minimum of forty hours per week to our business and

affairs and in return will be entitled to the following:

Annual compensation of \$77,983; and

Reimbursement of reasonable expenses.

Mr. Wang s employment agreement is for an initial term of thirty-six months, renewable for an additional twenty-four months unless either party terminates it in writing at least sixty days before the expiration of the initial term.

Additionally, Mr. Wang s employment agreement provides for confidentiality and nondisclosure provisions, whereby Mr. Wang is required to keep trade secrets confidential during the course of his employment and for a period of thirty-six months following the termination of his employment. His employment contract also contains a non-compete clause for a duration of twenty-four months following his employment.

### Guoan Xu

We entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Xu, through Taiying, effective September 3, 2014, providing for Mr. Xu to serve as our Vice President. Under the terms of Mr. Xu s employment agreement, Mr. Xu is, among other matters, to take respective responsibility for the operation and management of us in accordance with industry rules and devote a minimum of forty hours per week to our business and affairs and in return will be entitled to the following:

Annual compensation of \$77,983; and

Reimbursement of reasonable expenses.

Mr. Xu s employment agreement is for an initial term of thirty-six months, renewable for an additional twenty-four months unless either party terminates it in writing at least sixty days before the expiration of the initial term.

Additionally, Mr. Xu s employment agreement provides for confidentiality and nondisclosure provisions, whereby Mr. Xu is required to keep trade secrets confidential during the course of his employment and for a period of thirty-six months following the termination of his employment. His employment contract also contains a non-compete clause for a duration of twenty-four months following his employment.

# **Share Option Pool**

We intend to establish a pool for share options for our employees following the completion of this offering. This pool will contain options to purchase our common shares equal to ten percent (10%) of the number of common shares outstanding at the conclusion of this offering. This pool will contain options to purchase up to 1,832,960 of our common shares subject to outstanding share options.

### **Board of Directors and Board Committees**

# **Composition of Board**

Our board of directors currently consists of seven directors. We expect that all current directors will continue to serve after this offering. There are no family relationships between any of our executive officers and directors.

The directors will be divided into three classes, as nearly equal in number as the then total number of directors permits. Class I directors shall face re-election at our annual general meeting of shareholders in 2015 and every three years thereafter. Class II directors shall face re-election at our annual general meeting of shareholders in 2016 and every three years thereafter. Class III directors shall face re-election at our annual general meeting of shareholders in 2016 and

2017 and every three years thereafter.

If the number of directors changes, any increase or decrease will be apportioned among the classes so as to maintain the number of directors in each class as nearly as possible. Any additional director of a class

elected to fill a vacancy resulting from an increase in such class will hold office for a term that coincides with the remaining term of that class. Decreases in the number of directors will not shorten the term of any incumbent director. These board provisions could make it more difficult for third parties to gain control of our company by making it difficult to replace members of the Board of Directors.

A director may vote in respect of any contract or transaction in which he is interested, provided, however that the nature of the interest of any director in any such contract or transaction shall be disclosed by him at or prior to its consideration and any vote on that matter. A general notice or disclosure to the directors or otherwise contained in the minutes of a meeting or a written resolution of the directors or any committee thereof of the nature of a director s interest shall be sufficient disclosure and after such general notice it shall not be necessary to give special notice relating to any particular transaction. A director may be counted for a quorum upon a motion in respect of any contract or arrangement which he shall make with our company, or in which he is so interested and may vote on such motion.

There are no membership qualifications for directors. Further, there are no share ownership qualifications for directors unless so fixed by us in a general meeting.

The Board of Directors maintains a majority of independent directors who are deemed to be independent under the definition of independence provided by NASDAQ Stock Market Rule 4200(a)(15). Messrs. Weixin Wang, Jie Xu, Tianjun Zhang and Owens Meng are our independent directors.

There are no other arrangements or understandings pursuant to which our directors are selected or nominated.

Our Board of Directors plays a significant role in our risk oversight. The Board of Directors makes all relevant company decisions. As such, it is important for us to have both our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer serve on the Board as they play key roles in the risk oversight or the Company. As a smaller reporting company with a small board of directors, we believe it is appropriate to have the involvement and input of all of our directors in risk oversight matters.

### **Board Committees**

Currently, three committees have been established under the board: the audit committee, the compensation committee and the nominating committee. The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the accounting and financial reporting processes of our company and audits of the financial statements of our company, including the appointment, compensation and oversight of the work of our independent auditors. The compensation committee of the board of directors reviews and makes recommendations to the board regarding our compensation policies for our officers and all forms of compensation, and also administers our incentive compensation plans and equity-based plans (but our board retains the authority to interpret those plans). The nominating committee of the board of directors is responsible for the assessment of the performance of the board, considering and making recommendations to the board with respect to the nominations or elections of directors and other governance issues. The nominating committee considers diversity of opinion and experience when nominating directors.

Tianjun Zhang and Owens Meng serve on all three committees. Weixin Wang serves on the nominating and compensation committees. Jie Xu serves on the audit committee. At this time, Weixin Wang chairs the nominating committee; Owens Meng chairs the audit committee; and Tianjun Zhang chairs the compensation committee. We expect that Owens Meng will qualify as an audit committee financial expert as that term is defined by the applicable SEC regulations and Nasdaq Capital Market corporate governance requirements.

### **Duties of Directors**

Under British Virgin Islands law, our directors have a duty to act honestly, in good faith and with a view to our best interests. Our directors also have a duty to exercise the care, diligence and skills that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances. See Description of Share Capital Differences in Corporate Law for additional information on our directors fiduciary duties under British Virgin Islands law. In fulfilling their duty of care to us, our directors must ensure compliance with our memorandum and articles of association. We have the right to seek damages if a duty owed by our directors is breached.

The functions and powers of our board of directors include, among others:

appointing officers and determining the term of office of the officers;

authorizing the payment of donations to religious, charitable, public or other bodies, clubs, funds or associations as deemed advisable;

exercising the borrowing powers of the company and mortgaging the property of the company;

executing checks, promissory notes and other negotiable instruments on behalf of the company; and

maintaining or registering a register of mortgages, charges or other encumbrances of the company. **Interested Transactions** 

A director may vote, attend a board meeting or sign a document on our behalf with respect to any contract or transaction in which he or she is interested. A director must promptly disclose the interest to all other directors after becoming aware of the fact that he or she is interested in a transaction we have entered into or are to enter into. A general notice or disclosure to the board or otherwise contained in the minutes of a meeting or a written resolution of the board or any committee of the board that a director is a shareholder, director, officer or trustee of any specified firm or company and is to be regarded as interested in any transaction with such firm or company will be sufficient disclosure, and, after such general notice, it will not be necessary to give special notice relating to any particular transaction.

### **Remuneration and Borrowing**

The directors may receive such remuneration as our board of directors may determine from time to time. Each director is entitled to be repaid or prepaid for all traveling, hotel and incidental expenses reasonably incurred or expected to be incurred in attending meetings of our board of directors or committees of our board of directors or shareholder meetings or otherwise in connection with the discharge of his or her duties as a director. The compensation committee will assist the directors in reviewing and approving the compensation structure for the directors.

Our board of directors may exercise all the powers of the company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge our undertakings and property or any part thereof, to issue debentures, debenture stock and other securities whenever

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

money is borrowed or as security for any debt, liability or obligation of the company or of any third party.

# Qualification

A director is not required to hold shares as a qualification to office.

### Limitation on Liability and Other Indemnification Matters

British Virgin Islands law does not limit the extent to which a company s memorandum and articles of association may provide for indemnification of officers and directors, except to the extent any such provision

may be held by the British Virgin Islands courts to be contrary to public policy, such as to provide indemnification against civil fraud or the consequences of committing a crime.

Under our memorandum and articles of association, we may indemnify our directors, officers and liquidators against all expenses, including legal fees, and against all judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement and reasonably incurred in connection with civil, criminal, administrative or investigative proceedings to which they are party or are threatened to be made a party by reason of their acting as our director, officer or liquidator. To be entitled to indemnification, these persons must have acted honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interest of the company and, in the case of criminal proceedings, they must have had no reasonable cause to believe their conduct was unlawful.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted for our directors or officers under the foregoing provisions, we have been informed that in the opinion of the SEC, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable as a matter of United States law.

### **Director Compensation**

All directors hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders at which their respective class of directors is re-elected and until their successors have been duly elected and qualified. There are no family relationships among our directors or executive officers. Officers are elected by and serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Employee directors do not receive any compensation for their services. Non-employee directors are entitled to receive \$20,000 per year for serving as directors and may receive option grants from our company. In addition, non-employee directors are entitled to receive compensation for their actual travel expenses for each Board of Directors meeting attended, up to a maximum of \$2,000 per meeting and \$4,000 per year.

### **Summary Director Compensation Table FY 2014**

Name	Director fees earned or paid in cash Othe	r Compensation	Total (\$)
Gary Wang <sup>(1) (2)</sup>	0	0	0
David Wang <sup>(1) (2)</sup>	0	0	0
Guoan Xu <sup>(1) (2)</sup>	0	0	0
Weixin Wang <sup>(3)</sup>	0	0	0
Jie Xu <sup>(3)</sup>	0	0	0
Tianjun Zhang <sup>(3)</sup>	0	0	0
Owens Meng <sup>(3)</sup>	0	0	0

<sup>(1)</sup> None of the directors received any common share awards, option awards, nonqualified deferred compensation earnings or non-equity incentive plan compensation in 2014.

- <sup>(2)</sup> Gary Wang, David Wang and Guoan Xu received payment in their capacity as officers of our company and/or subsidiaries/affiliates but did not receive compensation for serving as directors of our company.
- (3) Messrs. Weixin Wang, Jie Xu and Owens Meng did not become directors until September 2014 and received no payment in 2014. Mr. Zhang did not become a director until October 2015 and received no payment in 2014.
  Limitation of Director and Offician Linkibitation.

# Limitation of Director and Officer Liability

Under British Virgin Islands law, each of our directors and officers, in performing his or her functions, is required to act honestly and in good faith with a view to our best interests and exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances. Our memorandum and

articles of association provide that, to the fullest extent permitted by British Virgin Islands law or any other applicable laws, our directors will not be personally liable to us or our shareholders for any acts or omissions in the performance of their duties. Such limitation of liability does not affect the availability of equitable remedies such as injunctive relief or rescission. These provisions will not limit the liability of directors under United States federal securities laws.

We may indemnify any of our directors or anyone serving at our request as a director of another entity against all expenses, including legal fees, and against all judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement and reasonably incurred in connection with legal, administrative or investigative proceedings. We may only indemnify a director if he or she acted honestly and in good faith with the view to our best interests and, in the case of criminal proceedings, the director had no reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful. The decision of our board of directors as to whether the director acted honestly and in good faith with a view to our best interests and as to whether the director had no reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful, is in the absence of fraud sufficient for the purposes of indemnification, unless a question of law is involved. The termination of any proceedings by any judgment, order, settlement, conviction or the entry of no plea does not, by itself, create a presumption that a director did not act honestly and in good faith and with a view to our best interests or that the director had reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful. If a director to be indemnified has been successful in defense of any proceedings referred to above, the director is entitled to be indemnified against all expenses, including legal fees, and against all judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement and reasonably incurred by the director or officer in connection with the proceedings.

We may purchase and maintain insurance in relation to any of our directors or officers against any liability asserted against the directors or officers and incurred by the directors or officers in that capacity, whether or not we have or would have had the power to indemnify the directors or officers against the liability as provided in our memorandum and articles of association.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted for our directors or officers under the foregoing provisions, we have been informed that in the opinion of the SEC, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable as a matter of United States law.

# **RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS**

## **Transactions with Related Persons**

Related parties which whom the we have conducted business consist of the following:

Name of Related Party	Nature of Relationship
David Wang	Shareholder, Director and Chief Financial Officer
Guoan Xu	Shareholder, Director and Vice President
Limin Gao	Manager of Taiying
Gary Wang	Principal Shareholder, Director, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
Qiaolin Wang	Shareholder, Manager of Shandong Central BPO Industry Co., Ltd.
Yongjie Yang	Wife of Gary Wang
Qingmao Zhang	Principal Shareholder
Chunmei Sun	Wife of David Wang
Beijing Taiying Anrui Holding Co., Ltd. ( Beijing Taiying )	Sole Shareholder of Taiying
Shandong Luk Information Technology Co., Ltd.	Controlled by the brother of Gary Wang
Chongqing Ruixuan Technology Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Chongqing Shenggu Human Resources Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Chongqing Shenggu Investment Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Chongqing Shenggu Construction Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Shandong Shenggu Investment Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Northern Shenggu Call Center Training School	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Yantai Shenggu Human Resources Management Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Chongqing Yongchuan Shenggu Training School	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Beijing Shenggu Investment Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying

*Revenues from related party*. We are the subcontractor of Shandong Luk Information Technology Co., Ltd. (Shandong Luk), a related party which is controlled by the brother of Gary Wang. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company generated related party revenues from Shandong Luk in the amount of \$11,407 and \$520,869, respectively. The related party accounts receivable with Shandong Luk amounted to \$373,339 and \$364,042 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

*Services purchased from related party.* For the year ended December 31, 2014, we purchased services from Shandong Luk in the amount of \$718,756, which was recorded in cost of revenues.

Amounts due from related parties. Amounts due from related parties consist of the following:

		Largest					
	As of	Principal		Ŧ		Ŧ	
	June 30,	Amount for	As of December 31,	Largest Principal Amount	As of December 31,	Largest Principal Amount for	As of December 31,
l Party	2015	2015	2014	for 2014	2013	2013	2012
	\$	\$ 4,492	\$	\$ 54,831	\$ 55,151	\$ 198,032	\$ 54,013
		2,975	2,948	2,948			
		802	437	3,765		5,932	4,636
		4,927		14,390	10,622	590,530	558,926
				5,185	305	585,915	545,050
				523			
		77,204	76,485	76,485			
Anhui Holding Co., Ltd.		574,990					
formation Technology							
	380,363	506,533	354,095	918,350	750,226	2,585,485	871,826
an Technology Co., Ltd.		29,996	29,717	29,717	29,890	61,778	20,735
ggu Human Resources							
	225,863	554,335	223,761	370,198	111,692	176,561	157,891
ggu Investment Co., Ltd.		657	651	651	327	327	
ggu Construction Co.,							
		2,669	2,644	2,644	327	327	
gu Investment Co., Ltd.		5,931	2,441	5,875	2,625	2,625	
Human Resources							
, Ltd.		11,497		401			
Call Center Training		66	65	65	65	65	
chuan Shenggu Training		00	03	05	05	03	
enuan Shenggu Trailling		100,961	70,733	70,733			

\$ 606,226 \$ 1,878,035 \$ 763,977 \$ 1,556,761 \$ 961,230 \$ 4,207,577 \$ 2,213,077 The amounts owed to our company by related party companies and Chunmei Sun represented non-secured short-term loans obtained from us, which bore no interest and were due on demand. The amounts owed to our company by other individuals represented advances to our management members for business travel, and business development expenses. Those cash advances to the related parties were interest free and non-secured. As of July 31, 2015 all amounts owed to our company from the related parties (companies and individuals) loans have been repaid in full except the Shandong Luk Information Technology Co. Ltd and Chongqing Shenggu Human Resources Co, Ltd. transactions, which are for business purposes.

Amounts due to related parties. Amounts due to related parties consist of the following:

Related Party	As of June 30, 2015	Largest Principal Amount for 2015	As of December 31, 2014	Pı A	Largest rincipal Amount or 2014	As of December 31, 2013	for 2013	As of December 31, 2012	Lar Prin Am 20
ao	\$	\$	\$	\$	1,655	\$ 382	\$ 381	\$	\$
lu			2,422		3,634				
ing		3,260			3,160		1,637		
Yang									
o Zhang					374	374	374		
i Sun <sup>(1)</sup>					389,847	392,118	392,118	157,880	1
ng Shenggu ent Co., Ltd.					1,919,948	1,931,134	1,931,134		
ng Shenggu tion Co., Ltd.					1,301,660	1,309,243	1,309,243		
g Shenggu nt Co., Ltd.					. ,		8,183		
ng Ruixuan ogy Co., Ltd.							517,583		
Shenggu Call raining School					79,727	80,191	80,191		
henggu Human es Management									
					79,401	79,667	79,667	63,405	1
ng Yongchuan Training					49,127	21,592	31,095	30,118	

\$ 3,260 \$ 2,422 \$ 3,828,533 \$ 3,814,701 \$ 4,351,606 \$ 251,403 \$
(1) In 2014, we decided to pay Chunmei Sun the interest at an annual rate of 15% since the starting date of the loan. The loan used to bear no interest before 2014. The interest expense recorded for the related party loan amounted to \$108,264 and zero for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. This loan was fully repaid in 2014.

Amounts owed represent expenses paid by the related parties on behalf of our company and non-secured, due on demand loans. Except the loan from Chunmei Sun mentioned above, all other loans obtained from the related parties bear no interest.

### Contractual Arrangements with Taiying and its Sole Shareholder

We operate our business in China through a series of contractual arrangements with Taiying and its sole shareholder, which is controlled by Gary Wang, our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, and other related parties. For a description of these contractual arrangements see Our Corporate Structure Control Agreements.

### PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

The following tables set forth certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common shares as of December 9, 2015, and as adjusted to reflect the sale of the common shares offered by us in our initial public offering, for:

each stockholder known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our outstanding common shares;

each of our directors;

each of our named executive officers; and

all of our directors and executive officers as a group.

We have determined beneficial ownership in accordance with the rules of the SEC. Except as indicated by the footnotes below, we believe, based on the information furnished to us, that the persons and entities named in the table below have sole voting and investment power or the power to receive the economic benefit with

respect to all common shares that they beneficially own, subject to applicable community property laws. None of the stockholders listed in the table are a broker-dealer or an affiliate of a broker dealer. None of the stockholders listed in the table are located in the United States and none of the common shares held by them are located in the United States. 81,000 of the Company s common shares are held by Fulcan Capital Partners, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, however, this entity is not a principal stockholder.

Applicable percentage ownership is based on 15,929,600 common shares outstanding at December 9, 2015. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner listed in the table below is c/o China Customer Relations Centers, Inc., 1366 Zhongtianmen Dajie, Xinghuo Science and Technology Park, High-tech Zone, Taian City, Shandong Province, People s Republic of China 271000. For purposes of computing ownership after this offering, we have assumed that 2,400,000 shares will be issued pursuant to this offering.

	Beneficial Ownership Prior to Offering <sup>(1)</sup> After Offering <sup>(1)</sup>					
Name of Beneficial Owner	Common Share	Common ShareBercentage				
Gary Wang <sup>(2) (5) (6)</sup>	3,958,763	24.9%	21.7%			
David Wang <sup>(3) (5) (6)</sup>	1,069,936	6.7%	5.8%			
Guoan Xu <sup>(4)(5)</sup>	122,400	*	*			
Weixin Wang <sup>(5)</sup>	0	*	*			
Jie Xu <sup>(5)</sup>	0	*	*			
Tianjun Zhang <sup>(5)</sup>	0	*	*			
Owens Meng <sup>(5)</sup>	0	*	*			
All directors and executive officers as a group	5,151,099	32.34%	28.13%			
Qingmao Zhang <sup>(6)</sup>	1,224,000	7.7%	6.7%			
Qiaolin Wang <sup>(6)</sup>	979,200	6.1%	5.3%			
Jishan Sun <sup>(6)(8)</sup>	764,240	4.8%	4.2%			
Telecare Global Services Limited <sup>(6) (7) (8)</sup>	764,240	4.8%	4.2%			
5% or greater beneficial owners as a group	3,731,680	5% or greater beneficial owners as a group3,731,68023.43%20.				

- \* Less than 1%.
- <sup>(1)</sup> Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and includes voting or investment power with respect to the common shares or the power to receive the economic benefit of the common shares.
- (2) Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
- <sup>(3)</sup> Chief Financial Officer
- <sup>(4)</sup> Vice President
- <sup>(5)</sup> Director
- <sup>(6)</sup> Principal Shareholder
- <sup>(7)</sup> Represents 764,240 shares directly held by Telecare Global Services Limited, a British Virgin Islands limited liability company controlled by Mr. Jishan Sun. Mr. Sun holds voting and investment power over the shares held.
- <sup>(8)</sup> Mr. Jishan Sun and Telecare Global Services Limited each hold less than 5% of the common shares, but due to Mr. Sun s control of Telecare, the common shares of each are considered in the aggregate making them principal shareholders. Mr. Sun holds voting and investment power over the shares held.

# **DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL**

We were incorporated as an international business company under the International Business Companies Act, 1984, in the British Virgin Islands on March 6, 2014 under the name China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. As of the date of this prospectus, we have authorized 100,000,000 common shares, of \$0.001 par value.

The following are summaries of the material provisions of our memorandum and articles of association that will be in force at the time of the closing of this offering and the BVI Act, insofar as they relate to the material terms of our common shares. The forms of our memorandum and articles of association are filed as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part.

## **Common Shares**

### General

All of our issued common shares are fully paid and non-assessable. Certificates representing the common shares are issued in registered form. Our shareholders who are non-residents of the British Virgin Islands may freely hold and vote their common shares.

### Distributions

The holders of our common shares are entitled to such dividends as may be declared by our board of directors subject to the BVI Act.

### Voting rights

Any action required or permitted to be taken by the shareholders must be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting of the shareholders entitled to vote on such action and may not be effected by a resolution in writing. At each general meeting, each shareholder who is present in person or by proxy (or, in the case of a shareholder being a corporation, by its duly authorized representative) will have one vote for each common share that such shareholder holds.

# **Election of directors**

Delaware law permits cumulative voting for the election of directors only if expressly authorized in the certificate of incorporation. The laws of the British Virgin Islands, however, do not specifically prohibit or restrict the creation of cumulative voting rights for the election of our directors. Cumulative voting is not a concept that is accepted as a common practice in the British Virgin Islands, and we have made no provisions in our memorandum and articles of association to allow cumulative voting for elections of directors.

# Meetings

We must provide written notice of all meetings of shareholders, stating the time, place and, in the case of a special meeting of shareholders, the purpose or purposes thereof, at least 10 days before the date of the proposed meeting to those persons whose names appear as shareholders in the register of members on the date of the notice and are entitled to vote at the meeting. Our board of directors shall call a special meeting upon the written request of shareholders holding at least 30% of our outstanding voting shares. In addition, our board of directors may call a special meeting of shareholders on its own motion. A meeting of shareholders may be called on short notice: (a) if it is so agreed by shareholders holding not less than 90% of the common shares entitled to vote together as a class or series, together with not less than 90% of the remaining votes; or (b) if all shareholders holding common shares entitled to vote on the matters to be considered at the meeting have waived notice of the meeting, and presence at the meeting shall be deemed to constitute waiver for this purpose.

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

At any meeting of shareholders, a quorum will be present if there are shareholders present in person or by proxy representing not less than 50% of the issued common shares entitled to vote on the resolutions to be considered at the meeting. Such quorum may be represented by only a single shareholder or proxy. If no quorum is present within two hours of the start time of the meeting, the meeting shall be dissolved if it was requested by

shareholders. In any other case, the meeting shall be adjourned to the next business day, and if shareholders representing not less than one-third of the votes of the common shares or each class of shares entitled to vote on the matters to be considered at the meeting are present within one hour of the start time of the adjourned meeting, a quorum will be present. If not, the meeting will be dissolved. No business may be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum is present at the commencement of business. If present, the chair of our board of directors shall be the chair presiding at any meeting of the shareholders.

A corporation that is a shareholder shall be deemed for the purpose of our memorandum and articles of association to be present in person if represented by its duly authorized representative. This duly authorized representative shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of the corporation which he represents as that corporation could exercise if it were our individual shareholder.

### Protection of minority shareholders

We would normally expect British Virgin Islands courts to follow English case law precedents, which permit a minority shareholder to commence a representative action, or derivative action in our name, to challenge (1) an act which is ultra vires or illegal, (2) an act which constitutes a fraud against the minority by parties in control of us, (3) the act complained of constitutes an infringement of individual rights of shareholders, such as the right to vote and pre-emptive rights and (4) an irregularity in the passing of a resolution which requires a special or extraordinary majority of the shareholders.

# Pre-emptive rights

There are no pre-emptive rights applicable to the issue by us of new common shares under either British Virgin Islands law or our memorandum and articles of association.

# Transfer of common shares

Subject to the restrictions in our memorandum and articles of association, the lock-up agreements with our Placement Agent described in Shares Eligible for Future Sale Lock-Up Agreements and applicable securities laws, any of our shareholders may transfer all or any of his or her common shares by written instrument of transfer signed by the transferor and containing the name and address of the transferee. Our board of directors may resolve by resolution to refuse or delay the registration of the transfer of any common share. If our board of directors resolves to refuse or delay any transfer, it shall specify the reasons for such refusal in the resolution. Our directors may not resolve or refuse or delay the transfer of a common share unless: (a) the person transferring the shares has failed to pay any amount due in respect of any of those shares; or (b) such refusal or delay is deemed necessary or advisable in our view or that of our legal counsel in order to avoid violation of, or in order to ensure compliance with, any applicable, corporate, securities and other laws and regulations.

# Liquidation

If we are wound up and the assets available for distribution among our shareholders are more than sufficient to repay all amounts paid to us on account of the issue of shares immediately prior to the winding up, the excess shall be distributable *pari passu* among those shareholders in proportion to the amount paid up immediately prior to the winding up on the shares held by them, respectively. If we are wound up and the assets available for distribution among the shareholders as such are insufficient to repay the whole of the amounts paid to us on account of the issue of shares, those assets shall be distributed so that, to the greatest extent possible, the losses shall be borne by the shareholders in proportion to the amounts paid up immediately prior to the winding up on the shares held by them,

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

respectively. If we are wound up, the liquidator appointed by us may, in accordance with the BVI Act, divide among our shareholders in specie or kind the whole or any part of our assets (whether they shall consist of property of the same kind or not) and may, for such purpose, set such value as the liquidator deems fair upon any property to be divided and may determine how such division shall be carried out as between the shareholders or different classes of shareholders.

#### Calls on common shares and forfeiture of common shares

Our board of directors may from time to time make calls upon shareholders for any amounts unpaid on their common shares in a notice served to such shareholders at least 14 days prior to the specified time of payment. The common shares that have been called upon and remain unpaid are subject to forfeiture.

#### **Redemption of common shares**

Subject to the provisions of the BVI Act, we may issue shares on terms that are subject to redemption, at our option or at the option of the holders, on such terms and in such manner as may be determined by our memorandum and articles of association and subject to any applicable requirements imposed from time to time by, the BVI Act, the SEC, the NASDAQ Capital Market, or by any recognized stock exchange on which our securities are listed.

### Modifications of rights

All or any of the special rights attached to any class of shares may, subject to the provisions of the BVI Act, be amended only pursuant to a resolution passed at a meeting by a majority of the votes cast by those entitled to vote at a meeting of the holders of the shares of that class.

#### Changes in the number of shares we are authorized to issue and those in issue

We may from time to time by resolution of our board of directors:

amend our memorandum of association to increase or decrease the maximum number of shares we are authorized to issue;

subject to our memorandum, divide our authorized and issued shares into a larger number of shares; and

subject to our memorandum, combine our authorized and issued shares into a smaller number of shares.

#### Untraceable shareholders

We are entitled to sell any shares of a shareholder who is untraceable, provided that:

all checks or warrants in respect of dividends of these shares, not being less than three in number, for any sums payable in cash to the holder of such shares have remained uncashed for a period of twelve years prior to the publication of the notice and during the three months referred to in the third bullet point below;

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

we have not during that time received any indication of the whereabouts or existence of the shareholder or person entitled to these shares by death, bankruptcy or operation of law; and

we have caused a notice to be published in newspapers in the manner stipulated by our memorandum and articles of association, giving notice of our intention to sell these shares, and a period of three months has elapsed since such notice.

The net proceeds of any such sale shall belong to us, and when we receive these net proceeds we shall become indebted to the former shareholder for an amount equal to the net proceeds.

#### Inspection of books and records

Under British Virgin Islands Law, holders of our common shares are entitled, upon giving written notice to us, to inspect (i) our memorandum and articles of association, (ii) the register of members, (iii) the

register of directors and (iv) minutes of meetings and resolutions of members, and to make copies and take extracts from the documents and records. However, our directors can refuse access if they are satisfied that to allow such access would be contrary to our interests. See Where You Can Find More Information.

## Rights of non-resident or foreign shareholders

There are no limitations imposed by our memorandum and articles of association on the rights of non-resident or foreign shareholders to hold or exercise voting rights on our shares. In addition, there are no provisions in our memorandum and articles of association governing the ownership threshold above which shareholder ownership must be disclosed.

### Issuance of additional common shares

Our memorandum and articles of association authorizes our board of directors to issue additional common shares from authorized but unissued shares, to the extent available, from time to time as our board of directors shall determine.

### **Differences in Corporate Law**

The BVI Act and the laws of the British Virgin Islands affecting British Virgin Islands companies like us and our shareholders differ from laws applicable to U.S. corporations and their shareholders. Set forth below is a summary of the significant differences between the provisions of the laws of the British Virgin Islands applicable to us and the laws applicable to companies incorporated in the United States and their shareholders.

### Mergers and similar arrangements

Under the laws of the British Virgin Islands, two or more companies may merge or consolidate in accordance with Section 170 of the BVI Act. A merger means the merging of two or more constituent companies into one of the constituent companies and a consolidation means the uniting of two or more constituent companies into a new company. In order to merge or consolidate, the directors of each constituent company must approve a written plan of merger or consolidation, which must be authorized by a resolution of shareholders.

While a director may vote on the plan of merger or consolidation even if he has a financial interest in the plan, the interested director must disclose the interest to all other directors of the company promptly upon becoming aware of the fact that he is interested in a transaction entered into or to be entered into by the company.

A transaction entered into by our company in respect of which a director is interested (including a merger or consolidation) is voidable by us unless the director s interest was (a) disclosed to the board prior to the transaction or (b) the transaction is (i) between the director and the company and (ii) the transaction is in the ordinary course of the company s business and on usual terms and conditions.

Notwithstanding the above, a transaction entered into by the company is not voidable if the material facts of the interest are known to the shareholders and they approve or ratify it or the company received fair value for the transaction.

Shareholders not otherwise entitled to vote on the merger or consolidation may still acquire the right to vote if the plan of merger or consolidation contains any provision that, if proposed as an amendment to the memorandum or articles of association, would entitle them to vote as a class or series on the proposed amendment. In any event, all shareholders must be given a copy of the plan of merger or consolidation irrespective of whether they are entitled to vote at the

# Table of Contents

meeting to approve the plan of merger or consolidation.

The shareholders of the constituent companies are not required to receive shares of the surviving or consolidated company but may receive debt obligations or other securities of the surviving or consolidated company, other assets, or a combination thereof. Further, some or all of the shares of a class or series may be converted into a kind of asset while the other shares of the same class or series may receive a different kind of asset. As such, not all the shares of a class or series must receive the same kind of consideration.

After the plan of merger or consolidation has been approved by the directors and authorized by a resolution of the shareholders, articles of merger or consolidation are executed by each company and filed with the Registrar of Corporate Affairs in the British Virgin Islands.

A shareholder may dissent from a mandatory redemption of his shares, an arrangement (if permitted by the court), a merger (unless the shareholder was a shareholder of the surviving company prior to the merger and continues to hold the same or similar shares after the merger) or a consolidation. A shareholder properly exercising his dissent rights is entitled to a cash payment equal to the fair value of his shares.

A shareholder dissenting from a merger or consolidation must object in writing to the merger or consolidation before the vote by the shareholders on the merger or consolidation, unless notice of the meeting was not given to the shareholder. If the merger or consolidation is approved by the shareholders, the company must give notice of this fact to each shareholder within 20 days who gave written objection. These shareholders then have 20 days to give to the company their written election in the form specified by the BVI Act to dissent from the merger or consolidation, provided that in the case of a merger, the 20 days starts when the plan of merger is delivered to the shareholder.

Upon giving notice of his election to dissent, a shareholder ceases to have any shareholder rights except the right to be paid the fair value of his shares. As such, the merger or consolidation may proceed in the ordinary course notwithstanding his dissent.

Within seven days of the later of the delivery of the notice of election to dissent and the effective date of the merger or consolidation, the company must make a written offer to each dissenting shareholder to purchase his shares at a specified price per share that the company determines to be the fair value of the shares. The company and the shareholder then have 30 days to agree upon the price. If the company and a shareholder fail to agree on the price within the 30 days, then the company and the shareholder shall, within 20 days immediately following the expiration of the 30-day period, each designate an appraiser and these two appraisers shall designate a third appraiser. These three appraisers shall fix the fair value of the shares as of the close of business on the day prior to the shareholders approval of the transaction without taking into account any change in value as a result of the transaction.

# Shareholders suits

There are both statutory and common law remedies available to our shareholders as a matter of British Virgin Islands law. These are summarized below.

# **Prejudiced members**

A shareholder who considers that the affairs of the company have been, are being, or are likely to be, conducted in a manner that is, or any act or acts of the company have been, or are, likely to be oppressive, unfairly discriminatory or unfairly prejudicial to him in that capacity, can apply to the court under Section 184I of the BVI Act, inter alia, for an order that his shares be acquired, that he be provided compensation, that the Court regulate the future conduct of the company, or that any decision of the company which contravenes the BVI Act or our memorandum and articles of association be set aside.

## Derivative actions

Section 184C of the BVI Act provides that a shareholder of a company may, with the leave of the Court, bring an action in the name of the company to redress any wrong done to it.

## Just and equitable winding up

In addition to the statutory remedies outlined above, shareholders can also petition for the winding up of a company on the grounds that it is just and equitable for the court to so order. Save in exceptional circumstances, this remedy is only available where the company has been operated as a quasi partnership and trust and confidence between the partners has broken down.

## Indemnification of directors and executive officers and limitation of liability

British Virgin Islands law does not limit the extent to which a company s articles of association may provide for indemnification of officers and directors, except to the extent any provision providing indemnification may be held by the British Virgin Islands courts to be contrary to public policy, such as to provide indemnification against civil fraud or the consequences of committing a crime.

Under our memorandum and articles of association, we indemnify against all expenses, including legal fees, and against all judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement and reasonably incurred in connection with legal, administrative or investigative proceedings for any person who:

is or was a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed proceedings, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that the person is or was our director; or

is or was, at our request, serving as a director or officer of, or in any other capacity is or was acting for, another body corporate or a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise.

These indemnities only apply if the person acted honestly and in good faith with a view to our best interests and, in the case of criminal proceedings, the person had no reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful.

This standard of conduct is generally the same as permitted under the Delaware General Corporation Law for a Delaware corporation.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to our directors, officers or persons controlling us under the foregoing provisions, we have been advised that in the opinion of the SEC, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.

### Anti-takeover provisions in our memorandum and articles of association

Some provisions of our memorandum and articles of association may discourage, delay or prevent a change in control of our company or management that shareholders may consider favorable, including provisions that provide for a staggered board of directors and prevent shareholders from taking an action by written consent in lieu of a meeting. However, under British Virgin Islands law, our directors may only exercise the rights and powers granted to them

under our memorandum and articles of association, as amended and restated from time to time, as they believe in good faith to be in the best interests of our company.

# Directors fiduciary duties

Under Delaware corporate law, a director of a Delaware corporation has a fiduciary duty to the corporation and its shareholders. This duty has two components: the duty of care and the duty of loyalty. The duty of care requires that a director act in good faith, with the care that an ordinarily prudent person would exercise under similar circumstances. Under this duty, a director must inform himself of, and disclose to shareholders, all material information reasonably available regarding a significant transaction.

The duty of loyalty requires that a director act in a manner he reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the corporation. He must not use his corporate position for personal gain or advantage. This duty prohibits self-dealing by a director and mandates that the best interest of the corporation and its shareholders take precedence over any interest possessed by a director, officer or controlling shareholder and not shared by the shareholders generally. In general, actions of a director are presumed to have been made on an informed basis, in good faith and in the honest belief that the action taken was in the best interests of the corporation. However, this presumption may be rebutted by evidence of a breach of one of the fiduciary duties. Should such evidence be presented concerning a transaction by a director, a director must prove the procedural fairness of the transaction and that the transaction was of fair value to the corporation.

Under British Virgin Islands law, our directors owe the company certain statutory and fiduciary duties including, among others, a duty to act honestly, in good faith, for a proper purpose and with a view to what the directors believe to be in the best interests of the company. Our directors are also required, when exercising powers or performing duties as a director, to exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonable director would exercise in comparable circumstances, taking into account without limitation, the nature of the company, the nature of the decision and the position of the director and the nature of the responsibilities undertaken. In the exercise of their powers, our directors must ensure neither they nor the company acts in a manner which contravenes the BVI Act or our memorandum and articles of association, as amended and re-stated from time to time. A shareholder has the right to seek damages for breaches of duties owed to us by our directors.

### Shareholder action by written consent

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a corporation may eliminate the right of shareholders to act by written consent by amendment to its certificate of incorporation. British Virgin Islands law provides that shareholders may approve corporate matters by way of a written resolution without a meeting signed by or on behalf of shareholders sufficient to constitute the requisite majority of shareholders who would have been entitled to vote on such matter at a general meeting; provided that if the consent is less than unanimous, notice must be given to all non-consenting shareholders. However, our memorandum and articles of association do not permit shareholders to act by written consent.

# Shareholder proposals

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a shareholder has the right to put any proposal before the annual meeting of shareholders, provided it complies with the notice provisions in the governing documents. A special meeting may be called by the board of directors or any other person authorized to do so in the governing documents, but shareholders may be precluded from calling special meetings. British Virgin Islands law and our memorandum and articles of association allow our shareholders holding not less than 30% of the votes of the outstanding voting shares to requisition a shareholders meeting. We are not obliged by law to call shareholders annual general meetings, but our memorandum and articles of association do permit the directors to call such a meeting. The location of any shareholders meeting can be determined by the board of directors and can be held anywhere in the world.

### Cumulative voting

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, cumulative voting for elections of directors is not permitted unless the corporation s certificate of incorporation specifically provides for it. Cumulative voting potentially facilitates the representation of minority shareholders on a board of directors since it permits the minority shareholder to cast all the votes to which the shareholder is entitled on a single director, which increases the shareholder s voting power with respect to electing such director. As permitted under British Virgin Islands law, our memorandum and articles of association do not provide for cumulative voting. As a result, our shareholders are not afforded any less protections or rights on this issue than shareholders of a Delaware corporation.

## **Removal of directors**

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a director of a corporation with a classified board may be removed only for cause with the approval of a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote, unless the certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. Under our memorandum and articles of association, directors can be removed from office, with cause, by a resolution of shareholders or by a resolution of directors passed at a meeting of directors called for the purpose of removing the director or for purposes including the removal of the director.

### Transactions with interested shareholders

The Delaware General Corporation Law contains a business combination statute applicable to Delaware public corporations whereby, unless the corporation has specifically elected not to be governed by such statute by amendment to its certificate of incorporation, it is prohibited from engaging in certain business combinations with an interested shareholder for three years following the date that such person becomes an interested shareholder. An interested shareholder generally is a person or group who or which owns or owned 15% or more of the target s outstanding voting shares within the past three years. This has the effect of limiting the ability of a potential acquirer to make a two-tiered bid for the target in which all shareholders would not be treated equally. The statute does not apply if, among other things, prior to the date on which such shareholder becomes an interested shareholder, the board of directors approves either the business combination or the transaction which resulted in the person becoming an interested shareholder. This encourages any potential acquirer of a Delaware public corporation to negotiate the terms of any acquisition transaction with the target s board of directors. British Virgin Islands law has no comparable statute. However, our memorandum and articles of association expressly provide for the same protection afforded by the Delaware business combination statute.

# Dissolution; Winding Up

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, unless the board of directors approves the proposal to dissolve, dissolution must be approved by shareholders holding 100% of the total voting power of the corporation. Only if the dissolution is initiated by the board of directors may it be approved by a simple majority of the corporation s outstanding shares. Delaware law allows a Delaware corporation to include in its certificate of incorporation a supermajority voting requirement in connection with dissolutions initiated by the board. Under the BVI Act and our memorandum and articles of association, we may appoint a voluntary liquidator by a resolution of the shareholders or by resolution of directors.

# Variation of rights of shares

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a corporation may vary the rights of a class of shares with the approval of a majority of the outstanding shares of such class, unless the certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. Under

# Table of Contents

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

our memorandum and articles of association, if at any time our shares are divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to any class may only be varied, whether or not our company is in liquidation, by a resolution passed at a meeting by a majority of the votes cast by those entitled to vote at a meeting of the holders of the issued shares in that class.

### Amendment of governing documents

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a corporation s governing documents may be amended with the approval of a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote, unless the certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. As permitted by British Virgin Islands law, our memorandum and articles of association may be amended by a resolution of shareholders and, subject to certain exceptions, by a resolution of directors. Any amendment is effective from the date it is registered at the Registry of Corporate Affairs in the British Virgin Islands.

# SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Before our initial public offering, there has not been a public market for shares of our common shares. Future sales of substantial amounts of shares of our common shares in the public market after our initial public offering, or the possibility of these sales occurring, could cause the prevailing market price for our common shares to fall or impair our ability to raise equity capital in the future.

Assuming a minimum offering, we will have 17,929,600 shares of our common shares. This includes 2,000,000 shares that we are selling in our initial public offering, which shares may be resold in the public market immediately following our initial public offering. Assuming a maximum offering, we will have 18,329,600 shares of our common shares. This includes 2,400,000 shares that we are selling in our initial public offering, which shares may be resold in the public market immediately following our initial public offering.

The shares of common shares that were not offered and sold in our initial public offering are restricted securities, as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act. These restricted securities are eligible for public sale only if they are registered under the Securities Act or if they qualify for an exemption from registration under Rule 144 or Rule 701 under the Securities Act, which are summarized below.

As a result of the lock-up agreements and market standoff provisions described below and subject to the provisions of Rules 144 and 701 under the Securities Act, these restricted securities will be available for sale in the public market as follows:

on the date of this prospectus, none of these restricted securities will be available for sale in the public market;

91 days after the date of this prospectus, 10,778,501 common shares held by non-officer or director shareholders subject to the terms of the lock-up agreements; and

181 days after the date of this prospectus, an additional 5,151,099 common shares held by officer and director shareholders subject to the terms of the lock-up agreements.

#### **Rule 144**

In general, under Rule 144 as currently in effect, beginning 90 days after the effective date of the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part, a person (or persons whose shares are aggregated) who is deemed to be an affiliate of our company at the time of sale, or at any time during the preceding three months, and who has beneficially owned restricted shares for at least six months, would be entitled to sell within any three-month period a number of

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

our common shares that does not exceed the greater of 1% of the then outstanding common shares or the average weekly trading volume of common shares during the four calendar weeks preceding such sale. Sales under Rule 144 are subject to certain manner of sale provisions, notice requirements and the availability of current public information about our company. In addition, sales by our affiliates may be subject to the terms of lock-up agreements. See Shares Eligible for Future Sale Lock-Up Agreements.

A person who has not been our affiliate at any time during the three months preceding a sale, and who has beneficially owned his or her common shares for at least six months, would be entitled under Rule 144 to sell

such shares without regard to any manner of sale, notice provisions or volume limitations described above. Any such sales must comply with the public information provision of Rule 144 until our common shares have been held for one year.

# **Rule 701**

Securities issued in reliance on Rule 701 are also restricted and may be sold by shareholders other than affiliates of our company subject only to manner of sale provisions of Rule 144 and by affiliates under Rule 144 without compliance with its six-month holding period requirement.

## **Registration on Form S-8**

We intend to file a registration statement on Form S-8 under the Securities Act as soon as practicable after the closing of this offering to register up to 1,832,960 of our common shares subject to outstanding stock options or reserved for issuance under our stock incentive plan. This registration will permit the resale of these common shares by nonaffiliates in the public market without restriction under the Securities Act, upon the completion of the lock-up period described below. Common shares registered pursuant to the Form S-8 held by affiliates will be subject to Rule 144 volume limitations. As of the date of this Prospectus, we have not issued any options to purchase our common shares

## Lock-Up Agreements

Each of our executive officers, directors and all individuals and entities who on the effective date of the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part are the beneficial owners our common shares, has agreed not to register, offer, sell, contract to sell or grant any of our common shares or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for our common shares or any warrants to purchase our common shares (including, without limitation, securities of our company which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by such individuals in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and securities which may be issued upon the exercise of a stock option or warrant). The lock-up period for officers and directors is for a period of twelve months after the date of effectiveness or commencement of sales of this public offering. The lock-up agreement for officers and directors allows to them to sell their shares 180 days after the date of the final prospectus so long as the transferee agrees to be bound by the lock-up agreement. The lock-up period for non-officer or director shareholders is for a period of six months after the date of effectiveness or commencement of sales of this public offering. The non-officer directors may sell their shares during the six months lock-up period so long as the transferee agreed to be bound by the lock-up agreement. Additionally, these non-officer director shareholders have agreed not to sell their common shares at a price below the price per share offered to the public in the Company s initial public offering for a period of 180 days following their initial six months lock-up period. Upon the expiration of these lock-up agreements, additional common shares will be available for sale in the public market.

# TAX MATTERS APPLICABLE TO U.S. HOLDERS OF OUR COMMON SHARES

The following sets forth the material British Virgin Islands, Chinese and U.S. federal income tax matters related to an investment in our common shares. It is directed to U.S. Holders (as defined below) of our common shares and is based on laws and relevant interpretations thereof in effect as of the date of this prospectus, all of which are subject to change. This description does not deal with all possible tax consequences relating to an investment in our common shares, such as the tax consequences under state, local and other tax laws. Unless otherwise noted in the following discussion, this section is the opinion of Haneberg, PLC, our U.S. and British Virgin Islands counsel, insofar as it relates to legal conclusions with respect to matters of U.S. federal income tax law and British Virgin Islands tax law,

and of KaiTong Law Firm, our PRC counsel, insofar as it relates to legal conclusions with respect to matters of Chinese tax law.

The following brief description applies only to U.S. Holders (defined below) that hold common shares as capital assets and that have the U.S. dollar as their functional currency. This brief description is based on the tax laws of the United States in effect as of the date of this prospectus and on U.S. Treasury regulations in effect or, in some cases, proposed, as of the date of this prospectus, as well as judicial and administrative interpretations thereof available on or before such date. All of the foregoing authorities are subject to change, which change could apply retroactively and could affect the tax consequences described below.

The brief description below of the U.S. federal income tax consequences to U.S. Holders will apply to you if you are a beneficial owner of shares and you are, for U.S. federal income tax purposes,

an individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States;

a corporation (or other entity taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes) organized under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the District of Columbia;

an estate whose income is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; or

a trust that (1) is subject to the primary supervision of a court within the United States and the control of one or more U.S. persons for all substantial decisions or (2) has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person.

# WE URGE POTENTIAL PURCHASERS OF OUR SHARES TO CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING THE U.S. FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL AND NON-U.S. TAX CONSEQUENCES OF PURCHASING, OWNING AND DISPOSING OF OUR SHARES.

# **PRC Enterprise Income Tax**

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC (the EIT Law ), which was promulgated on March 16, 2007 and became effective on January 1, 2008, the income tax for both domestic and foreign-invested enterprises is at a uniform rate of 25%, unless they qualify for certain exceptions. The Regulation on the Implementation of Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (the EIT Rules ) was promulgated on December 6, 2007 and became effective on January 1, 2008.

On April 14, 2008, the Chinese Ministry of Science and Technology, Ministry of Finance and State Administration of Taxation enacted the Administrative Measures for Certifying High and New Technology Enterprises, which retroactively became effective on January 1, 2008. Under the EIT Law, certain qualified high-tech companies may benefit from a preferential tax rate of 15% if they own their core intellectual properties and are classified into certain industries strongly supported by the Chinese government and set forth by certain departments of the Chinese State Council. Taiying was granted the high and new technology enterprise ( HNTE ) qualification valid for three years starting from June 12, 2009 and successfully renewed the qualification in the year of 2012, which was valid through November 9, 2015. Taiying has timely filed its application to renew the HNTE qualification and will be entitled to receive the 15% preferential tax rate during the period of its review in 2015. There can be no assurance, however, that Taiying and its subsidiaries will continue to meet the qualifications for such a reduced tax rate. In addition, there can be no guaranty that relevant governmental authorities will not revoke Taiying s high and new technology enterprise

status in the future.

Uncertainties exist with respect to how the EIT Law applies to the tax residence status of CCRC and our offshore subsidiaries. Under the EIT Law, an enterprise established outside of China with a de facto management body within China is considered a resident enterprise , which means that it is treated in a manner similar to a Chinese enterprise for enterprise income tax purposes. Although the implementation rules of the EIT Law define de facto management body as a managing body that exercises substantive and overall management and control over the production and business, personnel, accounting books and assets of an enterprise, the only official guidance for this definition currently available is set forth in Circular 82 issued by the State Administration of Taxation, at April 22, 2009 which provides that a foreign enterprise controlled by a PRC

company or a PRC company group will be classified as a resident enterprise with its de facto management bodies located within China if the following criteria are satisfied:

the place where the senior management and core management departments that are in charge of its daily operations perform their duties is mainly located in the PRC;

its financial and human resources decisions are made by or are subject to approval by persons or bodies in the PRC;

its major assets, accounting books, company seals, and minutes and files of its board and shareholders meetings are located or kept in the PRC; and

more than half of the enterprise s directors or senior management with voting rights frequently reside in the PRC.

We do not believe that we meet the conditions outlined in the preceding paragraph since CCRC does not have a PRC enterprise or enterprise group as our primary controlling shareholder. In addition, we are not aware of any offshore holding companies with a corporate structure similar to the Company that has been deemed a PRC resident enterprise by the PRC tax authorities.

If we are deemed a PRC resident enterprise, we may be subject to the EIT at the rate of 25% on our global income, except that the dividends we receive from our PRC subsidiaries may be exempt from the EIT to the extent such dividends are deemed dividends among qualified resident enterprises. If we are considered a resident enterprise and earn income other than dividends from our PRC subsidiaries, a 25% EIT on our global income could significantly increase our tax burden and materially and adversely affect our cash flow and profitability.

### PRC Business Tax and VAT

Pursuant to applicable PRC tax regulations, any entity or individual conducting business in the value-added telecommunication service industry used to be generally required to pay a business tax at the rate of 3% on the revenues generated from providing such services. However, beginning on June 1, 2014, a value-added tax has generally been imposed to replace the business tax in value-added telecommunications services. Pursuant to the Provisional Regulations on Value-added Tax of the PRC last amended on November 5, 2008 and became effective from January 1, 2009 and its EIT Rules, all entities or individuals in the PRC engaging in the sale of goods, the provision of processing services, repairs and replacement services, and the importation of goods are required to pay VAT. The amount of VAT payable is calculated as output VAT minus input VAT . According to Circular of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on the Inclusion of Telecommunications Industry in the Pilot Collection of Value-added Tax in Lieu of Business Tax (Circular 43) promulgated at April 29, 2014, the rate of VAT is 6% for value-added telecommunications services.

### People s Republic of China Taxation

Under the EIT law and EIT Rules, both of which became effective on January 1, 2008, the income tax for both domestic and foreign-invested enterprises is at a uniform rate of 25%, unless they qualify for certain exceptions. On

# Table of Contents

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

April 14, 2008, the Chinese Ministry of Science and Technology, Ministry of Finance and State Administration of Taxation enacted the Administrative Measures for Certifying High and New Technology Enterprises, which retroactively became effective on January 1, 2008 provide that certain qualified high-tech companies may benefit from a preferential tax rate of 15% if they own their core intellectual properties and are classified into certain industries strongly supported by the Chinese government and set forth by certain departments of the Chinese State Council. Taiying was granted the HNTE qualification valid for three years starting from June 12, 2009 and successfully renewed the qualification in the year of 2012, which was valid through November 9, 2015. Taiying has timely filed its application to renew the HNTE qualification and will be entitled to receive the 15% preferential tax rate during the period of its review in 2015. There can be no assurance, however, that Taiying and its subsidiaries will continue

to meet the qualifications for such a reduced tax rate. In addition, there can be no guaranty that relevant governmental authorities will not revoke Taiying s high and new technology enterprise status in the future.

We are a holding company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and we gain substantial income by way of dividends from our PRC subsidiaries. The EIT Law and Rules provide that China-sourced income of foreign enterprises, such as dividends paid by a PRC Subsidiary to its equity holders that are non-resident enterprises, will normally be subject to PRC withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless any such foreign investor s jurisdiction of incorporation has tax treaty with China that provides for a different withholding arrangement.

#### **British Virgin Islands Taxation**

Under the BVI Act as currently in effect, a holder of common shares who is not a resident of the British Virgin Islands is exempt from British Virgin Islands income tax on dividends paid with respect to the common shares and all holders of common shares are not liable to the British Virgin Islands for income tax on gains realized during that year on sale or disposal of such shares. The British Virgin Islands does not impose a withholding tax on dividends paid by a company incorporated or re-registered under the BVI Act.

There are no capital gains, gift or inheritance taxes levied by the British Virgin Islands on companies incorporated or re-registered under the BVI Act. In addition, shares of companies incorporated or re-registered under the BVI Act are not subject to transfer taxes, stamp duties or similar charges.

There is no income tax treaty or convention currently in effect between the United States and the British Virgin Islands or between China and the British Virgin Islands.

### **United States Federal Income Taxation**

The following does not address the tax consequences to any particular investor or to persons in special tax situations such as:

a dealer in securities or currencies;

a person whose functional currency is not the United States dollar;

banks;

financial institutions;

insurance companies;

regulated investment companies;

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

real estate investment trusts;

broker-dealers;

traders that elect to mark-to-market;

U.S. expatriates;

tax-exempt entities;

persons liable for alternative minimum tax;

persons holding our common shares as part of a straddle, hedging, conversion or integrated transaction;

persons that actually or constructively own 10% or more of our voting shares;

persons who acquired our common shares pursuant to the exercise of any employee share option or otherwise as consideration; or

persons holding our common shares through partnerships or other pass-through entities. Prospective purchasers are urged to consult their tax advisors about the application of the U.S. Federal tax rules to their particular circumstances as well as the state, local, foreign and other tax consequences to them of the purchase, ownership and disposition of our common shares.

## Taxation of Dividends and Other Distributions on our Common Shares

Subject to the passive foreign investment company rules discussed below, the gross amount of distributions made by us to you with respect to the common shares (including the amount of any taxes withheld therefrom) will generally be includable in your gross income as dividend income on the date of receipt by you, but only to the extent that the distribution is paid out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits (as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles). The dividends will not be eligible for the dividends-received deduction allowed to corporations in respect of dividends received from other U.S. corporations.

With respect to non-corporate U.S. Holders, including individual U.S. Holders, dividends will be taxed at the lower capital gains rate applicable to qualified dividend income, provided that (1) the common shares are readily tradable on an established securities market in the United States, or in the event we are deemed to be a PRC resident enterprise under the PRC tax law, we are eligible for the benefits of an approved qualifying income tax treaty with the United States that includes an exchange of information program, (2) we are not a passive foreign investment company (as discussed below) for either our taxable year in which the dividend is paid or the preceding taxable year, and (3) certain holding period requirements are met. Under U.S. Internal Revenue Service authority, common shares are considered for purpose of clause (1) above to be readily tradable on an established securities market in the United States if they are listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market. You are urged to consult your tax advisors regarding the availability of the lower rate for dividends paid with respect to our common shares, including the effects of any change in law after the date of this prospectus.

Dividends will constitute foreign source income for foreign tax credit limitation purposes. If the dividends are taxed as qualified dividend income (as discussed above), the amount of the dividend taken into account for purposes of calculating the foreign tax credit limitation will be limited to the gross amount of the dividend, multiplied by the reduced rate divided by the highest rate of tax normally applicable to dividends. The limitation on foreign taxes eligible for credit is calculated separately with respect to specific classes of income. For this purpose, dividends distributed by us with respect to our common shares will constitute passive category income but could, in the case of certain U.S. Holders, constitute general category income.

To the extent that the amount of the distribution exceeds our current and accumulated earnings and profits (as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles), it will be treated first as a tax-free return of your tax basis in your common shares, and to the extent the amount of the distribution exceeds your tax basis, the excess will be taxed as capital gain. We do not intend to calculate our earnings and profits under U.S. federal income tax principles. Therefore, a U.S. Holder should expect that a distribution will be treated as a dividend even if that distribution would otherwise be treated as a non-taxable return of capital or as capital gain under the rules described above.

# Taxation of Dispositions of Common Shares

Subject to the passive foreign investment company rules discussed below, you will recognize taxable gain or loss on any sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of a share equal to the difference between the amount realized (in U.S. dollars) for the share and your tax basis (in U.S. dollars) in the common shares. The gain or loss will generally be capital gain or loss. Capital gains are generally subject to United States federal income tax at the same rate as ordinary income, except that non-corporate U.S. Holders who have held common shares for more than one year may be eligible

for reduced rates of taxation. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations. Any such gain or loss that you recognize will generally be treated as United States source income or loss for foreign tax credit limitation purposes.

### Passive Foreign Investment Company

Based on our current and anticipated operations and the composition of our income and assets, we do not expect to be a passive foreign investment company, or PFIC, for U.S. federal income tax purposes for our current taxable year ending December 31, 2015. Our actual PFIC status for the current taxable years ending December 31, 2015 will not be determinable until after the close of such taxable years and, accordingly, there is no guarantee that we will not be a PFIC for the current taxable year. PFIC status is a factual determination for each taxable year which cannot be made until the close of the taxable year. A non-U.S. corporation is considered a PFIC for any taxable year if either:

at least 75% of its gross income is passive income; or

at least 50% of the value of its assets (based on an average of the quarterly values of the assets during a taxable year) is attributable to assets that produce or are held for the production of passive income (the asset test ).

We will be treated as owning our proportionate share of the assets and earning our proportionate share of the income of any other corporation in which we own, directly or indirectly, at least 25% (by value) of the stock.

We must make a separate determination each year as to whether we are a PFIC. As a result, our PFIC status may change. In particular, because the value of our assets for purposes of the asset test will generally be determined based on the market price of our common shares, our PFIC status will depend in large part on the market price of our common shares. Accordingly, fluctuations in the market price of the common shares may cause us to become a PFIC. In addition, the application of the PFIC rules is subject to uncertainty in several respects and the composition of our income and assets will be affected by how, and how quickly, we spend the cash we raise in this offering. If we are a PFIC for any year during which you hold common shares, we will continue to be treated as a PFIC for all succeeding years during which you hold common shares. However, if we cease to be a PFIC, you may avoid some of the adverse effects of the PFIC regime by making a deemed sale election with respect to the common shares.

If we are a PFIC for any taxable year during which you hold common shares, you will be subject to special tax rules with respect to any excess distribution that you receive and any gain you realize from a sale or other disposition (including a pledge) of the common shares, unless you make a mark-to-market election as discussed below. Distributions you receive in a taxable year that are greater than 125% of the average annual distributions you received during the shorter of the three preceding taxable years or your holding period for the common shares will be treated as an excess distribution. Under these special tax rules:

the excess distribution or gain will be allocated ratably over your holding period for the common shares;

the amount allocated to the current taxable year, and any taxable year prior to the first taxable year in which we were a PFIC, will be treated as ordinary income, and

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

the amount allocated to each other year will be subject to the highest tax rate in effect for that year and the interest charge generally applicable to underpayments of tax will be imposed on the resulting tax attributable to each such year.

The tax liability for amounts allocated to years prior to the year of disposition or excess distribution cannot be offset by any net operating losses for such years, and gains (but not losses) realized on the sale or other disposition of the common shares cannot be treated as capital, even if you hold the common shares as capital assets.

A U.S. Holder of marketable stock (as defined below) in a PFIC may make a mark-to-market election for such stock to elect out of the tax treatment discussed above. If you make a mark-to-market election

for the common shares, you will include in ordinary income each year an amount equal to the excess, if any, of the fair market value of the common shares as of the close of your taxable year over your adjusted tax basis in such common shares. You are allowed a deduction for the excess, if any, of the adjusted tax basis of the common shares over their fair market value as of the close of the taxable year. However, deductions are allowable only to the extent of any net mark-to-market gains on the common shares included in your income for prior taxable years. Amounts included in your income under a mark-to-market election, as well as gain on the actual sale or other disposition of the common shares, are treated as ordinary income. Ordinary loss treatment also applies to the deductible portion of any mark-to-market loss on the common shares, as well as to any loss realized on the actual sale or disposition of the common shares. Your tax basis in the common shares will be adjusted to reflect any such income or loss amounts. If you make a valid mark-to-market election, the tax rules that apply to distributions by corporations which are not PFICs would apply to distributions by us, except that the lower applicable capital gains rate for qualified dividend income discussed above under Taxation of Dividends and Other Distributions on our Common Shares generally would not apply.

The mark-to-market election is available only for marketable stock , which is stock that is traded in other than *de minimis* quantities on at least 15 days during each calendar quarter ( regularly traded ) on a qualified exchange or other market (as defined in applicable U.S. Treasury regulations), including the NASDAQ Capital Market. If the common shares are regularly traded on the NASDAQ Capital Market and if you are a holder of common shares, the mark-to-market election would be available to you were we to be or become a PFIC.

Alternatively, a U.S. Holder of stock in a PFIC may make a qualified electing fund election with respect to such PFIC to elect out of the tax treatment discussed above. A U.S. Holder who makes a valid qualified electing fund election with respect to a PFIC will generally include in gross income for a taxable year such holder s pro rata share of the corporation s earnings and profits for the taxable year. However, the qualified electing fund election is available only if such PFIC provides such U.S. Holder with certain information regarding its earnings and profits as required under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations. We do not currently intend to prepare or provide the information that would enable you to make a qualified electing fund election. If you hold common shares in any year in which we are a PFIC, you will generally be required to file U.S. Internal Revenue Service Form 8621 to report your ownership of our common shares as well as distributions received on the common shares, any gain realized on the disposition of the common shares, any PFIC elections you would like to make in regard to the common shares, and any information required to be reported pursuant to such an election.

You are urged to consult your tax advisors regarding the application of the PFIC rules to your investment in our common shares and the elections discussed above.

# Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Dividend payments with respect to our common shares and proceeds from the sale, exchange or redemption of our common shares may be subject to information reporting to the U.S. Internal Revenue Service and possible U.S. backup withholding at a current rate of 28%. Backup withholding will not apply, however, to a U.S. Holder who furnishes a correct taxpayer identification number and makes any other required certification on U.S. Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 or who is otherwise exempt from backup withholding. U.S. Holders who are required to establish their exempt status generally must provide such certification on U.S. Internal Revenue Service Form W-9. U.S. Holders are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the application of the U.S. information reporting and backup withholding rules.

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Amounts withheld as backup withholding may be credited against your U.S. federal income tax liability, and you may obtain a refund of any excess amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules by filing the appropriate claim for refund with the U.S. Internal Revenue Service and furnishing any required information. We do not intend to withhold taxes for individual shareholders.

Under the Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment Act of 2010, certain United States Holders are required to report information relating to common shares, subject to certain exceptions (including an exception for shares held in accounts maintained by certain financial institutions), by attaching a complete Internal Revenue Service Form 8938, Statement of Specified Foreign Financial Assets, with their tax return for each year in which they hold shares. U.S. Holders are urged to consult their own tax advisors regarding the application of the U.S. information reporting and backup withholding rules.

A Non-U.S. Holder generally may eliminate the requirement for information reporting and backup withholding by providing certification of its foreign status to the payor, under penalties of perjury, on the applicable IRS Form W-8BEN.

# ENFORCEABILITY OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

We are incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands with limited liability. We are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands because of certain benefits associated with being a British Virgin Islands corporation, such as political and economic stability, an effective judicial system, a favorable tax system, the absence of exchange control or currency restrictions and the availability of professional and support services. However, the British Virgin Islands has a less developed body of securities laws as compared to the United States and provides protections for investors to a significantly lesser extent. In addition, British Virgin Islands companies may not have standing to sue before the federal courts of the United States.

Substantially all of our assets are located outside the United States. In addition, a majority of our directors and officers are nationals and/or residents of countries other than the United States, and all or a substantial portion of such persons assets are located outside the United States. As a result, it may be difficult for investors to effect service of process within the United States upon us or such persons or to enforce against them or against us, judgments obtained in United States courts, including judgments predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the securities laws of the United States or any state thereof.

We have appointed Vcorp Agent Services, Inc. as our agent to receive service of process with respect to any action brought against us in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York under the federal securities laws of the United States or of any State of the United States or any action brought against us in the Supreme Court of the State of New York in the County of New York under the securities laws of the State of New York.

KaiTong Law Firm, our counsel as to Chinese law, has advised us that there is uncertainty as to whether the courts of China would (1) recognize or enforce judgments of United States courts obtained against us or such persons predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the securities laws of the United States or any state thereof, or (2) be competent to hear original actions brought in each respective jurisdiction, against us or such persons predicated upon the securities laws of the United States or any state thereof.

KaiTong Law Firm has advised us that the recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments are provided for under the Chinese Civil Procedure Law. Chinese courts may recognize and enforce foreign judgments in accordance with the requirements of the Chinese Civil Procedure Law based either on treaties between China and the country where the judgment is made or in reciprocity between jurisdictions. China does not have any treaties or other agreements with the British Virgin Islands or the United States that provide for the reciprocal recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments. KaiTong Law Firm has further advised us that under PRC law, PRC courts will not enforce a foreign judgment against us or our officers and directors if the court decides that such judgment violates the basic principles of PRC law or national sovereignty, security or social public interest.

We have been advised by Haneberg, PLC, our counsel as to British Virgin Islands law, that the United States and the British Virgin Islands do not have a treaty providing for reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments of courts of the United States in civil and commercial matters and that a final judgment for the payment of money rendered by any general or state court in the United States based on civil liability, whether or not predicated solely upon the U.S. federal securities laws, is unlikely to be enforceable in the British Virgin Islands. We have also been advised by Haneberg, PLC that a final and conclusive judgment obtained in U.S. federal or state courts under which a sum of money is payable as compensatory damages (i.e., not being a sum claimed by a revenue authority for taxes or other charges of a similar nature by a governmental authority, or in respect of a fine or penalty or multiple or punitive damages) may be the subject of an action on a debt in the court of the British Virgin Islands under the common law doctrine of obligation.

# PLACEMENT

The Placement Agent has agreed to act as our exclusive placement agent in connection with this offering subject to the terms and conditions of the Placement Agency Agreement, dated December 8, 2015, by among us, and the Placement Agent.

The Placement Agent is not purchasing or selling any securities offered by this prospectus but will assist us in this offering on a best efforts basis. The Placement Agent has no obligation to buy any of the common shares from us nor are they required to arrange the purchase or sale of any specific number or dollar amount of the common shares, but have agreed to use their best efforts to arrange for the sale of a minimum of 2,000,000 common shares and a maximum of 2,400,000 common shares.

The common shares are being offered on a best efforts basis, meaning that the Placement Agent is not obligated to purchase any common shares. No common shares will be sold unless at least a minimum of 2,000,000 common shares have been sold no later than January 18, 2016. All monies collected for subscriptions will be held in a separate escrowed bank account at SunTrust Bank, which is serving as escrow agent, until the total amount of 2,000,000 common shares has been sold. Any checks for the purchase of shares should be made payable to SunTrust Bank China Customer Relations Centers, Inc., IPO Escrow Account. The Placement Agent will instruct its customers to transfer funds from their respective accounts directly to the escrow agent via wire transfer and will instruct other purchasers of the shares to make checks payable to SunTrust Bank China Customer Relations Centers, Inc., IPO Escrow Account. Upon receipt of funds sufficient for the sale of 2,000,000 shares, the funds will be transferred to our business account. In the event the minimum total of 2,000,000 shares is not sold prior to January 18, 2016, all monies will be returned to investors, without interest or deduction, within one business day.

The Placement Agent is an underwriter within the meaning of Section 2(a)(11) of the Securities Act and any commissions received by it and any profit realized on the sale of the securities by them while acting as principal might be deemed to be underwriting discounts or commissions under the Securities Act. The Placement Agent would be required to comply with the requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act including, without limitation, Rule 10b-5 and Regulation M under the Exchange Act. These rules and regulations may limit the timing of purchases and sales of common shares by the Placement Agent. Under these rules and regulations, the Placement Agent may not (i) engage in any stabilization activity in connection with our securities; and (ii) bid for or purchase any of our securities or attempt to induce any person to purchase any of our securities, other than as permitted under the Exchange Act, until they have completed their participation in the distribution.

In August 2014, we engaged Newbridge Securities Corporation to act as placement agent for this offering. In April 2015, we agreed to engage Viewtrade as placement agent for this offering, replacing Newbridge. In connection with this transition, Newbridge agreed to provide to Viewtrade a summary of the prior diligence completed by Newbridge

prior to Viewtrade replacing Newbridge as placement agent in the offering, and the parties agreed to split the compensation to be received by Viewtrade in the offering with 64% to

Viewtrade and 36% to Newbridge. In addition, upon commencement of this offering, Viewtrade expects to engage Newbridge to serve as a sub-placement agent in the offering, and in such role Newbridge is expected to use it best efforts to place a portion of the shares being offered. In its role as sub-placement agent, Newbridge would have no obligation to buy any of the shares from us nor would they be required to arrange the purchase of any specific number or dollar amount of the shares. Based on the aforementioned compensation arrangement, Newbridge Securities Corporation will be deemed to be an underwriter within the meaning of Section 2(a)(11) of the Securities Act.

We have agreed to indemnify the Placement Agent against specified liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, and to contribute to payments the Placement Agent may be required to make in respect thereof.

The common shares sold by the Placement Agent to the public will initially be offered at the initial public offering price set forth on the cover of this prospectus. In addition, the Placement Agent may offer some of the shares to other securities dealers at the initial public offering price less a concession not to exceed \$.20 per share.

We have applied to have our common shares listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol CCRC.

Total commissions to be paid to the Placement Agent represents 8.0% of the total amount of the offering. The following table shows the public offering price, placement agent commissions and proceeds, before expenses, to us.

			Total			
	Per Common Share		Minimum Offering		Maximum Offering	
Assumed public offering price	\$	4.00	\$	8,000,000	\$	9,600,000
Commission paid by us	\$	.32	\$	640,000	\$	768,200
Proceeds to us, before expenses	\$	3.68	\$	7,360,000	\$	8,832,000

We will also pay to the Placement Agent by deduction from the net proceeds of the offering contemplated herein, a non-accountable expense allowance equal to one and one half percent (1.5%) of the gross proceeds from the offering.

We shall also be responsible for all expenses relating to the offering, as set forth below. We have agreed to pay the Placement Agent s expenses relating to the offering, including, without limitation, (a) all filing fees and communication expenses relating to the registration of the shares to be sold in the offering with the SEC and the filing of the offering materials with FINRA; (b) all fees and expenses relating to the listing of such shares on a mutually acceptable stock exchange; (c) up to \$10,000 for fees, expenses and disbursements relating to the registration or qualification of such Shares under the blue sky securities laws of such states and other jurisdictions as the Placement Agent may reasonably designate; (d) fees and expenses of the transfer agent for such shares; (e) stock transfer taxes, if any, payable upon the transfer of securities from the Company to the Placement Agent; and (f) the fees and expenses of the Company s legal counsel and other agents and representatives.

We estimate that the total expenses of the offering payable by us, excluding the total Placement Agent commission, will be approximately \$700,000.

# **Pricing of the Offering**

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common shares. The initial public offering price of the shares has been negotiated between us and the Placement Agent. Among the factors considered in determining the initial public offering price of the shares, in addition to the prevailing market

# Table of Contents

conditions, are our historical performance, estimates of our business potential and earnings prospects, an assessment of our management and the consideration of the above factors in relation to market valuation of companies in related businesses.

## **Indemnification Escrow Agreement**

We have agreed with the placement agent in this offering to establish an escrow account in the United States and to fund such account with \$500,000 from this offering that may be utilized by the placement agent to fund any bona fide indemnification claims of the placement agent arising during a two year period following the offering. The escrow account will not be interest bearing, and we will be free to invest the assets in securities. All funds that are not subject to an indemnification claim will be returned to us after the two year period expires.

## No Sales of Similar Securities

Our directors, executive officers and existing stockholders who own our common shares, will enter into lock-up agreements with the representative prior to the commencement of this offering pursuant to which each of these persons or entities, for a period of twelve months for officers and directors and a period of six months for all other shareholders from the effective date of the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part, agree not to, (1) offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, lend, or otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of our securities or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares of our common shares acquired on or prior to the closing date of this offering (including any common shares acquired after the closing date of this offering of any shares of our capital stock; or (3) enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of the common shares or such other securities, in cash or otherwise. Additionally, the non-officer director shareholders have agreed not to sell their common shares at a price below the price per share offered to the public in the Company s initial public offering for a period of 180 days following their initial six months lock-up period.

The lock-up period described in the preceding paragraphs will be automatically extended if: (1) during the last 17 days of the restricted period, we issue an earnings release or announce material news or a material event; or (2) prior to the expiration of the lock-up period, we announce that we will release earnings results during the 16-day period beginning on the last day of the lock-up period, in which case the restrictions described in the preceding paragraph will continue to apply until the expiration of the 18-day period beginning on the date of the earnings release. The non-officer director shareholders may sell their shares during their lock-up period so long as the transferee agrees to be bound by the lock-up agreement. The officer and director shareholders may sell their shares 180 days after the date of the final prospectus so long as the transferee agrees to be bound by the lock-up agreement.

### **Electronic Offer, Sale and Distribution of Securities**

A prospectus in electronic format may be made available on the websites maintained by the Placement Agent or selling group members, if any, participating in this offering and the Placement Agent may distribute prospectuses electronically. The Placement Agent may agree to allocate a number of common shares to selling group members for sale to their online brokerage account holders. The common shares to be sold pursuant to Internet distributions will be allocated on the same basis as other allocations. Other than the prospectus in electronic format, the information on these websites is not part of, nor incorporated by reference into, this prospectus or the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, has not been approved or endorsed by us or the Placement Agent, and should not be

relied upon by investors.

## Passive market making

In connection with this offering, the Placement Agent may engage in passive market making transactions in our common shares on The NASDAQ Capital Market in accordance with Rule 103 of Regulation M under the Exchange Act, during a period before the commencement of offers or sales of the shares and extending through the completion of the distribution. A passive market maker must display its bid at a price not in excess of the highest independent bid of that security. However, if all independent bids are lowered below the passive market maker s bid, then that bid must then be lowered when specified purchase limits are exceeded.

## **Potential Conflicts of Interest**

The Placement Agent and its affiliates may, from time to time, engage in transactions with and perform services for us in the ordinary course of their business for which they may receive customary fees and reimbursement of expenses. In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the Placement Agent and its affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own accounts and for the accounts of their customers and such investment and securities may involve securities and/or instruments of our company. The Placement Agent and its affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short positions in such securities and instruments.

The principal business address of ViewTrade Securities, Inc. is 7280 West Palmetto Park Road, Suite 105, Boca Raton, FL 33433.

# **Selling Restrictions**

Other than in the United States, no action has been taken by us or the Placement Agent that would permit a public offering of the securities offered by this prospectus in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. The securities offered by this prospectus may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, nor may this prospectus or any other offering material or advertisements in connection with the offer and sale of any such securities be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with the applicable rules and regulations of that jurisdiction. Persons into whose possession this prospectus comes are advised to inform themselves about and to observe any restrictions relating to the offering and the distribution of this prospectus. This prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities offered by this prospectus in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or a solicitation is unlawful.

The Placement Agent is expected to make offers and sales both in and outside the United States through its respective selling agents. Any offers and sales in the United States will be conducted by broker-dealers registered with the SEC.

# Hong Kong

The common shares may not be offered or sold by means of any document other than (i) in circumstances which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.32, Laws of Hong Kong), or (ii) to professional investors within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder, or (iii) in other circumstances which do not result in the document being a

prospectus within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.32, Laws of Hong Kong), and no advertisement, invitation or document relating to the shares may be issued or may be in the possession of any person for the purpose of issue (in each case whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere), which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to

be accessed or read by, the public in Hong

Kong (except if permitted to do so under the laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to shares which are or are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to professional investors within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder.

# People s Republic of China

This prospectus has not been and will not be circulated or distributed in the PRC, and common shares may not be offered or sold, and will not be offered or sold to any person for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, to any resident of the PRC except pursuant to applicable laws and regulations of the PRC. For the purpose of this paragraph, PRC does not include Taiwan, and the special administrative regions of Hong Kong and Macau.

# **Expenses Related to this Offering**

The estimated expenses payable by us in connection with the offering described in this registration statement (other than the placement discounts and commissions) will be as follows. With the exception of the filing fees for the U.S. Securities Exchange Commission, FINRA and NASDAQ, all amounts are estimates.

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission registration fee	\$ 3,347
FINRA filing fee	\$ 4,100
NASDAQ listing fee	\$ 55,000
Legal fees and expenses for Chinese counsel	\$ 81,232
Legal fees and expenses for BVI counsel	\$ 10,000
Legal fees and expenses for U.S. counsel	\$240,000
Accounting fees and expenses	\$250,000
Printing fees and expenses	\$ 50,000
Miscellaneous	\$ 6,321
	<b>* = ^ ^ ^ </b>

### Total

\$ 700,000

# LEGAL MATTERS

Certain matters as to Virginia law and U.S. federal law in connection with this offering will be passed upon for us by Haneberg, PLC. The validity of the shares and certain legal matters relating to the offering as to British Virgin Islands law will be passed upon for us by Haneberg, PLC. Certain legal matters relating to the offering as to Chinese law will be passed upon for us by Kaitong Law Firm People s Republic of China. Haneberg, PLC may rely upon KaiTong Law Firm with respect to matters governed by PRC law. Schiff Hardin LLP, Washington DC, has acted as counsel for the Placement Agent with respect to this offering.

# EXPERTS

Financial statements as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and for the years then ended appearing in this prospectus, have been included herein and in the registration statement in reliance upon the report of MaloneBailey LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, appearing elsewhere herein, and upon the authority of that firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

## WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form F-1 under the Securities Act with respect to the common shares offered hereby. This prospectus, which constitutes a part of the registration statement, does not contain all of the information set forth in the registration statement or the exhibits filed therewith. For further information about us and the common shares offered hereby, reference is made to the registration statement and the exhibits filed therewith. Statements contained in this prospectus regarding the contents of any contract or any other document that is filed as an exhibit to the registration statement are not necessarily complete, and in each instance we refer you to the copy of such contract or other document filed as an exhibit to the registration statement. We currently do not file periodic reports with the SEC. Upon closing of our initial public offering, we will be required to file periodic reports (including an annual report on Form 20-F, which we will be required to file within 120 days from the end of each fiscal year), and other information with the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act. A copy of the registration statement and the exhibits filed therewith may be inspected without charge at the public reference room maintained by the SEC, located at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549, and copies of all or any part of the registration statement may be obtained from that office. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information about the public reference room. The SEC also maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding registrants that file electronically with the SEC. The address of the website is *www.sec.gov*.

# CHINA CUSTOMER RELATIONS CENTERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

## CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm		F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013		F-2
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013		F-3
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013		F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013		F-5
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements	F-6	F-23

## REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. and Subsidiaries (collectively, the Company) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for the years then ended. The consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ MaloneBailey, LLP www.malonebailey.com Houston, Texas June 1, 2015

# CHINA CUSTOMER RELATIONS CENTERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

## **CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS**

	D	ecember 31, 2014	D	ecember 31, 2013
ASSETS				
Cash	\$	5,097,010	\$	5,714,563
Accounts receivable, net		6,819,452		3,734,562
Accounts receivable - related party		373,339		364,042
Notes receivable		1,157,793		1,161,953
Prepayments		639,861		442,320
Due from related parties		763,977		961,230
Other current assets		1,297,995		1,070,138
Total current assets		16,149,427		13,448,808
Property and equipment, net		3,715,981		3,758,664
Deferred tax assets, non-current		<i>. . .</i>		36,711
Total non-current assets		3,715,981		3,795,375
Total assets	\$	19,865,408	\$	17,244,183
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY				
Accounts payable	\$	189,089	\$	101,845
Accrued liabilities and other payables		2,224,301		1,985,900
Wages payable		2,041,226		1,783,640
Income taxes payable		477,740		373,074
Short term loans		5,567,860		6,218,905
Due to related parties		2,422		3,814,701
Deferred tax liabilities, current		181,482		113,437
Total current liabilities		10,684,120		14,391,502
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current		4,450		
Total non-current liabilities		4,450		
Total liabilities		10,688,570		14,391,502
Stockholders equity				
Common Stock, \$0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 15,929,600				
and 15,294,800 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively		15,930		15,295
2013, Tespectivery		15,750		13,275

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

Additional paid-in capital	2,684,150	(1,829,991)
Retained earnings	5,460,871	3,926,638
Statutory reserves	781,731	533,863
Accumulated other comprehensive income	234,156	206,876
Total stockholders equity	9,176,838	2,852,681
Total liabilities and stockholders equity	\$ 19,865,408	\$ 17,244,183

# The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

# CHINA CUSTOMER RELATIONS CENTERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

## CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

	For	The Years En 2014	ded ]	December 31, 2013
Revenues	\$	42,661,732	\$	27,609,436
Revenues - related party		11,407		520,869
Total revenues		42,673,139		28,130,305
Cost of revenues		35,188,331		23,757,669
Gross profit		7,484,808		4,372,636
Operating expenses:				
Selling, general & administrative expenses		5,779,600		3,085,437
Total operating expenses		5,779,600		3,085,437
Income from operations		1,705,208		1,287,199
Interest expense		(552,894)		(468,823)
Government grants		1,439,186		2,714,026
Other income		64,873		112,140
Other expense		(238,413)		(101,034)
Total other income		712,752		2,256,309
Income before provision for income taxes		2,417,960		3,543,508
Income tax provision		635,859		594,240
Net income	\$	1,782,101	\$	2,949,268
Comprehensive income				
Net income	\$	1,782,101	\$	2,949,268
Other comprehensive income		, ,		, ,
Foreign currency translation adjustment		27,280		78,074
Total comprehensive income	\$	1,809,381	\$	3,027,342
Earnings per common share	¢	0.11	¢	0.10
Basic	\$	0.11	\$	0.19
Diluted	\$	0.11	\$	0.19

Weighted average common shares outstanding

### Table of Contents

Basic	15,586,865	15,294,800
Diluted	15,586,865	15,294,800

# The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

### CHINA CUSTOMER RELATIONS CENTERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

#### CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

	Number of Shares	Common Stock	Additional Paid-in Capital	Statutory Reserves		Accumulated Other omprehensiv Income	
Balance,							
January 1, 2013	15,294,800	\$ 15,295	\$ 1,352,245	\$ 228,660	\$1,282,573	\$ 128,802	\$ 3,007,575
Net income					2,949,268		2,949,268
Distribution of							
capital to owners			(3,182,236)				(3,182,236)
Foreign currency							
translation							<b>5</b> 0 0 <b>5</b> (
adjustment				205 202		78,074	78,074
Transfer to reserve				305,203	(305,203)		
Balance,							
December 31, 2013	15,294,800	\$ 15,295	\$(1,829,991)	\$ 533,863	\$ 3,926,638	\$ 206,876	\$ 2,852,681
Net income					1,782,101		1,782,101
Issuance of							
common stock for							
cash	634,800	635	1,173,745				1,174,380
Capital contribution							
from owners			3,340,396				3,340,396
Foreign currency translation							
adjustment						27,280	27,280
Transfer to reserve				247,868	(247,868)	,	
Balance							

Balance,

**December 31, 2014** 15,929,600 \$ 15,930 \$ 2,684,150 \$ 781,731 \$ 5,460,871 \$ 234,156 \$ 9,176,838

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

# CHINA CUSTOMER RELATIONS CENTERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

## CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

		ears Ended ber 31,
	2014	2013
Cash flows from operating activities		
Net income	\$ 1,782,101	\$ 2,949,268
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating		
activities:		
Depreciation	1,342,258	1,145,348
Allowance for doubtful accounts	145,076	23,628
Gain on disposal of property and equipment	(11,948)	
Deferred income taxes	109,657	215,748
Changes in assets and liabilities:		
Accounts receivable	(3,251,749)	(2,008,418)
Accounts receivable - related party	(11,407)	318,861
Due from related parties	468,555	(2,864)
Due to related parties	3,493	746
Prepayments	(489,918)	(88,972)
Other current assets	(234,067)	(287,655)
Accounts payable	18,998	(70,675)
Wage payable	267,931	548,372
Income taxes payable	106,833	361,547
Accrued liabilities and other payables	249,914	726,485
Net cash provided by operating activities	495,727	3,831,419
Cash flows from investing activities		
Purchase of property and equipment	(965,118)	(600,916)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment	14,363	
Loans to third parties	(132,742)	(1,146,919)
Repayment from third parties	130,172	
Advance to related parties	(1,986,421)	(2,555,137)
Repayment from related parties	1,633,073	3,864,506
Net cash used in investing activities	(1,306,673)	(438,466)
Cash flows from financing activities		
Proceeds from issuances of common shares	1,174,380	
Capital contribution from owners	3,340,396	
Distribution of capital to owners	, -,	(3,182,236)
Proceeds from related parties	32,543	3,517,971
Repayment to related parties	(3,749,916)	(9,574)
Proceeds from short term loans	7,386,830	10,452,451

Repayment of short term loans	(	(8,001,883)	(	10,775,527)
Net cash provided by financing activities		182,350		3,085
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents		11,043		100,052
Net change in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year		(617,553) 5,714,563		3,496,090 2,218,473
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year	\$	5,097,010	\$	5,714,563
Supplemental cash flow information				
Interest paid	\$	552,894	\$	468,823
Income taxes paid	\$	490,318	\$	17,303
Non-cash investing and financing activities				
Transfer from prepayments to property and equipment	\$	289,806	\$	232,843
Liabilities assumed in connection with purchase of property and equipment	\$	68,839	\$	703,077

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

# The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

### CHINA CUSTOMER RELATIONS CENTERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

#### NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### Note 1 ORGANIZATION

China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. (the Company ), was incorporated on March 6, 2014 under the laws of British Virgin Islands. China BPO Holdings Limited (CBPO), the Company s 100% owned subsidiary, was established in Hong Kong on March 28, 2014 as a limited liability company. Other than the equity interest in CBPO, the Company does not own any material assets or liabilities or conduct any operations. CBPO holds all of the outstanding equity interest in Shandong Juncheng Information Technology Co., Ltd., a company established on August 19, 2014 in the People s Republic of China (PRC) as a wholly foreign owned enterprise (WFOE). Other than the equity interest in WFOE, CBPO does not own any material assets or liabilities or conduct any operations. Shandong Taiying Technology Co., Ltd (Taiying) was incorporated on December 18, 2007 as a domestic Chinese corporation. Taiying and its 13 wholly owned subsidiaries are engaged in business process outsourcing (BPO), acting as a service provider focusing on the complex voice-based segment of customer care services, including customer relationship management, sales, customer retention, marketing surveys and research for China s major enterprises. Taiying s call center BPO services enable its clients to increase revenue, reduce operating costs, improve customer satisfaction and enhance overall brand value and customer loyalty.

The Company does not conduct any substantive operations of its own, rather, it conducts its primary business operations through WFOE, which in turn, conducts its business through Taiying. Effective control over Taiying was transferred to the Company through the series of contractual arrangements without transferring legal ownership in Taiying (reorganization). As a result of these contractual arrangements, the Company maintained the ability to approve decisions made by Taiying and was entitled to substantially all of the economic benefits of Taiying.

Under the laws and regulations of the PRC, foreign persons and foreign companies are restricted from investing directly in certain businesses within the PRC. Call center businesses are subject to these restrictions on foreign investment. In order to comply with these laws and regulations, on September 3, 2014, Taiying and its sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying Anrui Holding Co., Ltd. (Beijing Taiying), entered into an entrusted management agreement with WFOE, which provides that WFOE will be entitled to the full guarantee for the performance of such contracts, agreements or transactions entered into by Taiying. WFOE is also entitled to receive the residual return of Taiying. As a result of the agreement, WFOE will absorb 100% of the expected losses and gains of Taiying.

WFOE also entered into a pledge of equity agreement with Taiying sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying, who pledged all its equity interest in these entities to WFOE. The pledge of equity agreement, which was entered into by Beijing Taiying, pledged its equity interest in WFOE as a guarantee for the entrustment payment under the Entrusted Management Agreement. The provincial Administration for Industry and Commerce approved and registered such pledge of equity by which WFOE owns the right of pledge legally.

In addition, WFOE entered into an option agreement to acquire its sole shareholder s equity interest in these entities at such times as it may wish to do so.

The followings are brief descriptions of contracts entered between WFOE, Taiying and its sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying:

(1) Entrusted Management Agreement. The domestic companies, WFOE, Taiying and its sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying, have entered into an Entrusted Management Agreement, which provides that WFOE will be fully and

#### Table of Contents

exclusively responsible for the management of Taiying. As consideration for such services, Taiying has agreed to pay WFOE the management fee during the term of this agreement and the management fee shall be equal to Taiying s estimated earnings before tax. Also, WFOE will assume all operating risks related to this

entrusted management service to Taiying and bear all losses of Taiying. The term of this agreement will be from the effective date thereof to the earlier of the following: (1) the winding up of Taiying, or (2) the termination date of this Agreement to be determined by the parties hereto, or (3) the date on which WFOE completes the acquisition of Taiying.

(2) Exclusive Option Agreement. Taiying and its sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying, have entered into an Exclusive Option Agreement with WFOE, which provides that WFOE will be entitled to acquire such shares from the current shareholder upon certain terms and conditions, meanwhile WFOE will be entitled an irrevocable exclusive purchase option to purchase all or part of the assets and business of Taiying, if such a purchase is or becomes allowable under PRC laws and regulations. The Exclusive Option Agreement also prohibits the current shareholder of Taiying as well as Taiying from transferring any portion of their equity interests, business or assets to anyone other than WFOE. WFOE has not yet taken any corporate action to exercise this right of purchase, and there is no guarantee that it will do so or will be permitted to do so by applicable law at such times as it may wish to do so.

(3) Shareholder s Voting Proxy Agreement. The sole shareholder of Taiying has executed a Shareholder s Voting Proxy Agreement to irrevocably appoint the persons designated by WFOE with the exclusive right to exercise, on its behalf, all of its Voting Rights in accordance with the laws and Taiying s Articles of Association, including but not limited to the rights to sell or transfer all or any of its equity interests of Taiying, and to appoint and elect the directors and Chairman as the authorized legal representative of Taiying. This agreement will be only terminated prior to the completion of acquisition of all of the equity interests in, or all assets or business of Taiying.

(4) Pledge of Equity Agreement. WFOE and the sole shareholder of Taiying have entered into a Pledge of Equity Agreement, pursuant to which the sole shareholder pledge all of its shares (100%) of Taiying, as appropriate, to WFOE. If Taiying or its sole shareholder breaches their respective contractual obligations in the Entrusted Management Agreement , Exclusive Option Agreement and Shareholder s Voting Proxy Agreement , WFOE as Pledgee, will be entitled to certain rights to foreclose on the pledged equity interests. Such Taiying shareholder cannot dispose of the pledged equity interests or take any actions that would prejudice WFOE s interest.

Upon executing the above agreements, Taiying is considered a Variable Interest Entity (VIE) and WFOE is the primary beneficiary. Accordingly, Taiying is consolidated into WFOE under the guidance of FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 810, Consolidation.

Except for the disclosed above, there are no arrangements that could require the Company to provide financial support to Taiying, including events or circumstances that could expose the Company to a loss. As stated in the disclosure of various agreements between the Company and Taiying, the Company has rights to acquire any portion of the equity interests of Taiying. Also, the Company may allocate its available funds to Taiying for business purposes. There are no fixed terms of such arrangements.

Although the structure the Company has adopted is consistent with longstanding industry practice, and is commonly adopted by comparable companies in China, the PRC government may not agree that these arrangements comply with PRC licensing, registration or other regulatory requirements, with existing policies or with requirements or policies that may be adopted in the future. There are uncertainties regarding the interpretation and application of PRC laws and regulations including those that govern the Company s contractual arrangements, which could limit the Company s ability to enforce these contractual arrangements. If the Company or any of its variable interest entities are found to be in violation of any existing or future PRC laws, rules or regulations, or fail to obtain or maintain any of the required permits or approvals, the relevant PRC regulatory authorities would have broad discretion to take action in dealing with such violations or failures, including levying fines, revoking business and other licenses of the Company s variable interest entities, requiring the Company to discontinue or restrict its operations, restricting its right to collect

revenue, requiring the Company to restructure its operations or taking other regulatory or enforcement actions against the Company.

In addition, it is unclear what impact the PRC government actions would have on the Company and on its ability to consolidate the financial results of its variable interest entities in the consolidated financial statements, if the PRC government authorities were to find the Company s legal structure and contractual arrangements to be in violation of PRC laws, rules and regulations. If the imposition of any of these government actions causes the Company to lose its right to direct the activities of Taiying and through Taiying s equity interest in its subsidiaries or the right to receive their economic benefits, the Company would no longer be able to consolidate the Taiying and its subsidiaries.

Immediately before and after the reorganization, the shareholder of Taiying controlled Taiying and the Company; therefore, for accounting purposes, the reorganization is accounted for as a transaction of entities under common control. Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared as if the current corporate structure had been in existence throughout the periods presented.

As of the filing date, the Company s subsidiaries and variable interest entities are as follows:

			Percentage of	
	Date of	Place of	effective	
Name	incorporation	incorporation	ownership	Principal Activities
China BPO Holdings Limited, (CBPO)	March 28, 2014	Hong Kong	100%	Holding company of WFOE
Shandong Juncheng	, ,	0 0		
Information Technology Co.,				
Ltd. (WFOE)	August 19, 2014	PRC	100%	Holding company
Shandong Taiying Technology			Contractual	
Co., Ltd. ( Taiying )				BPO service provider
	December 18, 2007	PRC	arrangements (1)	principally serves North China
Chongqing Central BPO				
Industry Co., Ltd. ( Central				BPO service provider
BPO )	January 28, 2010	PRC	100% (2)	principally serves South China
Jiangsu Taiying Technology				BPO service provider which
Co., Ltd. (JTTC)	February 25, 2010	PRC	100% (2)	principally serves East China
Hebei Taiying Communication				BPO service provider which
BPO Co., Ltd. (HTCC)	April 20, 2010	PRC	100% (2)	principally serves North China
Shandong Central BPO Industry				BPO service provider which
Co., Ltd. (SCBI)	August 9, 2012	PRC	100% (2)	principally serves North China
Jiangsu Central Information				BPO service provider
Service Co., Ltd. ( JCBI )	December 12, 2013	PRC	100% (2)	principally serves East China
Anhui Taiying Information				BPO service provider
Technology Co., Ltd. ( ATIT )	December 26, 2013	PRC	$100\%^{(2)}$	principally serves East China
Shandong Taiying Technology				
Guangxi Branch Company				BPO service provider
( STTGB )	May 28, 2013	PRC	100% (2)	principally serves South China
Shandong Taiying Technology				
Chongqing Branch Company				BPO service provider
(STTCB)	February 22, 2013	PRC	$100\%^{(2)}$	principally serves South China
Hebei Taiying Technology				
Yanjiao Branch Company				BPO service provider
(HTTYB)	January 2, 2014	PRC	100% (2)	principally serves North China
Jiangsu Taiying Information			100~(2)	BPO service provider
Service Co., Ltd. (JTIS) <sup>(4)</sup>	July 1, 2014	PRC	100% (2)	principally serves East China
Nanjing Taiying E-Commerce			100~(2)	BPO service provider
Business Co., Ltd. ( NJTY <sup>3)</sup> )	December 25, 2014	PRC	100% (2)	principally serves East China
Jiangxi Taiying Technology				BPO service provider
Co., Ltd. (JXTY)	L 0.0015	DDC	100~ (2)	principally serves Southeast
	January 8, 2015	PRC	100% <sup>(2)</sup>	China
Xingjiang Taiying Technology	March 20, 2015	PRC	100% (2)	BPO service provider
Co., Ltd. (XTTC)				principally serves Northeast

China

- (1) VIE effectively controlled by WFOE through a series of contractual agreements
- (2) Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Taiying
- (3) The registered capital of NJTY is RMB 6,000,000 (approximately \$976,245) and none of the capital has been received as of the filing date
- (4) The registered capital of JTIS is RMB 10,000,000 (approximately \$1,627,075) and none of the capital has been received as of the filing date

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the assets and liabilities in the Company s balance sheets relate to CCRC and CBPO are as follows:

	December 31, 2014			December 31, 2013		
	Held by CCRC	Held k	by CBPO	Held by CCI	RCHeld by CBPO	
Assets						
Cash	\$ 588,677	\$	51,956	\$	\$	
Liabilities						
Other payables	\$ 15,295	\$	52,000	\$	\$	

WOFE does not own any material assets or conduct any operations.

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the carrying amount and classification of the assets and liabilities in the Company s balance sheets that relate to the Company s VIE and VIE s subsidiaries is as follows:

	Dece	mber 31, 2014	Decer	mber 31, 2013
ASSETS				
Cash	\$	4,456,377	\$	5,714,563
Accounts receivable		6,819,452		3,734,562
Accounts receivable - related party		373,339		364,042
Notes receivable		1,157,793		1,161,953
Prepayments		639,861		442,320
Due from related parties		763,977		961,230
Other current assets		1,297,995		1,070,138
Total current assets of VIE and its				
subsidiaries		15,508,794		13,448,808
Property and equipment, net		3,715,981		3,758,664
Deferred tax assets, non-current				36,711
Total non-current assets of VIE and				
its subsidiaries		3,715,981		3,795,375
its subsidiaries		5,715,981		5,195,515
Total assets of VIE and its				
subsidiaries	\$	19,224,775	\$	17,244,183
LIABILITIES				
Accounts payable	\$	189,089	\$	101,845
Accrued liabilities and other				
payables		2,157,006		1,985,900
Wages payable		2,041,226		1,783,640
Income taxes payable		477,740		373,074

Short term loans	5,567,860	6,218,905
Due to related parties	2,422	3,814,701
Deferred tax liabilities, current	181,482	113,437
Total current liabilities of VIE and its subsidiaries	10,616,825	14,391,502
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current	4,450	
Total non-current liabilities of VIE and its subsidiaries	4,450	
Total liabilities of VIE and its subsidiaries	\$ 10,621,275	\$ 14,391,502

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

## Note 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying audited financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and Taiying, which is a variable interest entity with the Company as the primary beneficiary. In accordance with U.S. GAAP regarding Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities , the Company identifies entities for which control is achieved through means other than through voting rights (a VIE) and determines when and which business enterprise, if any, should consolidate the VIE.

The Company evaluated its participating interest in Taiying and concluded it is the primary beneficiary of Taiying, a VIE. The Company consolidated Taiying and all significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

#### Foreign Currency Translation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in United States dollar (\$), which is the reporting currency of the Company. The functional currency of China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. and CBPO is United States dollar. The functional currency of the Company s subsidiary and VIEs located in the PRC is Renminbi (RMB). For the subsidiaries whose functional currencies are RMB, results of operations and cash flows are translated at average exchange rates during the period, assets and liabilities are translated at the unified exchange rate at the end of the period, and equity is translated at historical exchange rates. The resulting translation adjustments are included in determining other comprehensive income. Transaction gains and losses are reflected in the consolidated statements of income.

#### Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Company bases its estimates and judgments on historical experience and on various other assumptions and information that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Estimates and assumptions of future events and their effects cannot be perceived with certainty and, accordingly, these estimates may change as new events occur, as more experience is acquired, as additional information is obtained and as our operating environment changes. Significant estimates and assumptions by management include, among others, useful lives and impairment of long-lived assets, allowance for doubtful accounts, income taxes including the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets. While the Company believes that the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are appropriate, actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and assumptions are periodically reviewed and the effects of revisions are reflected in the financial statements in the period they are determined to be necessary.

## Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and cash in time deposits, certificates of deposit and all highly liquid instruments with original maturities of three months or less.

### Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists principally of amounts due from trade customers. Credit is extended based on an evaluation of the customer s financial condition and collateral is not generally required. Certain credit sales are made to industries that are subject to cyclical economic changes.

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its clients to make required payments or to cover potential credit losses. Estimates are based on historical collection experience, current trends, credit policy and relationship between accounts receivable and revenues. In determining these estimates, the Company examines historical write-offs of its receivables and reviews each client s account to identify any specific customer collection issues.

## Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company s long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of an asset to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to the future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such asset is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value. Impairment evaluations involve management s estimates on asset useful lives and future cash flows. Actual useful lives and cash flows could be different from those estimated by management which could have a material effect on our reporting results and financial position. Fair value is determined through various valuation techniques including discounted cash flow models, quoted market values and third-party independent appraisals, as considered necessary.

## **Property and Equipment**

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and include expenditures for additions and major improvements. Significant improvements and betterments are capitalized where it is probable that the expenditure resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the asset beyond its originally assessed standard of performance. Routine repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred. Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets are recognized in the income statement based on the net disposal proceeds less the carrying amount of the assets.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Electronic equipment	3-5 years
Furniture & Fixture	5 years
Motor vehicles	4 years
Computer software	5 years
Leasehold improvements	5 years
Fair Value of Financial Instruments	

For certain of the Company s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepayments, due from related parties, other current assets, accounts payable, due to related parties, and accrued liabilities and other payables, the carrying amounts approximate their fair values due to the short maturities.

## Lease Commitments

The Company has adopted FASB ASC 840. If the lease terms meet one or all of the following four criteria, it will be classified as a capital lease, otherwise, it is an operating lease: (1) The lease transfers the title to the lessee at the end of the term; (2) the lease contains a bargain purchase option; (3) the lease term is equal to 75% of the estimated economic life of the leased property or more; (4) the present value of the minimum lease payment in the term equals

or exceeds 90% of the fair value of the leased property.

Payments made under operating leases are charged to the consolidated statements of income on a straight-line basis over the lease period.

## Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing net earnings attributable to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income attributable to common stockholders by the sum of the weighted average number of common stock outstanding and dilutive potential common stock during the period.

## **Revenue Recognition**

The Company recognizes revenue when evidence of an arrangement exists, the delivery of service has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured. The Company provides i) inbound call service, which includes directory assistance, mobile phone service plan, billing questions, hotline consultation, complaints, customer feedbacks, customer relationship management, etc., and ii) outbound call service, which includes products selling, marketing surveys, new products informing, plans expiration and bills overdue notification, etc. The BPO inbound and outbound service fees are based on either a per minute, per hour, per transaction or per call basis. For inbound call service, the revenues are recognized in the same period when the service is provided and the actual costs occurred. For outbound call service, certain business successful rate was obtained. The fee is determined on a per-call basis where the Company receives a basic standard fee for each call plus an extra fee for successfully selling a product or completing a survey, etc. Certain client programs provide for adjustments to monthly billings consist of contractual bonuses/penalties, holdbacks and other performance based contingencies. Revenue recognition is limited to the amount that is not contingent upon delivery of future services or meeting other specified performance conditions.

## Government Grants

The Company received grants from various government agencies after meeting certain conditions if applicable, such as locating contact centers in their jurisdictions or helping local employment needs. Government grants are recognized when received and all the conditions specified in the grant have been met. Currently the conditions are limited to the two listed above and the Company is not under any obligations under the grant terms after amounts have been received.

## Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the provision of FASB ASC 740-10, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences in future years of differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts at each period end based on enacted tax laws and statutory tax rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.

## Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk are cash and accounts receivable arising from its normal business activities. The Company places its cash in what it believes to be credit-worthy financial institutions. The Company routinely assesses the financial strength of the customer and, based upon factors surrounding the credit risk, establishes an allowance, if required, for uncollectible accounts and, as a

consequence, believes that its accounts receivable credit risk exposure beyond such allowance is limited.

## **Related Parties Transactions**

A related party is generally defined as (i) any person that holds 10% or more of the Company s securities and their immediate families, (ii) the Company s management, (iii) someone that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with the Company, or (iv) anyone who can significantly influence the financial and operating decisions of the Company. A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties. The Company conducts business with its related parties in the ordinary course of business. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.

## Segment Reporting

The Company uses the management approach in determining reportable operating segments. The management approach considers the internal organization and reporting used by the Company s chief operating decision maker for making operating decisions and assessing performance as the source for determining the Company s reportable segments. The Company s chief operating decision maker has been identified as the chief executive officer of the Company who reviews financial information of separate operating segments based on U.S. GAAP. The chief operating decision maker now reviews results analyzed by customer. This analysis is only presented at the revenue level with no allocation of direct or indirect costs. Consequently, the Company has determined that it has only one operating segment.

### **Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements**

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity . The amendments in the ASU change the criteria for reporting discontinued operations while enhancing disclosures in this area. It also addresses sources of confusion and inconsistent application related to financial reporting of discontinued operations guidance in U.S. GAAP. Under the new guidance, only disposals representing a strategic shift in operations should be presented as discontinued operations. In addition, the new guidance requires expanded disclosures about discontinued operations that will provide financial statement users with more information about the assets, liabilities, income, and expenses of discontinued operations. The amendments in the ASU are effective in the first quarter of 2015 for public organizations with calendar year ends. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s financial position and results of operations.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from contracts with Customers (Topic 606) . This ASU affects any entity that either enters into contracts with customers to transfer goods or services or enters into contracts for the transfer of non-financial assets. This ASU will supersede the revenue recognition requirements in Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, and most industry-specific guidance. The ASU also supersedes some cost guidance included in Subtopic 605-35, Revenue Recognition-Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchanged for those goods or services. The standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting period. The Company is currently in the process of evaluating the impact of the adoption on its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-12, Accounting for Share-Based Payments When the Terms of an Award Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved After the Requisite Service Period . The amendments in the ASU require that a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period be treated as a performance condition. A reporting entity should apply existing guidance in Topic 718, Compensation

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

Stock Compensation, as it relates to awards with performance conditions that affect vesting to account for such awards. The performance target should not be reflected in estimating the grant-date fair value of the award. Compensation cost should be recognized in the period in which it becomes probable that the performance target will be achieved and should represent the compensation cost attributable to the

period(s) for which the requisite service has already been rendered. If the performance target becomes probable of being achieved before the end of the requisite service period, the remaining unrecognized compensation cost should be recognized prospectively over the remaining requisite service period. The total amount of compensation cost recognized during and after the requisite service period should reflect the number of awards that are expected to vest and should be adjusted to reflect those awards that ultimately vest. The requisite service period ends when the employee can cease rendering service and still be eligible to vest in the award if the performance target is achieved. The amendments in this ASU are effective for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2015. Earlier adoption is permitted. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s financial position and results of operations.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern. The amendment in the ASU provides guidance on determining when and how to disclose going concern uncertainties in the financial statements. The new standard requires management to perform interim and annual assessments of an entity's ability to continue as a going concern within one year of the date the financial statements are issued. An entity must provide certain disclosures if conditions or events raise substantial doubt about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern. The amendments in this Update are effective for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016. Earlier adoption is permitted. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis . The amendments in the ASU provide an additional requirement for a limited partnership or similar entity to qualify as a voting interest entity and also amend the criteria for consolidating such an entity. In addition, the new guidance amends the criteria for evaluating fees paid to a decision maker or service provider as a variable interest and amends the criteria for evaluating the effect of fee arrangements and related parties on a variable interest entity primary beneficiary determination. This standard is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company is currently in the process of evaluating the impact of the adoption on its consolidated financial statements.

## Note 3 NOTES RECEIVABLE

The notes receivable includes due on demand interest-free notes to third parties. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company received repayments of notes for a total amount of \$130,172 from a third party company and a third party individual. In addition, the Company advanced \$132,742 to a third party company. For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company advanced due on demand interest-free notes to a third-party individual and a third party company which amounted to \$1,146,919. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the notes receivable balance was \$1,157,793 and \$1,161,953, respectively.

## Note 4 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Accounts receivable, net, consists of the following:

	Decen	mber 31, 2014	Decer	nber 31, 2013
Accounts receivable	\$	6,843,251	\$	3,763,434
Less: Allowance for doubtful				
accounts		(23,799)		(28,872)

# Edgar Filing: China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. - Form F-1/A

Accounts receivable, net	\$	6,819,452	\$	3,734,562
--------------------------	----	-----------	----	-----------

The changes in allowance for doubtful accounts consist of the following:

	For the Years Ended December 2014 2013			,
Balance, beginning of the year	\$	28,872	\$	4,777
Provision for doubtful accounts		145,076		24,095
Uncollectible receivables written-off		(149,975)		
Translation adjustment		(174)		
Balance, end of the year	\$	23,799	\$	28,872

## Note 5 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets consist of other receivables and deposits. Other receivable principally includes advances to employees for business travel or business development purpose and other miscellaneous receivables such utility fees, social insurances, and personal income tax paid in advances on behalf of employees. Deposits include guarantee deposit, rent deposit, and security deposit for bidding customer projects. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, other current assets consist of the following:

	December 31,		
	2014	2013	
Other receivables	\$ 442,951	\$ 500,993	
Deposits	855,044	569,145	
Total other current assets	\$1,297,995	\$1,070,138	

#### Note 6 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, property and equipment consist of the following:

	Decer	mber 31, 2014	Decer	nber 31, 2013
Electronic equipment	\$	4,984,251	\$	4,021,813
Office furniture and equipment		1,415,725		1,321,329
Motor vehicles		487,336		467,553
Computer software		83,119		39,095
Leasehold improvements		1,494,648		1,398,853
_				
Total property and equipment		8,465,079		7,248,643
Accumulated depreciation		(4,749,098)		(3,489,979)
Property and equipment, net	\$	3,715,981	\$	3,758,664

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was \$1,342,258 and \$1,145,348, respectively.

## Note 7 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

	Decen 2014	December 31, 2014 2013	
Deferred tax assets, current	2014	2013	
Allowance for doubtful accounts	\$ 5,951	\$ 6,725	
Accrued revenue (net of cost)	82,729	60,772	
	,	,	
	88,680	67,497	
Less: valuation allowance	(62,672)		
	26,008	67,497	
Deferred tax assets, non-current			
Depreciation expense	2,202	2,227	
Loss carry forward	73,065	72,204	
	75,267	74,431	
Less: valuation allowance	(57,700)		
	17.567	74.421	
	17,567	74,431	
Deferred tax liability, current	(207,400)	(100.024)	
Accrued revenue (net of cost)	(207,490)	(180,934)	
	(207,490)	(180,934)	
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current	(207,490)	(100,754)	
Depreciation expense	(22,017)	(37,720)	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	(,017)	(,-=0)	
	\$ (22,017)	\$ (37,720)	

The Company has net operating losses of \$292,260 as of December 31, 2014. If not used, such losses will start expiring from the beginning of 2017.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated balance sheets, certain deferred income tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred income tax balances for financial reporting purpose:

	December 31,		
	2014	2013	
Deferred tax assets, current	\$	\$	
Deferred tax assets, non-current		36,711	
Deferred tax liabilities, current	(181,482)	(113,437)	
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current	(4,450)		

## Note 8 SHORT TERM LOANS

Short term bank loans and related guarantees are comprised of the following:

	Guarantee	nber 31, 2014 Balance	mber 31, 2013 Balance
Bank of China, Tainan Branch	Taian Development District		
	Taishan Venture Capital Co.,		
	Ltd, Gary Wang and Yongjie		
	Yang	\$ 813,537	\$ 818,277
China Development Bank,	Taian Hongze Investment		
Shandong Branch	Guarantee Co., Ltd <sup>(1)</sup>		818,277
Shanghai Pudong Development	Taian Hongze Investment		
Bank, Jinan Branch	Guarantee Co., Ltd and Gary		
	Wang	1,627,075	1,636,554
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd., Taian	Taian Development District		
Branch	Taishan Venture Capital Co.,		
	Ltd and Gary Wang	1,627,075	1,636,554
China Construction Bank,	Chongqing Shuangye		
Yongchuan Branch	Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd,		
	Taiying, Gary Wang and		
	Yongjie Yang	1,301,660	1,309,243
Subtotal of bank loans		\$ 5,369,347	\$ 6,218,905

(1) In connection with the guarantee, Taian Hongze Investment Guarantee Co., Ltd. also pledged a twelve-month term deposit in the amount of RMB 500,000 (approximately \$81,354).

The annual interest rates of the short-term bank loans listed above ranged from 7.2% to 9.0%.

In addition to the short-term bank loans, the Company also entered into short term loan agreements with other third party individuals and companies for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company borrowed \$2,017,122 from two third party individuals and three third party companies, and repaid an amount of \$1,818,609. For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company borrowed \$4,314,014 from third party individuals and companies and repaid in full. All these loans are unsecured and bear no interest. The loans were borrowed primarily to pay off salaries and other payable related to the business operation. The balance of short term loans with other third party individuals and companies as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 was \$198,513 and zero, respectively.

The interest expenses for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 were \$552,894 and \$468,823, respectively.

## Note 9 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties consist of the following:

Name of Related Party	Nature of Relationship
David Wang	Shareholder, Director and Chief Financial Officer
Guoan Xu	Shareholder, Director and Vice President
Limin Gao	Manager of Taiying
Gary Wang	Principal Shareholder, Director, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
Yongjie Yang	Wife of Gary Wang
Qingmao Zhang	Principal Shareholder
Chunmei Sun	Wife of David Wang
Qiaolin Wang	Shareholder, Manager of Shandong Central BPO Industry Co., Ltd.
Shandong Luk Information Technology Co., Ltd.	Controlled by the brother of Gary Wang
Chongqing Ruixuan Technology Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Chongqing Shenggu Human Resources Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Chongqing Shenggu Investment Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Chongqing Shenggu Construction Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Shandong Shenggu Investment Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Northern Shenggu Call Center Training School	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Yantai Shenggu Human Resources Management Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Chongqing Yongchuan Shenggu Training School <u>Revenues from related party</u>	Controlled by Beijing Taiying

The Company is the subcontractor of Shandong Luk Information Technology Co., Ltd. (Shandong Luk), a related party controlled by the brother of Gary Wang. For the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company generated related party revenues from Shandong Luk in the amount of \$11,407 and \$520,869, respectively. The related party accounts receivable with Shandong Luk amounted to \$373,339 and \$364,042 as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

#### Services provided by related party

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company subcontracted projects to the related party, Shandong Luk Information Technology Co., Ltd., and the related party provided services for an amount of \$718,756, which was recorded in cost of revenues. Out of the \$718,756 services provided, both parties agreed to use \$426,434 to settle part of the balance that Shandong Luk Information Technology Co., Ltd. owed to the Company.

## Table of Contents

## Due from related parties

Due from related parties consist of the following:

Name of Related Party	As of De	cember 31, 2014	As of Dec	ember 31, 20
David Wang	\$		\$	55,151
Qiaolin Wang		2,948		
Limin Gao		437		
Guoan Xu				10,622
Gary Wang				305
Chunmei Sun		76,485		
Shandong Luk Information				
Technology Co., Ltd.		354,095		750,226
Chongqing Ruixuan				
Technology Co., Ltd.		29,717		29,890
Chongqing Shenggu Human				
Resources Co., Ltd.		223,761		111,692
Chongqing Shenggu				
Investment Co., Ltd.		651		327
Chongqing Shenggu				
Construction Co., Ltd.		2,644		327
Shandong Shenggu Investment				
Co., Ltd.		2,441		2,625
Northern Shenggu Call Center				
Training School		65		65
Chongqing Yongchuan				
Shenggu Training School		70,733		
	\$	763,977	\$	961,230

The amount owed to the Company by related party companies and Chunmei Sun represents non-secured short-term loans obtained from the Company, which bears no interest and was due on demand.

The remaining amounts owed to the Company by other individuals represent advances to the Company management members for business travel or business development purpose and cash advances to the related parties which were non-secured and interest-free.

### Due to related parties

Due to related parties consist of the following:

Name of Related Party	As of Dece	mber 31, 2014	As of De	cember 31, 2013
Limin Gao	\$		\$	382
Guoan Xu		2,422		
Qingmao Zhang				374
Chunmei Sun <sup>(1)</sup>				392,118
Chongqing Shenggu				
Investment Co., Ltd.				1,931,134
Chongqing Shenggu				
Construction Co., Ltd.				1,309,243
Northern Shenggu Call Center				
Training School				80,191
Yantai Shenggu Human				
Resources Management Co.,				
Ltd.				79,667
Chongqing Yongchuan				
Shenggu Training School				21,592
-				
	\$	2,422	\$	3,814,701

(1) In 2014, the Company decided to pay Chunmei Sun the interest at an annual rate of 15% since the starting date of the loan. The loan used to bear no interest before 2014. The interest expense recorded for the related party loan amounted to \$108,264 and zero for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. This loan was fully repaid in 2014.

Amounts owed by the Company represent non-secured loans obtained from related parties which were due on demand and expenses the related parties paid on behalf of the Company. Except the loan from Chunmei Sun mentioned above, all other loans obtained from related parties bear no interest.

## Note 10 MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND CREDIT RISK

The Company had two customers in each of the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 that contributed at least 10% of total revenues. Both companies are in the telecommunications industry, which collectively represents 74% and 78% of the total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The account receivable balance due from these two customers was \$3,909,063 and \$990,822 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The loss of one or more of its significant customers could have a material adverse effect on the Company s business, operating results, or financial condition. The Company does not require collateral from its customers. To limit the Company s credit risk, management performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers and maintains allowances for uncollectible accounts. Although the Company s accounts receivable could increase dramatically as the Company grows its sales, management does not believe significant credit risk exists as of December 31, 2014 and 2013.

## Notes 11 INCOME TAXES

Table of Contents

#### British Virgin Islands ( BVI )

Under the current laws of BVI, China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. is not subject to tax on income or capital gain. In addition, payments of dividends by the Company to their shareholders are not subject to withholding tax in the BVI.

## Hong Kong

The Company s subsidiary, CBPO, is incorporated in Hong Kong and has no operating profit or tax liabilities during the period. CBPO is subject to tax at 16.5% on the assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong.

## PRC

The Company s subsidiary and VIE registered in the PRC are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax (EIT) on the taxable income in accordance with the relevant PRC income tax laws. On March 16, 2007, the National Peoples Congress enacted a new enterprise income tax law, which took effect on January 1, 2008. The law applies a uniform 25% enterprise income tax rate to both foreign invested enterprises and domestic enterprises. According to the tax law, entities that qualify as high and new technology enterprises (HNTE) supported by the PRC government are allowed a 15% preferential tax rate instead of the uniform tax rate of 25%.

Taiying was granted the HNTE valid for three years starting from June 12, 2009 and successfully renewed the qualification of HNTE in the year of 2012. The qualification of HNTE will be renewed after evaluation by relevant government authorities every three years. Taiying was entitled to a preferential EIT rate of 15%. The qualification of HNTE expired in November 2015 and Taiying is currently undergoing the re-assessment of the qualification by the relevant government authorities. Other PRC entities are subject to the 25% EIT rate of their taxable income.

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

	For t	For the Years Ended December 31,			
		2014		2013	
Current	\$	526,202	\$	380,121	
Deferred		109,657		214,119	
Total	\$	635,859	\$	594,240	

The reconciliations of the PRC statutory income tax rate and the Company s effective income tax rate are as follows:

	For the Years End	led December
	2014	2013
PRC statutory income tax rate	25.00%	25.00%
Effect of income tax exemptions and reliefs	(8.10%)	(7.79%)
Effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes	2.10%	3.25%
Effect of income not recognized for tax purposes	(3.89%)	(4.25%)
Effect of valuation allowance on deferred income tax		
assets	4.98%	
Effect of income tax rate difference under different		
tax jurisdictions	6.21%	
Others		0.56%
Total	26.30%	16.77%

#### Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

The tax authority of the PRC Government conducts periodic and ad hoc tax filing reviews on business enterprises operating in the PRC after those enterprises complete their relevant tax filings. Therefore, the Company s PRC entities tax filings results are subject to change. It is therefore uncertain as to whether the PRC tax authority may take different views about the Company s PRC entities tax filings, which may lead to additional tax liabilities.

ASC 740 requires recognition and measurement of uncertain income tax positions using a more-likely-than-not approach. The management evaluated the Company s tax positions and concluded that no provision for uncertainty in income taxes was necessary as of December 31, 2014 and 2013.

#### Notes 12 COMMITMENTS

The Company leases facilities with expiration dates between May 2016 and December 2017. Rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was \$788,216 and \$430,835, respectively. The Company has future minimum lease obligations as of December 31, 2014 as follows:

2015	\$ 378,815
2016	339,588
2017	296,337
2018	
Thereafter	

\$1,014,740

## Total Note 13 STATUTORY RESERVES

According to the Company Law in the PRC, companies are required to set aside 10% of their after-tax profit to general reserves each year, based on the PRC accounting standards, until the cumulative total of such reserves reaches 50% of the registered capital. These general reserves are not distributable as cash dividends to equity owners. The Company had appropriated \$781,731 and \$533,863 to statutory reserves as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

## Note 14 STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

On March 6, 2014, China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. (CCRC) was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. On the same day, the Company issued 10,000 common shares at \$0.001 per share to its incorporator for a consideration of \$10.

On June 16, 2014, a total of 634,800 shares were issued at \$1.85 per share to two individuals and three corporations with cash proceeds of \$222,000 received in June 2014 and the remaining cash proceeds received in July 2014.

On September 3, 2014, the Company entered into certain control agreements with Taiying and its sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying, pursuant to which we, by virtue of our ownership of CBPO and CBPO s ownership of WFOE, control Taiying. In exchange for these control and grants, the shareholders of Beijing Taiying received ownership of the majority of the shares of CCRC. That is, 20 Beijing Taiying shareholders (including Gary Wang, who founded Taiying and is the chairman of the boards of both Taiying and CCRC) transferred their right to control Taiying to WFOE. Beijing Taiying shareholders then collectively received 15,284,800 of CCRC s 15,929,600 presently issued and outstanding shares, representing 96% of CCRC s issued common shares.

As of the filing date, there are a total number of 15,929,600 shares outstanding.

On September 3, 2014, the Company s Board of Directors approved the 2014 Share Incentive Plan (the Plan). Under the Plan, awards of options and restricted stock may be granted. These options may be incentive stock options or non-statutory stock options. Under the Plan, a total of 1,832,960 unissued shares shall be reserved. The exercise price of an option shall not be less than 100% of the fair market value of such shares on the date of grant.

## Note 15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Table of Contents

On January 8, 2015 and March 20, 2015, two new wholly-owned subsidiaries of Taiying, Jiangxi Taiying Technology Co., Ltd. and Xinjiang Taiying Technology Co., Ltd., were established. These two subsidiaries will mainly provide BPO services to customers in regions of Southeast China and Northwest China, respectively.

## CHINA CUSTOMER RELATIONS CENTERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

## CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2015 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2014	F-25
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 (Unaudited)	F-26
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 (Unaudited)	F-27
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)	F-28 - F-40

## CHINA CUSTOMER RELATIONS CENTERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

## CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

	June 30, 2015 (Unaudited)	December 31, 2014
ASSETS Cash	\$ 794,897	\$ 5,097,010
	. ,	, , ,
Accounts receivable, net Accounts receivable - related party	12,156,550 376,847	6,819,452 373,339
Notes receivable	1,168,670	1,157,793
Prepayments	873,245	639,861
Due from related parties	606,226	763,977
Deferred tax assets, current	31,484	105,711
Other current assets	2,099,777	1,297,995
Total current assets	18,107,696	16,149,427
Property and equipment, net	3,665,481	3,715,981
Deferred tax assets, non-current	33,682	
Total non-current assets	3,699,163	3,715,981
Total assets	\$ 21,806,859	\$ 19,865,408
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY		
Accounts payable	\$ 370,640	\$ 189,089
Accrued liabilities and other payables	2,406,975	2,224,301
Wages payable	2,437,214	2,041,226
Income taxes payable	696,292	477,740
Short term loans	4,820,137	5,567,860
Due to related parties		2,422
Deferred tax liabilities, current		181,482
Total current liabilities	10,731,258	10,684,120
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current		4,450
Total non-current liabilities		4,450
Total liabilities	10,731,258	10,688,570
Stockholders equity		
Common stock, \$0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 15,929,600 shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014,	15,930	15,930

respectively		
Additional paid-in capital	2,684,150	2,684,150
Retained earnings	7,082,956	5,460,871
Statutory reserves	969,807	781,731
Accumulated other comprehensive income	322,758	234,156
Total stockholders equity	11,075,601	9,176,838
Total liabilities and stockholders equity	\$ 21,806,859	\$ 19,865,408

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.

## CHINA CUSTOMER RELATIONS CENTERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

## CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

## (Unaudited)

	For The Six Months Ended June 3 2015 2014			
Revenues	\$	25,681,240	\$	16,887,414
Revenues - related party				11,418
Total revenues		25,681,240		16,898,832
Cost of revenues		20,293,632		14,128,488
Gross profit		5,387,608		2,770,344
Operating expenses:				
Selling, general & administrative expenses		3,459,306		2,097,828
Total operating expenses		3,459,306		2,097,828
Income from operations		1,928,302		672,516
Interest expense		(200,901)		(193,609)
Government grants		400,598		491,514
Other income		204,345		28,816
Other expense		(63,241)		(43,174)
Total other income		340,801		283,547
Income before provision for income taxes		2,269,103		956,063
Income tax provision		458,942		255,248
Net income	\$	1,810,161	\$	700,815
Comprehensive income				
Net income	\$	1,810,161	\$	700,815
Other comprehensive income (loss)				
Foreign currency translation adjustment		88,602		(22,527)
Total comprehensive income	\$	1,898,763	\$	678,288
Earnings per common share		· · · -		
Basic	\$	0.11	\$	0.05
Diluted	\$	0.11	\$	0.05
Weighted average common shares outstanding				

Basic	15,929,600	15,343,901		
Diluted	15,929,600	15,343,901		
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.				

## CHINA CUSTOMER RELATIONS CENTERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

## CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

#### (Unaudited)

	For the Six Months Ended June 2015 2014		
Cash flows from operating activities			
Net income	\$ 1,810	,161 \$	700,815
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:			
Depreciation	685	,495	591,393
Deferred income taxes	(251	,853)	162,024
Changes in assets and liabilities:			
Accounts receivable	(5,252	,332)	(3,584,380)
Accounts receivable - related party			(11,418)
Due from related parties	(19	,448)	3,347
Due to related parties	(2	,435)	10,739
Prepayments	(195	,905)	(19,249)
Other current assets	(788	,282)	(259,200)
Accounts payable	75	,157	12,496
Wage payable	375	,333	(295,580)
Income taxes payable	213	,224	(296,104)
Accrued liabilities and other payables	161	,714	(214,929)
Net cash used in operating activities	(3,189	,171)	(3,200,046)
Cash flows from investing activities			
Purchase of property and equipment	(527)	,083)	(349,455)
Loans to third parties			(24,431)
Repayment from third parties			130,300
Advance to related parties	(944	,593)	(1,424,468)
Repayment from related parties	1,128	,322	1,311,595
Net cash used in investing activities	(343	,354)	(356,459)
Cash flows from financing activities			
Proceeds from issuances of common shares			222,000
Proceeds from related parties	11	,451	32,575
Repayment to related parties	(11	,451)	(10,499)
Proceeds from short term loans	250		1,547,307
Repayment of short term loans	(1,046	,983)	(1,384,432)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	(796	,887)	406,951
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents	27	,299	(32,967)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	(4,302,113) 5,097,010	(3,182,521) 5,714,563
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$ 794,897	\$ 2,532,042
Supplemental cash flow information		
Interest paid	\$ 200,901	\$ 193,474
Income taxes paid	\$ 475,227	\$ 365,683

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements

#### CHINA CUSTOMER RELATIONS CENTERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

#### NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### Note 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP have been condensed or omitted as permitted by rules and regulations of the US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2014 was derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. (individually CCRC and collectively with its subsidiaries and operating variable interest entities, the Company). The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of December 31, 2014, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in stockholders equity and cash flows for the year then ended included in the Company s Registration Statement on Form F-1 filed with the SEC.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments (which include normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present a fair statement of the financial position as of June 30, 2015, and the results of operations and cash flows for the six-month period ended Six 30, 2015 and 2014, have been made.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company continually evaluates its estimates, including those related to allowance for doubtful accounts, impairment of long-lived assets, and provision for income taxes. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that it believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Any future changes to these estimates and assumptions could cause a material change to our reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

As of filing date, the Company s subsidiaries and variable interest entities are as follows:

N	Date of	Place of	Percentage of effective	
Name China BPO Holdings Limited,	incorporation	incorporation	ownership	Principal activities
( CBPO )	March 28, 2014	Hong Kong	100%	Holding company of WFOE
Shandong Juncheng Information Technology Co., Ltd. ( WFOE )	August 19, 2014	PRC	100%	Holding company
Shandong Taiying Technology Co., Ltd. ( Taiying )	December 18, 2007	DDC	Contractual	BPO service provider principally serves North
Chongqing Central BPO Industry Co., Ltd. ( Central BPO )	December 18, 2007	PRC	arrangements <sup>(1)</sup> 100% <sup>(2)</sup>	China BPO service provider principally serves South
Jiangsu Taiying Technology Co.,	January 28, 2010	PRC	100% (2)	China BPO service provider
Ltd. ( JTTC )	February 25, 2010	PRC	100% (2)	principally serves East China
Hebei Taiying Communication BPO Co., Ltd. ( HTCC )	April 20, 2010	PRC	100% (2)	BPO service provider principally serves North China
Shandong Central BPO Industry Co., Ltd. (SCBI)	August 9, 2012	PRC	100% (2)	BPO service provider principally serves North China
Jiangsu Central Information Service Co., Ltd. ( JCBI )	December 12, 2013	PRC	100% (2)	BPO service provider principally serves East China
Anhui Taiying Information Technology Co., Ltd. ( ATIT )	December 26, 2013	PRC	100% (2)	BPO service provider principally serves East China
Shandong Taiying Technology Guangxi Branch Company ( STTGB )	May 28, 2013	PRC	100% (2)	BPO service provider principally serves South China
Shandong Taiying Technology Chongqing Branch Company (STTCB)	February 22, 2013	PRC	100% (2)	BPO service provider principally serves South China
Jiangsu Taiying Information Service Co., Ltd. ( JTIS <sup>3)</sup> )	July 1, 2014	PRC	100% (2)	BPO service provider principally serves East China
Nanjing Taiying E-Commercial Business Co., Ltd. ( NTEB <sup>3)</sup> )	December 25, 2014	PRC	100% (2)	BPO service provider principally serves East China
Jiangxi Taiying Technology Co., Ltd. (JXTT <sup>3)</sup> )				BPO service provider principally serves Southeast
	January 8, 2015 March 20, 2015	PRC PRC	$\frac{100\%}{100\%}^{(2)}$	China
			10070	

Xinjiang Taiying Technology Co., Ltd ( XTTC <sup>3)</sup> )				BPO service provider principally serves Northwest China
Beijing Taiying Technology Co., Ltd. (BTTC) <sup>(3)</sup>	June 30, 2015	PRC	100% (2)	BPO service provider principally serves North China

- (1) VIE effectively controlled by WFOE through a series of contractual agreements
- (2) Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Taiying
- (3) The registered capitals of JTIS, NTEB, JXTT, XTTC, and BTTC are RMB 10,000,000 (\$1,642,360), RMB 6,000,000 (\$976,245), RMB 30,000,000 (\$4,927,079), RMB 10,000,000 (\$1,642,360), and RMB 10,000,000 (\$1,642,360), respectively. None of the capital has been received as of the filing date.

As of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the assets and liabilities in the Company s balance sheets related to CCRC and CBPO are as follows:

	June 30, 2015			December 31, 2014		
	Held by CCRC	Held b	y CBPO	Held by CCRC	Held	by CBPO
Assets						
Cash	\$ 3,804	\$	1,957	\$ 588,677	\$	51,956
Other current assets	456,705					
Liabilities						
Other payables	\$ 50,000	\$	2,000	\$ 15,295	\$	52,000

WOFE does not own any material assets or conduct any operations.

## NOTE 2 PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of CCRC, its subsidiaries and operating VIE, in which the Company is the primary beneficiary. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

CCRC s subsidiary, Shandong Juncheng Information Technology Co., Ltd. (WFOE), entered into a series of contractual arrangements (the Contractual Agreements) with Shandong Taiying Technology Co., Ltd (Taiying) and its sole stockholder, Beijing Taiying Anrui Holding Co., Ltd. (Beijing Taiying) as described below:

(1) Entrusted Management Agreement. The domestic companies, WFOE, Taiying and its sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying, have entered into an Entrusted Management Agreement, which provides that WFOE will be fully and exclusively responsible for the management of Taiying. As consideration for such services, Taiying has agreed to pay WFOE the management fee during the term of this agreement and the management fee shall be equal to Taiying s estimated earnings before tax. Also, WFOE will assume all operating risks related to this entrusted management service to Taiying and bear all losses of Taiying. The term of this agreement will be from the effective date thereof to the earlier of the following: (1) the winding up of Taiying, or (2) the termination date of this Agreement to be determined by the parties hereto, or (3) the date on which WFOE completes the acquisition of Taiying.

(2) Exclusive Option Agreement. Taiying and its sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying, have entered into an Exclusive Option Agreement with WFOE, which provides that WFOE will be entitled to acquire such shares from the current shareholder upon certain terms and conditions, meanwhile WFOE will be entitled an irrevocable exclusive purchase option to purchase all or part of the assets and business of Taiying, if such a purchase is or becomes allowable under PRC laws and regulations. The Exclusive Option Agreement also prohibits the current shareholder of Taiying as well as Taiying from transferring any portion of their equity interests, business or assets to anyone other than WFOE. WFOE has not yet taken any corporate action to exercise this right of purchase, and there is no guarantee that it will do so or will be permitted to do so by applicable law at such times as it may wish to do so.

(3) Shareholder s Voting Proxy Agreement. The sole shareholder of Taiying has executed a Shareholder s Voting Proxy Agreement to irrevocably appoint the persons designated by WFOE with the exclusive right to exercise, on

its behalf, all of its Voting Rights in accordance with the laws and Taiying s Articles of Association, including but not limited to the rights to sell or transfer all or any of its equity interests of Taiying, and to appoint and elect the directors and Chairman as the authorized legal representative of Taiying. This agreement will be only terminated prior to the completion of acquisition of all of the equity interests in, or all assets or business of Taiying.

(4) Pledge of Equity Agreement. WFOE and the shareholder of Taiying have entered into a Pledge of Equity Agreement, pursuant to which the sole shareholder pledges all of their shares (100%) of Taiying, as appropriate, to WFOE. If Taiying or its sole shareholder breaches their respective contractual obligations in the Entrusted Management Agreement , Exclusive Option Agreement and Shareholder s Voting Proxy Agreement , WFOE as Pledgee, will be entitled to certain rights to foreclose on the pledged equity interests. Such Taiying shareholder cannot dispose of the pledged equity interests or take any actions that would prejudice WFOE s interest. Except for the disclosed above, there are no arrangements that could require the Company to provide financial support to Taiying, including events or circumstances that could expose the Company to a loss. As stated in the disclosure of various agreements between the Company and Taiying, the Company has rights to acquire any portion of the equity interests of Taiying. Also, the Company may allocate its available funds to Taiying for business purposes. There are no fixed terms of such arrangements.

To the extent that the Contractual Arrangements are enforceable under PRC law, as from time to time interpreted by relevant state agencies, they constitute the valid and binding obligations of each of the parties to each such agreement.

The Company believes that Taiying is considered a VIE under Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 810, Consolidation, because the equity investors in Taiying no longer have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest, and the Company, through WFOE, is the primary beneficiary of Taiying and controls Taiying s operations. Accordingly, Taiying has been consolidated as a deemed subsidiary into WFOE as a reporting company under ASC 810.

As of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the carrying amount and classification of the assets and liabilities in the Company s balance sheets that relate to the Company s VIE and VIE s subsidiaries is as follows:

	June 30, 2015 (Unaudited)	December 31, 2014
ASSETS		
Cash	\$ 789,136	\$ 4,456,377
Accounts receivable, net	12,156,550	6,819,452
Accounts receivable - related party	376,847	373,339
Notes receivable	1,168,670	1,157,793
Prepayments	873,245	639,861
Due from related parties	606,226	763,977
Deferred tax assets, current	31,484	
Other current assets	1,643,072	1,297,995
Total current assets of VIE and its subsidiaries	17,645,230	15,508,794
Property and equipment, net	3,665,481	3,715,981
Deferred tax assets, non-current	33,682	
Total non-current assets of VIE and its subsidiaries	3,669,163	3,715,981
Total assets of VIE and its subsidiaries	\$ 21,344,393	\$ 19,224,775
LIABILITIES		
Accounts payable	\$ 370,640	\$ 189,089
Accrued liabilities and other payables	2,354,975	2,157,006
Wages payable	2,437,214	2,041,226
Income taxes payable	696,292	477,740
Short term loans	4,820,137	5,567,860
Due to related parties		2,422
Deferred tax liabilities, current		181,482
Total current liabilities of VIE and its subsidiaries	10,679,258	10,616,825
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current		4,450
Total non-current liabilities of VIE and its subsidiaries		4,450
Total liabilities of VIE and its subsidiaries	\$ 10,679,258	\$ 10,621,275

## Note 3 RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Interest - Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs . The amendments in the ASU are intended to simplify the presentation of debt issuance costs. These amendments require that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The recognition and measurement guidance for debt issuance costs are not affected by the amendments in this ASU. The amendments in this ASU are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted for financial statements that have not been previously issued. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s financial position and results of operations.

In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date . The amendments in ASU 2015-14 defer the effective date of ASU 2014-09 for all entities by one year. Public business entities, certain not-for-profit entities, and certain employee benefit plans should apply the guidance in ASU 2014-09 to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim reporting periods within that reporting period. Earlier application is permitted only as of annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim reporting periods within that reporting period. The Company is currently in the process of evaluating the impact of the adoption on its consolidated financial statements.

In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-15, Interest Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30) - Presentation and Subsequent Measurement of Debt Issuance Costs Associated with Line-of-Credit Arrangements . On April 7, 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Interest Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, which requires entities to present debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability. Given the absence of authoritative guidance within ASU 2015-03 for debt issuance costs related to line-of-credit arrangements, the SEC staff stated that they would not object to an entity deferring and presenting debt issuance costs as an asset and subsequently amortizing the deferred debt issuance costs ratably over the term of the line-of-credit arrangement, regardless of whether there are any outstanding borrowings on the line-of-credit arrangement. ASU 2015-15 adds these SEC comments to the S section of the Codification. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s financial position and results of operations.

In September 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-16, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Simplifying the Accounting for Measurement-Period Adjustments . The amendments in ASU 2015-16 require that an acquirer recognize adjustments to estimated amounts that are identified during the measurement period in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are determined. The amendments require that the acquirer record, in the same period s financial statements, the effect on earnings of changes in depreciation, amortization, or other income effects, if any, as a result of the change to the estimated amounts, calculated as if the accounting had been completed at the acquisition date. The amendments also require an entity to present separately on the face of the income statement or disclose in the notes the portion of the amount recorded in current-period earnings by line item that would have been recorded in previous reporting periods if the adjustment to the estimated amounts had been recognized as of the acquisition date. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s financial position and results of operations.

## Note 4 NOTES RECEIVABLE

The notes receivable includes due on demand interest-free notes to third parties. For the six months ended June 30, 2015, the Company did not advance to third parties or receive any repayments for notes receivable. For the six months ended June 30, 2014, the Company advanced due on demand interest-free note to a third-party company which amounted to \$24,431 and received repayments for a total amount of \$130,300 from a third party individual and a third party company. As of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the balances were \$1,168,670 and \$1,157,793, respectively.

## Note 5 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Accounts receivable, net, consists of the following:

	June 30, 2015	
Accounts receivable	\$12,180,572	\$ 6,843,251
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts	(24,022)	(23,799)
Accounts receivable, net	\$12,156,550	\$ 6,819,452

The changes in allowance for doubtful accounts consist of the following:

	For the Year Ended For the Six Months Ended December 31,						
	June	30, 2015		2014			
Balance, beginning of the period	\$	23,799	\$	28,872			
Provision for doubtful accounts				145,076			
Uncollectible receivables written-off				(149,975)			
Translation adjustments		223		(174)			
Balance, end of the period	\$	24,022	\$	23,799			

#### Note 6 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets consist of other receivables and deposits. Other receivable principally includes advances to employees for business travel or business development purpose and other miscellaneous receivables such utility fees, social insurances, and personal income tax paid in advance on behalf of employees. Deposits include guarantee deposit, rent deposit, and security deposit for bidding customer projects. As of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, other current assets consist of the following:

	June 30, 2015	Decer	nber 31, 2014
Other receivables	\$ 1,193,474	\$	442,951
Deposits	906,303		855,044
Total other current assets	\$ 2,099,777	\$	1,297,995

#### Note 7 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

As of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, property and equipment consisted of the following:

	June 30, 2015 Decen		nber 31, 2014
Electronic equipment	\$ 5,499,917	\$	4,984,251
Office furniture and equipment	1,422,391		1,415,725
Motor vehicles	632,492		487,336
Computer software	101,222		83,119
Leasehold improvements	1,510,033		1,494,648
Total property and equipment	9,166,055		8,465,079
Accumulated depreciation	(5,500,574)		(4,749,098)
Property and equipment, net	\$ 3,665,481	\$	3,715,981

Depreciation expense for the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 was \$685,495 and \$591,393, respectively.

#### Note 8 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

	June 30, 2015	December 31, 2014
Deferred tax assets, current		
Allowance for doubtful accounts	\$ 6,006	\$ 5,951
Accrued revenue (net of cost)	103,837	82,729
	109,843	88,680
Less: valuation allowance	(63,260)	(62,672)
	46,583	26,008
Deferred tax assets, non-current		
Depreciation expense	2,223	2,202
Loss carry forward	38,571	73,065
	40,794	75,267
Less: valuation allowance	(7,112)	(57,700)
	33,682	17,567
Deferred tax liability, current		
Accrued revenue (net of cost)	(15,099)	(207,490)
	(15,099)	(207,490)
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current		
Depreciation expense		22,017
	\$	\$ 22,017

The Company has net operating losses of \$154,287 as of June 30, 2015. If not used, such losses will start expiring from the beginning of 2017.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated balance sheets, certain deferred income tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred income tax balances for financial reporting purpose:

	June 30, 2015	Decem	ber 31, 2014
Deferred tax assets, current	\$ 31,484	\$	
Deferred tax assets, non-current	33,682		
Deferred tax liabilities, current			(181,482)
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current	\$	\$	(4,450)

## Note 9 SHORT TERM LOANS

Short term bank loans and related guarantees are comprised of the following:

	Guarantee	Ju	ne 30, 2015 Balance		nber 31, 2014 Balance
Bank of China, Tainan Branch	Taian Development District Taishan Venture Capital Co., Ltd, Gary Wang and	Ф		¢	010 505
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Jinan Branch	Yongjie Yang Taian Hongze Investment Guarantee Co., Ltd and Gary Wang <sup>(1)</sup>	\$	1,642,360	\$	813,537
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd., Taian Branch	Taian Development District Taishan Venture Capital Co., Ltd and Gary Wang		1,642,360		1,627,075
China Construction Bank, Yongchuan Branch	Chongqing Shuangye Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd, Taiying, Gary Wang and Yongjie Yang		1,313,888		1,301,660
Subtotal of bank loans		\$	4,598,608	\$	5,369,347

(1) In connection with the guarantee, Taian Hongze Investment Guarantee Co., Ltd. also pledged a twelve-month term deposit in the amount of RMB 500,000 (approximately \$81,354).

The annual interest rates of the short-term bank loans listed above ranged from 7.56% to 9.0%.

In addition to the short-term bank loans, the Company also entered into short term loan agreements with other third party individuals and companies for the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014. For the six months ended June 30, 2015, the Company borrowed \$250,096 from a third party individual and a third party company, and repaid \$229,028. For the six months ended June 30, 2014, the Company borrowed \$732,935 from a third party individual and a third party company, and repaid \$570,060. All these loans are unsecured and bear no interest. The loans were borrowed primarily to pay off salaries and other payables related to the business operation.

The interest expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 were \$200,901 and \$193,609, respectively.

## Note 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties consist of the following:

Name of Related Party	Nature of Relationship
David Wang	Shareholder, Director and Chief Financial Officer
Guoan Xu	Shareholder, Director and Vice President
Limin Gao	Manager of Taiying
Gary Wang	Principal Shareholder, Director, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
Yongjie Yang	Wife of Gary Wang
Qingmao Zhang	Principal Shareholder
Chunmei Sun	Wife of David Wang
Qiaolin Wang	Shareholder, Manager of Shandong Central BPO Industry Co., Ltd.
Shandong Luk Information Technology Co., Ltd.	Controlled by the brother of Gary Wang
Chongqing Ruixuan Technology Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Chongqing Shenggu Human Resources Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Chongqing Shenggu Investment Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Chongqing Shenggu Construction Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Shandong Shenggu Investment Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Northern Shenggu Call Center Training School	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Yantai Shenggu Human Resources Management Co., Ltd.	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Chongqing Yongchuan Shenggu Training School	Controlled by Beijing Taiying
Beijing Shenggu Investment Co., Ltd. <u>Revenues from related party</u>	Controlled by Beijing Taiying

The Company is the subcontractor of Shandong Luk Information Technology Co., Ltd. (Shandong Luk), a related party controlled by the brother of Gary Wang. For the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company generated related party revenues from Shandong Luk in the amount of zero and \$11,418, respectively. The related party accounts receivable with Shandong Luk amounted to \$376,847 and \$373,339 as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

#### Services purchased from related party

For the six months ended June 30, 2015, the Company purchased services from Shandong Luk in the amount of \$541,701. The related cost of \$541,701 was included in cost of revenues.

### Due from related parties

Due from related parties consist of the following:

	Jun	e 30, 2015	Decen	nber 31, 2014
Qiaolin Wang	\$		\$	2,948
Limin Gao				437
Chunmei Sun				76,485
Shandong Luk Information Technology				
Co., Ltd.		380,363		354,095
Chongqing Ruixuan Technology Co.,				
Ltd.				29,717
Chongqing Shenggu Human Resources				
Co., Ltd.		225,863		223,761
Chongqing Shenggu Investment Co., Ltd.				651
Chongqing Shenggu Construction Co.,				
Ltd.				2,644
Shandong Shenggu Investment Co., Ltd.				2,441
Northern Shenggu Call Center Training				
School				65
Chongqing Yongchuan Shenggu Training				
School				70,733
	\$	606,226	\$	763,977

The amount owed to the Company by related party companies represents non-secured short-term loans obtained from the Company, which bears no interest and was due on demand.

The remaining amounts owed to the Company by individuals represent advances to the Company management members for business travel or business development purpose and cash advances to the related parties which were non-secured and interest-free.

#### Due to related parties

The balance owed to the related party was zero and \$2,422 as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

\$2,422 represents the balance owed to Guoan Xu for expenses he paid on behalf of the Company.

## Note 11 MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND CREDIT RISK

The Company had two customers in each of the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 that contributed at least 10% of total revenues. Both companies are in the telecommunications industry, which collectively represents 70% and 74% of the total revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The balances due from these two customers were \$2,156,279 and \$3,909,063 at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

The loss of one or more of its significant customers could have a material adverse effect on the Company s business, operating results, or financial condition. The Company does not require collateral from its customers. To limit the Company s credit risk, management performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers and maintains allowances for uncollectible accounts. Although the Company s accounts receivable could increase dramatically as the Company grows its sales, management does not believe significant credit risk exists as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

## Notes 12 INCOME TAXES

#### British Virgin Islands ( BVI )

Under the current laws of BVI, China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. is not subject to tax on income or capital gain. In addition, payments of dividends by the Company to their shareholders are not subject to withholding tax in the BVI.

#### Hong Kong

The Company s subsidiary, CBPO, is incorporated in Hong Kong and has no operating profit or tax liabilities during the period. CBPO is subject to tax at 16.5% on the assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong.

#### PRC

The Company s subsidiary and VIE registered in the PRC are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax (EIT) on the taxable income in accordance with the relevant PRC income tax laws. On March 16, 2007, the National Peoples Congress enacted a new enterprise income tax law, which took effect on January 1, 2008. The law applies a uniform 25% enterprise income tax rate to both foreign invested enterprises and domestic enterprises. According to the tax law, entities that qualify as high and new technology enterprises (HNTE) supported by the PRC government are allowed a 15% preferential tax rate instead of the uniform tax rate of 25%.

Taiying was granted the HNTE valid for three years starting from June 12, 2009 and successfully renewed the qualification of HNTE in the year of 2012. The qualification of HNTE will be renewed after evaluation by relevant government authorities every three years. Taiying was entitled to a preferential EIT rate of 15%. The qualification of HNTE expired in November 2015 and Taiying is currently undergoing the re-assessment of the qualification by the relevant government authorities. Other PRC entities are subject to the 25% EIT rate of their taxable income.

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

	For t	For the Six Months Ended June 30,		
		2015		2014
Current	\$	710,795	\$	94,192
Deferred		(251,853)		161,056
Total	\$	458,942	\$	255,248

The reconciliations of the PRC statutory income tax rate and the Company s effective income tax rate are as follows:

	For the Six Months Ended June 30,	
	2015	2014
PRC statutory income tax rate	25.00%	25.00%
Effect of income tax exemptions and reliefs	(8.87%)	(21.98%)
	0.98%	24.57%

Effect of expenses not deductible for tax		
purposes		
Effects of income tax rate difference under		
different tax jurisdictions	1.79%	
Others	1.33%	(0.89%)
Total	20.23%	26.70%

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

The tax authority of the PRC Government conducts periodic and ad hoc tax filing reviews on business enterprises operating in the PRC after those enterprises complete their relevant tax filings. Therefore, the Company s PRC entities tax filings results are subject to change. It is therefore uncertain as to whether the PRC tax authority may take different views about the Company s PRC entities tax filings, which may lead to additional tax liabilities.

ASC 740 requires recognition and measurement of uncertain income tax positions using a more-likely-than-not approach. The management evaluated the Company s tax positions and concluded that no provision for uncertainty in income taxes was necessary as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

## Note 13 STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

On March 6, 2014, China Customer Relations Centers, Inc. (CCRC) was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. On the same day, the Company issued 10,000 common shares at \$0.001 per share to its incorporator for a consideration of \$10.

On June 16, 2014, a total of 634,800 shares were issued at \$1.85 per share to two individuals and three corporations with cash proceeds of \$222,000 received as of June 30, 2014 and the remaining cash proceeds received in July 2014.

On September 3, 2014, the Company entered into certain control agreements with Taiying and its sole shareholder, Beijing Taiying, pursuant to which we, by virtue of our ownership of CBPO and CBPO s ownership of WFOE, control Taiying. In exchange for these control and grants, the shareholders of Beijing Taiying received ownership of the majority of the shares of CCRC. That is, 20 Beijing Taiying shareholders (including Gary Wang, who founded Taiying and is the chairman of the boards of both Taiying and CCRC) transferred their right to control Taiying to WFOE. Beijing Taiying shareholders then collectively received 15,284,800 of CCRC s 15,929,600 presently issued and outstanding shares, representing 96% of CCRC s issued common shares.

As of the filing date, there is a total number of 15,929,600 shares outstanding.

On September 3, 2014, the Company s Board of Directors approved the 2014 Share Incentive Plan (the Plan). Under the Plan, awards of options and restricted stock may be granted. These options may be incentive stock options or non-statutory stock options. Under the Plan, a total of 1,832,960 unissued shares shall be reserved. The exercise price of an option shall not be less than 100% of the fair market value of such shares on the date of grant.

## Note 14 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company entered into three short term loan agreements with Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. Taian Branch to finance working capital on July 10, 2015, July 16, 2015 and September 21, 2015, respectively. The principal amount for each agreement is \$821,072 (RMB 5,000,000), \$492,700 (RMB 3,000,000) and \$314,747 (RMB 2,000,000) with annual interest rate of 6.50%, 6.50% and 6.39%, respectively. The maturity dates of the loans are July 9, 2016, July 16, 2016 and September 20, 2016, respectively. All the loans were guaranteed by Taishan Venture Capital Co., Ltd., and Gary Wang.

In addition, the Company borrowed \$221,789 (RMB13,500,000) from two third party companies and one third party individual for working capital purpose in July 2015 and repaid in full in July and August 2015. The loans are due on demand and annual interest rates range from 0% to 20%. Property and equipment with a net book value of \$2,545,751 (RMB15,500,571) was pledged as collateral for the loan from one third party company.

## CHINA CUSTOMER RELATIONS CENTERS, INC.

**Common Shares** 

Prospectus

## VIEWTRADE SECURITIES, INC.

Until January 2, 2016 (25 days after commencement of our initial public offering), all dealers that effect transactions in these securities, whether or not participating in this offering, may be required to deliver a prospectus. This is in addition to the dealers obligation to deliver a prospectus when acting as underwriters and with respect to their unsold allotments or subscriptions.

## PART II

## INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

#### Item 6 Indemnification of Directors and Officers

British Virgin Islands law does not limit the extent to which a company s articles of association may provide for indemnification of officers and directors, except to the extent any such provision may be held by the British Virgin Islands courts to be contrary to public policy, such as to provide indemnification against civil fraud or the consequences of committing a crime. Under our memorandum and articles of association, we may indemnify its directors, officers and liquidators against all expenses, including legal fees, and against all judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement and reasonably incurred in connection with civil, criminal, administrative or investigative proceedings to which they are party or are threatened to be made a party by reason of their acting as our director, officer or liquidator. To be entitled to indemnification, these persons must have acted honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interest of the registrant and, in the case of criminal proceedings, they must have had no reasonable cause to believe their conduct was unlawful.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers or persons controlling the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, the registrant has been informed that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.

#### Item 7. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

In the past three years, we issued 15,929,600 shares in the aggregate to 26 shareholders upon the reorganization of our company, in transactions that were not required to be registered under the Securities Act of 1933. All issuances of common shares to these shareholders were deemed to be exempt under the Securities Act by virtue of Section 4(2) thereof as transactions not involving any public offering. In addition, the issuance of 15,848,600 shares were deemed not to fall within Section 5 under the Securities Act and to be further exempt under Rule 901 and 903 of Regulation S by virtue of being issuances of securities by non-U.S. companies to non-U.S. citizens or residents, conducted outside the United States and not using any element of interstate commerce.

	Date of Issue	No. of Common Shares	Consideration	Securities Registration Exemption
WIN Forex Limited	June 16, 2014	340,800	\$630,480	Securities Act Section 4(a)(2) and Regulation S, Rules 901 and 903.
King Marks Limited	June 16, 2014	120,000	\$222,000	Securities Act Section 4(a)(2)

				and Regulation S, Rules 901 and 903.
LV Yan	June 16, 2014	60,000	\$111,000	Securities Act
				Section $4(a)(2)$ and
				Regulation S, Rules
				901 and 903.
Liu Zhonghua	March 6, 2014	10,000	Payment for incorporating CCRC	Securities Act
				Section 4(a)(2) and
	June 16, 2014	33,000	\$61,050	Regulation S, Rules
				901 and 903.
Fulcan Capital	June 16, 2014	81,000	\$149,850	Securities Act
Partners, LLC				Section 4(a)(2)
Taiying Shareholders	September 3, 2014	15,284,800	Execution of Control Agreement	Securities Act
				Section 4(a)(2)
				and Degulation S

and Regulation S, Rules 901 and 903

# Item 8. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules (a) Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated by reference in this prospectus:

## Exhibit

1.1	Form of Placement Agreement (2)
3.1	Memorandum and Articles of Association (2)
4.1	Specimen Common Share Certificate (2)
5.1	Opinion of Haneberg, PLC (2)
5.2	Opinion of KaiTong Law Firm (2)
8.1	Opinion of Haneberg, PLC with respect to tax matters (2)
8.2	Opinion of KaiTong law firm as to tax matters (2)
9.1	Translation of Shareholder s Voting Proxy Agreement (2)
10.1	Translation of Entrusted Management Agreement (2)
10.2	Translation of Exclusive Option Agreement (2)
10.3	Translation of Pledge of Equity Agreement (2)
10.4	Form of Shareholder Lock-Up Agreement (2)
10.5	Form of Officer and Director Lock-Up Agreement (2)
10.6	Translation of Employment Agreement with Gary Wang (2)
10.7	Translation of Employment Agreement with David Wang (2)
10.8	Translation of Employment Agreement with Guoan Xu (2)

- 10.9 Summary Translation of July 7, 2014 loan agreement with Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. (2)
- 10.10 Summary Translation of July 17, 2014 loan agreement with Shanghai Pudong Development Bank (2)
- 10.11 Summary Translation of September 19, 2014 loan agreement with China Construction Bank Co., Ltd. (2)
- 10.12 Summary Translation of April 2013 loan agreement between Chongqing Central BPO Industry Co., Ltd. and Chongqing Shenngu Construction Co., Ltd. (2)
- 10.13 Summary Translation of April 2013 loan agreement between Chongqing Central BPO Industry Co., Ltd. and Chongqing Shenngu Investment Co., Ltd. (2)
- 10.14 Form of 2014 Share Incentive Plan. (2)
- 10.15 Form of Escrow agreement between CCRC, View Trade Securities, Inc. and SunTrust Bank. (2)
- 10.16 Indemnification Escrow Agreement (2)
- 21.1 List of Subsidiaries of the Registrant (2)
- 23.1 Consent of MaloneBailey LLP (1)
- 23.2 Consent of Haneberg, PLC. (included in Exhibit 5.1) (2)
- 23.3 Consent of Haneberg, PLC (included in Exhibit 8.1) (2)
- 23.4 Consent of KaiTong Law Firm (included in Exhibit 5.2) (2)
- 23.5 Consent of KaiTong Law Firm (included in Exhibit 8.2) (2)
- 24.1 Power of Attorney (previously included on signature page)
- 24.2 Power of Attorney for Tianjun Zhang (previously included on signature page)
- 99.1 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (2)

(1) Filed herewith.

- (2) Previously filed.
- (b) Financial Statement Schedules

None.

## Item 9. Undertakings

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:

(i) To include any prospectus required by section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;

(ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) (§230.424(b) of this chapter) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than 20% change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the Calculation of Registration Fee table in the effective registration statement.

(iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement;

To provide to the underwriter at the closing specified in the underwriting agreements certificates in such denominations and registered in such names as required by the underwriter to permit prompt delivery to each purchaser.

That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

That, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b) (1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as of the time it was declared effective.

To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.

That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in the initial distribution of the securities: The undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:

(i) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424 (§230.424 of this chapter);

(ii) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or used or referred to by the undersigned registrant;

## Table of Contents

(iii) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the undersigned registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and

(iv) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.

That, insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

### SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form F-1 and has duly caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the People s Republic of China, on December 9, 2015.

## CHINA CUSTOMER RELATIONS CENTERS, INC.

By:	/s/ Gary Wang
Name:	Gary Wang
Title:	<b>Chief Executive Officer</b>

(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: December 9, 2015

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature	Title	Date
/s/ Gary Wang	Chief Executive Officer and Director	December 9, 2015
Gary Wang	(Principal Executive Officer)	
*	Chief Financial Officer	December 9, 2015
David Wang	(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)	
*	Vice President and Director	December 9, 2015
Guoan Xu		
*	Director	December 9, 2015
Weixin Wang		
*	Director	December 9, 2015
Jie Xu		

*	Director	December 9, 2015
Owens Meng		
*	Director	December 9, 2015
Tianjun Zhang		
*	Authorized Representative in the U.S.	December 9, 2015
Holly Chen		
* /s/ Gary Wang		
Gary Wang		
Attorney-in-Fact		
December 9, 2015		